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2007 AT A GLANCE

CONSISTENT HISTORY OF GROWTH
Revenue and Operating Incomg: 1988-2007
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L. Revenue
B Operating Income

Revenug and operating income for 1998 and prior years exclude Financial Information Services (FIS), which was divesf;ed in 1998,
Operating income for 2006 and 2007 includes a gain of $160.6 millian related to building safe and a $50.0 million restr&ctu'ing
charge, respectively. i




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

R T T RN TR S LTI B T S P TR i-{t{l‘? R & WY i T
Revenue R § 2.087.] S1.751.06 S 1.488.5 §1.246.6
Operating [Income! : : $1.250.5 $ 939.6 $ 7864 $ 6631
Net [ncome? R S 7589 S 568 3 42Ah.1 g 8630
Diluted EPS? § 958 0§ 18 0§ 140 0§ 110
[ Y

Total Assets LR S1A977 S1457.9  §1.3808 S 0300
Long-Term Debt® ot $ 800.0 $ 300.0 3 — $  800.0
ST Ul iwait Fofiae

Cost ol Share Repurchases? S $ 1LOVA.G § G617 § YOS s 1717
Dividends Paid Comre 0§ 795 0§ 603 0§ 447 % 268

Moody's financial highlights should be read in conjunction with the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations and the Consolidated Financial $tatements and notes thereto contained elsewhere in this Annual Report.

(1} Includes restructuring charge of $50.0 million in 2007 and a gain of $160.6 million related to building sale in 2006,

{2) Netincome and diluted EPS in 2007 include a $52.3 million benefit related 10 the resolution of certain legacy tax matters and
$30.0 million after-tax related to the restructuring charge. The 2006 amounts Include a $94.1 million after-tax gain related to the
building sale and & $2.4 million benefit related to certain legacy tax matters. The 2005 and 2004 amounts include $6.8 million
of tax benefits and $30.0 million of tax expense related to certain legacy tax matters, respectively. The 2003 amounts include a
$7.9 million after-tax gain related to an insurance recovery and a $16.2 million expense related to certain legacy tax matters,

(3) At December 31, 2004, the notes payable scheduled to mature in September 2005 were classified as a current Liability.

The 2007 amount includes the $300.0 million Series 2007-4 Notes issued in September 2007.

(2} The cost of share repurchases does nat reflect net proceeds from employee stack plans or refated tax benefits.

{1} Includes restructuring charge of $50.0 million in 2007 and gain of $160.6 million related to building sale in 2004.

2) Diluted EPS in 2007 includes a $52.2 million benefit related to the resolution of certain egacy tax matters and $30.0 million
alter-tax related to the restructuring charge. The 2006 amount includes a $94.1 millicn after-tax gain related to the building sale
and a $2.4 million benefit related to certain legacy tax matters, The 2005 and 2004 amounts include $8.8 million of tax benefits
and $30.0 million of tax expense related to certain legacy tax matters, respectively. The 2003 amount includes a $7.9 million
after-tax gain related to an insurance recovery and a $16.2 millicn expensa related to certain legacy tax matters,
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Dear Shareholders and Other Readers:

Moody’s confronted significant challenges in
2007 as credit problems that began in the U.S.
housing sector affected important parts of

our ratings business globally. The severity and
protracted nature of market dislocations that
grew from the inital credit problems confirm
that the challenges of 2007 will persist well into
2008. Despite these difficult conditions, Moody’s
achieved solid financial performance for 2007,
while continuing to make strong progress

on organizational and operating initiatives to
support superior long-term performance.

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

Financial performance for 2007 was sharply divided between the exceptional growth
achieved in the first half of the year versus the decline in the second half, when
important sectors of the credit markets contracted dramatically. Mooedy's 2007 revenue
growth of 11% was short of our long-term uverage annual target of 1244%, and growth
in diluted carnings per share! of 11% was also short of our long-term 1arget of 15%
average annual growth.

Moody's revenue growth in 2007 was broad-based, with almost all busincss
lines and geographic segments achieving growth and most of those at double-digit
raies. Ratings revenue growth at Moody’s Investors Service was led by global corpo-
rate finance at 22% and financial institutions ac 14%, Corporate ratings benefited
from strong high-yield debt and corporate loan issuance in the first half of the vear,
with a shift to lower-risk, investment-grade issuance amid tight credit conditions in
the second half. The primary hindrance to revenue growth came from the large
U.S. structured finance sector, which reported essentially tlat full-year performance
tollowing a significant second half downturn principally related o declines in issuance
of residential mortgage-hacked securities and collateralized debt obligations.

Revenue from our international ratings business grew 17% over 2006. International
ratings growth included a five percentage point contribution from favorable foreign
currency exchange rates (dollar depreciation), up from the one percent of growth
attribaitable to exchange rates in 2006, Europe (including Middle East and Africa)
led international ratings revenue growth in incremental dollar contribution at
$76 million, and both Europe and Asia grew at double-digit rates, with important
growth in new ratings mandates overcoming mixed issuance conditions. Internationally,

(1} Earnings per shara for 2007 excludes a $0.19 benefit from the settlement of a legacy tax matter anc $0.11 related to the
restructuring charge Earnings per share for 2006 excludes a $0 01 net reduction in tax reserves related to legacy tax
exposures and $0.32 refated 1o the gain on building sale.

INSIGHT. INTEGRITY. GROWTH. | | 1




contagion from U.8. credit market problems was visible, but both Europe and Asia
continue 1o present intriguing and profitable new market opportunities.

Moody's research business continued its strong performance, with global
research revenue rising 27%. Growth came [rom both new custemers and from the
sale of additional research to existing subscribers, New products aimed at meeting
customer needs for data and credit analysis tools continued to be important sources
of growth.

Full-year revenue at Moody’s KMV, our quantitative credit risk analytics busi-
ness, grew 8%. Growth in net sales of risk measurement products was supplemented
by superior performance in areas such as software sales and professional services.
Continuing a favorable trend, Moody’s KMV again increased profitability at a faster
rate than revenue growth.

Other reported financial measures include:

»  Operating income of $1.2 billion, up 7% from $1.1 billion in 2006.2
«  Netincome of $702 million, down 7% [rom $754 million in 2006.°
+ Diluted earnings per share of $2.50, 11% higher than $2.25 in 2006}

RESTORING CONFIDENCE

In my letter 1o shareholders last vear, I discussed maintaining business momentum
and 1aking steps to assure that Moody's growth would be as strong prospectively as it
has been historically. After the decline in revenue and operating income in late 2007,
as well as the disappointing performance of Moody’s stock over the last 12 months,
fresh perspectives on those subjects ure undoubtedly of interest to sharcholders in
2008. Before reconsidering the growth story, however, it is important that [ address
anather message from previous shareholder letters: confidence in Moody’s.

The Company’s long-term success depends critically on the confidence of our
stakeholders— debt issuers, the investment community, employees, governmental
authorities and shareholders—in Moody’s ethics, objectivity and credit judgments.
These pillars of stakcholder confidence have come under intense scrutiny since
the reversal of the U.S. housing market and our subsequent rating downgrades of
large numbers of morigage-related debt securities. While examination of the root
causes of the situation reveals multiple points of market failure, the speed and extent
of rating downgrades clearly contributed to the loss of confidence and undermined
the credibility of rating agencies, including Moody's.

How does Moody’s respond? First, we can and must always strive to improve the
quality of our work. Credit analysis is an inherently dynamic discipline —Moody's
rating methodologies must adapt 1o developments in markets and respond to the evo-
lution of finance. Throughout Moody’s history, our work has always been informed
by such change, but the current upheaval in the credit environment is unusually
extreme and marks an abrupt reversal of credit market trends that have prevailed
over more than 20 years, Lessons from the recent turmoil highlight opportunities

for improvements in assessing the quality of information used in our rating process,
the modeling and explanation of risk factors, and application of multi-disciplinary
analysis to even the most highly specialized instruments. Enhancing the quality of

(2) Excludes restructuring charge of $50.0 miltion in 2007 and gain of $160.6 million related to building sale in 2006

3) Includes a benefit of $52.3 million and $2.4 million related to the resolution of certain legacy tax matters in 2007 and
2006, respectively, a restructuring charge in 2007 of $50.G million ($30.0 millicn, net of tax} and an after-tax gain of
$94.1 million related to building sale in 2006.

{4) Earnings per share for 2007 excludes a $0.19 benefit from the settlement of a legacy tax matter and $0.11 related 1o the
restructuring charge. Earnings per share for 2006 excludes a $0.01 netreduction in tax reserves related to legacy tax
exposures and $0.32 related to the gain en building sale.

2 | MOODY'S CORPORATION 2007 Annual Report |




our work product and providing greater detail about macroeconomic and industry-
specific or regional factors that could drive rating changes will benefit the investing
puiblic and strengthen our business. With over $67 trillion in rated debt ownstanding
worldwide, Moody's opinions about the future performance of that debt will never
reveal flawless foresight, but our ravings are and will vemain powerfully accurate
predictors of future ereditworthiness.

Second, we must understand and respond to changes in the behavior of other
credit market participants. At a basic level, Moody's traditional role as a credit
information intermediary between debt issuers and investors may be too limited
for markets such as structured finance. That traclitional role functioned well when
financial institutions practiced the “originate-to-hold” model in lending money and
creating assets. Under that model, lenders effectively operated like investors, making
“investment” decisions through their loan review and approval processes. However,
with the development of loan pooling and risk wansfer via securitization, the “origi-
nate-to-distribute” model altered many lenders” behaviors, As a resull, rating agencices
no longer serve just as information intermediaries between entities with like-minded
investment orientations. Instead, we may also have to assess information gaps that
arise from the changed behaviors of market participants and discover alternative
sowrees of information, or accommodate and more completely capture such gaps
in our ratings. These changes reveal a higher and more challenging standard for
our work; nonetheless, it is a standard that Moody’s must embrace if we are to meet
market needs and restore confidence.

Finally, Moody’s strongly rejects assertions that our work is compromised by
any failure of integrity or a lack of independence in our processes. For example, in
the wake of recent events some observers claim that conflicts of interest have influ-
enced our business because we receive fees from rated issuers. Moody's recognizes
that potential conflicts exist so long as we are paid by any market participant whose
financial interests may be affected by our opinions, including investors who hold
or wish to buy rated obligations or the issuers of such obligations, The guestion is not
whether potential conflicls exist— they always will —but whether they are properly managed. A
Moody's, we have taken a leadership position in setting industry standards regarding
the management of potential conflicts. Our Code of Professional Conduct sets
forth rigorous procedures that govern the roles and responsibilities of our rating
agency employees, with the primary goal of ensuring that our analytical activities
remain appropriately distanced from the commercial management of our business.
Oversight by our internal Compliance Department as well as external examination
by government authorities serves to reinforce, validate and improve our controls and
procedures. Most importantly, however, our employees participate in a culture of
integrity that is informed by the responsibilities and traditions developed over more
than 104 years of contribution to strong capital markets.

A FRESH LOOK AT GROWTH

In previous sharcholder letters, I've written confidently about globalization and dis-
intermediation, innovations in Anancial technology, and global CLCONOMIC eXpansion
as powerful and interconnected drivers of growth for Moody’s business. 1 also
said—with more prescience than [ would have liked —that cyclical factors such as
business and consumer confidence, general credit conditions and invesoment capital
flows would inevitably wax and wane, After vears of broadly positive credit market
conditions and strong growih, it was clear that the husiness cvcle was due 1o turn.

ITNSIGHT, INTEGRLITY. GROWTH.

ERANCING RATINGS
AR AWARENESS

We continue to make significant
efforts to raise market aware-
ness of what ratings do and do
not measure so that our ratings
are used in ways gpnsistent with
their purpose.

We are in the progess of
expanding the information con-
tent of our ratings and related
analytical tools to fully address
identified market needs.

We continue to enhance our rat-
ings processes and incorporate
resources and expertise across
disciplines to address the com-
plexities and interdependencies
of modern credit analysis.

We make all of our methodolo-
gies publicly available to help
market participants better
understand our analytical
processes and our approach to
rating decisions.




That said, I certainly did not anticipate the intensity or scope of credit market
turmoil that began in mid-2007.

Disintermediation and Financial Innovation. Amidst the current turmoil in global
credit markets, we observe some re-intermediation of financial assets into the bank-
ing system and investor rejection of some classes of structured products, These
phenomena have suppressed credit market activity in the near term. Over the longer
horizon, howcver, there are compelling reasons to remain bullish about the pros-
pects for disintermediation and financial innovation, Both are essential features of
capital markets evolution and, properly developed, further the efficient allocation of
investment capital to support global economie growth. Itis important that innova-
tive financial products regain investor (and regulatory) confidence, and Moody’s will
continue to play a central role in providing insight that fucilitates market acceptance
of new financial technology. We expect a protracted retrenchment of the structured
finance segment of our ratings business through 2008 and possibly into 2009, as
investors adjust their risk tolerances and adapt to newly constructed instruments. In
the interim, we will remain vigilant in monitoring owstanding rated securities under
stress, demonstrate analyucal enhancements that restore both private and official
sector confidence in our work, and promote efforts toward creating more transpar-
ency in our ratings of complex instruments.

International Growth. Worldwide economic growth and globalization of credit
markets will continue, as will demand for expert opinion about the institutions and
instruments that trade in those markets, Even in the difficult business conditions
of 2007 Moody's achieved 18% growth from our non-U.S. business, reflecting the
growing impaortance of debt capital markets—and by extension, Moody's services—
around the world. We continue to position the company for global opportunities by
expanding our participation in promising markets in Asia, Furope, the Middle
East and Latin America through acquisitions and joint venture invesunents as well
as establishment of Moody's subsidiaries. Our international investments in 2007
and early 2008 included:
» Dubai. Moody's Middle East Lid., located in the Dubai International Financial
Center, commenced ratings operations.
+ Isracl. Moody’s increased our investtment in the Israeli rating agency,
Midroog Lid., to majority ownership.
» Indoncsia. We acquired 99% of the Indonesian rating agency, PT Kasnic Credit
Rating [Indonesia.
« Latin America. We entered into agreements to provide technical assistance
and training to the Colombian rating agency, BRC Investor Services, and
the Peruvian agency, Equilibriuim, which also has operations in El Salvador
and Panama.
» South Africa. We expanded our presence in South Africa by acquiring

CA Ratings, Ltd., one of the country’s leading domestic rating agencies.

Growth from Moody's Analvtics. Especially during this period of credit market
contraction, we will rely on growth from arcas outside the ratings business to meet
hoth customer and shareholder expectations. Our new operating company, Moody’s
Analytics, combines all of our non-ratings businesses —including Moody’s KMV,
Moody’s Economy.com, our credit training and risk consuiting activities as well as
sales of reseurch produced by the rating agency—under a centralized leadership

o
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CONPIDEER

Moody’s reorganized our opera-
tions to separate the regulated
ratings business of Moody's
Investors Service from our other
commercial activities, which

are now resident in a separate
operating company, the newly
created Moody's Analytics.

The Moody's Investors Service
Credit Policy function—which
oversees ratings methodologies,
processes and ratings perfor-
mance measurement—was
made fully independent from
commercial responsibilities of
the business.

We have committed to ongo-
ing, rigorous examination of our
methodologies and analytic pro-
cesses across all ratings groups
to continue to improve the
accuracy, quality and relevance
of our ratings and related
communications.

We are participating in a
credit ratings industry working
group charged with develop-
ing and implementing actions
to enhance perceptions of
ratings independence, quality
and transparency.




team. Independently, the components of Moody’s Analytics have produced surong
performance records, summing o greater than 20% average annual revenue growth
since 2000,

We plan to expund the Moody’s Analytics business further through internal
product development and selective acquisition of capabilities in specialized areas of
the credit markets. Recent advances have come in several areas—including credit
training, where we recently acquired Financial Projections Limited, and pricing
and valuation services, where we recently acquired Mergent Pricing and Evaluation
Services, Inc. and BQuotes, We believe that strong growth from Moody’s Analytics
is sustainable even through a market downwrn, given the continued and growing
demand for risk assessments and measurement tools and the advantages of Moody's
long-standing, deep customer relationships.

1 should conclude my comments on growth by noting that cost management
is an important piece of the puzzle in o lower growth environment. Moody's took a
restructuring charge of $50 million in 2007, The effect of this charge should help us
prudently manage expenses in 2008, while siill funding important strategic initiatives
within Moody's Analytics and in ratings and technology. While necessary, the restruc-
wiring included a reduction in our workforce affecting a number of emplovees who
had meaningfully contributed 1o Moody's growth over a number of years. They will
be missed. 1 would like to express my thanks to Moody's employees worldwide for
their dedication and perseverance under difficult circamstances.

TESTING CONDITIONS REINFORCE QUR COMMITMENTS
TO CUSTOMERS, SHAREHOLDERS AND OQTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The challenging conditions of 2007 and early 2008 have wested business models,
operating assumptions and decisions of many participants in the financial markets,
including Moody's. There are abundant lessons (o be learned and opporwnities for
renewed growth emerging from the application of those lessons. As I have briefly
outlined in this letter, Moody's has made substantial commitments to communicat-
ing about the integrity of our work, enhancing the transparency of our processes,
raising market awareness of our proper role and function in assessing credit, and
developing additional tools and measures 1o address a broader range of market needs
around credit.

Beyond this difficult cyclical period, we have confidence that the markets we
serve will continue to grow and the demand for independent expertise in assessing
credit and fostering consistent. comparative standards for credit should also
grow accordingly.

Moody’s goal is to remain the leading authority on credit risk in the global
capital markets. We are a “standards” business, hoth hecause we offer global stan-
dards for assessing credit and because we must operate 1o standards that satisfy all
stakeholders. At various times, testing market conditions have challenged our “stan-
dards” role and this period is such a time. Moody's is responding with efforts that
visibly demonstrate enhancements in our work processes, performance and commu-
nication that will not only sustain, but ¢enhance. our role in global credit markets.

Raymond W. McDaniel, Jr.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

INSIGHT, INTEGRITY. GROWTH.
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o While financial inngvation drove

growth in structured finance
ratings and related analytical
tools in recent years, such inno-
vation has recently slowed; we
anticipate improved transpar-
ency, along with simpler and
more similar products, in the
next period of development.

We will continue tg position
Moody's to capitalize on the
growth in capital markets
worldwide by expanding our
international operations through
investments and acquisitions.

Revenue growth for Moody'’s
Analytics will be driven by
growing demand for research,
consulting and software
services, and an integrated
structure that enables us to
better anticipate and respond to
changes in customer needs.
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Restoring Investor and
Market CONFIDENCE

As the President and Chief Operating Officer of Moody’s

Investors Service, I am privileged to lead an organization

that has been a provider of independent credit opinion and

insight to the global financial markets for over 100 years.

The credit crunch and subse-
quent liquidity crisis have generated
substantial commentary about the
performance and quality of certain
classes of financial instruments as

well as Moody's analysis and opinions

about those instruments. Views of our

work have often been driven by per-
ceptions that our ratings do or should
serve additional purposces, such as
measure liquidity, represent volatility
expectations, or track market price.
Moody’s has taken actions (o raise
market awareness about the role and
function of our ratings and to dem-
onstrate sound, independent mling
methodologics and processes. We
have been commmunicating regularly
about these actions with market
participants. We also recognize that
a reappraisal of ratings creates new
opporturnities to apply our analytical

Py

&
] e

ganization supports the
independefce and integrity of our ratings -
business aslwe respond to the events

of 2007 andfwvork to fulfill our commitment
to deliveringfindependent, transparent

oody's regj

expertise and technologies by devel-
oping additional tools for our analysts
and for investors,

Our reorganization in August
2007 enabled us to consolidate
and streamline the development of
additional analytic products and
services (sce "Ratings-related Growth
[nitiatives™), and to integrate and re-
focus our sales and marketing efforts
through the new Moody’s Analytics
husiness unit (sce “Building Growth
through Moody’s Capabilities™). The
reorganization also supports the inde-
pendence and integrity of our ratings
business as we respond 1o the events
of 2007 and work to fulfill our com-
mitment to delivering independent,
transparent credit analysis of the
highest quality for every instrument
we rate.
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The Role and Function of
CREDIT POLICY

The U'STsubprime mortgage crisis and resulting effects on the global ';

credit markets have led 1o much market discussion about the role, fun#[ion

<L

e}
_ a{fd-performance of credit ratings. Many recognize the unprecedented
N A . - - . - . . . |
scombination of forces driving mortgage delinquencies in the U.S.—the

+ «steep decline in home prices, sharp contraction in credit available for |

{gﬂ%’/ ‘efinancing, deterioration in mortgage underwriting processes and

N misrepresgelltatiogirl the mortgage application process. Nonetheless,
market obsérvers remain concerned that ratings did not better predict the

. extent of deteri »fation in the U.S. subprime mortgage market as well as

:\ité‘i'mpact on the credit quality of residential mortgage-backed securities

\ . .
(RMBS)-and related structured finance securities that relied on such

mertigage assets as collateral.

— T L . . ..
R. - MoedySresponse to the extraordinary credit conditions of 2007

and 2008 has included raising market awareness about the meaning and
purpose of our ratings, pursuing enhancements to our credit analysis

in areas that have not fared well under stress, and supporting other
market-based efforts to overcome the dislocations that have curtailed the

availability of credit. In combination, these efforts must address the loss o

of credibility with investors and other market participants. Moody’s Credit by o

Y‘I’,‘olicy group will play-a key role in this work.




* Credit Policy exercises
of the deveiopment of
andl the proesss eff
Meniering ratings.”

ANDREW KIMBALL

CHIEF CREDIT QFFICER,

CHAIR OF CREDIT POLICY COMMITTEE,
MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE

THE CREDIT POLICY FUNCTION

Moody's Credit Policy function exercises informed oversight over the development
of rating methodologics and the process of assigning and monitoring ratings. A key
governance elenment for Credit Policy is its independence from commercial respon-
sibilities. Highlights about the Credit Policy function at Moody's, some of which are

long-standing and some of which respond to recent conditions, include:

* Credit Policy has reported directly to the president of Moody's Investors Service
since August 2007, Performance incentives for Credit Policy personnel relate
to their effectiveness in oversight of rating processes and analytical quality, and

are independent of any specific ratings business unit performance.

= Each rating department has a full-time Chiel Credit Officer responsible for the
integrity and elfectiveness of ratings practice within that unitand reporting w
the Credit Policy Chair.

* Credit Policy works continually to align our professional development and
training programs (established in 2002) with identified credit analysis needs.
As markets and debt instruments evolve, often in the direction of greater
complexity, the qualifications of analysts become ever more critical to ensure
high-quality ratings. Each year, up to 50% of the training provided for analyti-
cal staff conststs of new material that addresses the latest marke developments.
in 2008, greater focus on developing distance learning opportunities will
enable a timely, standardized training expericnce and utilize analyst time more
elficiently.

ENHANCEMENTS TO MOODY'S RATING METHODOLOGIES

Methodologies, models and scorecards are used by many Moody's rating groups (o
support consistent, fact-based credit assessments for consideration by rating com-
mittees. Refining these, adding to the performance data that underlies them, and
adapting them to industries and sectors with unique credit characteristics is an
ongoing task. Quantitative tools are one part of a broader decision-making process
that also depends on other credit-related information and judgment, but they are an
important input and it is crucial to manage their quality and use, and to be attentive
to their limitations.
Moody’s is increasing interdisciplinary oversight of methodologies and
models across business lines to enhance consistency and achieve greater breadth
of perspective:
* All ratings policy committees include representation from diverse rating
groups and regions as well as from the Credit Policy team.
= Credit Policy periodically reviews the adequacy of key models, methodologies,
and assumptions used in the rating process, with the authority to refer them
back o the rating group for attention as necdec,

10
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FRAMEWORK ANALYSIS

Moody’s continues to take steps to adapt its rating decision framework to the grow-
ing complexity of financial markets and debt instruments, Rating committees bring
together analysts with a range of practical credit experience to complement the
output of methodologies and models, including cross-disciplinary representation
when appropriate. In light of recent market events, credit policy approval committees
are casting an increasingly critical eye on credits that depend on market liquidity or
price stability, complex structures, or precise estimates of correlation.

Methodology and sector reviews and key rating committees include discussion
of broad economic stresses, wrends in market behavior, the competitive environment,
and management performance or governance. Those assumptions and expectations
that significantly affect ratings are communicated in our research:

* Moody’s has initiated a Global Financial Risks Perspeciives scrics to formalize and
communicate our view of broad risks to the financial stability of global capital
markets.

« For analytic purposes, Moody’s will annually define an expected global eco-
nomic and financial scenario and offer several alternative scenarios that stress
or vary the expected. These scenarios 1na)" be used by rating teams to stimulate
thinking about the likely future performance of our ratings and
may be discussed in industry or sector outlook comments.

CROSS-LINKS SUPPORTING CREDIT ANALYSIS

Z Some joint analysis
B Regular joint analysis
B Subsiantial joint analysis
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Moody’s continues to create new approaches to assess the economic, market and industry framework
affecting credit nisk. Rating processes and committaes increasingly involve analysts from different asset
types because of shared risks and interdependencies between sectors and issuance categories. This

crass-links grid represents an illustrative mapping of coardination across business fines and asset classes
to praperly analyze cross-sector connactions.

" Moody's is increasing
interdisciplinary
oversight of method-
ologies and models
across business lines
to better ensure
consistency and to
achieve greater breadth
of perspective.”
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» Additional assumptions about macroeconomic, financial, market, regulatory
or political developments deemed significant to a rating decision will be noted

in Moody’s relevant research.

+ New Issue reports for certain structured securities will discuss the kind and
degree of unexpected stresses that might cause rated instruments to suffer a
material impairment.

INFORMATION QUALITY MATTERS

The quality of credit analysis necessarily relies on the sufficiency of underlying data.
However, the use of historical data for modeling and estimating future risk can
never be definitive and could potentially under-represent the infrequent periods

of extreme stress. As a result, estimates of future performance involve imperfect
judgment. Moreover, the layering of multiple risks without full appreciation of their
interactions gives rise 1o “perfect storm” situations. Several steps are being taken to
mitigate such sitnations in the future:

*  Moody's ongoing review of models and methodologies will explicitly address
the quality and completeness of underlying data and consider the sensitivity of
results to a range of input error. The findings will be made public.

» Our research will differentiate hetween sectors and securities issuers by the
quality and availability of the information appropriate for reaching robust
credil conclusions.

» In some cases, credit commitiees may conclude that the highest rating levels
cannolt be attained on any basis other than full credit and /or liquidity support
from a highly creditworthy financial institution.

¢ We will continue to expand efforts launched in the fundamental ratings
group o foster consistency and comparability across rating categories and
asset classes, through consistent data entry and rigorous application of
standard processes.

*  Moody’s is committed to transparency regarding our analytical processes and
models, and will continue to solicit and incorporate market feedback as we
develop and revise our methodologics.

These and other initiatives continue our etfort to improve the clarity with
which we describe our rating decisions and the process we utilize 1o reach them.
During 2007, we published 19 new methodologies and posted various scorecards
and models on the Moody’s website for free use by registered users. We intend this
openness to contribute to a richer market dialogue on our process and conclusions,
enabling others in the market to make more informed decisions about their use
of and reliance on ratings,

CREDIT
POLICY ORGANIZATION

CHIEF CREDIT OFFICER &

CHAIR OF
CREDIT POLICY COMMITTEE

PROFESSIONAL
TRAINING

POLICY &
SURVEILLANCE

CREDIT
RESEARCH

CHIEF CREDIT OFFICERS
BY LINE OF BUSINESS

POLICY
COMMITTEES
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Moody’s Participation in
Regulatory SOLUTIONS

As Moody's operations have grown in size and geographic scope,
the company has made a concerted effort to establish and main-
tain constructive relationships with regulators, legislators and
policymakers around the world. Our goal is to understand the
needs and expectations of authorities as we play our part in sup-
porting the efficiency and soundness of global financial markets.
At the same time, we must preserve Moody’s independence

and integrity, the cornerstones of our business. To this effect,

we focus on three important activities:

+  First, we communicate with national authorities in both established and

developing capital markets o better understand and consider their unique
issues and concerns.

» Second, we interact with international regulatory associations {such as
the International Organization of Securities Commissions, or “IOSCO"}
and regional authorities (such as the Committee of European Securities
Regulators, or “CESR”) to achieve a similar level of understanding of pan-
national regulatory perspectives.

+ Finally, we are in continuous dialogue with market participants around the
world s that our regulatory positions are informed by existing and developing
market conditions.

objectivity:
, improve * -

f.

Moody's global Regulatory Affairs team is composed of highly skilled pro-
fessionals with the insight and cross-disciplinary expertise 1o formulate practical,
forward-looking solutions. Our mandate is to work toward constructive and durable
outcomes that facilitate Moody’s contribution to the efficiency and function of global
capital markets.

SURVEYING THE CURRENT REGULATORY LANDSCAPE

Over the past several years, authoritics have sought (o gain a better understanding
of how credit rating agencies operate, the attributes and limitations of credit ratings,
the use of credit ratings in the capital markets and whether additional oversight

1s necessary or appropriate. In light of increased interest in rating agencies from
governments, market participants and the broader public, several regulatory initia-

tives have already been taken,

| 1 | MOODY'S CORPORATION 2007 Annual Report |
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Moody's Regulatory Affairs team is structured to ensure effective
global implementation and has the resources ta engage regulators
at both the national and international levels.

-
gz CANADA, EUROPE, ASIA-PACIFIC,
B E us., MIDDLE EAST, ASIAN

= LATIN AMERICA AFRICA SUBCONTINENT

JAPAN

In December 2004, IOSCO published a model Code of Conduct for credit

rating agencies (the “IOSCO Code”). The 108CO Code addresses three broad areas:

» Quality and integrity of the rating process.

» Credit rating agency independence and the avoidance or effective mitigation
of potential conflicts of interest.

= Credit rating agency responsibilities to the investing public and issuers,

The IOSCO Code is not hinding on credit rating agencies; rather, it relies on

voluntary adherence and public disclosure of areas of non-adherence so that users of

credit ratings can better assess rating agency behavior and performance.

On the legislative front, the U.S. Congress passed the Credit Rating Agency
Reform Act of 2006 (the “Reform Act™), which created a voluntary registration
process for any rating agency wishing (o be designated as “nationally recognized”
and o have its ratings available for use in federal sccurities laws. The Reform Act
provides the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) with ongoing author-
ity to oversee nationally recognized rating agencies. lmportantly, the Reform Act
preserves existing legal protections and privileges afforded rating agencies as
publishers of credit opinions, including a prohibition on regulating the substance
of ratings, thereby helping to ¢nsure rating agency independence. The SEC regis-
tered Moody’s Investors Service as nationally recognized in September 2007, and
the new oversight rules are consistent with the 108CO Code and Moody’s Code of
Professional Conduct.

In Europe, a self-regulatory model prevails for credit rating agencies. A vol-
untary reporting and review process has been in existence for several years at
the European Union level and several national authorities also provide oversight
of the industry. The 2006 review found that global rating agencies were largely
compliant with the IOSCO Code.

GENERAL AREAS OF
INTEREST 7O REABULATERS

———

RATINGS QUALITY

Transparency of mathodologies
and processes |
Ratings performance

MANAGEMENT OF
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Issuer Pays and/or Investor
Pays model

Securities holdings.in
rated entities ‘

Other relationships with
rated entities

CONFIDENTIALITY

Issuer information
Pending rating actions

AGENCY COMPETITION

Avoiding regulatory barriers
to entry

Possible anticompaetitive
practices
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Across other regions, including developing markets, authorities by and large

vicw independent rating agencies as an important resource for bolstering investor

confidence and therchy promoting the development of strong, efficient capital

markets. Regulatory approaches vary widely from no or light regulation to licensing

and oversight regimes. In discussions with these regulators, Moody's points to the

108CO Code as a sound model for a principles-based, non-prescriptive approach.

A PRACTICAL, FORWARD-LOOKING APPROACH

The developments described above have been an important part of the ongoing

global dialogue about the role, function and performance of credit rating agencies.

Moody's has proactively participated in this discussion and has publicly supported

and endorsed these efforts by implementing the Moody’s Code of Professional

Conduct and associated compliance processes.

Moody's has also endeavored o play a constructive part in helping to alleviate

the recent market turmoil. In addition 1o enhancements of our own processes and

opinions, we have offered observations about potential industry-level and market-

level changes that we helieve would facilitate the restoration ol market confidence

and mitigate future credit market disruption, In this regard, and in response to calls

by yovernmental authorities and market participants, Moody’s Regulatory Affairs

team has worked together with a group of participating credil rating agencies to

recommend progressive steps that our industry can take to enhance the perceived

objectivity of ratings, improve the clarity of ratings, and improve the disclosure and

the management of potential conflicts of interest.

Moody's Regulatory Affairs team will continue to fulfill its mandate of working

constructively with regulatory authoritics and offering forward-thinking solutions to

maintain a strong, transparent and independent credit rating incustry that reflecis

and reinforces similar attributes in the global credit markets.

MO G DAVS
CEMPLIANECE
ASTIVIES

MICHAEL KANEF

CHIEF REGULATORY AND
COMPLIANCE QFFICER

In 2007, Moody's Compliance
Department continued its
efforts to protect the
integrity, cbjectivity and
transparency of our credit
rating process as well as
respond to changes in the
regulatory environment,
including the new rules
enacted by the SEC relating
to nationally recognized
rating agencies. To that end,
the Compliance Department
reviewed and revised certain
existing policies, including
Moody's Code of Professional
Conduct, and has worked

to develop new policies,
procedures and systems.

We also developed a
web-based compliance
training program that
provides tailored services on
subjects such as our revised
Code of Professional
Conduct as well as compli-
ance procedures regarding
e-mail use and storage. In
2008, the Compliance
Department will continue
to review Moody’s existing
policies and procedures
to ensure that Moody's
remains in compliance with
regulatory requirements as
they evolve.
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’ ‘ / markets. Growth was driven by a number of forces, including globalizaf‘,ion
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Structured Finance
RATINGS and INITIATIVES

v
/Until 2007, there was unprecedented expansion in the structured finarce
I

i
H

of the financial markets, persistent investor demand for sophisticated !
derivative structures (CDOs, hybrids, synthetics), and the vast growth ifh
securitizations of U.S. subprime mortgages. ¥

. {
In light of this immense growth—in BETTER DATA QUALITY

market volume, instrument types, as well .

. ) P We learned that some of the data provided 1o

as transaction complexity—one of our key L. L

. ’ . us for our quantitative and qualitative
missions has been to ensure the market’s

proper understanding and use of our
structured finance ratings, and our ratings

assessments of subprime mortgage-backed
securities proved to be unreliable, especially

: ) for certain types of morigages. In respohse—-
methodologies, processes and inputs (see

“The Role and Function of Credit Policy™).
This mission gained far greater import dur-

although rating agencies are ill-cquipped to
detect or prevent fraud in all instances—we
have developed more rigorous processes Lo
verify data, flag suspicious information or
sources, and clarify the extent and limits of
the historical data informing cur models.

A

ing 2007, amid the credit crisis prompted by
underperfermance of securities related o
subprime mortgages and the liquidity crisis
that followed. ™~
In examining where our ratings and
processcs proved vulnerable under stress, ASSESSING NON-CREDIT RISK
as well as where our work may have been COMPONENTS OF PERFORMANCE
misunderstood or misapplied, we have identi- . . . .
. pp . While our ratings reflect the risk of creﬁin
fied several key factors that can contribute o ] i
losses over the life of a security and not $hort-
to more robust and transparent structured . . N
term market risk, it is clear that in toda}? S
more volatile market the need to better ;iun«ﬁler-

stand risks heyond credit has intcnsiﬁe@_

products and credit ratings of those products
in the future:
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supplemental tools for investors that can help to assess risks bevond expected credit
loss, including pricing and valuation services for the structured finance market.
These tools may help to enhance transparency and strengthen secondary markets
for structured products. Moody’s is also in conversations with investors, issuers, regu-
lators and others to determine how we can best help increase transparency around
rating volatility, price volatility and asset performance volatility.

LEVERAGING A BROADER RANGE OF CREDIT EXPERTISE

As the sophistication and complexity of derivative siructures continues to grow,
Moody's is deepening the breadth of credit expertise we bring to the analysis of even
highly specialized transactions through our rating committees. We are increasingly
drawing on the expertise of analysts from different areas across Moody’s to bring
the fullest range of perspective, knowledge and insight to the analysis of struc-

wured products. For example, when we rate securities backed by credit card account
halances, analysts from our banking team can provide valuable insight on the credit
characteristics of the issuing bank and its credit card portfolio. This is a practice
that will be further developed in 2008.

INCORPORATING MACROQECONOMIC DATA AND [NSIGHT

Structured analysts increasingly incorporate the views of Moody’s Economy.com, our
econometric and economic analysis business, about key measurcs of macroeconomic
activity that may affect the future credit performance of securities we are raling or
monitoring. For example, our monitoring of mortgage-backed securities can now
incorporate regional projections of home price appreciation as a leading indicator
of residential morigage loan payments and defaults. Providing this data enables us
to be more explicit in our published research and rating communications about the
assumptions that underlie our ratings, and to adjust those assumptions as market
conditions change.

2008 is a vear of transition. We believe that the structured finance market will
ultimately resume a growth trajectory, with more traditional and standardized
structures reclaiming greater prominence and use. We anticipate that issuers will
continue to innovate, developing structures that meet changing investor needs and
concerns, and we will continue to revise and enhance our methodologics for rating
and monitoring structured finance transactions to support this innovation.

left to right:

NOEL KIRNON
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT,
HEAD OF GLOBAL
STRUCTURED FINANCE

CLAIRE ROBINSON
SENIOR MANAGING
DIRECTOR,
ASSET-BACKED FINANCE

MONITORING STRUCTURED
FINANCE RATINGS

The responsibilities of Moody's
structured finance menitoring teams
have expanded in scale and impartance
along with growth in the volume and
complexity of structured instruments
currently in the market. Monitoring
structured securities requires analyti-
cal skills and transactional expertise
similar to those involved in the process
of assigning new ratings. However, the
monitoring process also incorporates
greater use of specialized auto-

mated systems to efficiently analyze
performance data on thousands of
outstanding transactions and identify
performance outliers that may merit

a rating upgrade or downgrade.
Performance trends and outliers are
scrutinized and targeted for further
analysis, from a review of the structure
to assessing qualitative aspects of the
transaction (such as details on loan
servicers or developments in underly-
ing collateral markets). If a transaction
is performing better or worse than
expected, it may be considered for a
rating upgrade or downgrade. A rat-
ing committee will review and discuss
the analysis and make a judgment
regarding that transaction.

NUMBER OF STRUCTURED FINANCE
RATINGS OUTSTANDING
(in thousands)
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Transparency and Consistency of
Company and Government RATINGS

The year 2007 marked further progress in the implementation of global initiatives

across the ratings groups that analyze the ereditworthiness of companies and gov-

ernmental entities (known as "fundamental” ratings). The goal of these initiatives is

o increase ratings transparency and promote ratings consistency. The velocity and

scope of change within the credit markets in the latier half of 2007 also hastened

development of new analytical tools and processes, in cooperation with market partici-

pants and other rating groups at Moody's, 1o capture the effects on our ratings.

METHOBOLOGY DEVELOPMENT
AND ENHANCEMENTS

Ratings methodologics are key compo-
nents of our transparency initiatives
for fundamental ratings, as they
facilitate discussions with investors
and issuers on factors thay drive initial
ratings and ratings wansitions. Our
“prescriptive” rating approach is a
central methodology that identifies
and scores key drivers of ratings

by industry within a flexible rating
Iramework that accounts for issuer-
and market-specific circumstances.
New methodologies implemented

in 2007 include the updated Bank
Financial Strength Rating, which
assesses the intrinsic financial strength
of banks across regions, economies
and regulatory systems; Joint Default
Analysis to account for differences
between the inherent risk and
observed incidence of bank failures;

and an enhanced rating framework for

project finance transactions globally.

ANALYTICAL TOOLS AND
PROCESS INITIATIVES

We continually adapt our analytic
tools to maiwch market developments
and enhance the processes that drive
fundamental ratings outcomes. One
example is the increased interaction
among fundamental and structureed
finance rating groups. Credit Policy
specialists, and Moody’s economists
as structured finance became more
deeply embedded in key bunk opera-
tions. To better assess the effects of
changing market conditions in 2007
on the 1,000+ banks Moody's rates
worldwide, and with input of analysts
from the corresponding structured
finance areas, we implemented
comprehensive stress tests for mort-
gage-backed sccurities, collateralized
debt obligations, and commercial real
estaic to improve our bank loss esti-
mates, We also introduced liquidity
stress tests (o evaluate whether bank
funding sources cover emerging

“Rating methodologies are a key component of
our transparency initiatives — they facilitate
discussions with investors and issuers on factors.

that drive ratings.and fating transitions.”

contingent liabilities sufficienty 1o
support existing ratings.

Pronounced growth of leveraged
finance in 2007 resulted in a higher
number of corporate ratings with
greater sensitivity to market changes.
To identify points of vulnerability that
inform corporate ratings analysis, we
supplement regular portfolio reviews
and liquidity risk assessments with
global financial and credit statistics
and tools from Moaody's Financieal
Metrics platform, indenwre covenant
research, and analysis by Moody's
accounting specialists.

U.S. municipal or public finance
ratings difier from corporate, struc-
tured and other ratings in that they
provide @ finer gradation of risk at the
higher end of the rating scale than
the traditional “Global Scale” ratings
used for other debt instruments.,

In 2007, we published a methodol-
ogy to enable comparisons between
these two categories of ratings. The
methodology “maps™ the quantitative
relationship between the municipal
and global rating scales in terms of
expected loss, providing the market
with a better tool for understand-
ing the comparison. Moody's uses
this data o rate collateralized debt
obligations comprising municipal
bonds and to analvze the municipal
exposures of financial guarantors and
managed funds.

Market developments continue
(o test our ratings and processes.

In response 1o these challenges, we
will continue to invest in enhanced
analytics and make proactive,
multidisciplinary assessments of
exposures to maintain a robust rating
framework that produces high-quality
credit opinions.

INSIGHT. INTEGRITY. GROWTH.




Moody’s Analytics: Building GROWTH
through Moody’s Capabilities

L.

Moody’s Analytics is a leading provider of research, data and analytic tools
that support the needs of fixed income and credit professionals worldwide.
We offer a compelling value proposition for customers, and thus represent

an important business opportunity for the company. The businesses

comprised by Moody’s Analytics have a well-established track record of

growth and generated nearly one-half billion dollars of revenue in 2007,
Moody’s Analytics is the vehicle through which the diverse

capabilities of Moody’s Corporation are made available to our customers.

Our offerings include:-

¢  Fixed-income credit rescarch, data and * Economic research, data, modeling
analytical tools produced within the rating and forecasting services {rom Moody's
agency, Moody’s Investors Service. Economy.com.
.'. t )
+ Credit risk management solutions * Specialized software products of Moody’s
developed by Moody’s KMV, including Wall Sireet Analytics, used by originators
. . . . R i . ’
quantitative credit metrics, and tools ,a'nd investors in :y‘wfr}de range of structured
for loan origination work How, credit finance transactidgns.
policy compliance and active credit / . o
R i i * Credit education services such as
portfolio management. A . . )
’ i public seminars, e-learning programs
» Pricing and valuation services to facilitate for self-study, and customized curricula
price transparency across all major sectors produced and delivered by Moody's
of the tixed-incomé markeis—especially Training Services.
complex structured securities and _
(lcrivativcs—tln'o‘ugh Moody's Credit ;/’ IR /
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We meet the varied needs of our diverse customer base through a variety of distribu-
tion channels, offering solutions appropriate to the scale and scope of customers’
business problems. Qur services begin with simplified products that are usctul to

a customer’s inital involvement in a given market, and extend to more ¢laborate,
customized deliverables for highly sophisticated users, This approach allows us 1o
establish long-term business relationships with customers, by providing entry-level
offerings and delivering additional coverage and ancillary services as exposures,
activity levels and needs expand. As a result, we build our business as our customers
buitel theirs, enabling us to participate directly in the organic growth of the

markets we serve.

A SOLID FOUNDATION FOR GROWTIL

The pillars of our growth strategy, and our belicf in the future of Moody’s
Analytics, rest on a solid foundation:

*  We have extensive and unique capabilities that are essential to informing and
enhancing the investment and risk management activities of our customers.

*  Our brand identity is associated with authority, expertise and expericence,
giving us immediate recognition worldwide and positioning our capabilities as
market standard components in risk processes and practices.

«  We have unusually deep customer relationships with most of the leading
participants in global financial markets, where demand for data, information
and analytical services is growing and for which there are few credible
suppliers with comparable skills.

*  We thrive on a culture of innovation and focus on meeting customer needs
to further embed our capabilities in customers’ processes, reinforcing our
integral role in market practices.

ROBUST DEMAND

The growing complexity of financial markets creates significant analytical challenges
for investors and risk managers. Market participants are confronted with a daunting
array of asset classes, derivative instruments, and risk/reward opportunities, and
they require information 1o make better decisions and enhance performance. While
advances in information technology make data widely available, our customers need
technical expertise 1o guide their use of specific data and analytics. The upheaval

in the credit markets that hegan in nid-2007 is instructive: financial markets have
access 1o more information than ever before, but uncertainty about the interpreta-
tion of that data makes investors and lenders unusually risk-averse. Demand for
insight has never been higher.

UNIQUE CAPABILITIES THAT DIFFERENTIATE MOQODY'™S

While financial information vendors are plentiful, Moody's differentiates itself as an
insight and knowledge company. Over more than 100 vears, we have established a reputa-
tion for authority in assessing credit risk. We are widely recognized for our expertise
in a range of related disciplines, including financial statement analysis, quantitative

* 2008 will represent
the first full year of
integrated and
coordinated effort

across the diverse
product portfolio of
Moody's Analytics.
Under common
leadership and a
unified strategy,

these businesses will
sustain strong revenue
growth rates.”
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risk assessments, credit risk management technology and economic analysis. Moody's
is perhaps the world’s largest organization dedicated solely to the evaluation of credit
and financial risk analysis. From individual investors who use Moody's ratings as a
key investment criterion o global financial instivwions that embed our ratings and
analytical technologies in their risk management systems, Moody's expertise is deeply
integrated in the operations of the credit markets.

BLUE-CHIP, GLOBAL CUSTOMER BASE

We serve virtually every financial institution of scale in the eredit and debt capital
markets. Geographically, we are most active in regions where debt finance is

well developed. 95% of our business is sourced from our 25 largest markets, but
our reach extends to more than 100 countries worldwide. Banks, invesument
managers, insurance companies and securities dealers are our primary customers.
We realize important benefits from the newwork effects of Moady's established
position: because the largest market participants rely on our tools, they drive use
of Moody’s by other participants.

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

We seek to provide business solutions that are deeply embedded in our customers’
work flows and risk management processes. Most of our business is sold on an annual
subscription basis and consists predominantly of recurring revenue. We have also
enjoyed historically high renewal rates, a reflection of our relevance and deep cus-
tomer relationships.

Our E.‘(islillg customers I'CPI‘CSCI][ i[]]])()[‘[ﬂll[ sources ol new revenue g]‘O\\'lh,
and we invest heavily in account management and customer service w ensure high
levels of client retention. Relationship managers operating from more than a dozen
financial centers around the world are assigned to every customer to facilitate
awareness and distribution of our services across all relevant user groups within an
institution. These efforts are buttressed by a team of product and market special-
ists charged with stimulating usage and reliance on Moody’s capabilities within our
customer accounts. Given the breadth aned increasing technical complexity of our
product portfolio, specialized support is highly eftective in driving continued revenue
growth, especially among our largest customers.

Our pricing model varies across our lines of business, but in all cases fees arc
scaled to reflect the extent of the product coverage that we provide, the number of
customer locations serviced, and the size of the user community within an organiza-
tion. These pricing metrics facilitate revenue growtl as customers expand the scale
and scope of their activities while mitigating the impact of customer consolidation
through mergers and acquisitions.

Product enhancements and new product development depend on a well-
funetioning feedback mechanism that connects the evolving needs of customers with
the technical capabilities of Moody's Analytics. Because access 1o our expertise is
at the core of our value proposition, our marketing professionals serve as a critical
liaison between customers and the analytical specialists in our product and content
creation groups,

CREATIG AN
EEENEMIE

e

We rely on four key ingredi-

ents to produce an economic
outlook; data, models, market
insight and experience. First, a
myriad of economic, financial and
demographic data are collected
and scrubbed to account for
various measurement issues.
Next, models are constructed by
applying econometric techniques
to determine important historical
relationships that can inform an
assessment of the future, Market
insight, derived from a wide
range of sources—intluding

our customers—is then used to
supplement the data and models.
Finally, we incorporate diverse
areas of analytical expertise
through weekly reviews of market
developments. Te produce
accurate economic forecasts, it

is critical to have experience in
understanding the limitations of
the data and models used in the
process and to adjust the process
in response to these limitations.
We update our econamic outlook
continuously, as we evaluate the
underlying data and assump-
tions with each release of new
economic statistics,

MARK ZANDI

CHIEF ECONOMIST,
MOODY'S ECONOMY.COM

| INSIGHT. INTEGRITY. GROWTH.



PUTTING IT ALL TOGETHER: PROGRAMS FOR DRIVING CROWTH

2008 will represent the first full year of inegrated and coordinated effort across

the diverse product portfolio of Moody's Analytics. Through vear-end 2007, operat-
ing as independent companies, our component businesses have delivered strong
revenue growth rates. Moody's revenue from sources other than rating feus rose to
more than 20% in 2007 from 14% in 2000. Over this period, revenue from the busi-
nesses that Moody's Analytics comprises increased at an average rate of 21% annually
{including acquisitions).

As Moody's Analytics brings these capabilities together under common leader-
ship and delivers products to the market with a unified strategy, we believe that we
can sustain strong revenue growth rates. We are pursuing important opportunitics
to seamlessly integrate owr capabilities in order to provide comprehensive analyti-
cal solutions to our custemers. In parallel, we continue to work with customers to
respone to their emerging needs, leveraging Moody’s Analytics’ enhanced scale and
scope o deliver new capabilities in an accelerated timetrame,

In 2008, we will focus on immediate growth opportunities through a series of
near-term initiatives that include:

= Leveraging our fully integrated global sales organization to achieve furcher
placement of the complete range of our product offerings across the breadih of
the customer base,

+ Extending placement of RiskFrontier™, the credit portfolio management plat-
form of Moody’s KMV,

* Delivering new tools and analytics that respond to challenges in the global
structured finance markets, including enhanced capabilitics in assessing credin
risk, facilitating investors’ valuation cfforts, and providing tools to identify
investment opportunities in the securitization markets through our Credit
Values products.

+ Oftering further insight into historical drivers of Moody's credit rating
dynamics with the release of the new Credit Transition Model.

*  Providing customized credit analvtics through professional services
engagements that respond to specific analytical requirements of major
financial institutions.

Moody's Analytics is positioned to be a leader in meeting the needs of credit
professionals in the fasi-growing and ever-evolving financial markets, We expect solid
business grm\’lh as we provide an integrated platform of technologies, capabilitics
and customer relationships for Moody's Corporation.

“From incliviclel
investors wiho use
Meooclys ratings as

& ey investrent
erfierion to gloloal
financiel instituiions
thet erbeel eur retings
and analytieal tedh-
nellogies in thelr risk
MENSGEMEAL SyStsms,
Meoch/s cgpertios s
cecply integrated in
the eperstions f the
areelt marlets.”

MOODY'S ANALYTICS REVENUE
2000-2007 (pro forima)*
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Moody s Economy.com

=3

| 21 | MOODY'S COREORATION 2007 Annunl Report |




The Dynamics of ASTA-PACIFIC Markets

Moody’s revenue from emerging markets has grown significantly

In recent years, but there is still considerable room for growth

as domestic capital markets develop and mature, and leading

companies in those markets seek cross-border issuance and

investment opportunities. While emerging markets comprise

25% of the world’s gross domestic product, they currently

provide less than 10% of Moody’s revenue. In closing this gap,

Moody’s expects to generate approximately $100 million of

incremental revenue from emerging markets in the five years

roughly 40% of this total.

Moody’s expansion in the Asia-
Pacific region has heen accomplished
primarily through joint ventures and
acquisitions of local rating agencies,
such as our jeint venture with China
Cheng Xin International Credit Rating
Co. Lad, (CCXD in Beijing and our
affiliation with ICRA in Mumbali, India.
We also have an important presence in
the Korean market through our joint
venture with Korea Investors Service.

The dynamics of Asia-Pacific markets
are diverse. The discrete domestic
capital markets are at different stages
of development, vary in structure and
complexity, and face disparate legal,
potitical and regulatory challenges.
Theretore it is crucial for Moody’s to
have a local presence in each market.
Opervating locally not only allows
Moody’s to rate domestic debt issuance,
it also creates the scale necessary to
serve cross-horder markets.

The most mature markets—
Australia, Japan and Korea—are also

spanning 2006 to 2010, with Asia expected to contribute

the largest, and should continue to
grow, albeit at slower rates.

The emerging markets of India and
China present medium-term growth
prospects for Moody’s. India’s robust
eConomic expansion presents oppor-
tunities for infrastructure inancing
and consumer finance securitization;
and although the domestic bond
market is small relative to GDP and
to other developing markets, there
is tremendons opportunity for bank
disintermediation. China’s domestic
capital markets are developing more
quickly and breoadly, with growth possi-
hilities in all sectors— most notably in
corpoerate bonds. There is also strong
potential for both cross-border and
domesue structured securitics.

Major Southeast Asian markets
such as Malaysia, Thailand and
Indonesia represent longer-term
oppertunities that Moody's is pursuing

through local expansion efforts.
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. Emerging Markets of
EUROPE and the MIDDLE EAST

The emerging markets represent one of the more important
engines of medium- and long-term growth for Moody’s.
Advances in opening and developing the key emerging markets
are driven by domestic reforms, global regulatory processes
and capital formation demands in high-growth economies.
Near-term emerging market growth in Europe, the Middle
| East and Africa (EMEA) will largely occur in the Middle East

» The ermarging mertets and Russia. Moody's first established operations in the Middle
repressnt ene of e mere East through affiliations in Egypt and Israel, and further

:ep d@[ltir_]gg:gs_ - expanded our reach with the 2007 opening of Moody’s Middle

grewth fier Mooal/s, East Ltd. in Dubai and incremental investments in Israel’s

Mﬁhﬁ}t@@m Mid Limited
HAroog Limed.
canieree) in the Midde

m
(et ane) Russie. project and corporate finance, banking, insurance and structured finance. Robust
corporate issuance is expected from the Gulf Cooperation Council (GCC) coun-

Surong growth trends can be seen across a wide spectrum of sectors, including

FREDERIC DREVON

SENIOR MANAGING DiRECTOR,
EURCPE, MIDDLE EAST, AFRICA

tries in coming years—issuance has already doubled since 2008, with capital
expenditure projects in the region likely 1o exceed §1 trillion over the next decade.
Most of this issuance is resulting from greater investment requirements, mergers
and acquisitions activity, and demand for Islamic (Sukuk) bonds driven by increas-

ing investor acceplance owtside Islamic markets and greater standardization,

Russia is another area likely to continue experiencing considerable growth,

REVENUE FROM and Moody’s is well positioned to capture this growth through our presence

EMERGING MARKETS in Moscow.
{doltar in miltiens) Large demand for ratings is expected 10 continue, driven by a strong interest
140 in Eurobonds and POs. The number of bank ratings in this region has increased
120 significantly as financial institutions see the benefits of receiving a credit assessment
100 on counterparty risk. Despite the recent slowdown in securitization activity due to
credit market chailenges, it is viewed as an efficient and viable financing tool that
8 will attract new market participants as transaction volumes grow. Russia has become
60 the most active emerging market player in securitizations within the EMEA region,
40 with its growing volumes of consumer and morigage-backed loans.
Y While it is expected that Russia and the GCC countries will remain the major
0 engines of emerging market growth, there are many longer-term opportunities
. 4 such as the dynamic South African market. Owr 2007 acquisition of CA-Ratings will
V3D 6B 06 0T

provide a platform for future opportunities in sub-Saharan Africa.
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1 THE AMERICAS

PERU, PANAMA,
EL SALVADOR
Affiliation with
Equilibrium (2007)

COLOMBIA
Affiliation with BRC
(2008}

0 AFRICA

SOUTH AFRICA
Acquisition of
CA-Ratings {2007)

MEXICO
Moody's Mexico
{2000)

BRAZIL
Maody's Brazil (1997)

MIDDLE EAST

ISRAEL

Midroog Limited
{2003); 51% ownership
{2007)

DUBAI
Moody's Middle East
{2007}

1 EUROPE

CZECH REPUBLIC,
BULGARIA
Acquisition of CRA
(2006)

I ASIA-PACIFIC

CHINA
Joint venture with
CCXI1{2006)

INDIA
Moody's India (2006);
IPO of ICRA {2007)

RUSSIA
Moody's Eastern
Europe {2006);
affiliation with
Interfax {2001)

INDONESIA
Acquisition of
PT Kasnic {2007)

KOREA

Joint venture with
Korea Investors Service
(1998)

GROWTH OF SUKUK ISSUANCE

Sukuk can be described as Islamic-
compliant bonds. Issuance of Sukuk
began in Malaysia in 1990 and its
growth has been impressive; after

15 years, Islamic borrowing repre-
sented 75% of all Malaysian corporate
borrowing. Tremendous growth of
Sukuk issuance has also occurred over
the last five years within the Gulf coun-
tries, where Sukuk corporate issuance
grew 30% in 2007. Moody's believes
there is enormous future potential in
this market, considering the assets
under management and growing
acceptance by Islamic mutual funds,
financial institutions and conventional
banks. Qur offices in Dubai and

Asia position Moody’s to benefit from
this trend.

MIDDLE EAST
CORPORATE ISSUANCE
25,000
20,000
15,400

10,000

Nuanber of Issues

5,000

Q Conventional
L Sukuk

STABILITY OF THE JAPANESE MARKET

and financial institutions,

Japan was one of the few
countries to avoid major dis-
ruption of its credit markets
in 2007 — for the year,
new issuance of Japanese
domestic bonds (including
Samurai Bonds} grew maore
than 22%.

Japan represents
approximately 10% of glohal

gross domestic product, and
continued growth in both
domestic and cross-border
bond issuance is expected.
Moody's Japan has executed
a domestic strategy to
harness this opportunity.
Sustained growth in Japan
will come from new ratings
mandates for corporations

t

successful busihest devel-
opment efforts, cantinued
growth of the commercial
mortgage-backed [secu-

rities ratings bulsiness,
and increased slales of
Moody's Analytics|products

and services.
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Drniving Financial Institutions
RATINGS

In 2007 the Financial Institutions group continued to build upon a trend of solid
growth, with revenue increasing 16% per year since 2000, Growth in financial institu-
tions ratings revenue has heen driven in large part by issuance growth from rapid
expansion of international bank ratings mandates between 2000 and 2007, particu-
larly in Europe.

Prospects for continued strong growth in bank ratings are good, especially
as banks began to move financings back on balance sheets in 2007, and as investors
begin to differentiate more carefully among financial institutions under challenging

credit market conditions.

GROWTH IN RATED BANKS AND COUNTRIES COVERED

Moody’s bank ratings are recognized as an accurate and transparent gauge of
intrinsic financial strength and sysfemic support, and are thus becoming a useful
differentiator for banks across a range of business activities, in addition to the
traditional credit assessment of bond issuance.

Bank ratings are proving 1o be a useful tool for assessing the credit risks of
business partners in credit card, exchange, leasing and factoring transactions,
among others. More banks are now seeking ratings to support their interbank activi-
ties—including loan execution and counterparty evaluations—as well as for market
positioning and internal governance purposes. Recent rating activity involves many
smaller banks that do not yet issue debt, and that may not previously have sought
ratings. Moreover, as these “lower tier” banks seek global recognition, a significant
portion of them may eventually issue debt, contributing further to ratings growth.

The global bank rating universe continued to expand in 2007, with growth in
overall issuance from a higher number of banks rated and alse more countries cov-
ered. New mandates are particularly strong in the emerging markets of developing
Europe and in Russia, and this activity is expected to continue throughout 2008,
Growth in Islamic finance will also contribute to revenue generation, particularly as
we move into 2009 and beyond. We believe these trends indicate strong prospects
for growth of global financial institutions ratings.

“Moody's ratings are becoming a useful
differentiator for banks across a range of business
activities, in addition to the traditional credit

assessment of bond issuance.”

Loug Mg (9 N5

GROWTH IN GLOBAL BANKING
[SSUANCE AND COUNTRIES COVERED
(2000-2007)
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REGULATORY CHANGE IN
EUROPE SUPPORTS GROWTH
IN INSURANCE RATINGS

Recent years have seen growth in the
demand for ratings among European
insurers. Historically, European insur-
ance companies made modest use of
debt, in part due to limited regulatory
credit for such capital. Under a new
regulation, Solvency Il insurers are
likely to have the same “three-tiered”
capital structure as banks, with greater
capacity to issue hybrid debt 1o help
satisfy regulatory capital requirements.
Insurers are expanding issuance of
regulatory capital instruments to
bolster regulatory solvency before this
regulation takes effect in 2012.

Solvency Il will provide incentive
for insurers to employ more sophis-
ticated modeling approaches to risk
and capital management. Deployment
of these refined capital models has
also spurred issuance, as insurers seek
to optimize capital structures. These
prospective regulatory changes and
the growing use of ratings by insur-
ers to communicate financial strength
to customers indicate solid growth
potential for this sector.
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Ratings-related

GROWTH INITIATIVES

In 2007 Moody’s established a New Products group to con-
solidate various product development efforts across the
corporation. The group’s objective is to create value-added
ratings-related products that capitalize on our traditional
strengths, focusing on areas that are natural extensions of
Moody’s opinions-based businesscs.

New products developed by the group fall into two general
categories: 1) ratings products that offer independent
opinions on risks other than credit risk, and 2) ratings-related
products that provide data, software and analytic engines
designed to improve market transparency and enhance the Moody’s

ratings process.

NEW RATINGS PRODUCTS

[n late 2006, Moody’s issued its first Hedge Fund Operations Quality (0Q) rating,
By the end of 2007, Moody’s had assigned OQ ratings 1o 17 hedge funds, including
several large and well-known funds, with a pipeline of others to follow. Since an
assessment of operations quality is an input to hedge fund debt ratings, more
recent rating requests have often combined concurrent ratings of a fund’s opera-
tions and credit quality. We expect this trend o continue, with Moody’s OQ ratings
coverage doubling in 2008 and more funds also requesting credit ratings. In
addition, as OQ ratings gain market acceptance with institutional investors, they
may spur opportunities to extend the product to other investment vehicles.
Moody's will introduce Vendor Information Risk (VIR} ratings in early 2008 10
assist financial institutions in managing risks associated with their vendors. VIR
ratings are forward-looking opinions of data sccurity and privacy risk. The compre-
hensive rating methodology was co-developed with an advisory council comprising
some of the largest financial institutions, and we estimate that the potential market
consists of well over 1,000 service providers. We already have a number of VIR rat-
ing engagements and are in active discussions for more.

- " The New Products
group consolidates
product development
efforts to capitalize
on our traditional
strengths, focusing
on areas that are
natural extensions
of Moody's opinion-
based business.”
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RATINGS-RELATED PRODUCGCTS AND TOOLS

A key component of our new product development strategy is to help build and
eimbed data and analytic models in the surveillance and ratings processes of
our analytic groups, Combining the resources of Moody’s Wall Street Analytics
with other teams in the New Products group—including a robust, time-tested
ovutsourcing infrastructure and growing research team—~has greatly increased
our development flexibility. Qur vision is to create a platform containing
complete data, analytics and rating maodels that support ratings accuracy for
Moody's while satisfying market demand for analytics and data tools. We believe
that the strategy of building ratings-based models to aid our analysts and
enhance market transparency plays to our strengths and offers attractive growth
opportnities for Moody’s, Our investments have helped us enter large markets
where there is a need for greater information and where our brand and expertise
offer natural advantages, and we will continue to scek new opportunitics consis-
tent with this strategy.

FReM ANALYTICS T® CREBIT YALVES

b response to market demand for independent assessiment of the
intrinsic vafue of structured finance securities, Moody's Wal Street
:Enalytics and other Moody's resources, primarily our research team,
co-developed the structured finance Discounted Cashflow Valuations
DCV} service in 2007. DCV provides market participants with a
seamless enhanced pricing information platform without the burden
or cost of supporting the refated data and technology infrastruciure.

t

We axpect that some of this prig-

ing information could also be usad

% Building calnn the success of DCV,

Moody's expanded its valuation capa-

hrlltlss to mare traditional corporate
and municipal fixed-income securities
t}mmgh the january 2008 acquisitions
of Mergent’ s::orporate and municipal
&zgnd semces and the BQuotes global
me of pncmg tools. The joint service
q(\ffanng, called Moody's Credit Values,
provides grepter price iransparency
through evalirated pricing, price discov-
ery tools and ohiserved pricing services,

in the ratings process to assist our
analysts in producing more informed
credit opinians.

The combined coverage, sales
reach and expertise of Moody's
Wall Street Analytics, BQuotes and
Mergent position Moody's to provide
a complete range of valuation services
across all major sectors of the fixed-
incoma markets.

" A key component
of our strategy is to
help build and
embed data and
analytic models,
including some
Moody's Wall Street
Analytics tools, in
the surveillance and
ratings processes of
our analytic groups.”

DEAL-LEVEIL S'F;\TISTICS
AVAILABLE ON S'[I:RUCTUREZD
FINANCE SECURITIES*

{im lhnxx,lrrll;l‘)

Deal Count

‘04 we 06 07

*acludes active and i?lﬂ(lil:jl’ deals

Since early this decade, il\[ond}"s has heel
building data tools such, as deal-level
statistics for structured ﬁndntt‘ transac-
tions, Housed ina Ccnlrhl database,
these wols support addulonal analytics
for internal and exter n‘ll use. Moody's

n

'

Discowted Cashflow Valdations is un exam-
ple of u service that inciirporates this data

to provide valuable ool and powerful
analyties 1o our customigrs.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS of

FINANCIAL CONDITION and RESULTS of OPERATIONS

This discussion and analysis of financial condition and results
of operations should be read in conjunction with the Moody's
Corporation consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations contains Forward-
Looking Statements. Sce “Forward-Looking Statements”
commencing on page 60 and “Risk Factors” commencing
on page 61 for a discussion of uncertainties, risks and other

factors associated with these statements.

THE COMPANY

Except where otherwise indicated, the terms “Moody’s” and
the “Company” refer to Moady’s Corporation and its subsid-
iaries. Moody's is a provider of (i) credit ratings and related
research, data and analytical tools, (ii) quantitative credit risk
measures, risk scoring software, and credit portfolic manage-
ment solutions and (iii) beginning in January 2008, fixed
income pricing data and valuation models. In 2007 and prior
vears, Moody’s operated in two reportable segments: Moody's
Investors Service (“MIS™) and Moody’s KMV (“MKMV").
Beginning in January 2008, Moody’s segments were changed to
reflect the business reorganization announced in August 2007,
As a result of the reorganization, the ranng agency remains in
the Moody's Investors Service operating company and several
ratings business lines have been realigned. All of Moody's
other commercial activities, including MKMV and sales of MIS
research, are now combined under a new operating company
known as Moody's Analytics.

Moody’s Investors Service publishes rating opinions on a
broad range of credit obligors and credit obligations issued in
domestic and international markets, including various corporate
and governmental obligations, siructured finance securities and
commercial paper programs. It also publishes investor-oriented
credit information, research and economic commentary,
including in-depth research on major debt issuers, industry

studies, special comments and credit opinion handbooks.
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The MKMV business develops and distributes quantita-
tive credit risk assessment products and services including
credit processing software and analytical tools for credit port-
folio management.

Prior to September 30, 2000, the Company operated
as part of The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation (“Old D&B™).
On September 8, 2000, the Board of Directors of Old
D&B approved a plan to separate into two publicly traded
companies—the Company and The New D&B Corporation
(“New D&B"). On Seprember 30, 2000 ("the Distribution
Date™), Old D&B distributed to its sharcholders all of the
outstanding shares of New D&B commen stock (the “2000
Distribution”}. New D&B comprised the business of Old D&B'’s
Dun & Bradstreet operating company (the “D&B Business™).
The remaining business of Old D&B consisted solely of the
husiness of providing ratings and related research and credit
risk management services (the “Moody’s Business™) and was
renamed “Moody's Corporation”

New D&DB is the accounting successor to Old D&B, which
was incorporated uncder the laws of the State of Delaware on
April 8, 1998. Old D&B began operating as an independent

publicly owned corporation on July 1, 1998 as a result of its

June 30, 1998 spin-off (the *1998 Distribution”) from the

corporation now known as "R.H. Donnelley Corporation” and
previously known as “The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation”
("Donnelley™). Old D&B became the accounting successor Lo
Donnelley at the time of the 1998 Distribution.

Prior to the 1998 Distribution, Donnelley was the
parent holding company for subsidiaries then engaged in
the businesses currently conducted by New D&B, Moody's
and Donnelley. Prior 1o November 1, 1996, it also was the
parent holding company of subsidiaries conducting busi-
ness under the names Cognizant Corporation (*Cognizant™)
and ACNielsen Corporaﬁon (“ACNielsen”). On that date
Donnelley effected a spin-off of the capital siock of Cognizant
and ACNielsen to its stockholders (the “1996 Distribution”).

Cognizant subsequently changed its name to Nielsen Media
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Research, Inc. in connection with its 1998 spin-off of the
capital stock of IMS Health Incorporated (“IMS Health”).

For purposes of governing certain ongoing relation-
ships between the Company and New D&B after the 2000
Distribution and to provide for an orderly transition, the
Company and New D&B entered into various agreements
including a distribution agreement, tax allocation agreememn,
emplovee benefits agreement, shared transaction services agree-
ment, insurance and risk management services agreement, data
services agreement and (ransition services agreement.

Detaited descriptions of the 1996, 1998 and 2000
Distributions are contained in the Company’s 2000 annual
report on Form 10-K, filed on March 15, 2001,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Moody’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and
results of operations are based on the Company's consoli-
dated financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States. The preparation of these financial state-
ments requires Moody's 1o make estimates and judgments that
affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and related
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of
the financial statements and revenue and expenses during

the reporting periods. These estimates are based on historical
experience and on other assumptions that are helieved to be
reasonable under the circumstances. On an ongoing basis,
Maoody’s evatuates its estimates, including those related to
revenue recognition, accounts receivable allowances, contin-
gencies, goodwill and intangible assets, pension and other
post-retirement benefits and stock-based compensation. Actual
results may differ from these estimates under different assump-
tions or conditions. The following accounting estimates are
considered critical because they are particularly dependent

on management’s judgment about martters that are uncertain
at the time the accounting estimates are made and changes 1o
those estimates could have a material impact on the Company’s

comsolidated results of operations or financial condition.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
[n recognizing revenue related to ratings, Moody's uses judg-
ments to allocate billed revenue between ratings and the

future monitoring of ratings in cases where the Company

does not charge ongoing monitoring fees for a particular
issuer. These judgments are not dependent on the outcome of
future uncertainties, but rather relate to allocating revenue
across accounting periods. In such cases, the Company defers
portions of rating fees that it estimates will be attribwied 10
future monitoring activities and recognizes the deferred
revenue ratably over the estimated monitoring periods.

The portion of the revenue to be deferred is based
upon a number of factors, including the estimated fair market
value of the monitoring services charged for similar securities
or issuers. The monitoring period over which the deferred
revenue will be recognized is determined based on factors such
as the estimated lives of the rated securities, Currently, the
estimated monitoring periods range from one to 10 years. At
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, deferred revenue included
approximately $54 million, $47 million and $36 million,
respectively, related to such monitoring fees.

Additionally, in the case of commercial mortgage-
backed securities, derivatives, and international residential
mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities, issuers can elect
to pay the monitoring fees upfront. These fees are deferred
ane recognized over the fulure monitoring periods, ranging
from nine to 46 years, which are based on the expected lives
of the rated securities. At December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
deferred revenue related to these securities was approximately
$86 million, $72 million and $57 million, respectively.

Moody’s estimates revenue for ratings of commercial
paper for which, in addition to a fixed annual monitoring fee,
issuers are billed quarterly based on amounts outstanding.
Revenue is accrued each quarter based on estimated amounts
outstanding and is billed when actual data is available. The esti-
mate is determined based on the issuers’ most recent reported
quarterly data. At December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, accounts
receivable included approximately $38 million, $34 million and
$31 million, respectively, related to accrued commercial paper
revenue. Historically, the Company has not had material differ-

ences between the estimated revenue and the actual billings,

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE ALLOWANCE

Mooly’s records, as reductions of revenue, provisions for
estimated future adjustments to customer billings based on
historical experience and current conditions. Such provisions
are reflected as additions to the accounts receivable aflow-

ance. Adjustments to and write-offs of accounts receivable are
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charged against the allowance. Moody's evaluates its accounts
receivable by reviewing and assessing historical collection and
adjustment experience and the current status of customer
accounts. Moody’s also considers the economic environment of
the customers, both from an industry and geographic perspec-
tive, in evaluating the need for allowances. Based on its reviews,
Moody's establishes or adjusts allowances as considered appro-
priate in the circumstance. This process involves a high degrec
of judgment and estimation and could involve significant dollar
amounts. Accordingly, Moody's results of operations can be
affected by adjustments o the allowance. Management believes
that the allowance for uncollectible accounts is adequate to
cover anticipated adjustments and write-offs under current
conditions. However, significant changes in any of the above
factors, or actual write-offs or adjustients that differ from the
estimated amounts, could result in revenue adjustments that
are greater or less than Moody's estimates. In each of 2007,
2006 and 2005, the Company adjusted its provision rates and
its allowances to reflect its current estiinate of the appropriate

level of accounts receivable allowance.

CONTINGENCIES

Accounting for contingencies, including those matuters
described in the "Comingencies” section of this
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” commencing on page 57, is highly
subjective and requires the use of judgments and estimates in
assessing their magnitude and likely outcome. In many cascs,
the outcomes of such matters will be determined by third
parties, including governmental or judicial bodies. The provi-
sions made 1n the consolidated financial statements, as well as
the related disclosures, repreéem management’s best estimates
of the then current status of such matters and their potential
outcome based on a review of the facts and in consultation
with outside legal counsel where deemed appropriate. The
Company regularly reviews contingencies and as additional
information becomes available may, in the future, adjust its
associated liabilities. Based on its review of the latest informa-
tion avatilable, and subject 1o the contingencies described in
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Resulis of Operations—Contingencies”, the ultimate
liability of the Company in connection with pending legal and

tax proceedings, claims and litigation is not likely to have a
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material adverse effect on Moody's future reported results and
financial position.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005, the provision for income taxes reflected credits of
$27.3 million, $2.4 million and $8.8 million, respectively, due
to changes in the Company’s liabilities for legacy income tax
exposures that were assumed by Moody’s in connection with
its separation from Old D&B in October 2000. These tax
matters are more fully described under the caption “Legacy
Contingencies” within "Management’s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”.

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Moody’s evaluates its goodwill for impairment annually or
more Irequently if impairment indicators arise in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS")
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. The evalu-
ation of the carrying value of goodwill réquires that the
Company make important assumptions and judgments about
future operating results and cash flows as well as terminal
values and discount rates. In estimating future operating
results and cash flows, Moody’s considers internal budgets

and strategic plans, expected long-term growth rates, and the
effects of external factors and market conditions. If actual
future operating results and cash flows or external condi-

tions differ from the Company’s judgments, or if changes in
assumed terminal values or discount rates are made, an impair-
ment charge may be necessary to reduce the carrying value of
goodwill, which charge could be material to the Company’s
financial position and results of operations, Amortizable intan-
gible assets are reviewed for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount

may not be recoverable.

RESTRUCTURING CHARGE

The Company has engaged, and may continue to engage, in
restructuring actions, which require management to utilize
significant estimates related to expenses for severance and
other employee benefit costs, contract termination costs and
asset impairments. If the actual amounts differ from these
estimates, the amount of the restructuring charge could be
impacted. For a full description of Moody's restructuring
actions, refer to the "Results of Operations” section below and

Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PENSION AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The expenses, assets, labilities and obligations that Moody’s
reports for pension and other posi-retirement benefits are
dependent on many assumptions concerning the outcome of
future events and circumstances. These assumptions include
the following:

¢ fulure compensation increases, based on the Company’s
long-term actual experience and future outlook

¢ Jong-term return on pension plan assets, based o histor-
ical portfolio results and the expected future average
annual retarn for each major asset class within the plan’s
portfolio (which is principally comprised of equity and
fixed-income tnvestments)

» future healthcare cost trends, based on historical market
data, near-term outlooks and assessments of likely long-
term trends

* discount rates, based on current yields on high-grade

corporate long-term bonds

The discount rate selected to measure the present value
of the Company’s benefit obligations as of December 31, 2007
was derived using a cash flow matching method whereby the
Company compares the plans’ projected payment obligations
by year with the corresponding vield on the Citibank pension
discount curve. The cash flows are then discounted back to
their present value and an overall discount rate is determined.

Moody's major assumptions vary by plan and assump-
tions used are set forth in Note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements, In determining these assumptions, the Company
consulis with owside actuaries and other advisors as deemed,
appropriate. While the Company believes that the assumptions
used in its calculations are reasonable, differences in actual
experience or changes in assumptions could have a significant
effect on the expenses, assets and liabilities related to the
Company’s pension and other post-retirement benefits.

When actual plan experience differs from the assump-
tions used, actuarial gains or losses arise. To the extent the
total outstanding gain or loss exceeds a corridor threshold as
defined in SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions™
("SFAS No. 877), the excess is subject to amortization in annual
expense over the estimated average future working lifetime of
active plan participants. For Moady's pension and other post-
retirement benefit plans, the total losses as of December 31,

2007 that have not been recognized in annual expense are
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$19.0 million and in 2008, Moody’s expects amortization of
actuarial losses to be immaterial.

For Moody's funded pension plan, the differences
between the expected long-term rate of return assumption and
actual experience could also affect the net periodic pension
expense. As permitted under SFAS No. 87, the Company
spreads the impact of asset experience over a five-year period
for purposes of calculating the market-related value of assets
that is used in determining the expected return on assets’
component of annual expense and in calculating the total
unrecognized gain or loss subject to amortization. As of
December 31, 2007, the Company has an unrecognized asset
gain of $4.1 million, of which $1.7 million will be recognized
in the market-related value of assets that is used to calculate
the expected return on assets’ component of 2009 expense.

The 1able below shows the estimated effect thata one
percentage-point decrease in each of these assumptions will
have on Moody’s 2008 operating income (dollars in millions).
These effects have been calculated using the Company’s
current projections of 2008 assets, liabilities, obligations and
expenses related to pension and other post-retirement plans,
which could change as updated data becomes available.

Estimated Impact on
Assumption Used 2008 Operating Income
for 2008 {Decrease}/[ncrease

$ (5.8)

Discount Rate*

Weighted Average
Assumed Compensation
Growth Rate 4.00% $ 07

Assumed Long-Term Rate

6.45% / 6.35%

$(1.2)

* Discount rates of 6,45% and 6.35% are used for pension plans and other post-
retirement plans, respectively.

of Return on Pension Assets 8.35%

A one percentage-point increase in assumed healthcare
cost trend rates will not affect 2008 projected expenses, Based
on current projections, the Company estimates that expenses
related o pension and post-retirement plans will be approxi-
mately $13 million in 2008 compared with $16.2 million in
2007, excluding the costs of curtailment and special termina-
tion benefits of $10.8 million in 2007. The expected expense
decrease in 2008 reflects the effects of higher discount rates,
lower amortization of actuarial losses and reduction in work-
force due to restructuring, which are partially offset by lower

plan asset gains.
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STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

On January 1, 2006, the Company implemented, under the
modified prospective application method, the fair value method
of accounting for stock-based compensation under SFAS No, 123
(Revised 2004) “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R”).
Under this pronouncement, companies are required to record
compensation expense for all share-based payment award
transactions granted to employees based on the fair value of
the equity instriument at the time of grant. This includes shares
issued under employee stock purchase plans, stock options,
restricted stock and stock appreciation rights. Previously, on

January 1, 2003, the Company implemented, on a prospective

basis, the fair value method of accounting for stock-based
compensation under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation”, The [air value of each option award is estimated
on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model that uses assumptions and estimates that the Company
believes are reasonable. Some of the assumptions and estimates,
such as share price volatility and expected option holding
period, are based in part on Moody's experience during the
period since becoming a public company, which is limited. The
use of different assumptions and estimates in the Black-Scholes
option pricing model could produce materially different esti-

mated fair values for option awards and related expense.

An increase in the following assumptions would have had the following estimated effect on operating income in 2007 (dollars

in millions):

Estimated Impact on

Increase in Operating Income in 2007

) Assumption Used Assumption Increase/{Decrease}

Average Expected Dividend Yield 2003-2007 grants  0.41%-0.52% 0.10% $ 1.2
Average Expected Share Price Volatility 2003-2007 grants 23%-30% 5% $(4.6)
Expected Option Holding Period 2003-2007 grants  5.0-6.0 years 1.0 year $(5.9)

INCOME TAXES

The Company is subject to income taxes in the United States
and various foreign jurisdictions, The Company’s (ax assets
and liabilities are affected by the amounts charged for service
provided and expenses incurred as well as other tax matters
such as inter-company transactions. The Company accounts for
income taxes under the asset and liability method in accor-
dance with SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes".
Therefore, income tax expense is based on reported income
before income taxes, and deferred income taxes refiect the
effect of temporary differences between the amounts of assets
and liabilities that are recognized for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts that are recognized for income
tax purposes.

Moody's is subject to tax audits in various jurisdictions
that involve legacy and other tax matters. The Company
regularly assesses the likely cutcormnes of such audits in order
to determine the appropriateness of its FASB Interpretation
No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN
No. 487) tax liabilities. On January 1, 2007, upon the imple-
mentation of FIN No. 48, the Company implemented the
accounting policy to classify interest related to income taxes as

a component of interest expense in the Company’s consolidated
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financial statements and to classify associated penalties, if any,
as part of other non-operating expenses. Prior to the imple-
mentation of FIN No. 48, the Company had classified interest
rclated to income taxes and associated penalties as components
of income tax expense. In accordance with FIN No. 48, prior
period financial statements have not been reclassified for this
change.

FIN No. 48 requires a company to first determine whether
it is more-likely-than-not {defined as a likelihood of more than
50%) that a tax position will be sustained based on its technical
merits as of the reporting date, assuming that taxing authori-
ties will examine the position and have full knowledge of all
relevant information. A tax position that meets this more-
likely-than-not threshold is then measured and recognized at
the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely 1o
be realized upon effective settlement with a taxing authority.
Upon the initial implementation of FIN No. 48, the Company
recorded a reduction of its January 1, 2007 retained earnings
of $43.3 million, which is comprised of $32.9 million of tax
and accrued interest of $17.3 million ($10.4 million, net of tax).
As the determination of FIN No. 48 liabilities and associated
interest and penalties requires significant estimates to be

made by the Company, there can be no assurance that the
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Company will accurately predict the outcomes of these audits,
and thus the eventual ouicomes could have a material impact

on the Company’s net income or financial condition.

OTHER ESTIMATES
In addition, there are other accounting estimates within
Moody's consolidated financial statements, including recover-
ability of deferred tax assers, anticipated dividend diswribimions
from non-U.S. subsidiaries and valuation of investiments in
affiliates. Management helieves the current assumptions and
other considerations used to estimate amounts reflected in
Moody’s consolidated [inancial statements are appropriate,
However, if actual experience differs from the assumptions
and other considerations used in estimating amounts reflected
in Moody's consolidated financial statements, the resulting
changes could have a material adverse effect on Moody’s
consolidated results of operations or financial condition,

See Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements for
further information on significant accounting policies that

impact Moody's.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Beginning in January 2008, Moody's segments were changed

to reflect the implementation of the business reorganization
announced in August 2007, As a result of the reorganization,
the rating agency remains in the Moody’s Investors Service
operating company and several ratings business lines have been
realigned. All of Moody’s other commercial activities, including
MEKEMYV and sales of MIS research, are now combined under

a new operating company known as Moody’s Analytics. See
“Reorganization and New Segments” section below.

In 2007 and prior vears, Moody's operated in two
reportable segments: Moody’s Investors Service and MKMV.
Moody's Investors Service consisted of (i) four rating groups—
structured finance, corporate finance, financial institutions
and sovereign risk, and public finance—that generate revenue
principally from the assignment of credit ratings to issuers
and issues of fixed-income obligations in the debt markets
and (ii) research, which primarily generates revenue from
the sale of investor-oriented credit information research, data
and other analytical tools that are produced principaily by the
rating groups. For presentation purposes, Europe represents
Furope, the Middle East and Alrica and public finance repre-

sents U.S. public finance. Given the dominance of Moody's
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Investors Service to Moody’s overall results, the Company does
not separately measure or report Corporate expenses, nor

are such expenses allocated between the Company’s business
segments. Accordingly, all corporate expenses are included in
operating income of the Moody's Investors Service segment
and none have been allocated to the MKMV segment.

The MKMV business develops and distributes quantita-
tive credit risk asscssment products and services, including
credit processing software and analytical tools for credit port-
folio management,

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to

conform to the current presentation,

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 COMPARED WITH YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 20046

Total Company Results

Moody’s revenue for 2007 totaled $2,259.0 million, an increase
of §221.9 million, or 10.9%, from $2,037.1 million for the
same period in 2006. The main contributors to this growth
were the corporate finance and research lines of business,
which increased $85.3 million, or 22.4%, and $69.8 million, or
27.4%, respectively,. MKMV revenue contributed 5.4% of the
Company’s year-over-year growth, driven by the software and
risk subscriptions businesses.

Revenue in the United Siates was $1,361.8 million
in 2007, an increase of $84.0 million, or 6.6%, from
$1,277.8 million in 2006. Corporate finance and research
revenue achieved strong growth olf $51.7 million and
$33.8 million, respectively, partially offset by a $29.4 million
decline in structured finance, resulting from the significant
slowdown in the credit securitization markets.

International revenue was $897.2 million in 2007, an
increase of $§137.9 million, or 18.2%, from $759.3 million in
2006. Revenue from the structured finance, research and
corporate finance lines of business contributed approximately
$39 million, $36 million and $34 million, respectively, to the
increase. Foreign currency translation accounted for approxi-
mately 339 million of international revenue growth.

During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company
committed to a restructuring plan (the “Plan™) in response to
the Company’s reerganization and a decline in current and

anticipated issuance of rated debt securities in some market
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sectors, as more fully described in Note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements. A restructuring charge of $50.0 million
was recorded in 2007, which consisted of $45.9 million of
expenses relating to severance and other employee benefit
costs, and $4.1 million for contract termination costs.
Moody's operating and selling, general and adminis-
trative expenses (“SG&A”) of $1,035.1 million in 2007 were
$136.4 million, or 15.2%, more than $898.7 million in 2006,
Compensation and benefits continue to be Moody's largesi
expense, accounting for approximately 70% of total operating

and SG&A expenses, representing approximately $77 million

in growth from prior ycar. Moody’s average global staifing

of approximately 3,500 employees during the year ended
December 31, 2007 was approximately 13% higher than during
2006. This increase reflects the impact of hiring from late 2006
and the first half of 2007 (0 support business growth mainly

in the U.S,, Asian and European ratings businesses offset by

a partial completion of the workforce reductions relating to
the restructuring actions implemented in the fourth quarter
of 2007. The table below shows Moody’s global staffing by
operating segment and geographic arca at December 31, 2007
and 2006.

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
United States  International Total United States [nternational Total
Moody's Investors Service 1,869 1,284 3,153 1,848 1,106 2 949
Moody's KMV 297 122 419 304 a7 401
Total 2,166 1,406 3,572 2,147 1,203 3,350

Operating expenses were $584.0 million in 2007, an
increase of $44.6 million, or 8.5%, from $539.4 million in
2006. Compensation and benefits expense comprised approxi-
mately 77% of the growth, reflecting normal salary increases
coupled with higher staffing levels compared to prior year,
partially offset by lower incentive compensation. The.stafﬁng
level increase reflects hiring in the first half of 2007 to support
business growth, primarily in the international ratings busi-
nesses, where head count increased by approximately 14% over
2006. Non-compensation expenses of $96.8 million increased
$10.2 million, primarily from professional service costs associ-
ated with technology investmehts.

Selling, general and administrative expenses were
$451.1 million in 2007, an increase of $§91.8 million, or 25.5%,
from $359.3 million in 2006. Compensation expense of
$258.8 million increased $46.5 million, or 24.2%, from 2006
reflecting increased staffing levels in the corporate compliance
and technology support functions coupled with the increase
in stock-based compensation. Non-compensation expense
of $212.3 million was up $45.8 million, or 27.1%, over 2006
due to higher rent and occupancy costs of $39.3 million, or
88.2%, over 2006 primarily related to the Company’s reloca-
tion 1o its new corporate headquarters at 7 World Trade Center
(*7 WTC™) and an increase in professional service costs of
$21.6 million relating to technology investment spending and

legal matters.
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Operating income in 2007 includes a $50.0 million
restructuring charge consisting of $45.9 million of expenses
relating to severance and other employee benefit costs
and $4.1 million for contract termination costs, as further
discussed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Operating income of §1,131.0 million decreased
$128.5 miilion, or 10.2%, from $1,259.5 miltion in 2006, which
reflects app_roximale]y £21 million of foreign currency trans-
lation gains. Moody's operating margin for 2007 was 50.1%
compared to 61.8% in 2006. The restructuring charge in 2007
decreased the 2007 margin by approximately 220 basis points
while the gain on building sale increased the 2006 margin by
approximately 790 basis points.

Interest and other non-operating (expense) income,
net was $(14.3) million in 2007 compared with $1.0 million in
2006. Interest expense on horrowings was $40.7 million and
$15.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The increase was due to borrowings under the
Company's credit facilities, the issuance of the $300.0 million
Series 2007-1 Notes in September 2007, and issuance under
the Company’s commercial paper program, which was estab-
lished in October 2007. Interest expense on FIN No. 48 tax
liabilities was $21.5 million in 2007. In 2006, before FIN No. 48
became effective, interest on tax liabilities was reported as part
of income tax expense, net of federal tax benefit. There was
also a $17.5 million reduction of accrued interest expense and

a $14.4 million increase in other non-operating income both
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for amounts due 10 New D&B related to the *Amortization
Expense Deductions” legacy tax matter more fully described
in "Contingencies—Legacy Contingencies”, below. Interest
income earned on short-term investments and invested cash
balances was $19.3 million and $18.2 million for the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Foreign
exchange gains (losses) werc immaterial in both 2007

and 2006.

Moody’s effective tax rate was 37.2% in 2007 compared to
40.2% in 2006. The 2007 and 2006 effective tax rates included
benetits of $27.3 million and $2.4 million, respectively, related
o legacy income tax matters; see “Contingencies—Legacy
Tax Matters” below for further information. Additionally in
2007, there was a $14.4 million increase in other non-operating
income, which was not taxable, related to legacy tax matiers,
These matters favorably impacted the Company’s 2007 and
2006 effective tax rates by approximately 295 basis points and
30 basis points, respectively.

Net income was $701.5 million in 2007, a decrease of
$52.4 million, or 7.0%, from $753%.9 million in 2006. Basic and
diluted earnings per share for 2007 were $2.63 and $2.58,
respectively, compared 10 32.65 and $2.58, respectively, for
2006. Excluding the restructuring charge in 2007, the gain on
building sale in 2006 and legacy tax adjustments in hoth years,
net income increased $21.8 million, or 3.3%, and earnings per
share increased $0.25, or 11.1%, o $2.50 per share.

Segment Results

Moody’s Investors Service Revenue at Moody’s Investors
Service in 2007 was $2,104.2 million, up $209.9 million,

or 11.1%, from $1,894.3 million in 2006. Ratings revenue
accounted for $140.1 million of the increase, with growth
largely driven by global corporate finance and financial
institutions. Foreign currency translation accounted for
approximately $32 million of ratings revenue growth.

Global corporate finance revenue totaled $465.4 million

in 2007, an increase of $85.3 million, or 22.4%, from

$380.1 million in 2006. Revenue in the U.S. increased

$51.7 million, or 21.0%, primarily due to exceptionally
strong growth in speculative-grade issuance and bank loans
in the first half of 2007, offset by revenue declines in the
second half of 2007 compared to the second half of 2006.
'In the second half of 2007, U.S. investment-grade revenue

increased 57.0% compared to a 7.7% increase in the first half
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of 2007. International revenue of $167.1 million increased
$33.6 million, or 25.2%, largely driven by growth in European
investment-grade and speculative-grade bond issuance as well
as a 71.2% increase in bank loan revenue.

Global inancial institutions revenue was $303.1 million,
up $36.3 million, or 13.6%, from $266.8 million in 2006,
Revenue in the U.S. increased 315.1 million, principally due to
strong performance within the banking and insurance sectors
driven by debt refinancing and funding for share repurchases.
International revenuc of $165.8 million grew 221.2 million,
or 14.7%, from prior year mainly due to increased corporate
bond issuance activity and a significant number of new ratings
mandates both within the European banking sector.

Global structured finance revenue was $890.6 million for
2007, an increase of 1.1%, or $10.0 miilion, from $880.6 million
in 2006. Revenue in the U.S. decreased $29.4 million, or 5.0%,
in a mixed year where strong growth in the firschalf, largely
from the derivatives and commercinl mortgage-backed securi-
ties sectors, was offset by significant revenue declines in the
second half of 2007 principally in residential and commer-
cial morigage-backed securities as well as derivatives due
to the credit market turmoil which began early in the third
quarter of 2007. Quside the U.S., revenue of $328.5 million
increased $39.4 million, or 13.6%, reflecting strong growth
from derivatives and residential mortgage-backed securities
of $19.7 million and $12.3 million, respectively, mostly in the
European region. International growth was 40.4% in the first
half of 2007 offset by a significant slowdown in the second half
of 2007 due to the credit market turmoil. Foreign currency
translation positively impacted international revenue growth
by approximmély $16 million.

Public finance revenue was $120.8 million, an increase
of $8.5 million, or 7.6%, from $112.3 million in 2006. Revenue
growth was driven by a $4.4 million, or 12.4%, increase in the
housing, health care, higher education, and infrastructure
sectors as well as a §3.0 million, or 11.3%, increase in the
municipal structured products sector.

Global research revenue of $324.3 million was
$69.8 million, or 27.4%, higher than the $254.5 mitlion in
20006, as a result of strong sales of core research products and
analytic services 1o new and existing customers. U.8. revenue of
$176.0 million increased $33.8 million, or 23.8%, and interna-
tional revenue increased $36.0 million, or 32.1%, with 77.5%

reflecting growth in Europe.
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Moody's Investors Service operating and SG&A
expenses, including corporate expenses, were $922.1 million,
an increase of $133.0 million, or 16.9%, from $789.1 million
in 2006. Compensation and benefits expense comprised the
largest portion of the 2007 expense growth, accounting for
50.8% of the increase from 2006, reflecting normal salary
increases, higher staffing primarily in the international
ratings businesses where head count grew approximately 16%
from 2006, as well as in the corporate compliance and tech-
nology support functions, Stock-based compensation cxpense
also contributed to the year-over-vear increase primarily due
to the higher Black-Scholes value of the 2007 equity grants
compared to prior years. Non-compensation expenses in 2007
included increased rent and occupancy costs of $39.8 million
related to the Company's relocation to its new corporate head-
quarters at 7 WTC and increases in professional service costs
of approximately $25 million primarily due to information
technology investment spending and legal expenses. Foreign
currency translation contributed approximately $17 million 1o
year-to-year growth in reported expenses.

Moody's Investors Service operating income of
$1,105.4 million in 2007 was down $137.5 million, or
11.1%, from $1,242.9 million in 2006. Operating income
included a $45.6 million restructuring charge in 2007 and
a $160.6 miltion gain on the sale of the former corporate
headquarters building in 2006, Excluding the restructuring
charge and gain on building sale, operating income increased
$68.7 million, or 6.3%, with foreign currency translation
contributing approximately $223 million of the growth.

Moody's KMV  Revenue at MKMV in 2007 was
$154.8 million, up 312.0 million, or 8.4%, from $142.8 million
in 2006. Global revenue was driven by growth in annualized
risk subscriptions and software license fees of $8.8 million
and $3.5 million, respectively. U.S. revenue of $66.8 million
increased 6.9% from $62.5 million in 2006. Cutside the U.S,,
revenue increased $7.7 million, or 9.6%, over prior year.

MEKMV’s operating and SG&A expenses in 2007,
including the §4.4 million restructuring charge, were
$117.4 million, an increase of $7.8 million, or 7.1%, from
$109.6 million in 2006. Compensation and benefits expense
increased $9.9 million primarily reflecting normal salary
increases coupled with increased staffing as well as an approxi-
mate $2 million reduction of certain employee obligations

reflected in 2006. MKMV operating income was $25.6 million
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for 2007, an increase of $9.0 million, or 54.2%, compared with
$16.6 million in 2006, Excluding the restructuring charge,
MKMV’s 2007 operating income increased $13.4 million, or
80.7%, from 2006. Currency translation did not have a signifi-

cant year-to-year impact on MKMV results,

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 COMPARED WITH YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2005

Total Company Results

Moody’s revenue in 2006 was $2,037.1 million, an increase of
$305.5 million, or 17,6%, from $1,731.6 million for the same
period of 2005. Moody'’s achieved strong revenne growth above
the rate of the overall corporation in global structured finance,
corporate finance and research, and below the corporate rate
in financial institutions and MEKMV, with a decline in revenue
from public finance.

Revenue in the United States was $1,277.8 million in 2006,
an increase of $192.4 million, or 17.7%, from $1,085.4 million in
2005. Approximately 80% of the U.S. growth was driven by struc-
tured finance and corporate finance, rcﬂt:cting strong issuance
across most structured asset classes as well as corporate bonds
and bank loans. Research, financial instituttons and MKMV
contribued to year-over-year growth as well.

Moody’s international revenue was $759.3 million
in 2006, an increase of $113.1 million, or 17.5%, {from
$646.2 miltlion in 2005, International ratings revenue grew
approximately $96 million versus the prior year, with about
80% of the growth in Europe where credit derivatives, corpo-
rate finance, commercial mortgage-backed and residential
morigage-backed sectors were primary drivers of growth.
European research and MKMV contributed to growth as well.
Foreign currency translation positively impacted international
revenue growth by approximately §1 million,

Moody's operating and SG&A expenses of $898.7 mil-
lion in 2006 were $141.9 million, or 18.8%, more than
$756.8 million in 2005. Compensation and benefits continue
to be Moody’s largest expense, accounting for approximately
$103 million in growth from prior year. Moody's average glohal
stalfing of more than 3,100 employees during the year ended
December 31, 2006 was approximately 15% higher than during
the same prior year period. This increase includes hiring to
support business growth mainly in the U.5. and European
ratings businesses. The table below shows Moody's staffing at

year-end 2006 compared with year-end 2005,
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December 31, 2006

December 31, 2005

United States [nternational Toual United States  International Total
Moody’s Investors Service 1,843 1,106 2,949 1,600 919 2,519
Moody's KMV o4 97 401 303 74 377
Total 2,147 1,203 3,350 1,903 993 2,896

Operating expenses were $539.4 million in 2006, an
increase of $86.5 million, or 19.1%, from $452.9 million in
2005. The largest contributor (o this increase was growth
in compensation and benefits expense of approximately
$76 million, reflecting compensation increases, increased
staffing and higher stock-based compensation expense.
Moody’s global staffing reflected hiring primarily in the U.S,
and European ratings businesses to support business growth.
Stock-based compensation expense increased $16.3 million
year-over-year due, in part, to the final year of phasing in of
expense over the current four-year equity plan vesting period
and the effects of a higher share price on the value of the
2006 equity grants versus 2005, offset by additional expense
recorded in the first quarter of 2005 related to the accelerated
expensing of equity grants for employees at or near retirement
eligibility. Expenses for 2005 included $3.2 million for the
settlement of certain pension obligations.

Selling, general and administrative expenses were
$359.3 million in 2006, an increase of $55.4 million, or 18.2%,
from $303.9 million in 2005. Year-over-vear expensc increases
included growth in compensation and benefits of §27 million,
reflecting compensation increases, increased staffing in tech-
nology support and finance functions and $6.0 million related
Lo stock-based compensation as discussed above. Additional
2006 expenses included increased rent and occupancy costs of
approximately $12 million to support business expansion and
costs associated with Moody's new corporate headquarters.
Expenses for 2005 included a charge of $9.4 million for the
settlement of sales tax matters related to Moody's operations in
Japan from 2000 through June 30, 2005, which was a result of a
tax audit by Japanese taxing authorities that was completed in
the second quarter of 2005.

Operating income of $1,259.5 million in 2006, which
included a $160.6 millien gain on the sale of Moody's corpo-
rate headquarters building in the fourth quarter of 2006,
rose $319.9 million, or 34.0%, from $939.6 million in 2005,

Excluding the gain on sale, operating income increased 17.0%.
The effects of foreign currency translation reduced year-over-
year growth in operating income by approximately $3 million,
Moody’s operating margin for 2006 was 61.8% compared to
54.3% in 2005, The gain on the sale of the building increased
the 2006 margin by approximately 790 basis points.

Moody’s reported $1.0 million of interest and other
non-operating income {expense), net in 2006 compared with
$(4.9) million in 2005. Interest expense was $15.2 million in 2006
and $21.0 million in 2005. The amounts included $14.9 million
and $20.9 million of interest expense on Moody's $300 million
of notes payable for 2006 and 2005, respectively, Interest income
was 518.2 million in 2006 compared 10 $26.0 million in 2005.
The decrease was attributed to the liquidation of investment
portfolios to finance share repurchases. Foreign exchange losses
were immaterial in 2006 compared to $8.2 million in 2005. The
year-over-year change was primarily due to the British pound and
curo appreciating to the U.S. dollar.

Moody's effective tax rate was 40.2% in 2006 compared
10 40.0% in 20056, The 2006 and 2005 effective tax rates
were reduced by benefits of §2.4 million and $8.8 million,
respectively, related to legacy income tax matters; see
“Contingencies— Legacy Tax Matters™ below for further
information. Additionally, Moody’s recognized a tax benefit
of approximately $3 million related 10 additional foreign
tax credits in the fourth quarter of 2006 and a 1ax benefit
of $3.6 million in 2005 related to the repatriation of foreign
earnings under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004,

The 2006 rate was also favorably impacted by approximately
30 basis points due to the settlement of state tax audits,

Net income was $753.9 million in 2006, an increase of
$193.1 million, or 34.4%, from $560.8 million in 2005. Basic
and dituted earnings per share for 2006 were $2.65 and $2.58,
respectively, compared to basic and diluted earnings per share
of 8§1.88 and $1.84, respectively, for 2005. Exciuding the gain

on sale, 2006 net income was $659.8 million, an increase of
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$99.0 million or 17.7%. Additionally, the gain contributed
$0.33 and §0.32 relating to full-year basic and diluted earnings

per share, respectively.

Segment Resulis
Moody’s Investors Service Revenue at Moody's Investors
Service in 2006 was $1,894.3 million, up $294.0 million,
or 18.4%, from $1,600.3 million in 2005. Ratings revenue
accounted for $254.8 million of growth with increased revenue
in global structured finance, corporate finance and financial
institutions and sovereign risk offsetiing a decline in public
finance. Double-digit growth in research also contributed to
the increase in revenue. Foreign currency translation positively
impacted revenue growth by approximately $1 million, Price
increases also contributed 1o year-over-year growth in revenue.
Structwred finance revenue was $880.6 million in 2006,
an increase of $181.3 million, or 25.9%, from $699.3 million
in the same period of 2005. Approximately $111 million of
the increase was in the U.S., with the collateralized debt and
commercial mortgage-backed sectors contributing about 94%
of the U.S. increase. Year-over-year issuance of collateralized
loan obligations and cash flow resecuritizations grew, in part,
to the increased “repackaging” of securitized assets such as
consumer asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities, as
well as bank loans in collateralized debt obligations. Strong
growth in commercial real estate collateralized debt obligation
issuance was a key driver of overall commercial mortgage-
backed issuance. International structured finance revenue
grew approximately $70 million year-over-year, with Europe
contributing about $61 million. Credit derivatives, commercial
mortgage-backed and residential mortgage-backed sectors
totaled approximately 87% of the European growth, Foreign
currency translation for structured finance positively impacted
international revenue growth by approximately $3 million,
Corporate finance revenue was $380.1 million in 2006, up
£66.3 million, or 21.1%, from $313.8 million in 2005. Revenue
in the U.S. increased 20.8% principally due to issuance-related
growth in bank loan and corporate bond ratings revenue.
Investment-grade bond issuance increased approximately 17%
and high-yield bond issuance increased approximately 43%,
primarily due to significant mergers and acquisitions, leveraged
buyouts and second lien loan activity. International corporate
linance revenue increased approximately $24 million, or about

22%, due largely to increased corporate bond issuance and
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non-issuance related ratings fees in Europe. Price increases
also contributed to year-over-year growth in global corporate
finance revenue.

Revenue in the financial institutions and sovereign risk
group was $266.8 million in 2006, an increase of $12.2 million,
or 4.8%, from $254.6 million in 2005. In the U.S., revenue
grew approximately $11 millien, principalty due to strength in
the insurance and real estate sectors. Internationally, revenue
increased $1.4 million compared to the prior year period.

Public finance revenue was $112.3 million in 2006, a
decrease of $5.0 million, or 4.3%, from $117.3 million in 2005,
Dollar volume issuance in the municipal bond market declined
compared to 2005, primarily due o lower refinancing activity.

Research revenue of $254.5 million in 2006 was
$39.2 million, or 18.2%, higher than $215.3 million in 2005.
Revenue grew by approximately $29 million in the U.S. and
about $11 million internationally, with Europe accounting
for approximately 57% of international growth. Research and
analytics services accounted for approximately $17 million of
global revenue growth primarily from credit research on the
corporate finance, financial institutions and the structured
finance businesses. Revenue from the licensing of Moody's
information to financial customers for internal use and redis-
tribution was approximaiely $57 million in 2006, an increase
of approximately $8 million, or about 17% higher than the
prior vear.

Moody's Investors Service operating and S8G&A expenses,
including corporate expenses, were $789.1 million in 2006,
an increase of $143.7 million, or 22.8%, from $645.4 million
in 2005. The largest contributor to 2006 expenses was growth
in compensation and benefits of approximately $110 million
reflecting compensation increases, increased staffing primarily
in the U.S. and European ratings businesses and higher stock-
based compensation expense of $21.4 million. Furthermore,
expenses in 2006 included increased rent and occupancy costs
of approximately $11 million to support business expansion
and costs associated with Moody’s new corporate headquar-
ters, Additional increases were due to increased information
technology investment spending of approximately $8 million
offset by a decrease of approximately $6 million in legal fees.
Expenses for 2005 included a charge of $9.4 million for the
settlement of sales tax matters related to Moody's operations in

Japan from 2000 through June 30, 2005, which was a result of
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a tax audit by Japanese taxing authorities that was completed
in the second quarter of 2005. Additionally, expenses in 2005
included $3.2 million for the settlement of certain pension
obligations. Foreign currency translation contributed approxi-
mately $4 million to vear-to-year growth in reported expenses.

Moody's Investors Service operating income of
$1,242.9 million in 2006 was up $306.6 million, or 32.7%, from
$936.3 million in 2005, which included a $160.6 million gain
on the sale of Moody’s corporate headquarters building in the
fourth quarter of 2006. Excluding the gain, operating income
increased 15.6%. The effects of forcign currency translation
reduced year-to-year growth in operating income by approxi-
mately $3 million.

Moody's KMV  MEMV revenue of $142.8 million in
2006 was $11.5 millien, or 8.8%, more than the same period in
2005. MEMV's revenue growth reflected increased demand for
credit decision-making software and sofiware-related mainte-
nance services, which grew approximately 10% or $2.7 million
compared to 2005. Growth in subscriptions revenue related
to credit risk assessment products grew approximately 5% or
54.9 million compared to prior year and risk services revenue
increased approximately $4 million, or about 36%, compared
to prior year. In 2006, international MKMV revenue accounted
for approximately 56% of its global revenue.

MEMV's operating and SG&A expenses were
$109.6 million in 2006, a decrease of $1.8 million, or 1.6%,
from $111.4 million in 2005. The 2006 expenses include a
total of $3.5 million due to training and recruitment, sales
and marketing expenses. Additionally, 2006 expenses include
a §2.2 million charge recorded in connection with a non-
income tax matter. The 2005 expenses included approximately
$7 million related to severance costs, the write-off of capital-
ized software development and a liability for unpaid overtime
due to certain employees. MKMV operating income was
$16.6 million for 2006 compared with $3.3 million in 2005,
Currency translation did not have a significant year-to-year
impact on MKMV results.

Reorganization and New Segments Beginning in
January 2008, Moody's segments were changed to reflect the
implementation of the business reorganization announced
in August 2007. As a result of the reorganization, the rating
agency remains in the Moody’s Investors Service (*MIS")

operating company and several ratings business lines have been

realigned. All of Moody's other commercial activities, including
MKMYV, sales of credit research produced by Moody's Investors
Service and the production and sales of other products and
services, are now combined under a new operating company
known as Moody's Analytics ("Analytics™).

The aforementioned reorganization will result in
the Company operating in two new reportable segments in
accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments
of an Enterprise and Related Information”, beginning in
January 2008.

The tables below present operating results for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, as if the new
segment structure described above had been in place as of
January 1, 2005. Revenue for MIS and expenses for Analytics
includes an intersegment royalty charged to Analytics for
the rights to use and distribute content, data and products
developed by M15. Additionally, overhead costs and corpo-
rate expenses of the Company, all of which were previously
included in the former MIS segment, are allocated o each
new segment based on a revenue split methodology. Overhead
expenses include costs such as rent and occupancy, informa-
tion technology and support staff such as finance, human
resources, information technology and legal. “Eliminations”
represents intersegment royalty revenue/expense.

December 31, 2007

Moody’s ~
Investors Moody's
Service Analytics Eliminations Consolidated

Revenue £1,835.4 $479.1 $ (55.5) $2,259.0
Operating expenses 7594 3312 (355) 1,035.1
Restructuring charge 41.3 8.7 - 50.0
Depreciation and
amortization 24.0 18.9 — 429
Operating income $1,0107 %1208 $ — §$1,131.0
December 31, 2006
Moody's Corporate
[nvestors  Moody's items/

Service Analytics Eliminations Consolidated

Revenue $1,685.6 $397.3 $ (45.3) $2,037.1
Operating expenses 666.1 2784 (45.8) 898.7
Depreciation and

amortization 17.3% 222 — 39.5
Gain on sale of
(160.6)

$ 160.6

(1690.6)
$1,259.5

building — —
£1,002.2 § 96.7

Operatng income
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December 31, 2005

Moody's
Investors  Moody's
Service Analytics Eliminadons Consolidated

Revenue $1,4256 §346.7 § (40.7) $1,7316
Operating expenses 5h4.4 2431 (40.7) 756.8
Depreciation and

amortization 15.5 19.7 — 35.2

Operating income & 8557 § 839 § — % 9396

The table below presents revenue by line of business
within cach new segment and the related intra-segment

realignment:

Year ended December 31, 2005

2007 2006 2005

Moody’s Investors Service:

Structured Finance . § 8859 § 8836 $7087
Corporate Finance 411.5 335.9 277.4
Financial Institutions 261.7 222.1 214.0
Public, Project and
Infrastructure Finance 220.8 198.2 184.8
Total third-party revenue 1,7799 1,639.8 1,384.9

Intersegment rovalty 5b.5 45.8 40.7

Total MIS $1,835.4 $1,685.6 $1,425.6
Moody's Analytics:
Subscription 421.5 347.5 305.0
Consulting 18.1 13.5 8.1
Software 39.5 36.3 33.6
Total Analytics 479.1 397.3 346.7
Eliminations {55.5) (45.8) (40.7)

Total Moody’s Corporation $22500 $2,037.1 31,7316

As part of the reorganization there were several
realignments within the MIS lines of business. Sovereign and
sub-sovereign ratings, which were previously part of financial
institutions; infrastructure/utilities vatings, which were previ-
ously part of c'orporzue finance; and project finance, which was
previously part of structured finance, were combined with the
public finance business to form a new line of business called
public, project and infrastructure finance. In addition, real
estate investment trust ratings were moved from corporate
finance to the structured finance business.

Within Moody's Analytics various aspects of the legacy

MIS research business and MKMV business were combined to

The subscriptions business includes credit and economic
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research, data and analytical models that are sold on a
subscription basis; the software business includes license and
maintenance fees for credit risk software products, and the
consulting business includes professional services and credit
training associated with risk modeling, credit scorecard
development, and other specialized analytical projects, as well
as credit education services that are typically sold on a per-
engagement basis.

The following is a discussion of the results of operations
of the new segments, excluding the aforementioned inter-
segment rovalty revenue and related expense, as if they were

operating as of January 1, 2005.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 COMPARED WITH THE YEAR
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Moody’s Investors Service  Revenue at Moody's Investors
Service in 2007 was $1,779.9 million, up $140.1 million,
or 8.5%, from $1,639.8 million in 2006. Global corporate
finance, financial institutions and the public, projectand
infrastructure finance business increased $75.6 million,
$39.6 million, and $22.6 million, respectively.

Global corporate finance revenue totaled $411.5 million
in 2007, an increase of 22.5%, from $335.9 million in 2006,
Revenue in the U.S. increased $45.3 million, or 20.2%,
primarily due to increased leveraged loan activities and growth
in investment-grade bond issuance. International revenue of
$141.5 million increased $30.3 million, or 27.2%, largely driven
by growth in European bond issuance.

Global financial institutions revenue was $261.7 million,
up $39.6 million, or 17.8%, from $222.1 million in 2006.
Revenue in the U.S, increased $18.9 miltion, or 18.4%, prin-
cipally due to strong performance within the banking and
insurance sectors driven by debt refinancing and funding for
share repurchases. International revenue of $139.7 million grew
$20.7 million, or 17.4%, from prior year mainly due to increased
corporate bond issuance activity and a significant number of
new ratings mandates both within the European hanking sector.

Global structured finance revenue was $885.9 million for
2007, an increase of $2.3 million from $883.6 million in 2006,
Revenue of $569.6 million in the U.S. decreased $35.5 million,
or 5.9%, in a mixed year where strong growth in the first half
of 2007, largely from the credit derivatives and commercial
real estate finance sectors, which include real estate investment

trusts, commercial real estate collateralized debt obligations
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and commercial mortgage-backed securities, was offset in

the second half of 2007 by declining revenue in the residen-
tial mortgage-backed securities, derivatives and commercial
real estate finance sectors as a result of credit markeu turmoil
which reduced ratable itssuance volume, QOuside the U.S.,
revenue of $316.3 million increased $37.7 million, or 13.6%,
reflecting strong growth from derivatives and residential
mortgage-backed securities of $19.8 million and $12.8 million,
respectively, mostly in the European region.

Public, project and infrastructure finance revenue was
$220.8 million, an increase of $22.6 miltion, or 11.4%, from
$198.2 million in 2006. Revenue from project and infrastruc-
ture finance of §76.1 million showed the strongest growth
with an increase of $13.5 million, or 21.6%, over 2006, mostly
from within the U.S. Revenuc of $144.7 million from the
public finance sector, including U.S. public finance, sover-
eign and sub-sovereign, increased $9.1 million, or 6.7%, over
prior year driven by growth in combined issnance and new
money issuance,

Operating expenses, including allocated corporate
expenses and a $41.3 million restructuring charge in 2007,
were $800.7 million, an increase of $134.6 million, or 20.2%,
from $666.1 million in 2006. Compensation and benefits
expense was the largest contributor to the year-over-year
growth reflecting increased staffing internationally to
support business growth, as well as additional head countin
the corporate compliance group. Stock-based compensation
expense increased year-over-year primarily due to the higher
Black-Scholes value of the 2007 equity grants compared to
prior years. Non-compensation expenses in 2007 included
an increase in allocated expenses such as increased rent and
occupancy costs related to the Company's relocation to its new
corporate headquarters at 7 WTC and increases in professional
service costs primarily due to information technology invest-
ment spending and legal matters.

Moody’s Investors Service operating income of
$955.2 million in 2007 was flat compared (6 2006. Excluding
the $41.3 million restructuring charge, 2007 operating income
of $996.5 million increased $40.1 million, or 4.2%, from
$956.4 million in 2006.

Moody’s Analytics Revenue for Moaody’s Analytics was
$479.1 million, an increase of $81.8 million, or 20.6%, from
2006. U.S. revenue of $242.8 million increased $38.1 million,
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or 18.6%, and international revenue increased $43.7 million, or
22.7%, with 90.3% of the growth from Europe.

Revenue from subseription products of $421.5 million
was up $74.0 million, or 21.3%, over $347.5 million in 2006,
reflecting continued demand from new and existing customers
for credit and economic research, structured finance analytics
and other offerings. Software revenue of §39.5 million
increased $3.2 million, or 8.8%, from $36.3 million in 2006
primarily from additional license and maintenance fees
for credit decisioning and analysis products. Revenue from
consulting services grew $4.6 million, or 34.1%, due 1o
increased demand for credit education, risk modeling and
scorecard development among custemers seeking to implement
sophisticated risk manazgement processes and comply with
regulatory requirements,

Operating expenses in 2007, including allocated corpo-
rate expenses and the $8.7 million restructuring charge, were
$284 .4 million, an increase of $51.8 million, or 22.83%, from
$232.6 million in 2006. The increase is a result of additional
compensation due to head count growth of 8% and higher
sales commission expense resulting from better than expected
revenue growth over 2006. It also reflects an increase in
allocated expenses due to increased rent and occupancy costs
related 1o the Company’s relocation to its new corporate head-
quarters at 7 WTC and increases in professional service costs
primarily due to information technology investment spending
and legal mauters.

Moody's Analytics operating income of $175.8 million in
2007 increased $33.3 mitlion, or 23.4%, from $142.5 million
in 2006. Operating income included an $8.7 million
restructuring charge in 2007. Excluding the restructuring
charge, 2007 operating income of $184.5 million increased
£42.0 million, or 29.5%, from $142.5 million in 2006,

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 COMPARED WITH THE YEAR
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Moody's Investors Service Revenue at Moody's Investors
Service in 2006 was $1,639.8 million, up $254.9 million, or
18.4%, from $1.384.9 million in 2005 with global structured
and corporate finance accounting for $233.4 million, or 91.6%,
of the growth.

Structured finance revenue was $883.6 million in 2006,
an increase of $174.9 million, or 24.7%, from $708.7 million in
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the same period of 2005. Revenue in the U.S. of $605.0 million
increased $111.4 million, or 22.6%, with commercial real estate
finance, consisting of real estate investment trusts, commer-
cial real estate collateralized debt obligations and commercial
mortgage-backed securities, and credit derivatives contributing
$22.2 million and $85.6 million of the increase, respectively.
International structured finance revenue grew 56_3.4 million
year-over-year, with Europe contributing about $538 million,
where credit derivatives, commercial real estate finance and
residential mortgage-backed sectors totaled 91.7% of the
European growth.,

Corporate finance revenue was $335.9 million in 2006,
up $58.5 million, or 21.1%, from $277.4 million in 2003.
Revenue in the U.S. increased 22.3% principally due to issu-
ance-related growth in bank loan and corporate bond ratings
revenue. International revenue of $111.2 million increased
$17.5 million, or 18.7%, due largely o increased corporate
bond issuance and non-issuance related ratings fees in Europe.

Financial institutions revenue was $222.1 million in 2006,
an increase of $&.1 million or 3.8% from $214.0 million in
2005. In the U.S,, revenue of $103.0 million grew $8.2 million,
or 8.6%, principally due to strength in the insurance sector,
Internationally, revenue was refatively flat compared 1o 2006
with decreases in Europe being offset by increases in Asia and
other international locations.

Public, project and infrastructure finance revenue was
$198.2 million in 2006, an increase of $13.4 million, or 7.3%,
from $184.8 million in 2005, reflecting good growth in the
project and infrastructure sectors internationally,

Operating expenses, including allocated corpo-
rate expenses, were $§666.1 million in 2006, an increase of
$111.7 million, or 20.1%, from $554.4 million in 2005, The
increase is duc 1o incentive compensation reflecting improved
financial results over prior year, additional sataries and benefits
expense relating to higher global staffing to support the busi-
ness growth. Non-compensation expense increased over 2006
reflecting additional travel, training and recruiting, as well as
an increase in professional service fees associated with tech-
nology investment spending.

Moody's Investors Service operating income of
$956.4 million in 2006 was up $141.4 million, or 17.3%, from
$815.0 million in 2005 mostly driven by the growth in revenue.

Moody's Analytics Revenue for Moody's Analytics

was $397.3 million, an increase of $50.6 million, or 14.6%,
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from $346.7 million in 2005. U.S. revenue of $204.7 million
increased $33.1 million, or 19.8%, and international revenue
increased $17.6 million, or 10.1%, with 63.1% reflecting growth
in Europe.

Revenue from subscription products of $347.5 million
was up §42.5 million, or 13.9%, over $305.0 million in 2005,
benefiting from higher sales of core research and data services
coupled with new customer growth and lower attrition.
Software revenue of $36.3 million increased $2.7 million, or
8.0%, from $33.6 million in 2005 reflecting greater demand
for risk products and credit decision-making software and
related maintenance services. Revenue from consulting
services was $13.5 million, an increase of $5.4 million, or
66.7%, from $8.1 million in 2005 reflecting an increase in the
risk management needs of customers and the completion of
contractual milestones.

Operating and SG&A expenses, including allocated
corporate expenses, were $232.6 million in 2006, an increase
of $30.2 million, or 14.9%, from $202.4 million in 2005,
primarily due to increased compensation and benefits relating
to sales commissions from higher revenue coupled with addi-
tional staffing over 2005. The increase also reflects additional
training and recruiument, sales and marketing expenses to
support business growth, as well as a $2.2 million charge in

2006 relating to a non-income tax related matter.

MARKET RISK

Moody’s maintains operations in 27 countries outside the
United States. Approximately 33% of the Company’s revenue
was billed in currencies other than the U.S. dollar in 2007,
principally the British pound and the euro. Approximately
42% of the Company’s expenses were incurred in currencies
other than the U.S. dollar in 2007, principally the British
pound and the euro. As such, the Company is exposed to
market risk from changes in foreign exchange rates.

As of December 31, 2007, approximately 35% of Moody's
assets were located outside the U.S. Of Moody's aggregate cash
and cash equivalents of $426.3 million at December 31, 2007,
approximately $348 million was located outside the United
States (with $104 million and $88 million in Luxembourg
and the U.K,, respectively), making the Company susceptible
1o fluctnations in foreign exchange rates. Additionally, all of
Moody's aggregate short-terin investments of $14.7 million

were located outside the United States. The effects of changes
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in the value of foreign currencies refative to the U.S. dollar on
assets and liabilities of non-U.S. operations with non-U.8S. func-
tional currencies are charged or credited to the cumulative
translation adjustment account in shareholders’ equity.

Moody's cash equivalents consist of investments in high
quality investment-grade securities within and outside the
United Siates. The Company manages its credit risk expo-
sure by allocating its cash equivalents among various money
market mutual funds and issuers of high-grade commercial
paper. Short-term investments primarily consist of high quality
investment-grade corporate bonds in Korea. The Company
manages its credit risk exposure on cash equivalents and
short-term investments by limiting the amount it can invest
with any single issuer.

A portion of the Company’s future billings and related
revenue is exposed to market risk associated with changes
in foreign currency exchange rates primarily related to
the euro and British pound. Under the Company's current
foreign exchange hedging program, the Company hedges a
portion of foreign exchange currency risk for the purpose
of reducing volatility in the Company's cash flows related o
future euro and British pound billings and related revenue.
Foreign exchange options are currently utilized to hedge these
exposures and have maturities between one and 15 months.
As of December 2007, all contracts were set to expire at
various times through March 2009 and were deemed to be
highly effective under SFAS No. 133 and related accounting
pronouncements. No credit losses are anticipated as the
counterparties to these agreements are major financial institu-
tions. As of December 31, 2007, the fair value of the Company’s
outstanding options was recorded as an asset of $2.3 million

consisting of the following notional amounts:

Currency Pair of Option®* Notonal amount*
GBP/USD £ 7.9 million
EUR/USD € 16.7 million
EUR/GBP € 61.5 million

* GRP(£)=Great Britain pounds; EUR(€)=curos; USD($)=U.5. dollars

Unrealized gains or losses will be recorded in other
comprehensive income and, once realized, the gains or losses
will be recognized as an adjustment to revenue when the bill-
ings are recognized in revenue.

A sensitivity analysis has been prepared to estimate the

exposure to fluctuations in the foreign currency exchange
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rates on Moody's foreign exchange options. A hypnothetical
10% favorable change in the overall option currency port-
folio would result in a gain of approximately $10 million as of
December 31, 2007. The maximum loss related 1o an adverse

change in the option currency portfolio would be $2.3 million,

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

CASH FLOW

The Company is currently financing its operations, capital
expenditures and share repurchases through cash flow from
operations and from financing activities. Net cash provided
by operating activities was $984.0 million, $752.5 million and
$707.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. The Company borrowed $847.4 million
during the year ended December 31, 2007.

Moody’s net cash provided by operating activities in 2007
increased by $231.5 million compared with 2006. A decrease in
net income of $52.4 million reduced cash provided by operating
activities. The increase in stock-based compensation expense
positively impacted cash flow from operations by $13.1 million
compared to net income. Accounts receivable decreased
approximately 7% in the year ended December 31, 2007
compared with an increase of approximately 13% for the year
ended December 31, 2006 increasing cash flow from operations
by $79.1 million compared to 2006, The impact on cash flows
of excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation plans
decreased to $52.2 million from $103.2 million in 2006 due
to fewer stock option exercises in 2007 compared with 2006,
The favorable non-cash resolution of a legacy tax matter in the
second quarter of 2007 negatively impacted operating cash
flow by $52.3 million compared to net income. Operating cash
flow in 2006 included a decrease of $160.6 million from the
gain on sale of the Company’s former headquarters building.
The $67.2 million reduction in cash flows from changes in
other current assets is primarily due 1o the receipt of approxi-
mately 316 million from New D&:B related to issuer-based stock
compensation tax deductions in 2006 and an approximate
$40 million overpayment of 2007 state income taxes offset by
an $8.5 million increase related 1o a receivable from the 1IRS
for a legacy tax matter classified as a current asset in 2007,
Furthermore, the $55.5 million change in cash flows associ-
ated with other assets is primarily due to a deposit made in the
first quarter of 2006 of approximately $40 million with the IRS

relating to Amortization Expense Deductions, as discussed in
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Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements. Operating
cash flow decreased by $87.5 million due to reductions in
accounts payable and accrued liabilities. This is primarily due
to a decrease in net accrued income taxes of $76.5 million,
decreases in accrued incentive compensation of approximately
$27 million and decreases in accounts payable of approximately
$17 million, due to timing of payments offset by approximately
$33 million in restructuring liabilities. Increases in FIN No.

48 and other non-current tax and related liabilities increased
cash flow from operations by approximately $83 million.
Additionally, increases in the deferred rent liability contributed
approximately $47 million to cash flow from operations relating
primarily to the free rent period and tenant allowance on the
7WTC lease.

Moody’s net cash provided by operating activities in 2006
increased by $44.6 million compired with 2005, Growth in net
income contributed $193.1 million to cash provided by oper-
ating activities. The 2006 cash flows include a decrease relating
to excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation plans
of $103.2 million that are now classified as a cash flow from
financing activities as required under SFAS No, 123R. Prior o
the implementation of SFAS No. 123R in the first quarter of
2006, excess tax bencfits relating to stock-based compensation
were presented in the consolidated statements of cash flows as
an operating cash flow, along with other tax cash flows. The
operating cash flow includes a decrease of $160.6 million from
the gain on sale of the Company’s headquarters building,

The cash proceeds are reperted as an investing activity in

the statement of cash flows. The change in accounts receiv-
able is attributable 1o increases in revenue offset by improved
collection. Additionally, Moody’s deposited approximately
$40 million with the IRS in the first quarter of 2006 relating
to Amortization Expense Deductions, as discussed in Note 17
to the consolidated financtal statements, This deposit

was recorded in other assets. Tax payments increased by

$53 million in 2006 versus 2005, offset by increases in income
taxes payable due to growth in pre-tax net income. An increase
in deferred revenue increased cash flow from operations by
$28 million which is due to increased volume in annual and
initial fees in both the ra.Lings and research businesses.

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities was
£(124.7) million, $116.1 million and $(150.4) million for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Net maturities (investments) in shori-term investiments,
net of purchases, totaled $61.5 million, $22.5 million and
$(88.9} million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. Capila] expenditures, primarily for
leasehold improvements and internal use software, totaled
$181.8 million, $31.1 million and $31.3 million for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.
The 2007 increase relates primarily to the build-out of the
Company’s new corporate headquarters at 7 WTC. The 2006
spending on acquisitions was £39.2 million, which related
primarily to the purchase of 2 49% share in China Cheng Xin
International Credit Rating Co. Ltd and the acquisition of Wall
Street Analytics, Inc., net of cash acquired. The 2005 spending
on acquisitions primarily related to the acquisition of Economy.
com, nel of cash acquired, and a contingent payment made in
the second quarter of 2005 related to Korea Investors Service.
The net proceeds received from the sale of the Company's
former corporate headquarters btiilding in the fourth quarter
of 2006 were $163.9 million.

Net cash used in financing activities was $861.5 million,
$965.2 million and $666.5 million for years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company
borrowed $547.4 million under its commercial paper program
in 2007 to support share repurchases, build-out of the new
corporate headquarters at 7 WTC and other operational
activities. Additionally, the Company issued and sold through
a private placement transaction $300.0 million aggregate prin-
cipal Series 2007-1 Notes in the third quarter of 2007, Spending
for share repurchases totaled $1,738.4 million, $1,093.6 million
and $691.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2003, respectively. Dividends paid were $85.2 million,
$79.5'million and $60.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The increase
in dividends reflects a quarterly dividend paid of $0.08 per
share in 2007 versus a quarterly dividend of $0.07 per share
in 2006 and $0.0375 in the first quarter and $0.055 in the
subsequent quarters per share in 2005, These amounts
were ofiset in part by procecds from employee stock-based
compensation plans of $65.9 million, $105.3 million and
$89.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. Excess tax benefits from stock-based
compensation plans were $52.2 million and $103.2 million for

the vears ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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The decreases in proceeds from stock plans and the excess
tax benefits relating to stock-based compensation plans is due
primarily to a decrease in stock option exergise activity in 2007

compared to the same period in 2006.

FUTURE CASH REQUIREMENTS

The Company believes that it has the financial resources
nceded to meet its cash requirements for the next 12 months
and expecits to have positive operating cash flow for fiscal
year 2008. Cash requirements for periods bcyond the

next 12 months will depend, among other things, on the
Company’s profitability and its ability to manage working
capital requircments.

The Company currently expects to use a significant
portion of its cash flow to continue its share repurchase
program. The Company implemented a systematic share
repurchase program in the third quarter of 2005 through
an SEC Rule 10b5-1 program. Moody’s may also purchase
opportunistically when conditions warrant. The Company’s
intent is to return capital to shareholders in a way that serves
their long-term interests. As a result, Moody's share repur-
chase activity will continue to vary from quarter to quarter,
The Company may borrow from various sources 1o fund
share repurchases. On June 5, 2006, the Board of Directors
authorized a $2.0 billion share repurchase program of
which Moody's has approximately $24 million remaining at
December 31, 2007. On July 30, 2007, the Board of Directors
of the Company authorized an additional $2.0 billion share
repurchase program that the Company will begin utilizing
upon completion of the 2006 authority, There is no estab-
lished expiration date for either of these authorizations.

At December 31, 2007, the Company had $551.9 millien,
net of unamortized discount of $0.7 million, of owstanding
commercial paper and issued $300.0 million of 6.06% Series
2007-1 Notes, as described in the Indebtedness section below,
to support share repurchases, the build-out of Moody's new
corporate headquarters at 7 WTC and other operational
activities.

The Company entered into an operating lease agreement
(the “Lease”) commencing on October 20, 2006 with 7 Waorld
Trade Center, LLC for 589,945 square feet of an office building
located at 7 WTC at 250 Greenwich Streetl, New York, New York,
which is serving as Moody’s new headquarters. The Lease has an

initial term of approximately 21 years with a total of 20 years of

renewal options, The total base rent of the lease over its initial
2l-year term is approximately $536 million including rent credits
from the World Trade Center Rent Reduction Program promul-
gated by the Empire State Development Corporation. On March
28, 2007, the lease agreement was amended for the Company to
lease an additional 78,568 square feet at 7 WTC. The additional
base rent is approximately $106 million over a 20-year term.

The Company plans to incur approximately $21 million
of costs.to complete the build-out of its new corporate head-
quarters at 7 WTC over the next year.

On October 24, 2007, the Company announced a restruc-
turing plan that would reduce global head count, terminate
certain technology contracts and consolidate certain corpo-
rate functions in response to the Company's reorganization
announced on August 7, 2007 and a decline in current and
anticipated issuance of rated debt securities in some market
sectors, Included in the $50.0 million restructuring charge
is $7.0 million of non-cash settlements relating 1o pension
curtailments and stock-based compensation award modifica-
tions for certain terminated employees. During 2007, the
Company made cash payments of §1.8 million related to the
$43.0 million cash component of the restructuring liability
and expects cash outlays of approximately $31 million and
$2 million during 2008 and 2009, respectively. The remaining
liability of $8.1 million relates 10 annuity payments that will
be made in connection with the Company's pension and other
post-retirement benefit plans for certain terminated employees,
which will commence when the emplovees reach retirement
age beginning in 2009 and continue until all payments have
been made.

The Company also intends to use a portion of its cash
flow to pay dividends. On December 18, 2007, the Board
of Directors of the Company approved the declaration of a
quarterly dividend of $0.10 per share of Moody's common
stock, pavable on March 10, 2008 to shareholders of record
at the close of business on February 20, 2008. The continued
payment of dividends at this rate, or at all, is subject to the
discretion of the Board of Direclors.

In addition, the Company will from time o time consider
cash outlays for acquisitions of or investments in complemen-
tary businesses, products, services and technologies. The
Company may also be required to make future cash outlays to

pay to New D&B its share of potential tiabilities related to the
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legacy tax and legal contingencies that are discussed in this
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” under “Contingencies™. These
potential cash outlays could be material and might affect
liquidity requirements, and they could cause the Company

to pursue additional financing. There can be no assurance
that finzncing to meet cash requirements will be available in

amounts or on terms acceptable to the Company, if at all.

INDEBTEDNESS
The following table summarizes total indebtedness at

December 31:

2007 2006

Notes payable:
Senior notes, due 2015, 4.98% $ 3000 $300.0
Senior notes, due 2017, 6.06% 300.0 —_
Commercial paper 551.9 —
Total 1,151.9 300.0
Less: current portion (551.9) —_
Total long-term debt £ 600.0 %£300.0

{1} Net of unamortized discount of $0.7 million.

Notes Payable

On September 7, 2007, the Company issued and sold through
a private placement transaction, $300.0 million aggre-

gate principal amount of its 6,06% Series 2007-1 Senior
Unsecured Notes due 2017 (“Series 2007-1 Notes") pursuant
1o a Note Purchase Agreement (*2007 Agreement”). The
Sertes 2007-1 Notes have a 10-year term and bear interest at
an annual rate of 6.06%, payable semi-annually on March 7
and September 7 of each year. Under the terins of the 2007
Agreement, the Company may, from time o time within five
years, in its sole discretion, issue additional series of senior
notes in an aggregate principal amount of up to $500.0 million
pursuant to one or more supplements to the 2007 Agreement.
The Company may prepay the Series 2007-1 Notes, in whole
Or in part, at any time at a price equal to 100% of the prin-
cipal amount being prepaid, plus accrued and unpaid interest
and a prepayment premium based on the excess, if any, of
the discounted value of the remaining scheduled payments,
over the prepaid principal (*"Make Whole Amount™). The
2007 Agreement contains covenants that limit the ability of
the Company, and certain of its subsidiaries to, among other

things: enter into transactions with affiliates, dispase of assets,
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incur or create liens, enter into any sale-leaseback transactions,
or merge with any other corporation or convey, transfer or
lease substantially all of its assets. The Company must also not
perinit its total debt to earnings before interest, taxes. depre-
ciation and amortization (“"EBITDA”) ratio to exceed 4.0 to 1.0
at the end of any fiscal quarter.

On September 30, 2005, the Company entered into
a Note Purchase Agreement (“2005 Agreement”) and
issued and sold through a private placement transaction,
$300.0 million aggregate principal amount of its Series
20056-1 Senior Unsecured Notes (“Series 2005-1 Notes™). The
Series 2005-1 Notes have a H)-year term and bear interest at
an annual rate of 4.98%, payable semi-annually on March 30
and September 3. The proceeds from the sale of the Series
2005-1 Notes were used to refinance $300.0 million aggregate
principal amount of the Company’s outstanding 7.61% Senior
Notes which matured on September 30, 2005. In the event that
Moody’s pays all, or part, of the Series 2005-1 Notes in advance
of their maturity (the “Prepaid Principal”), such prepayment
will be subject to a penalty based on the Make Whole Amount.
The Series 2003-1 Notes are subject to certain covenants that,
among other things, restrict the ability of the Company and
certain of its subsidiaries, without the approval of the lenders,
to engage in mergers, consolidations, asset sales, transactions
with affiliates and sale-leaseback transactions or to incur liens,

as defined in the related agreements.

Commercial Paper

On October 3, 2007, the Company entered into a commercial
paper program (the “Program”) on'a private placement basis
under which the Company may issue unsecured commer-

cial paper notes {the "CP Notes™) up (o a maximum amount
outstanding at any time of $1.0 billion. Amounts available
under the Program may be re-borrowed. The Program is
supported by the Company’s 2007 Facility (see Credit Facilities
section below), if at any time funds are not available on favor-
able terms under the Program. The maturities of the CP Notes
will vary, but may not exceed 397 days from the date of issue.
The CP Notes will be sold at a discount from par or, alterna-
tively, will be sold at par and bear interest at rates that will vary
hased upon market conditions at the time of the issuance. The
rates of interest will depend on whether the CP Notes will be

a fixed or floating rate. The interest on a floating rate may
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be based on the following: {a) certificate of deposit rate; (b)
commercial paper rate; (c) the federal funds rate; (d) London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR™); (¢) prime rate; {f) trea-
sury rate; or (g) such other base rate as may be specified in a
supplement. The Program contains certain events of default
including, among other things: non-payment of principal,
interest or fees; violation of covenants; invalidity of any loan
document; material judgments; and bankruptcy and insolvency

events, subject in certain instances to cure periods.

Credit Facilities
On September 28, 2007, the Company entered into a $1.0 billion
five-year senior, unsecured revolving credit facility {the *2007
Facility”), expiring in September 2012, which replaces both
the $500.0 million Interim Facility that was set to expire in
February 2008 as well as the $500.0 million five-year revolving
credit facility entered into on September |, 2004 and sched-
uled to expire in September 2009. The 2007 Facility will serve,
in part, to support the commercial paper program discussed
above. Interest on borrowings is payable at rates that are based
on LIBOR plus a premium that can range from 16.0 to 40.0
basis points of the facility amount depending on the Company’s
ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA (“Earnings Coverage
Ratio™). The Company also pays quarterly facility fees, regard-
less of borrowing activity under the 2007 Facility, The quarterly
fees for the 2007 Facility can range from 4.0 to 10.0 basis points
of the facility amount, depending on the Company’s Earnings
Coverage Ratio, The Company also pays a utilization fee of 5
basis points on borrowings outstanding when the aggregate
amount outstanding exceeds 50% of the total facility. The 2007
Facility contains certain covenants that, among other things,
restrict the ability of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries,
without the approval of the lenders, to engage in mergers,
consolidations, asset sales, transactions with affiliates and sale-
leaseback transactions or to incur liens, as defined in the related
agreement. The 2007 Facility also contains financial covenants
that, among other things, require the Company to maintain an
Earnings Coverage Ratio of not more than 4.0 1w 1.0 at the end
of any fiscal quarter. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had
no borrowings outstanding under the 2007 Facility.

On August 8, 2007, the Company entered into an interim
loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of $500.0 million

that was 1o expire on February 8, 2008 {the “Interim Facility”).

Interest on borrowings was payable at rates that were based on
LIBOR plus a premium that could range from 17.0 to 47.5 basis
peints ol the Interim Facility amount, depending on the
Company's Earnings Coverage Ratio. The Company alse paid
quarterly facility fees, regardiess of borrowing activity under the -
Interim Facility. The quarterly fees ranged from 8.0 10 15.0 basis
points, depending on the Company’s Earnings Coverage Ratio.
On September 28, 2007, the closing date of 2007 Facility,

the Company terminated the Interim Facility and repaid the
$100.0 million outstanding bhalance,

On September 1, 2004, Moody’s entered into a five-year
senior, unsecured bank revolving credit facility (the “2004
Facility™) in an aggregate principal amount of $160.0 million
that was scheduled to expire in September 2009. Interest on
the borrowings under the 2004 Facility was pavable at rates
that are based on LIBOR plus a premium that can range
from 17.0 to 47.5 basis points depending on the Company's
Earnings Coverage Ratio, as defined in the related agree-
ment. The Company also paid quarterly facility fees, regardless
of horrowing activity. The quarterly fees ranged from 8.0 to
15.0 hasis points of the facility amount, depending on the
Company's Earnings Coverage Ratio. The Company also paid
a utilization fee of 12.5 basis poinis on borrowings outstanding
when the aggregate amount outstanding exceeded 50% of the
total facility. In October 2006, Moody's amended the 2004
Facility by inci‘easing the limit on sale proceeds resulting
from a sale-leaseback transaction of its former corporate
headquarters building from $150.0 million 1o $250.0 mitlion.
Additionally, the restriction on liens to secure indebted-
ness related 1o the building sale was also increased from
$150.0 million to $250.0 million. The Company also increased
the expansion feature of the 2004 Facility from $80.0 million
to $340.0 miilion, subject 1o obtaining commitments for
the incrermental capacity at the time of draw down from the
existing lenders. In April 2007, after receipt of all necessary
approvals relating to the execution of the expansion feature,
borrowing capacity under the 2004 Facility was increased to
$500.0 million. On September 28, 2007, the closing date of the
2007 Facility, the Company terminated the 2004 Facility and
repaid the $§400.0 million owtstanding balance.

At December 31, 2007, the Company was in compliance
with all covenants contained within the note agreements and
the 2007 Facility described above.
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Interest (expense) income, net

Interest (expense) income, net consists of:

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Income $ 193 $18.2 $26.0
Expense on borrowings (40.7) (15.2) (21.0)
Expense on FIN No. 48

tax habilities {21.5) — —
Reversal of interest™ 17.5 —_ —_
Capitalized 1.1 — —
Total £(24.3) £3.0 $ 5.0

(a) Represents areversal of accrued interest related to the favorable resolution of
a legacy tax matter, as further discussed in Note 17 to the consolidated finan-
cial statements.

Interest paid on all borrowings was $32.5 million, $14.9 million

and $22.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006

and 2005, respectively.

Management may consider pursuing additional long-term
financing when it is appropriate in light of cash requirements for
operations, share repurchase and other strategic opportunities,

which would result in higher financing costs.

QFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, Moody’s did not have any
relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partner-
ships, such as entities often referred to as special purpose or
variable interest entities where Moody's is the primary benefi-
ciary, which would have been established for the purpose of
facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contrac-
tually narrow or limited purposes. As such, Moody's is not
exposed to any financing, liquidity, market or credic risk that

could arise if it had engaged in such relationships.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS )
The following table presents payments due under the

Company's contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007:

Payments Due by Period
Less
Than 1-3 3-5 Over 5
(in millions) Total 1 Year Years Years Years

Operating lease

obligations!? $1,0711 § 726 $118.7 $1053 $ 779.5

Notes payable® 9106 332 662 662 7450
Purchase
obligations® 39.0 301 79 .10 —

Borrowings under

commercial

paper program™ 5526  552.6 — — —
Capital lease

obligations 4.5 1.7 2.8 — _
Other ¥ 599 2.6 12.1 9.2 36.0
Total® $2,637.7 $692.8 $202.7 $181.7 $1,560.5

(1) Includes rent paymenis refating to the 165.000 square foot, 17.5 year oper-
ating lease agreement entered into on February 6, 2008 1o occupy six floors
of an office tower in the Canary Wharl section of London, England. The
Company will begin making rent payments in March 2011.

(2) Includes $9.3 million of accrued interest as of December 31, 2007 and
$301.3 million of interest that will acerue and be due from January 1, 2008
through September 30, 2015 and 2017, when the Series 2005-1 Notes and the
Series 2007-1 Notes mature, respectively.

(3) Purchase obligations include approximately $21 million, excluding approxi-
mately $0.8 million of accrued liabilities, related to the build-out of Moody's
new corporate headquarters at 7 WTC. Purchase obligatons also include
contracts for professional services, daw processing and telecommunication
services, and data back-up facilites.

() Incliudes $1.5 million of interest related o CP Notes outstanding under its
commercial paper program at December 31, 2007 that will be due and paid
atvarious times through December 31, 2008. As of February 27, 2008, the
Company had approximately $746 millien of CP Notes outstanding under the
Program. See “Indebtediess” for further information.

(5) Includes $54.9 million of projected benefit payments relating 1o the
Company's unfunded Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans
described in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

(6) The table above does not include the Company's net long-term tax Habilities
of $118.3 million, since the expected cash outflow of such amounts by period
cannot be reasonably estimated.
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2008 OUTLOOK

Beginning in January 2008, Moody’s segments were changed to
reflect the business reorganization announced in August 2007,
As a result of the recrganization, the rating agency remains

in the Moody’s Investors Service (“MIS")'operaLing company
and several ratings business lines have been realigned. All of
Moody’s other commercial activities, including MKMV and
sales of M1S research, are now combined under a new oper-
ating company known as Moody’s Analytics, Moody's new
initiatives in fixed income pricing and valuations will also be
captured within Moody's Analytics.

Moody’s outlook for 2008 is based on assumptions about
many macroeconomic and capital market factors, including
interest rates, corporate profitability and business investment
spending, merger and acquisition activity, consumer spending,
restdential morigage borrowing and refinancing activity,
securitization levels and capital markets issuance. There is an
important degree of uncertainty surrounding these assumptions
and, if actual conditions differ from these assumptions, Moody's
results for the year may differ from our current outlook.

For Moody’s overall, full-year 2008 revenue is expected
to decline in the low double-digit percent range. This decline
assumes foreign currency translation in 2008 at current
exchange rates. The Company anticipates a weak first half of
2008 with improvement in market liquidity and issuance condi-
tions later in the year. Under this scenario, Moody’s first half
2008 performance is likely to reflect unusually weak market
conditions, as well as challenging year-on-year comparisons
against the first half of 2007 when the Company delivered
record performance. The Company expects the full-year
2008 operating margin to decline to the mid- to high-forties
percent range, due primarily to lower ratings revenue. Full-
year expenses are expected to decrease approximately 5%,
primarily due to the 2007 restructuring charge of
$50.0 million, as well as expense savings from the restructur-
ing actions, partially offset by investments in the growth areas
of our business. Earnings per share for 2008 are projected
in a range from $2.17 to $2.25, which reflects the estimated
impact of share buybacks under the Company’s share repur-

chase program.
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For the global Moody’s Investors Service business, the
Company expects revenue for the full year 2008 to decline in the
mid- to high-teens percent range. Within the U.S., the Company
projects Moody's Investors Service revenue to decrease in the
mid-twenties percent range for the full year 2008,

In the U.S. structured finance business, Moody's expects
revenue for the year to decline in the low- to mid-orties
percent range, reflecting double-digit percent declines in most
asset classes, led by residential mortgage-backed securities and

credit derivatives ratings.

In the U.S. corporate finance business, the Company
expects revenue to decrease in the low-teens percent range for
the year driven by declines across all asset classes.

In both the U.S. financial institutions and public, project
and infrastructure finance sectors, Moody’s projects revenue in !
2008 to grow in the low single-digit percent range.

Qutside the U.8. the Company expects Moody’s Investors
Service revenue to decrease in the low single-digit pércent
range. Good growth from rating financial institutions; public,
project and infrastructure finance; and corporate securities
is expected to be more than offset by a decline in structured
finance ratings revenue, primarily in Europe.

For Moody’s Analytics, the Company expects revenue
growth in the mid-teens percent range. In the U.S,, growth is
projected to be in the low-teens percent range while outside the
U.5,, revenue is expected to increase in the high-teens percent
range. Growth in the subscription businesses is expected in
the mid-teens range, reflecting continued demand for credit
and economic research, struciured finance analytics, and the
impact of our newly formed pricing and valuation business.

In the consulting business, Moody’s anticipates very strong
growth, reflecting a robust pipeline of professional services
engagements and credit training projects. There is consider-
able demand for Moody's expertise in credit education, risk
modeling, and scorecard development as customers implement
more sophisticated risk management processes and comply
with regulatory requirements. In the software business, the
Company expects revenue to be flat versus 2007, as customers

begin to migrate to new generation software platforms.
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RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING
PRONOQUNCEMENTS

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157"). SFAS 157 establishes a single
authoritative definition of fair value, sets out a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires additional disclosures about
fair-value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is expected to increase
the consistency of fair value measurements and applies only
to those measurements that are already required or permitted
to be measured at fair value by other accounting standards.
SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007, In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB
Staff Position No. FAS 157-2 ("FSP FAS 157-2), which partially
defers the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for non-financial
assets and liabilities, except for items that are recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recur-
ring basis, until fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2008. The Company has implemented the deferral provisions
of FSP FAS 157-2 and as a result has partially implemented the
provisions of SFAS No. 157 as of January I, 2008. The partial
implementation of SFAS 157 does not have a material impact
on the Company’s consolidated financial position and results
of operations and the Company will apply, as of January 1,
2009, the provisions of SFAS No. 157 to its non-financial assets
and liabilities initially measured at fair value in a business
combination and not subsequently remeasured at fair value,
non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value for
a goodwill impairment assessment, non-financial lopg—lived
assets measured at fair value for an asset impairment assess-
ment, and asset retirement obligations initially measured at
fair value.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159,
“The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities—including an amendment of FASB Statement
No. 115" (“SFAS No. 159”). SFAS No. 159 expands the use of
fair value accounting but does not affect existing standards
which require assets or liabilities to be carried at fair value.

Under SFAS No. 159, a company may elect to measure many
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financial instruments and certain other items at fair value on
an instrument by instrument basis with changes in fair value
recognized in earnings each reporting period. Items eligible
for fair-value election include recognized financial assets and
liabilities such as equity-method investments and investments
in equity securities that do not have readily determinable

fair values, written loan commitments, and certain warran-

ties and insurance contracts where a warrantor or insurer is
permitted to pay a third party to provide the warranty goods or
services. If the use of fair value is elected, the election must be
applied to individual instruments with certain restrictions, is
irrevocable and must be applied to an entire instrument. Any
upfront costs and fees related to the item elected for fair value
must be recognized in earnings and cannot be deferred. At the
implementation date, unrealized gains and losses on existing
itemns for which fair value has been elected are reported as

a cumulative adjustment to beginning retained earnings,
Subsequent to the implerﬁemation of SFAS No. 159, changes in '
fair value will be recognized in earnings. SFAS No. 159 is effec-
tive for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and will
be implemented by the Company as of January 1, 2008. The
Company is currently determining the impact, if any, that the
implementation of this standard will have on its consolidated
financial position and results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141
(revised 2007), Business Combinations ("SFAS No. 141R”).
SFAS No. 141R extends its applicability to all transactions
and other events in which one entity obtains control over
one or more other businesses and establishes principles and
requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures
in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the
liabilities assumed, any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree,
and the goodwill acquired. SFAS 141R also expands disclo-
sure requirements to improve the statement users’ abilities to
evaluate the nature and financial effects of business combi-
nations. SFAS No. 141R is effective for fiscal years beginning
on or after December 15, 2008 and is required to be imple-

mented by the Company as of January 1, 2009. The Company
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is currently evaluating the potential impact that implementing
SFAS No. 141R will have on its consolidated financial condi-
tion, results of o[;ierations, and cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160,
Noncontroiling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51 (“SFAS No.160"™).
SFAS No. 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards
for ownership interests in subsidiaries held by parties other
than the parent, the amount of consolidated net income
attributable to the parent and to the nonconirolling interest,
changes in a parent’s ownership interest and the valuation of
retained noncontrolling equity investinents when a subsidiary
is deconsolidated. SFAS No. 160 also establishes disclosure
requirements that clearly identify and distinguish between the
interests of the parent and the interests of the noncontrolling
owners and requires that a noncontrolling interest in a subsid-
iary be reported as equity. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal
vears beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and is required
to be implemented by the Company as of January 1, 2009, The
Company is currently evaluating the impact that implementing
SFAS No. 160 will have on its consolidated financial condition,

results of operations, and cash flows.

CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, Moody’s is involved in legal and tax
proceedings, claims and litigation that are incidental 1o
the Company’s business, including claims based on ratings
assigned by Moody's. Moody’s is also subject to ongoing tax
audits in the normal course of business. Management periodi-
cally assesses the Company’s liabilities and contingencies based
upen the latest information available.

Moody’s discloses material pending legal proceedings,
other than routine litigation incidental to Moady's business,
material proceedings known o be contemplated by govern-

mental authorities and other pending matters that it may
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determine 1o be appropriate. For matters, except those related
to income taxes, where it is both probable that a liability has
been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably
estimated, the Company has recorded liabilities in the consoli-
dated financial statements and periodically adjusts these as
appropriate. When sufficient uncertainties exist, related 1o

the outcome and/or the amount or range of loss, manage-
ment does not record a liability but discloses the contingency
if significant. As additional information becomes available, the
Compuany adjusts its assessments and estimates of such liabili-
ties accordingly. For income tax matters, the Company employs
the prescribed methodology of FIN No, 48, implemented as of
January 1, 2007. FIN No. 48 requires a company to first deter-
mine whether it is more-likely-than-not (defined as a likelihood
of more than 50%) that a tax position will be sustained, based
on its technical merits, as of the reporting date, assuming

thar taxing authorities will examine the position and have

full knowledge of all relevant information. A tax position that
meets this more-likely-than-not threshold is then measured
and recognized at the largest amount of benefit that is greater
than 50% likely to be realized upon effective settlement with a
taxing authority,

Moody's has received subpoenas and inguiries from
states altorneys general and governmental authoerities and is
cooperating with those inquiries.

Based on its review of the latest information available,
and subject to the contingencies described below, in the
opinion of management, the ultimate liability of the Company
in connection with pending legal and tax proceedings, claims
and litigation is not likely to have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows, although it is possible that the effect
could be material to the Company's consolidated results of

operations for an individual reporting period.
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LEGACY CONTINGENCIES

Moody’s continues to have exposure to certain potential liabili-
ties assumed in connection with the 2000 Distribution (*Legacy
Contingencies™), The following description of the retationships
among Moody’s, New D&B and their predecessor entities is
important in understanding the Legacy Contingencies that
relate to tax matters (“Legacy Tax Matters”).

In November 1996, The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation
separated into three separate public companies: The Dun &
Bradstreet Corporation, ACNiclsen Corporation and
Cognizant Corporation (“Cognizant”). In June 1998, The
Dun & Bradstreet Corporation separated into two separate
public companies: Old D&B and R.H. Donnelley Corporation.
During 1998, Cognizant separated into two separate public
companies: IMS Health Incorporated (*IMS Health”) and
Nielsen Media Rescarch, Inc. (*“NMR”). In September 2000,
Old D&B separated into two separate public companies:

New D&B and Moody's, as further described in Note 1 to the
- consolidated financial statements.

Old D&B and its predecessors entered into global tax
planning initiatives in the normal course of business, including
through tax-free restructurings of both their foreign and
domestic operations. These initiatives are subject to normal
review by tax authorities. Old D&B and its predecessors also
entered into a series of agreements covering the sharing of any
liahilities for payment of taxes, penalties and interest resulting
from unfavorable RS rulings on certain tax matters, and
certain other potential tax liabilities, all as described in such
agreements. Further, in connection with the 2000 Distribution
and pursuant to the terms of the 2000 Distribution Agreement,
New D&B and Moody’s have agreed on the financial responsi-
bility for any potential liabilities related to Legacy Tax Matters.

Settlement agreements were executed with the IRS in
2005 regarding Legacy Tax Matters for the years 1989-1990 and
1993-1996. As of December 31, 2007, the Company continues
to carry a liability of 31.8 million with respect 1o these matters.
With respect to these settlement agreements, Moody’s and New
D&:B believe that IMS Health and NMR did not pay their ful
share of the liability to the IRS pursuant to the terms of the
applicable separation agreements among the parties. Moody's
and New D&B paid these amounts to the IRS on their behalf,

and have been unable to resolve this dispute with IMS Health
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and NMR. As a result, Moody’s and New D&B have commenced
arbitration proceedings against IMS Health and NMR to colteat
a total of approximately $11 million owed by IMS Health and
NMR with respect to the 1989-1990 matter. Moody's and New
D&B may also commence an arbitration proceeding to collect

a total of $14.5 million owed by IMS Health and NMR with
respect to the 1993-1996 matter. Moody’s cannat predict the

outcome of these matters with any certainty.

AMORTIZATION EXPENSE DEDUCTIONS AND
1997-2002 IRS DEFICIENCY NOTICES (THE “NOTICES")

This legacy tax matter, which was affected by developments in
June 2007 as further described below, involves a partnership
transaction which resulted in amortization expense deductions
on the tax returns of Old D&B since 1997. [RS audits of Old
D&B's and New D&B's tax returns for the years 1997 through
2002 concluded in June 2007 without any disallowance of the
amortization expense deductions, or any other adjustments to
income related to this partnership transaction. These audits
did result in the IRS issuing the Notices for other tax issucs for
the 1997-2000 years aggregating $9.5 million in tax and penal-
ties, plus statwtory interest of approximately $7 million, which
will be apportioned among Moody's, New D&B, IMS Health
and NMR pursuant to the terms of the applicable separation
agreements. Moody's share of this assessment is anticipated

1o be $7.2 million including interest, net of 1ax. In November
2007, the IRS assessed the tax and penalties and used a portion
of the deposit discussed below to satisly the assessment,
together with interest. The Company believes it has merito-
rious grounds 1o challenge the IRS's actions and is evaluating
its alternatives for further actions to recover these amounts.
The absence of any tax deficiencies in the Notices for the
amortization expense deductions for the years 1997 through
2000 and in companion Notices of Deficiency issued to New
D&B for 2001 and 2002, combined with the expiration of the
statute of limitations for 1997 through 2002, for issues not
assessed, resulted in Moody's recording an earnings benefit of
$52.8 millton in its second quarter of 2007. This is comprised
of two components, as follows: (i) a reversal of a tax Liability

of $27.3 million related to the period from 1997 through the
Distribution Date, reducing the provision for income taxes

for the year ended December 31, 2007; and (ii) a reduction
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of accrued interest expense of $17.5 million {$10.6 million,
net of tax) and an increase in other non-operating income of
$14.4 million, relating to amounts due to New D&B, for the
year ended December 31, 2007.

On the Distribution Date in 2000, New D&B paid
Moody’s $55.0 million for 50% of certain anticipated future tax
benefits of New D&B through 2012. It ts possible that IRS audits
of New D&B for tax years after 2002 could result in income
adjustments with respect to the amortization expense deduc-
tions of this partnership transaction. In the event these tax
benefits are not claimed or otherwise not realized by New D&B,
or there is an audit adjustment, Moody's would be required,
pursuant to the terms of the 2000 Distribution Agreement, to
repay to New D&B an amount equal to the discounted value
of its share of the related future tax benefits and its share of
any tax liability that New D&B incurs. As of December 31,

2007, Moody's liability with respect to this matter totaled
£52.8 million.

In March 2006, New D&B and Moody's each deposited
$39.8 million with the IRS in order to stop the accrual of
statutory interest on potential tax deficiencies with respect to
the 1997 through 2002 tax years. In July 2007, New D&B and
Moody’s commenced procedures to recover approximately
$56 million of these deposits ($24.4 million for New D&B and
$31.6 million for Moody’s), which represents the excess of the
original deposits over the total of the deficiencies asserted in
the Notices and in companion Statutory Notices of Deficiency
issued to New D&B for 2001 and 2002. As noted above, in
November 2007 the IRS used $7.9 million of Moody's portion
of the deposit to satisfy an assessment and related interest.
Additionally, in January 2008 the IRS has paid Moody’s
$8.5 million in connection with this matter.

At December 31, 2007, Moody’s has recorded liabilities
for Legacy Tax Matters totaling $56.7 million, This includes
liabilities and accrued interest due to New D&B arising from
the 2000 Distribution Agreement. It is possible that the ultimate
liability for Legacy Tax Matters could be greater than the liabili-
ties recorded by the Company, which could result in additional
charges that may be material to Moody’s future reported results,

financial position and cash flows.
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DIVIDENDS

During 2007, the Company paid a quarterty dividend of $0.08
per share in each of the quarters of Moody’s common stock,
resulting in dividends paid per share of $0.32 during the vear.
During 2006, the Company paid a quarterly dividend of $0.07
per share in each of the quarters of Moody’s common stock,
resulting in dividends paid per share of $0.28 during the vear.
During 2005, the Company paid a quarterly dividend of $0.0375
in the first quarter and $0.055 in each of the three subsequent
quarters, per share of Moody’s common stock, resulting in divi-
dends paid per share of $0.2025 during the year.

On December 18, 2007, the Board of Directors of the
Company approved the declaration of a quarterly dividend
of $0.10 per share of Moody’s common stock, payable on
March 10, 2008 to shareholders of record at the close of
business on February 20, 2008. The continued payment of
dividends at the rate noted above, or atall, is subject to the

discretion of the Board of Directors.

COMMON STOCK INFORMATION

The Company's common stock trades on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol “MCO”, The table below indi-
cates the high and low sales price of the Company's common
stock and the dividends declared for the periods shown. The
number of registered shareholders of record at January 31,
2008 was 3,522,

Price Per Share Dividends
Declared
High Low  Per Share
2006:

_ First quarter $7195 $6109 $0.07
Second quarter 73.29 49.77 0.07
Third quarter 65.84 49,76 0.07
Fourth guarter 71.70 60.60 0.08
Year ended December 31, 2006 $0.29
2007:

First quarter $76.09 $5865 $0.08
Second quarter 73.69 60.60 0.08
Third quarter 63.70 4242 0.08
Fourth guarter 55.99 35.05 010
Year ended December 31, 2007 $0.34
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FORWARD-LOORKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this annual report are
forward-looking statements and are based on future expecta-
tions, plans and prospects for the Company's business and
operations that involve a number of risks and uncertainties.
Such statements involve estimates, projections, goals, forecasts,
assumptions and uncertainties that could cause actual results
or ouicomes to differ materially from those contemplated,
expressed, projected, anticipated or implied in the forward-
looking statements. Those statements appear at various places
throughout this annual report, including in the sections
entitled “Outlook” and “Contingencies” under “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations”, commencing on page 34 of this annual report
and elsewhere in the context of statements containing the

"o "o

words “believe”, “expect”,

»ow (L "

anticipate”, “intend”, “plan”, “will",

»ou " ow "o

“predict”, “potential”, “continue”, “strategy”,

nou

aspire”, “target”,
“forecast”, “project”, “estimate”, “should”, “could”, “may” and
similar expressions or words and vartations thereof relating to
the Company’s views on future events, trends and contingen-
cies. Stockholders and investors are cautioned not to place
unclue reliance on these forward-looking statements. The
forward-looking statements and other information are made
as of the date of this annual report, and the Company under-
takes no obligation (nor does itintend) to publicly supplement,
update or revise such statements on a going-forward basis,
whether as a result of subsequent developments, changed
expectations or otherwise. In connection with the “safe
harbor” provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1895, the Company is identifying examples of factors,
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ,
perhaps materially, from those indicated by these forward-
looking statements. Those factors, risks and uncertainties
include, but are not limited to, matiers that could affect the
volume of debt and other securities issued in domestic and/
or global capital markets, including credit quality concerns,
changes in interest rates and other volatility in the financial
markets; concerns in the marketplace affecting our credibility

or otherwise affecting market perceptions of the integrity or
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utility of independent agency ratings; increased pricing pres-
sure from competitors and/or customers; the introduction

of competing products or technologies by other companies;
the impact of regulation as a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization and the potential for new U.S., state and
local legislation and regulations; the potential for increased
competition and regulation in foreign jurisdictions; expo-
sure (o litigation related to our rating opinions, as well as any
other litigation to which the Company may be subject from
time to time; the possible loss of key employees to investment
or commercial banks or elsewhere and related compensation
cost pressures; failures or malfunctions of our operations and
infrastructure; the outcome of any review by controlling rax
authorities of the Company’s global tax planning initiatives;
the outcome of those legacy tax and legal contingencies that
relate to the Company, its predecessors and their affiliated
companies for which Moody's has assumed portions of the
fnancial responsibility; the ability of the Company to success-
fully integrate acquired businesses; and a decline in the
demand for credit risk management tools by financial institu-
tions. These factors, risks and uncertainties as well as other
risks and uncertainties that could cause Moody’s actual results
10 differ materially from those contemplated, expressed,
projected, anticipated or implied in the forward-looking state-
ments are described in greater detail under “Risk Factors” in
this annual report, in the Company’s 2007 Form 10-K and in
other filings made by the Company from time to time with
the Securities and Exchange Commission or in materials
incorporated herein or therein. Stockholders and investors
are cautioned that the occurrence of any of these factors, risks
and uncertainties may cause the Company’s actual results

to differ materially from those contemplated, expressed,
projected, anticipated or implied in the forward-looking state-
ments, which could have a material and adverse effect on the
Company's business, results of operations and financial condi-
tion. New factors may emerge from time to time, and it is not
possible for the Company to predict new factors, nor can the

Company assess the potential effect of any new factors on it.




MANAGEMENT'S DESCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors and other information included in
this annual report should be carefully considered. The risks
and uncertainties described below are not the only ones the
Company faces. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently
known to the Company or that the Company’s management
currently deems minor or insignificant also may impair its busi-
ness operations, [f any of the following risks occurs, Moody’s
business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows

could be materially adversely affected.

CHANGES IN THE VOLUME OF DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

IN DOMESTIC AND/OR GLOBAL CAPITAL MARKETS AND
CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES AND OTHER VOLATILITY IN THE
FINANCIAL MARKETS

Approximately 79% of Moody’s revenue in 2007 was derived
from ratings. Revenucs from ratings, in turn, are dependent
on the number and dollar volume of debt securities issued in
the capital markets. Accordingly, any conditions that either
reduce investor demand for debt securities or reduce issuers’
willingness or ability to issue such securities could reduce the
number and dollar volume of debt issuances for which Moody’s
provides ratings services, and thereby, have an adverse effect
on the fees derived from the issuance of ratings.

Factors that could reduce investor demand for debt
securities or reduce issuers’ willingness or ability to issue such
securities include unfavorable financial or economic condi-
tions. In addition, increases in interest rates or credit spreads,
volatility in financial markets or the interest rare environment,
significant regulatory, political or economic events, defaults
of significant issuers and other market and economic factors
may negatively affect the general level of debt issuance and/
or the debt issuance plans of certain categories of borrowers.
Beginning in July 2007, there has been a significant disruption
in world financial markets, particularly in the credit markets.
A sustained period of market decline or weakness, especially
if it relates to credit-sensitive securities, for which there is typi-
catly a high level of demand for ratings, could have a material
adverse effect on Moody’s business and financial results. The
Company has recently experienced a substantial reduction
in the volume of debt securities issued and related revenues
as a result of the uncertainties presently being experienced
in the market for collateralized debt and other structured

finance obligations. Revenue earned from ratings in 2007
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was approximately 9% higher as compared to 2006, however,
ratings revenue in the second half of 2007 compared to the
second half of 2006 decreased approximately 11% due to the
reduced number of credit-sensitive securities issued in the
lauwer half of 2007 as a result of the credit turmoil beginning
early in the third quarter of 2007, There can be no assurance
that markel conditions will improve in the near future or that

results will not continue to be adversely affected.

TO THE EXTENT THAT ANY CONCERNS AFFECTING CREDIBILITY
ARE PERCEIVED IN THE MARKETPLACE MOCDY'S MARKET SHARE
AND/OR REVENUE COULD BE AFFECTED

Moody's reputation is one key factor on the basis of which it
competes. Moody's is constantly taking steps to help maintain
the absolute trustworthiness of its reputation, as well as its
credibility in the marketplace. Accordingly, to the extent that
rating agency business as a whole or Moody's, relative to its
competitors, suffers a loss in credibility, Moody’s business could
be adversely affected. Factors that could affect one’s credibility
include, potentially, the performance of securities relative to
the rating assigned to such securities by a particular rating
agency, as well as the ability to recognize potential changes in

ratings on a timely basis.

INCREASED PRICING PRESSURE FROM COMPETITORS AND/OR
CUSTOMERS

In the credit rating, research and credit risk management
markets, competition for customers and market share has
spurred more aggressive tactics by some corpetitors in areas
such as pricing and service. While Moody’s secks to compete
primarily on the basis of the quality of its products and service,
if its pricing and services are not sufficiently competitive with its

current and future competitors, Moody’s may lose market share,

INTRODUCTION OF COMPETING PRODUCTS OR TECHNOLOGIES
BY OTHER COMPANIES

The markets for credit ratings, research and credit risk
management services are highly competitive. The ability 1o
provide innovative products and technologies that anticipate
customers’ changing requirements and to utilize emerging
technological trends is a key factor in maintaining market
share. Competitors may develop quantitative methodologies
or related services for assessing credit risk that customers and
markert participants may deem preferable, more cost-effective

or more valuable than the credit risk assessment methods
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currently employed by Moody’s. Moody's growth prospects
could also be adversely affected by limitations of its informa-
tion technologies that fail to provide adequate capacity and
capabilities to meet increased demands of producing quality

ratings and rescarch products at levels achicved by competitors,

REGULATION AS A NATHONALLY RECOGNIZED STATISTICAL
RATING ORGANIZATION AND POTENTIAL FOR NEW U.5., STATE
AND LOCAL LEGISLATION AND REGULATIONS

When governments adopt regulations that require debt securi-
ties to be rated, establish criteria for credit ratings or authorize
only certain entities to provide credit ratings, the competitive
balance among rating agencies and the level of demand for
ratings may be positively or negatively affected. Government-
mandated ratings criteria may also have the effect of displacing
objective assessments of creditworthiness. In these circum-
stances, debt issuers may be less likely to base their choice of
rating agencies on criteria such as independence and cred-
ibility, and more likely to base their choice on their assumption
as to which credit rating agency might provide a higher rating,
which may negatively affect the Company.

In the United States and other countries, the laws and
regulations applicable to credit ratings and rating agencies
continue to evolve and are presently subject to review by a
number of legislative or regulatory bodies, including the SEC
in the United States and state and local oversight. It is possible
that such reviews could lead to greater oversight or regula-
tion concerning the issuance of credit ratings or the activities
of credit rating agencies. Such additional regulations could,
potentially, increase the costs associated with the operation of
a credit rating agency, alter the rating agencies’ communica-
tions with the issuers as part of the rating assignment process,
increase the legal risk associated with the issuance of credit
ratings, change the regulatory framework to which credit
rating agencies are subject and/or affect the competitive envi-
ronment in which credit rating agencies operate.

Currently, Moody’s, is designated as an NRSRO pursuant
to SEC regulation enacted in response to the adoption of
the Credit Rating Agency Reform Act of 2006 (the “Reform
Act”). One of the central promises of the Reform Act was to
encourage competition among rating agencies. Given its recent
adoption, Moody’s is unable 1o assess the future impact of any
regulatory changes that may result from the SEC's regulations
or the impact on Moody's competitive position or its current

practices, although Moody’s would expect the Reform Act
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to increase costs of all enrities engaged in the rating agency
business. Similarly, at present, Moody's is unable to predict the
regulatory changes that may result from ongoing reviews by
any of the various regulatory bodies or the effect that any such
changes may have on its business. A description of several of
the more recent regulatory initiatives in the United States and
other countries is described above under the section entitled
“Regulation” in ltem 1. “Business”, of the Company’s 2007
Form 10-K.

POTENTIAL FOR INCREASED COMPETITION AND REGULATION
IN FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS

Moody’s maintains offices outside the U.8. and derives a signifi-
cant and increasing portion of its revenue from sources outside
the U.S. Operations in different countries expose Moody's 1o a
number of legal, economic and regulatory risks such as restric-
tions on the ability to convert local currency into U.S. dollars
and currency fluctuations, export and import restrictions,
tariffs and other trade barriers, political and economic insta-
bility as well as nationalization, expropriation, price controls
and other restrictive governmental actions, longer payment
cycles and possible problems in collecting receivables, and
potentially adverse tax consequences.

Moody's faces competition from, among others, S&P,

Fitch, DBRS, local rating agencies in a number of interna-

. tional jurisdictions and specialized companies that provide

ratings for particular types of financial products or issuers
(such as A.M. Best Company, Inc., with respect to the insur-
ance industry). Since Moody's believes that some of its most
significant challenges and opportunities will arise outside
the U.S., it will have to compete with rating agencies that may
have a stronger local presence or a longer operating history in
those markets. These local providers or comparable competi-
tors that may emerge in the future may receive support from
local governments or other institutions that Moody's does not
receive, putting Moody’s at a competitive disadvantage.
Because Moody’s operates globally and plans to expand
its international scope, it must also react to regulatory changes
abroad. The Committee of Enropean Securities Regulators
(“CESR") has monitored rating agencies’ compliance with the
International Organization of Securities Commissions Code
of Conduct Fundamentals for Credit Rating Agencies (the
“IOSCO Code™}. Although the CESR recently concluded in

a report that the four internationally active rating agencies
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that operate in the European Union, including Moody's, are
largely compliant with the IOSCO Code, it did identify a few
areas where it believed the rating agencies could-improve
their processes and disclosures and where the I0SCO Code
could be improved. CESR indicated that it will look into these
areas in particular, as well as the impact of the Reform Act
and the S8EC’s implementing rules on the rating business in
the European Union. Moody’s is unable to assess the potential
impact of any regulatory changes that may result from the
CESR’s review, including whether any additional regulation
would restrict or otherwise inhibit Moody’s expansion into
foreign markets. See the discussion under the section entitled
“Regulation” in Item 1, “Business”, of the Company’s 2007
Form 10-K, for additional information regarding the [OSCO
Code and the CESR.

EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION RELATED TO MOODY'S
RATING OPINIONS

Currently, Moody's has received subpoenas and inquiries from
states attorneys general and governmental authorities as part
of ongoing investigations, and is cooperating with those inqui-
ries. The outcome of such investigations is presently unknown.
In addition, Moody’s faces litigation from time to time from
parties claiming damages relating to ratings actions, as well

as other related actions. As Moody's international business
expands, these types of claims may increase or become more
costly because foreign jurisdictions may not have legal protec-
tions or liability standards comparable to those in the U.S.
{(such as protections for the expression of credit opinions as

is provided by the First Amendment and criminal rather than
civil penalties). These risks often may be difficult to assess or
quantify, and their existence and magnitude often remain

unknown for substantial pericds of time.

POSSIBLE LOSS OF KEY EMPLOYEES TO INVESTMENT
OR COMMERCIAL BANKS OR ELSEWHERE AND RELATED
COMPENSATION COST PRESSURES

Moody's success depends in part upon recruiting and retaining
highly skilled, experienced financial analysts and other profes-
sionals. Competition for qualified staff in the financial services
industry is intense, and Moody's ability to attract staff could be
impaired if it is unable to offer competitive compensation and
other incentives or if the regulatory environment mandates
restrictions on or disclosures about individual emplovees that

would not be necessary in competing analytical industries.

INSIGHT. INTEGRITY. GROWTH.

Investment banks and other competitors for analyst talent may
be able to offer higher compensation than Moody’s or subject
employees to less individual scrutiny. Moody's also may not be
able to identify and hire employees in some markets outside
the U.S. with the required experience or skills to perform
sophisticated credit analysis, Moody’s may lose key employees
due to other factors, such as catastrophes, that could lead to
disruption of business operations. Moody's ability to compete
effectively will continue to depend, among other things, on

its ability to attract new employees and to retain and motivate

existing employees.

CQUR OPERATIONS AND INFRASTRUCTURE MAY MALFUNCTION
OR FAIL

Our ability to conduct business may he adversely impacted

by a disruption in the infrastructure that supports our busi-
nesses and the communities in which we are located. This
may include a disruption involving electrical, communications
or other services used by us or third parties with or through
whom we conduct business, whether due to human error,
natural disasters, power loss, telecommunication failures,
break-ins, sabotage, computer viruses, intentional acts of
vandalism, acts of terrorism or war or otherwise. We do not
have fully redundant systems for most of our smaller office
locations and low-risk systems, and our disaster recovery plan
does not include restoration of non-essential services. If a
disruption occurs in any of these locations.and our personnel
in those locations are unable to communicate with or travel
to other locations, our ability to service and interact with our
clients and customers from these locations may suffer.

Our operations also rely on the secure processing,
storage and transmission of confidential and other informa-
tion in our computer systems and networks. Although we take
protective measures and endeavor to modify them as circum-
stances warrant, our computer systems, software and networks
may be vulnerable to unauthorized access, computer viruses
or other malicious events that could have a security impact. If
one or more of such events occur, this could jeopardize our or
our clients’ or counterparties’ confidential and other informa-
tion processed and stored in, and transmitted through, our
computer systems and networks, or otherwise cause interrup-
tions or malfunctions in our, our clients’, our counterparties’
or third parties’ operations. We may be required to expend

significam addirional resources 1o modify our protective
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measures or to investigate and remediate vulnerabilities or

other expostres, and we may be subject to litigation and

financial losses that are either not insured against or not fully

covered through any insurance maintained by us.

PERFORMANCE GRAFH

The following graph compares the total cumulative shareholder

return of the Company to the performance of Standard &
Poor’s Stock 500 Index (the “S&P 500™) and an index of perfor-

mance peer group companies (the “Performance Peer Group”).

The Company does not believe there are any publicly

tracded companies that represent strict peers. However, each of

the companies in the Performance Peer Group olfers business

information products in one or more segments of its busi-
ness. The Performance Peer Group consists of Dow Jones &
Company, Inc., The McGraw-Hill Companies, Pearson PLC,
Reuters Group PLC, Thomson Corporation and Wolters
Kluwer nv,

The comparison assumes that $100.00 was invested in
the Company’s common stock {the “Common Stock”) and
in each of the foregoing indices on December 31, 2002. The
comparison also assumes the reinvestment of dividends, if any.
The total return for the Common Stock was 77% during the
performance period as compared with a wotal return during
the same period of 83% for the 3&P 500 and 106% for the

Performance Peer Group.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
SINCE DECEMBER 31, 2002
MOODY'S CORPORATION, S&P COMPOSITE INDEX AND PEER GROUP INDEX
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Moody's Corporation $ 10000 § 14707 § 21201 § 30154 § 34058 § 17712
Peer Group Index 100.00 131.99 155.63 163.38 206.20 205.53
5&P Composite 100.00 128.68 142.69 149.70 173.34 182.87

The comparisons in the graph above are provided in response to disclosure requirements of the SEC
and are not intended to lorecast or be indictative of future performance of the Commaon Stock.
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT on INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of Moody’s Corporation ("Moody’s™ or “the
Company”) is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting and for

the assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting. As defined by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) in Rules 13a-15(1) and 15d-15(f) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, internal control over
financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the Company’s principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performing similar
functions, and effected by the Company’s Board of Directors,
management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assur-
ance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Moody’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of assets of
the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that trans-
actions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the Company are being made only in accordance with authori-
zations of Moody’s management and directors; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detec-
tion of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the finan-
cial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness 1o future
periods are subject 1o the risk that controls may become inad-
equate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

INSIGHT., INTEGRITY. GROWTIH.

Management of the Company has undertaken an
assessment of the design and operational effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007 based on criteria established in Internal
Conurol—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
("COS0"). The COS0 framework is based upon five integrated
components of control: risk assessment, control activities,
control environment, information and communications and
ongoing monitoring,

Based on the assessment performed, management has
concluded that Moody’s maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,

The cflectiveness of our internal control over finan-
cial reporting as ol December 31, 2007 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public

accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears herein.

Raymond W. McDaniel, Jr.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Linda S. Huber

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

February 28, 2008
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REPORT of INDEPENDENT REGISTERED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
of Moody's Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
and the related consolidated statements of operations, share-
holders” equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Moady's Corporation and its
subsidiarics at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of”
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2007 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in
all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria estab-
lished in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatious of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is respon-
sible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management's Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility
is 10 express opinions on these financial statements and on

the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based
on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accor-
dance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board {United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the andits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal control over finan-
cial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, and evalu-
ating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit
of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Qur audits also

included performing such other procedures as we considerecd
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necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company has changed the manner in which it
accounts for uncertainty in income taxes, as of January 1, 2007,
the manner in which it accounts for share-based payment, as
of January 1, 2006, and the manner in which it accounts for
defined benefit pension and other post-retirement plans, as of
December 31, 2006.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transac-
tions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assur-
ance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inad-
equate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

(Privcewnthomseloggum LEF

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New York, New York
February 28, 2008




MOODY'S CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS of OPERATIONS

feomowintts D millions, exeept per share dafu)

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
REVENUE $2,259.0 $2,037.1 $1,731.6
| EXPENSES
' Operating 584.0 539.4 452.9
~ Selling, general and administrative 451.1 359.3 303.9
Restructuring charge 50.0 — —
| Depreciation and amortization 42.9 39.5 352
: Gain on sale of building — (160.6) —
Total expenses 1,128.0 TG 792.0
OPERATING INCOME 1,131.0 1,259.5 939.6
Interest income {expense}, net (24.3) 3.0 5.0
Other non-operating income {expense), net 16.0 2.0 (9.9)
Non-operating income (expense}, net (14.3) 1.0 {4.9)
Income before provision for income taxes ' 1,116.7 1,260.5 934.7
Provision for income taxes 415.2 506.6 373.9
NET INCOME $ 7015 $ 7539 $ 560.8
EARNINGS FER SHARE
Basic £ 263 $ 265 $ 1.88
Diluted $§ 258 § 258 & 184
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING
Basic 266,4 284.2 297.7
Diluted 2722 291.9 305.6

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of the consolidated financial statements.
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MOODY'S CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(emonnts in mittions, excepit shave and pev sheoe data)

December 31, 2007 2006
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4263 $ 408.1
Shori-term investments 14.7 75.4
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $16.2 in 2007 and $14.5 in 2006 443.6 4754
Other current assets 104.5 43.0
Total current assets 989.1 1,001.9
Property and equipment, net 214.6 62.0
Goodwill 179.9 176.1
Intangible assets, net 56.9 65.7
Other assets 274.1 192.0
Total assets $1,714.6 $ 1,497.7
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Commercial paper % 5515 & —
Deferred revenue 426.0 360.3
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 371.3 339.7
Total current liabilities 1,349.2 700.0
Non-current portion of deferred revenue 121.1 102.1
Notes payable 600.0 300.0
Other liabilities 427.9 228.2
Total liabilities 2,498.2 1,350.3
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 16 and 17)
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share; 10,000,060 shares authorized;

no shares issued and outstanding — —
Series common stock, par value $.01 per share; 10,000,000 shares authorized;

no shares issued and outstanding — _—
Common stock, par value $.01 per share; 1,000,000,000 shares authorized;

349,902,272 shares issued at December 31, 2007 and 2006 3.4 3.4
Capital surplus 387.9 3457
Rewined earnings 2.661.1 2,091.4
Treasury stock, at cost; 91,495,426 and 64,296,812 shares of common stock at

December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively (3,851.6) (2,264.7)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 15.6 (8.4)

Total shareholders’ (deficit) equity (783.6) 167.4
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 17146 $ 14977

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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MOODY'S CORPURATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS of CASH FLOWS

teemaorendy in itlions)

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income § 7015 $ 7539 $ 560.8
Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 42.9 395 55.2
Stock-based compensation expense 90.2 77.1 54.8
Non-cash portion of restructuring charge 7.0 — —
Deferred income taxes (76.4) (27.2) (20.2)
Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock options (52.2) (103.2) 70.2
Legacy tax (52.3) — —
Gain on sale of building — {160.6) —_
Other — 1.2 22
Changes in assets and liabilities: .
Accounts receivable 6.7 (42.4) (53.1)
Other current assets (58.3) 8.9 1.0
Other assets and prepaid pension costs 15.5 (40.0) (6.7)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 53.9 141.4 (16.0)
Restructuring Hability 33.1 — -
Deferred revenue 79.2 80.2 52.2
FIN No. 48 and other non-current tax and related liabilities 31.9 8.9 11.4
Deferred rent 53.1 . 6.2 0.9
Other liabilitics 18.2 8.6 15.2
Net cash provided by operating activities 984.0 752.5 7079
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital additions ' (181.8) (31.1) (31.3)
Purchases of marketable securities (191.4) (414.0) (324.4)
Sales and mauurities of marketable securites 252.9 436.5 235.5
Net proceeds from sale of building — 163.9 —
Cash paid for acquisitions and investment in affiliates, net of cash acquired (4.4) {39.2) (30.2)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (124.7) 116.1 (150.4)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings under revolving credit facilities 1,000.0 — —
Repayments of borrowings under revolving credit facilities (1,000.0 — —_
Issuance of commercial paper 6,684.1 — -_
Repayment of commercial paper (6,136.,7) — —
Repayment of notes — —_ (300.9)
[ssuance of notes 300.0 - 300.0
Net proceeds from stock plans 65.9 105.3 89.1
Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock options 52.2 103.2 —
Cost of treasury shares repurchased (1,738.4) (1,093.6) {691.7}
Payment of dividends (85.2) (79.5) (60.3)
Payments under capital lease obligations ’ (2.0) (0.6} (1.3)
Debt issuance costs and related fees {1.4) — 2.3)
Net cash used in financing activities (861.5) {965.2) (666.5)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 20.4 18.7 (11.1)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18.2 (77.9) (120.1)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period 408.1 486.0 606.1
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period $ 426.8 $ 408.1 2 486.0
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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MOODY'S CORIORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS of SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

fernpants in willivns)

Accumulated Total
Other Sharcholders’ Compre-
Commeon Stock Capital Retained Treasury Stock Comprehensive Equity hensive
Shares Amount Surplus Earnings  Shares Amount  Income (Loss) {Deficit) Income
Balance at December 31, 2004 3420 $§34 51425 § 9393 (451 § (777.2) 297 § 3175
Net income 56008 560.8 § 5608
Dividends (80.9) (80.9)
Proceeds from stock plans,
including excess tax benefits 159.3 159.3
Stock-based compensation 55.0 655.0
Net treasury stock activity (115.7) (7.5) (576.0) (691.7)
Currency translation adjustment (7.3) (7.3} (7.9)
Additional minimum pension liability
{net of 1ax of $1.8 million) {2.5) (2.5) {2.5)
Unrecognized losses on cash flow hedges (0.8) (0.8} (0.8)
Comprehensive income $ 5502
Balance at December 31, 2005 3429 $34 $2409 $1,4192 (52.6) $(1,353.2) $(0.9) § 3094
Net income 753.9 7539 § 7539
Divicdlends (81.7) (81.7)
Proceeds from stock plans,
including excess tax benefits 209.0 209.0
Stock-based compensation 77.3 77.3
Net treasury stock activity (181.5) {11.7}) {911.5) (1,093.0)
Currency translation adjusiment 11.4 1.4 114
Additional minimum pension liability
(net of tax of $0.7 million) 1.0 1.0 1.0
Amounts eliminated related o additional
minimum pension liability upon the implementation
of SFAS No. 158 (net of tax of $1.8 million) 2.5 2.5
Actuarial losses and prior service costs recognized
upon the implementation of SFAS No. 158
(net of tax of $16.3 million) (22.5) {22.5)
Unrecognized losses on cash flow hedges 0.1 0.1 0.1
Comprehensive income $ 7664
Balance at December 31, 2006 3429 834 $345.7 $£2,0914 (64.3) $(2,264.7) $§B4) % 1674
Net income 701.5 701.5 701.5
Dividends (88.4) (88.4)
Amounts recognized upon implementation of FIN No. 48 {43.4) (43.4)
Proceeds from stock plans, including excess tax benefits 92.0 92.0
Stock-based compensation 94.6 94.6
Net treasury stock activily (144.4) (27.2) (1,586.9) (1,731.3)
Currency transtation adjustment 12,9 12.9 12.9
Net actuarial gains and prior service costs
{net of tax of $5.9 million) 7.8 7.8 7.8
Amortization and recognition of pricr service costs
and actuarial losses {net of tax of $2.5 million) 3.4 34 3.4
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities and
cash flow hedges {0.1) (0.1) (0.1)
Comprehensive income $725.5
Balance at December 31, 2007 3429 $3.4 $3879 $2,661.1 (91.5) $(3,851.6) $156 § (783.6)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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MOODY'S CORPORATION

NOTES w CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

(teebatleer dollary cond shivse conorits in millions, exeept per shave data)

e ]
Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

U

Moody's Corporation (“Moody’s” or the "Company”) is a
provider of (i) credit ratings, rescarch and analysis covering
fixed-income securities, other debt instruments and the entites
that issue such instruments in the globa] capital markets, and
credit training services and (ii) quantitative credit risk assess-
ment products and services and credit processing software for
banks, corporations and investors in credit-sensitive assets.
Moody's operates in two reportable segments: Moody’s Investors
Service ("MIS™) and Moody’s KMV (*“MKMV7”). Moody’s
Investors Service publishes rating opinions on a broad range
of credit obligors and credit obligations issued in domestic
and international markets, including various corporate and
governmental obligations, structured finance securities and
commercial paper programs. It also publishes investor-oriented
credit information, research and economic commentary,
including in-depth research on major issuers, industry studies,
special comments and credit opinion handbooks. The Moody's
KMV business develops and distributes quantiative credit risk
assessment products and services and credit processing software
for banks, corporations and investors in credit-sensitive assels.

The Company operated as part of The Dun & Bradsueer
Corporation ("Old D&B") until September 30, 2000 (the
“Distribution Date™), when Old D&B separated into two
publicly traded companies —Moody's Corporation and The
New D&B Corporation (“New D&B”). At that time, Old D&B
distributed to its shareholders shares of New D&B stock.
New D&B comprised the business of Old D&B’s Dun &
Bradstreet operating company (the “D&B Business”). The
remaining business of Old D&B consisted solely of the busi-
ness of providing ratings and related research and credit
risk management services (the “Moody's Business”) and was
renamed “Moody’s Corporation™, The methed by which Old
D&B distributed (o its shareholders its shares of New D&R
stock is hereinafter referred to as the “2000 Distribution”.

For purposes of governing certain ongoing relation-

ships between the Company and New D&B after the 2000

Distribution and to provide for an orderly transition, the
Company and New D&B entered into various agreements
including a Distribution Agreement (the “2000 Distribution
‘Agreemenl"), Tax Allocation Agreement, Emplovee Benefits
Agreement, Shared Transaction Services Agreement,
Insurance and Risk Management Services Agreement, Data

Services Agreement and Transition Services Agreement.

o 2.
Summary of Significant Accounting Polictes

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include those of Moody's
Corporation and its majority- and wholly owned subsidiaries.
The effects of all intercompany transactions have been elimi-
nated. Investments in companies for which the Company has
significant influence over operating and financial policies but
not a controlling interest are accounted for on an equity basis.
Invesiments in companies for which the Company does not
have the ability to excrcise significant influence are carried on
the cost basis of accounting.

The Company applies the guidelines set forth
in Financial Accounting Standards Board (*FASB")
Interpretation No, 46R “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51" (“FIN No. 46R")
in assessing its interests in variable interest entities to decide
whether to consolidate that entity. The Company has reviewed
the potential variable interest entities and determined that

there are no consolidation requirements under FIN No. 46R.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents principally consist of investments in money
market mutual funds and high-grade commercial paper with
maturities of three months or less when purchased. Interest
income on cash and cash equivalents and short-term invest-
ments was $19.% million, $18.2 million and $26.0 million for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreci-
ated using the straighi-line method over their estimated
useful lives, typically three to 20 years for computer equip-
ment and office furniture, fixtures and equipment. Leasehold
improvements are amortized over the shorter of the term of
the lease or the estimated useful life of the improvement.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs that do not extend

-the economic useful life of the related assets are charged

to expense as incurred. Gains and losses on disposals of
property and equipment are reflected in the consolidated

statements of operations.

COMPUTER SOFTWARE
Costs for the development of computer software that will
be sold, leased or otherwise marketed are capitalized when
technological feasibility has been established in accordance
with SFAS No. 86, "Accounting for the Costs of Computer
Software to Be Sold, Leased, or Otherwise Marketed”. These
costs primarily relate to the development of MKMV credit
processing software and quantitative credit risk assessment
products to be licensed to customers and generally consist of
professional services provided by third parties and compensa-
tion costs of employees that develop the software. Amortization
expense for all such software for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005 was $1.7 million, $6.0 million and
$8.0 million, respectively.

The Company capitalizes costs related to software devel-
oped or obtained for internal use in accordance with Statement
of Position 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer
Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use™ These
assets, included in property and equipment in the consolidated
balance sheets, relate 1o the Company’s accounting, product
delivery and other systems. Such costs generally consist of direct
costs of third-party license fees, professional services provided
by third parties and employee compensation, in each case
incurred either during the application development stage or
in connection with upgrades and enhancements that increase
functionality, Such costs are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives, generally three to five years. Costs incurred during
the preliminary project stage of development as well as mainte-

nance costs are expenscd as incurred.
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LONG-LIVED ASSETS, INCLUDING GOODWILL AND
OTHER ACQUIRED INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Finite-lived intangible assets and other long-lived assets are
reviewed for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. I the estimated undiscounted future cash flows
are lower than the carrying amount of the related asset, a
loss is recognized for the difference between the carrying
amount and the estimated fair value of the asset. Goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually orinore frequently if events or circumstances indicate
the assets may be impaired. If the estimated fair value is less

than its carrying amount, a loss is recognized.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
On January 1, 2006, the Company implemented, under
the modified prospective application method, the fair
value method of accounting for stock-based compensation
under SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004) “Share-Based Payment”
(“SFAS No. 123R™). Under this pronouncement, companies are
required to record compensation expense for all share-based
payment award transactions granted to employees based on
the fair value of the equity instrument at the time of grant.
This includes shares issued under employce stock purchase
plans, stock options, restricted stock and stock appreciation
rights. Previously, on January 1, 2003, the Company imple-
mented, on a prospective basis, the fair value method of
accounting for stock-based compensation under SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation™

In November 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position
{"FSP™) No. FAS 123(R)-3, "Transition Election Related to
Accounting for Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards”
{"FSP 123R-3"). FSP 123R-3 provides for an alternative transi-
tion method for establishing the beginning balance of the
additional paid-in capital pool ("APIC pool”) related to the tax
effects of employee share-based compensation, which is avail-
able to absorb tax deficiencies recognized subsequent to the
implementation of SFAS No. 123R. The Company has elected
to adopt this alternative transition method in establishing the

beginning APIC pool at January 1, 2006.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Based on the Company's risk management poticy, from time to

time the Company may use derivative financial instruments to




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

reduce exposure to changes in foreign exchange and interest
rates, The Company does not enter into derivative financial
instruments for speculative purposes. The Company accounts
for derivative financial instruments and hedging activities in
accordance with SFAS No. 133, “"Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities” (“SFAS No. 1337),
as amended and interpreted, which requires that all derivative
financial instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at their
respective fair values. The changes in the value of derivatives
that qualify as fair value hedges are recorded currently into
earnings. Changes in the derivative’s fair value that qualify as
cash flow hedges are recorded as other comprehensive income
or loss, to the extent the hedge is effective, and such amounts
are reclassified to earnings in the same period or periods

during which the hedged transaction affects income.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Moody’s maintains various noncontributory defined benefit
pension plans, in which substantially all U.S. employees of the
Company are eligible to participate, as well as other contribu-
tory and noncontributory retirement and post-retirement plans.
The expenses, assets, liabilities and obligations that Moody's
reports for pension and other post-retirement benefits are
dependent on many assumptions concerning the outcome of
future events and circumstances. Moody's major assumptions
vary by plan and the Company determines these assumptions
based on the Company’s long-term actual experience and
future outlook as well as consultation with outside actuaries
and other advisors where deemed appropriate. If actual results
differ from the Company’s assumptions, such differences are
deferred and amortized over the estimated future working life

of the plan participants.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognition”. As such,
revenue is recognized when an arrangement exists, the services
have been provided and accepted by the customer, fees are
determinable and the collection of resulting receivables is

'
considered probable.

Revenue attributed to initial ratings of issued securities
is recognized when the rating is issued. Revenue attributed to
monitoring of issuers or issued securities is recognized over the
period in which the monitoring is performed. In most areas

of the ratings business, the Company charges issuers annual
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monitoring fees and amortizes such fees ratably over the related
one-year period. In the case of commercial mortgage-backed
securities, fees that are charged for future monitoring over the
life of the related securities are amortized over such lives which
range from nine to 46 years as of December 31, 2007.

In areas where the Company does not separately charge
monitoring fees, the Company defers portions of the rating
fees that it estimates will be attributed to future monitoring
activities and recognizes such fees ratably over the applicable
estimated monitoring period. The portion of the revenue to be
deferred is based upon a number of factors, including the esti-
mated fair market value of the monitoring services charged for
similar securities or issuers. The estimated monitoring period
is determined based on factors such as the lives of the rated
securities. Currently, the estimated monitoring periods range
from one to 10 years.

Revenue from sales of research products and from credit
risk management subscription products is recognized ratably
over the related subscription period, which is principally one
year. Revenue from licenses of credit processing sofiware is
recognized at the time the product is shipped to customers, or
at such other time as the Company's obligations are complete.
Related software maintenance revenue is recognized ratably
over the annual maintenance period.

Amounts billed or received in advance of providing the
related products or services are classified in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities in the consolidated financial state-
ments and reflected in revenue when earned. In addition, the
consolidated balance sheets reflect as current deferred revenue
amounts that are expected to be recognized within one year of
the balance sheet date, and as non-current deferred revenue
amounts that are expected to be recognized over periods
greater than one year. The majority of the balance in non-
current deferred revenue relates te fees for future monitoring

of commercial mortgage-backed securities,

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE ALLOWANCES

Moody’s records as reductions of revenue provisions for
estimated future adjustments to customer billings, based on
historical experience and current conditions. Such provisions
are reflected as additions to the accounts receivable allowance.
Adjustments to and write-offs of receivables are charged against
the allowance. Moody’s evaluates its estimates on a regular
basis and makes adjustments to its revenue provisions and the

accounts receivable allowance as considered appropriate.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QPERATING EXPENSES

Operaling expenses are charged to income as incurred. These
expenses include costs associated with the development and
production of the Company's products and services and their
delivery to customers. These expenses principally include
employee compensation and benefits and travel costs that are

incurred in connection with these activities.

RESTRUCTURING CHARGE

The Company reports costs associated with employee termi-
nations in accordance with SFAS No. 112, “Employers’
Accounting for Postemployment Benefits™ (“SFAS No. 1127) as
it has an ongoing benefit arrangement in place, SFAS No. 88,
“Emplovers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of
Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits”
(“SFAS No. 88™), and SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities” for other exit

activities such as contract termination costs.

SELLING, GENERAL AND
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling, general and administrative expenses are charged to
income as incurred. These expenses include such items as
compensation and benefits for corporate officers and staff and
compensation and other expenses related to sales of products,
They also include items such as office rent, business insurance,
professional fees and gains and losses from sales and disposal

of assets,

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

For all operations outside the United States where the Company
has designated the local currency as the functional currency,
assets and liabilities are translated into U.S, dollars using end-of-
year exchange rates, and revenue and expenses are translated
using average exchange rates for the year. For these operations,
currency translation adjustments are accumulated in a separate
component of shareholders’ equity. Transaction gains and losses
are reflected in other non-operating income (expense), net.
Transaction gains (losses) were $(0.2) million for the year ended
December 31, 2007 and were nil and $(8.2) million for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income represents the change in net assets

of a business enterprise during a period due to transactions
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and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources
including foreign currency translation impacts, net actu-

arial losses and net prior service costs related to pension and
other post-retirement plans recorded in accordance with

SFAS No. 158, changes in minimum pension liability, unreal-
ized gains/(losses) on available-for-sale securities and derivative
instruments. Accumulated comprehensive (loss) income is
comprised of currency translation adjustments of $27.7 million
and $14.8 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively, net actuarial
losses and net prior service costs related o the Company’s
pension and other post-retirement plans of $(11.3) million and
$(22.5) million in 2007 and 2006, respectively, derivative finan-
cial instruments of $(0.6) million and $(0.7) miilion in 2007
and 2006, respectively, and $(0.2) million in unrealized losses
on available-for-sale securities in 2007. The required disclosures
have been included in the consolidated statements of share-

helders’ equity.

INCOME TAXES

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and
liability method in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes”. Therefore, income tax expense is based on
reported income before income taxes, and deferred income
taxes reflect the effect of temporary differences between the
amounts of assets and liabilities that are recognized for finan-
cial reporting purposes and the amounts that are recognized
for income tax purposes. On January 1, 2007, the Company
implemented the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” ("FIN No. 48”).
The Company classifies interest related to unrecognized
tax benefits in interest expense in its consolidated statements
of operations. Penalties, if incurred, would be recognized in
other non-operating expenses. Prior to the implementation
of FIN No. 48, interest expense and, if necessary, penalties
associated with tax contingencies were recorded as part of the

provision for income taxes.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company's financial instruments include cash, cash
equivalents, trade receivables and payables, all of which are
short-term in nature and, accordingly, approximate fair value.
Additionally, the Company invests in short-term investments
that are carried at fair value. The fair value of the Company’s
notes payable, which have a fixed rate of interest, is estimated

using discounted cash flow analyses based on the prevailing
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interest rates available to the Company for borrowings with
similar maturities. The carrying amount of the Company’s
notes payable was $600.0 million and $300.0 million at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Their estimated fair
value was $650.8 million and $299.1 miilion at December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively. The outstanding foreign exchange
options are recorded at fair value, which is an asset of

$2.3 million.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to
concentration of credit risk principally consist of cash and cash
equivalents, short-term investments and trade receivables,
Cash equivalents consist of investments in high-quality
investment-grade securities within and outside the United
States. The Company manages its credit risk exposure by
allocating its cash equivalents among various money market
mutual funds and issuers of high-grade commercial paper.
Short-term investments primarily consist of certificates of
deposit and high-grade corporate bonds in Korea as of
December 31, 2007 and high-grade auction rate securi-
ties within the United States as of December 31, 2006. The
Company manages its credit risk exposure on cash equivalents
and short-term investments by limiting the amount it can invest
with any single issner. No customer accounted for 10% or more

of accounts receivable at December 31, 2007 or 2006.

EARNINGS PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK

In accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share”, basic
earnings per share is calculated based on the weighted average
number of shares of common stock outstanding during the
reporting period. Diluted earnings per share is calculated giving
effect to all potentially dilutive common shares, assuming that

such shares were outstanding during the reporting period.

PENSION AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Effective as of December 31, 2006, the Company accounts

for its pension and other post-retirement benefit plans in
accordance with SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)"
("SFAS No. 15687). SFAS No. 158 requires an employer to
recognize as an asset or liability in its statement of financial
position the funded status of its defined benefit post-re[ircmeht

plans and to recognize changes in that funded status in the
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year in which the changes occur through other comprehensive

income,.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts
of revenue and expenses during the period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Estimates are used for, but
not limited to, revenue recognition, accounts receivable allow-
ances, income taxes, contingencies, valuation of investments
in affiliates, long-lived and intangible assets and goodwill,
pension and other post-retirement benefits, stock-based
compensation, and depreciation and amortization rates for

property and equipment and computer software.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year

amounts to conform to the current year presentation.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING
PRONOUNGCEMENTS

In September 2006, the FASE issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements” (“SFAS No. 1577). SFAS 157 establishes a single
authoritative definition of fair value, sets out a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires additional disclosures about
fair-value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is expected to increase
the consistency of fair value measurements and applies only

to those measurements that are already required or permitted
to be measured at fair value by other accounting'standards.
SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 13, 2007. In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB
Staff Position No. FAS 157-2 (“FSP FAS 157-2), which partially
defers the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for nonfinancial
assets and liabilities, except for items that are recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recur-
ring basis, until fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2008. The Company has implemented the deferral provisions
of FSP FAS 157-2 and as a result has partially implemented the
provisions of SFAS No. 157 as of January 1, 2008. The partial
implementation of SFAS 157 does not have a material impact

on the Company’s consolidated financial position and results
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of operations and the Company will apply, as of January 1,
2009, the provisions of SFAS No. 157 to its non-financial assets
and liabilities initially measured at fair value in a business
combination and not subsequently remeasured at fair value,
non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value for

a goodwill impairment assessment, non-financial long-lived
assets measured at fair value for an asset impairment assess-
ment, and asset retirement obligations initially measured at
fair value.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159,

“The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities—including an amendment of FASB Statement

No. 115" (*SFAS No. 1597). SFAS No. 159 expands the use of
fair value accounting but does not affect existing standards
that require assets or liabilities to be carried at fair value.
Under SFAS No. 159, a company may elect to measure many
financial instruments and certain other items at fair value on
an instrument-by-instrument basis with changes in fair value
recognized in earnings each reporting period. ltems eligible
for Fair-value election include recognized financial assets and
liabilities such as equity-method investments, investments in
equity securities that do not have readily determinable fair
values, and written loan commitments. If the use of fair value
is elected, the election must be applied o individual instru-
ments with certain restrictions, is irrevocable and must be
applied to an entire instrument. Any upfront costs and fees
related to the item elecled for fair value must be recognized
in earnings and cannot be deferred. At the implementation
date, unrealized gains and losses on existing items for which
fair value has been elected are reported as a cumulative
adjustment to beginning retained earnings. Subsequent to the
implementation of SFAS No. 159, changes in fair value will
be recognized in earnings. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2007 and has been imple-
mented by the Company as of January 1, 2008. The Company
has not elected any eligible items for fair value measurement
and as a result the implementation of this standard does not
have a material impact on its consolidated financial position
and results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141
(revised 2007), Business Combinations (“SFAS No. 141R").
SFAS No. 141R extends its applicability to all transactions
and other events in which one entity obtains control over

one or more other businesses and establishes principles and
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requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures

in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the
liabilities assumed, any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree,
and the goodwill acquired. SFAS 141R also expands disclo-
sure requirements to improve the statement users’ abilities to
evaluate the nature and financial effects of business combi-
nations. SFAS No. 141R is effective for fiscal years beginning
on or after December 15, 2008 and is required to be imple-
mented by the Company as of Jarary I, 2009. The Company
is currently evaluating the potential impact that implementing
SFAS -No. 141R will have on its consolidated.financial condition,
results of operations, and cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160,
Noncontrolling Interests in Consclidated Financial
Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51 (“SFAS No. 1607).
SFAS No. 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards
for ownership interests in subsidiaries held by parties other
than the parent, the amount of consolidated net income
attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest,
changes in a parent’s ownership interest and the valuation of
retained noncontrolling equity investments when a subsidiary
is deconsolidated. SFAS No. 160 also establishes disclosure
requirements that clearly identify and distinguish between the
interests of the parent and the interests of the noncontrolling
owners and requires that a noncontrolling interest in a subsid-
iary be reported as equity. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and is required
to be implemented by the Company as of January 1, 2009. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact that implementing
SFAS No. 160 will have on its consolidated financial condition,

results of operations, and cash flows.

S MNote 3-
Reconciliation of Weighted Average Shares Qutstanding

Below is a reconciliation of basic shares outstanding to diluted

shares outstanding:

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005

Basic 266.4 284.2 297.7
Dilutive effect of shares issuable

under stock-based

compensation plans 5.8 7.7 7.9

Diluted 272.2 291.9 305.6

Antidilutive options to purchase
common shares and restricted
stock excluded from the
table above 5.6 2.9 3.1
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The calculation of diluted earnings per share requires
certain assumptions regarding the use of proceeds that would
be received upon the exercise of stock options. These assumed
proceeds include the excess tax benefit that would be received
upon exercise of options outstanding as of December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005. Such proceeds are based on deferred 1ax assets

assumed to be calculated under the provisions of SFAS No. 123R.

. N 4
Short-Term Investments

Short-term investments are securities with maturities greater
than 90 days at the time of purchase that are available for
operations in the next 12 months and include auction rate
certificates at December 31, 2006. The short-term investments
are classified as available-for-sale and therefore are carried at
fair value. The remaining contractual maturities of the short-
term investments were one month to 10 months and one month
to 39 years as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Unrealized holding gains and losses on available-for-sale securi-
ties are included in accumulated other comprehensive income,
net of applicable income taxes in the consolidated financial
statements, During the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, realized gains or losses from the sales of available-
for-sale securities were immaterial or nil. As of December 31,
2007 and 2006, unrealized gains or losses from available-for-

sale securities were immaterial.

- o D.
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

In December 2007, the Company commenced a hedging
program to protect against foreign currency exchange rate
risks from forecasted billings and related revenue denomi-
nated in the euro and the British pound. Foreign exchange
options were utilized 10 hedge exposures related to changes in
foreign currency exchange rates. These option contracts have
maturities between one and 15 months. As of December 31,
2007, all contracts were sct to expire at various times through
March 2009. The notional amount of the foreign currency
option contracts outstanding at December 31, 2007 by currency
pair was 7.9 million British pounds for GBP/USD, 16.7 million
euros for euro/USD and 61.5 million for euro/GBP and the
fair value of these contracts, which was recorded in other
current assets in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets,

was $2.3 million.
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In October 2006, the Company entered into two hedging
transactions using options to protect against foreign currency
exchange rale risks from forecasted revenue denominated in
euros. The aggregate notional amount of the foreign currency
option contracts outsianding at December 31, 2006 was
47.9 million and the fair value of these contracts, which was
recorded in other current assets in the Company’s consolidated
balance sheets, was less than $0.1 million.

The amount of unrecognized foreign exchange hedge
losses recorded in other comprehensive loss as of December 31,
2007 and 2006 and the amount of the hedges’ ineffectiveness
for 2007 and 2006 recorded within revenue in the consolidated

statements of operations were immaterial.

N ANote 6
Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net consisted of:
December 31, 2007 2006
$ 924 § 636

Office and computer equipment

Office furniture and fixtures 35.6 28.8
Internal-use computer software 69.8 54.8
Leasehold improvements 187.7 30.9
Property and equipment, at cost 335.5 178.1

Less: accumulated depreciation
(120.9)
Total $ 2146

(116.1)
$ 62.0

and amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense related to
the above assets was $31.5 million, $23.6 million and $20.4 mil-
lion for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,

respectively.

N Note 7.
Acquisitions

Wall Suwreet Analytics, Inc.

In December 2006, the Cmﬁpany acquired Wall Street Analytics,
Inc., a developer of structured finance analytical models and
monitoring software. The acquisition has broadened Moody’s
capabilities in the analysis and monitoring of complex struc-
tured debt securities while increasing the firm’s analytical and
product development staff dedicated to creating new software
and analytic tools for the structured finance market. The
purchase price was not material and the near term impact to

operations and cash flows is not expected to be material.
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China Cheng Xin International Credit Rating Co. Ltd.

In September 2006, the Company acquired a 49% share

of China Cheng Xin International Credit Rating Co. Ltd.
(*CCXI”) from China Cheng Xin Credit Management Co. Ltd.
("*CCXCM™) and an entity affiliated with CCXCM. Terms of
the acquisition agreement will permit the Company to increase
its ownership in CCXI to a majority over time as permitted

by Chinese authorities. The purchase price was not material
and the near term impact to operations and cash flows is not

expected to be material.

Economy.com
In November 2005, the Company acquired Economy.com,

a leading independent provider of economic research and

data services. The acquisition will deepen Moody's analytical
capabilities to broader areas of economic and demographic
research, expand the range of products and services offered
to institutional customers and introduce new customers to
Moody’s. It will provide Economy.com with access to Moody’s
extensive client base, deep product marketing capabilities and
other resources needed to expand its business. The purchase
price was not material and the near term impact to operations

and cash flows is not expected to be material.

— Vo 8.
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The following table summarizes the activity in goodwill for the periods indicated:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Moody’s Moody's Moody’s Moody’s
Investors Service KMV  Consolidated [nvestors Service KMV  Consolidated
Beginning balance $52.0 $1241 $176.1 $28.0 $124.1 $152.1
Additions 3.7 — 3.7 23.2 — T 232
Foreign currency translation adjustments . 0.1 — 0.1 0.8 — 0.8
Ending balance $55.8 $124.1 $179.9 $52.0 $124.1 $176.1
Intangible assets consisted of: Amortization expense for the years ended December 3],
December 31, 2007 2006 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $9.7 million, $9.9 million and
Customer lists $6.8 million, respectively. In December 2005, the Company
(11.2 year weighted average life) $62.7 $62.5 began amortizing the MKMV trade secret over 12 years.
Accumulated amortization (31.8) (26.8) Estimated future annual amortization expense for intan-
Net customer lists 30.9 35.7 gible assets subject to amortization is as follows:
MEMYV trade secret : Year Ending December 31,
L thedacn i B8
2009 7.6
Net trade secret 21.1 23.2 2010 e
Other amortizable intangible assets 2011 . 73
(5.6 year weighted average life) 16.1 15.4 9019 71
Accumulated amortization (11.2) (8.6) Thereafter $18.8
Net other amortizable intangible assets 4.9 6.8
Total $56.9 $65.7
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o9,
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accouns payable and accrued liabilities consisted of:

December 31, 2007 2006
Accounts payable $ 81 %838
Accrued income taxes (see Note 13) 69.4 68.6
Accrued compensation and benefits 141.6 154.3
Accrued interest expense 95 3.7
Accrued restructuring (see Note 10} 3.1 —
Advance payments ’ 1.8 109
Other 107.8 93.4
Total $371.3 $339.7

Accrued compensation and benefits included acerued
incentive compensation of approximately §90 million at
December 31, 2007 and $104 million at December 31, 2006.
Funding and related expense for Moody's incentive compen-
sation plans are primarily based on year-to-year growth in
operating income and, to a lesser extent, earnings per share for
Moody's senior management and annual results compared to
budget for the Moody's Investors Service professional staff and
for Moody’s KMV, ’

ot 10
Restructuring Charge

During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company committed to
a restructuring plan to reduce global head count by approxi-
mately 275 positions, or approximately 7.5% of the workforce,
{the “Plan”) in response to the Company’s reorganization and
adecline in current and anticipated issuance of rated debt
securities in some market sectors. Included in the Plan is a
reduction of staff as a result of: (i) consolidation of certain
corporate staff functions, (ii) the integration of businesses
comprising Moody’s Analytics, a newly created segment,

and (iii) an anticipated decline in new securities issuance in

some market sectors. The Plan also calls for the termination

of technology contracts as well as the outsourcing of certain
technology functions anticipated 1o begin in the first half of
2008. The Plan is expected 1o be substantially completed by
December 31, 2008.

Restructuring charges, as separately noted in the
consolidated statements of operations, for the vear ended
December 31, 2007 were $50.0 million which consisted of
$45.9 million of expenses relating 10 severance and other
employee benefit costs, and $4.1 million for contract termina-

tion costs, as shown in the table below:

Employee Termination Costs Contract Total

Stock Termination Restructuring

Severance Pension Compensation Total Cosls Liability

Balance at January 1, 2007 $ — £ — s — g — s — 3 —
Costs incurred 30.8 10.8 4.3 45.9 4.1 50.0
Cash payments (1.8) —_ —_ (1.8) — (1.8)
Non-cash charges —_ 2.7y (4.3) (7.0} — (7.0)
Balance at December 31, 2007 $29.0 $ 81 £ — $37.1 $41 $41.2

During 2007, the Company paid £1.8 million related to
actions initated in 2007, and has $33.1 million recorded in
accounts payable and accrued liabilities as of December 31,
2007, comprised of severance and contract termination costs
of $29.0 million and $4.1 million, respectively. Additionally,

$8.1 million is recorded within other liabilities relating to an

INSIGHT. INTEGRITY. GROWTH.

increase in pension liabilities resulting from special termina-
tion benefits. Non-cash charges reflect a $2.7 million pension
curtailment that reduced accumulated other comprehensive
income, and a $4.3 million increase to capital surplus relating

to a stock option modification charge.
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e
Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits

Moody's maintains one funded and three unfunded noncon-
tributory defined benefit pension plans. The plans provide
defined benefits using a cash balance formula hased on years of
service and career average salary or final average pay for selected
executives. The Company also provides certain healthcare and
life insurance benefits for retired U.S. employees. The post-
retirement healthcare plans are contributory with participants’
contributions adjusted annually; the life insurance plans are
noncontributory. Moody’s funded and unfunded pension plans,
the post-retirement healtheare plans and the post-retirement
life insurance plans are collectively referred to herein as the
“Post-Retirement Plans”. Effective at the Distribution Date,
Moody’s assumed responsibility for the pension and other post-
retirement benefits relating to its active employees. New D&B
has assumed responsibility for the Company’s retirees and vested
terminated employees as of the Distribution Date.,

Through 2007, subsiantially all U.8. employees were
eligible to participate in the Company’s defined benefit
pension plans. In 2007, the Company modified its post-
retirement benefit plans to beuter align the Company’s
post-retirement benefit programs with current industry prac-

tice while continuing to provide employees with competitive

benefits. Effective January 1, 2008, the Company will no longer
offer defined benefit pension plans to employees hired or
rehired on or after January 1, 2008 and new hires will instead
receive a retirement contribution in similar benefit value under
the Company’s Profit Participation Plan. Current participants
of the Company’s defined benefit pension plans will continue
to accrue benefits based on existing plan benefit formulas.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company implemented
the provisions of SFAS No. 158 and the incremental effect of
implementation was a decrease in other assets of $15.9 million,
an increase in other liabilities of $18.6 million and a pre-tax
increase in accumulated other comprehensive loss of
2445 million (§20.0 million, net of tax). Furthermore, this
implementation eliminated the requirement to report addi-
tional minimum pension liability.

The amounts recognized in accumulated other compre-
hensive income ("AOCI") are subsequently recognized as
components of net periodic benefit expense over future years
pursuant to the recognition and amortization provisions of
SFAS No. 87 and SFAS No. 106. The following table summa-
rizes the changes to the net actuarial losses and prior service
cost recognized in other comprehensive income related to
the Company’s Post-Retirement Plans for the year ended
December 31, 2007 as required by SFAS No. 158:

Pension plans Other Post-Retirement plans

Pre-tax Tax Benefit  Net of Tax

Pre-tax Tax Benefit  Net of Tax

Amount or (expense) Amount Amount or (expense) Amount

Total amount recognized in AQCI, beginning of the period
Net actuarial (losses) $(32.6) $15.7 $(18.9) $(0.7) $ 03 $(0.4)
Net prior service costs (4.8) 2.0 (2.8) (0.7) 0.3 (0.4)
Beginning of the period (37.4) 15.7 (21.7) (1.4) 0.6 (0.8)
Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income:
Amortization of net actuarial losses 2.5 (1.1) 1.4 — — —
Amortization of prior service costs 0.4 (0.2) 0.2 0.2 (0.1) 0.1
Accelerated recognition of prior service costs

due o curtilment 2.7 (1.1) 1.6 — — —_
Net actuarial gain arising during the period 152 (6.5) 8.7 0.6 (0.2) 0.4
Net prior service cost arising during the period

due to plan amendment (3.5) 1.5 (2.0 0.4 (0.2) 0.2
Other comprehensive income recognized 17.3 (7.4) - 9.9 1.2 (0.5) 0.7
Teotal amount recognized in AQCI, end of the period:
Net actuarial losses (14.8) 6.1 (8.7) (0.1} — (0.1)
Net prior service costs (5.3) 22 (3.1) (0.1) 0.1 —
End of the period $(20.1) $ 83 $(11.8) $(0.2) $ 0.1 $(0.1)

Amortization of net actuarial losses and prior service costs for its pension plans and other post-retirement plans in 2008 are

not expected to be material.
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Following is a summary of changes in benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets for the Post-Retirement Plans for the

years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006:

Pension Plans Other Post-Retirement Plans

2007 2006 2007 2006
CHAWNGE IN BENEFIT QOBLIGATION ]
Benefir obligation, beginning of the period $ (134.6) $(127.3) $(9.4) %(8.8)
Service cost (12.6) (11.1) (0.9 (0.8)
Interest cost (8.1) (7.0) (0.6) (0.4)
Plan participants’ contributions — — {0.1) (0.1)
Benefits paid 1.9 2.0 04 - 0.5
Plan amendments (3.6) (0.3) 0.4 —
Impact of curtailment 5.3 — 0.4 —
Impact of special termination benefits (8.1 — ' — —
Acruarial gain {loss} {2.5) 1.6 (0.4) —_
Assumption changes 13.0 7.5 0.5 04
Benefit obligation, end of the period (149.3) (134.6) (9.7) {9.4)
CHANGE IN PLAN ASSETS
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the period 116.6 102.1 — —
Actual return on plan assets 8.5 15.8 — —
Benefits paid (1.9) (2.0} (0.4) (0.3)
Employer contributions 0.7 0.7 0.3 0.2
Plan participants’ contributions — — 01 0.1
Fair value of plan assets, end of the period 1239 116.6 — —_
FUNDED STATUS OF THE PLANS $ (25.4) $ (18.0) 5(9.7) $(9.4)
AMOUNTS RECORDED ON THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Net post-retirement benefit asset $ 374 $ 360 $ — $ —
Pension and postretirement benefits liabiliy—current 2.2) (1.0) (0.5) (0.4)
Pension and post-retirement benefits liabiliy—non current (60.6) (53.0) (9.2) (9.0)
Net amount recognized $ (25.4) $ (18.0)

ACCUMULATED BENEFIT OBLIGATION, END OF THE PERIOD

$(9.7) $(9.4)

$(118.7) $(104.2)

The 2007 pension plan amendment above reflects the
impact of the new benefit payment provision related to an
unfunded plan which beginning January 1, 2008 requires
lump sum payments to be paid to active participants when
they retire. Previously the plan allowed lump sum or annuity
payments. The 2006 pension plan amendment above relates to
the impact of the Pension Protection Act of 2006 (the “PPA”)
that requires changes to the Company’s pension plans as well
as an additional participant admitted to the Supplemental
Executive Benefit Plan. The PPA does not have any significant
effect on the Company’s current funding strategy for its U.S.

pension plans.

INSIGHT. INTEGRITY. GROWTH.

The pension plan curtailment and the special termi-

nation benefit in 2007 relate to the termination of certain

participants of the Company’s Supplemental Executive Benefit
Plan who left the Company. This resulted in a curtailment
under SFAS No. 88 as there was a significant reduction in the
expected years of future service of participants covered by this
plan. As a result, the Company recognized as a component of
other comprehensive income an actuarial gain of $5.3 million
o reflect the reduction of the plan obligation. The special
termination benefit relates to the Company waiving early

retirement penalties otherwise required by this plan.
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Net period benefit expenses recognized for the Post-Retirement Plans for years ended December 31:

Pension Plans

Other Post-Retirement Plans

2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
COMPONENTS OF NET PERIODIC EXPENSE
Service cost $12.6 $11.2 £10.1 $0.9 $0.8 30.6
Interest cost 8.1 7.0 6.2 0.6 0.5 0.4
Expected return on plan assets (9.0) (8.5) (8.2) — — —
Amortization of net actuarial loss from earlier periods 2.5 3.3 2.6 — — —
Amortization of net prior service costs from earlier periods 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.2 0.2 0.1
Curtailment loss 2.7 — — — - —
Cost of special termination benefits 8.1 — — — — —
Settlement loss — — 3.2 — — —
Net periodlic expense $925.4 $1%.4 $14.4 $1.7 $1.5 1.1

The curtailment loss in 2007 relates to the acceler-
ated recognition of prior service costs for certain terminated
participants of the Company’s Supplemental Executive
Benefit Plan stated above. The curtailment loss and the cost
of special termination benefits in 2007 are recorded as part
of the Company’s 2007 restructuring charge, discussed in
Note 10. The settlement loss in 2005 relates to the election of a
lump sum payment of pension benefits to settle an unfunded
pension obligation.

The following information is for those pension plans

with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:

December 31,
2007 2006
Projected benefit obligation £62.7 £54.0
Accumulated benefit obligation $42,2 $37.0
Fair value of plan assels $ — $ —

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

ASSUMPTIONS

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obli-

gations at December 31

Other Post-
Pension Plans Retirement Plans
2007 2006 2007 2006
Discount rate 6.45% 5.90% 6.35% 5.80%
Rate of compensation
increase 4.00% 4.00% —_— —_—
Cash balance
accumulation/
conversion rdte 4.75%/4.96% 4.75% — —

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit expense for years ended December 31:

Pension Plans

Other Post-Retirement Plans

2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Discount rate 590%* 5.60% 5.90% 5.80% 5.45% 5.90%
Expected return on plan assets 8.35%  8.35% 8.35% — — —
Rate of compensation increase 4.00%  4.00% 4.00% — — —
Cash balance accumulation/conversion rate 4.75% 4.75% 5.00% — — —

* The rate of 5.90% was wsed in determining net periodic benefit expenses for the Company's pension plans during 2007 except for the re-measurement of the Company's
Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan due to curtailment, for which a rate of 6.20% was used heginning November 1, 2007. :
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For 2007, the Company continued to use an assumed
rate of return on assets of approximately 8.35% for Moody’s
funded pension plan, which was determined based on explicit
long-term return assumptions for each major assct class within
the plan portfolio. Moody'’s works with third-party consultants
to determine assumptions for long-term rates of return for the

asset classes that are included in the pension plan investment

portfolio. These return assumptions reflect a long-term time
horizon. They also reflect a combination of historical perfor-
mance analysis and forward-looking views of the financial
markets including consideration of inflation, current yields on
long-term bonds and price-earnings ratios of the major stock

market indices.

Assumed Healthcare Cost Trend Rates at December 31:

2007 2006 2005
Pre-age 65 Post-age 65 Pre-age 65 Post-age 65 Pre-agre 65 Post-age 65
Healthcare cost trend rate assumed for the following year 10.4% 11.4% 9.0% 11.0% 10.0% 12.0%
Ultimate rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed
to decline (ultimate trend rate) 50% 5.0% 5.0%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 2015 2013 2013

The assumed health cost trend rate was updated in 2007
to better reflect different expectations for the medical and
prescribed medication components of healthcare costs and
reflects these differences in proportion to their approximate
share of gross healthcare costs for pre- and post-65 retirees.
As the Company's subsidies for retiree healthcare coverage
are capped at the 2005 level, for the majority of the post-
retirement health plan participants, retiree contributions
are assumed to increase at the same rate as the healthcare
cost trend rates. As such, a one percentage-point increase or
decrease in assumed healtheare cost trend rates would not
have affected total service and interest cost and would have
increased or decreased the post-retirement benefit obligation

by $0.3 million and $0.2 million, respectively.

PLAN ASSETS
The assets of the funded pension plan were allocated among

the following categories at December 31:

Percentage of Plan Assets

Asser Category 2007 2006
Equity securities 71% 7%
Debt securities 19 13
Real estate 10 10
Total 100% 100%

Moody's investment objective for the assets in the
funded pension plan is to earn total returns that will minimize
future contribution requirements over the long run within

a prudent level of risk. The Company’s current pension plan

INSIGHT. INTEGRITY. GROWTH.

asset allocation targets are for approximately seventy percent of
assets to be invested in equity securities, diversified across U.S.
and non-U.5. stocks of small, medium and large capitalization,
twenty percent in investment-grade bonds and the remainder
in real estate funds. The use of derivatives to leverage the port-
folio or otherwise is not permitted. The Company’s monitoring
of the plan includes ongoing reviews of investment perfor-
mance, annual liability measurements, periodic asset/liability
studies and investment portfolio reviews. As of December 31,
2006, the equity investment had advanced to represent a
percentage higher than its target allocation due to asset gains
and the Company rebalanced the plan assets in 2007 to bring
the portfolio back into balance with the original target asset
allocation. Moody’s other Posi-Retirement Plans are unfunded

and therefore have no plan assets.

CASH FLOWS

The Company made payments of $0.7 million and $0.9 million
related to its unfunded pension plan obligations during the
year ended December 81, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and
made no contributions to its funded pension plans during

the aforementioned years. The Company made payments of
$0.3 million and $0.2 million to its other postretirement plans
during the vear ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respec-
tively. The Company presently anticipates making payments of
$2.2 million to its unfunded pension plans and $0.5 million to

its other post-retirement plans during 2008,
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ESTIMATED FUTURE BENEFITS PAYABLE
Estimated future benefits payments for the Post-Retirement

Plans are as follows at December 81, 2007 .
Other Post-

Year ending December 31, Pension Plans  Retirement Plans*

2008 $4.5 £05
2009 5.0 0.5
2010 11.4 0.6
2011 6.9 0.6
2012 7.6 0.7
2013-2017 57.5 4.9

* The estimated future benefits pavable for the Post-Retirement Plans are
reflected net of the expected Medicare Part D subsidy for which the subsidy is
insignificant en an annual basis for all the years presented.

PROFIT PARTICIPATION PLAN

Moody’s has a profit participation plan (the “Plan”) covering
substantially all U.S. employvees. The Plan provides for an
employee salary deferral contribution and Company contribu-
tions. During 2007, eligible employees could defer up to 16%
of their pay, subject to the federal limit. Moody's contributes an
amount equal to 50% of employee contributions with Moody’s
contributions limited to 3% of the employee’s pay. Moody’s makes
additional contributions to the Plan that are based on year-to-
year growth in the Company’s earnings per share. Expenses
associated with this plan were $13.3 million, §15.5 million and
$15.3 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Moody"s has made several changes to the Plan. Effective
January 1, 2008, all employees that are hired or rehired after
January 1, 2008 will be automatically enrolled in the Plan with
a 3% deferral rate unless they decline participation and will be
eligible to receive a retirement contribution into the Plan in
lieu of participating in the Company’s defined benefit penston
plans. The amount of retirement contribution is based on an
eligible employee’s combined age and service as of the begin-
ning of each month and will be in similar value to the benefits
that employees would otherwise have been entitled to under the
defined benefit pension plans. In addition, effective January 1,
2008, the Company has increased the maximum deferral
percentage from 16% to 50% subject to the federal limit as
well as implementing a deferred compensation plan whereby
employees whose compensation exceeds the federal limit may
elect to defer up to 6% of pay after they have reached the federal
compensation limit to continue to receive a company match.

Effective January 1, 2008, Moody’s has designated the

Moody's Stock Fund, an investment option under the Plan, as
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an Employee Stock Ownership Plan and, as a result, partici-
pants in the Moody's Stock Fund may receive dividends in cash

or may reinvest such dividends into the Moody’s Stock Fund.

INTERNATIONAL PLANS

Certain of the Company's international operations provide
pension benefits to their employees in the form of defined
contribution plans. Company contributions are primarily
determined as a percentage of employees’ eligible compen-
sation. Expenses related to these plans for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $4.8 million,

$3.9 million and $3.1 million, respectively.

In addition, the Company also maintains an unfunded
defined benefit pension plan for its German employees, which
was closed to new entrants in 2002, The pension liability
recarded related to this plan was $2.9 million, $3.2 million,
and $2.6 million based on the discount rate of 5.60%, 4.25%,
and 4.15% at December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.
The pension liability recorded as of December 31, 2007 repre-
sents the unfunded starus of this plan, and the entire balance
was recognized in the statement of financial position as a
non-current liability. Expense related to this plan for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was approximately
$0.4 million, $0.3 million and $0.6 million, respectively. These
amounts are not included in the tables above. The incremental
effect of implementing SFAS No. 158 for this plan was imma-
terial. As of December 31, 2007, the Company has included
in AOCI net actuarial gains of $1.0 million ($0.6 million, net
of tax) that have yet 1o be recognized as a reduction to net
periodic pension expense. The Company expects its 2008

amortization of the net aciuarial gains to be immaterial,

W Noie 12
Stock-Based Compensation Plans

Presented below is a summary of the stock compensation cost
and associated tax benefit in the accompanying Consolidated

Statements of Operations:
2007 2006 2005

Stock compensation cost $90.2 $77.1 $54.8
Tax benefit $£34.0 $29.7 §214

The restructuring charge, as described in Note 10,
includes $4.3 million relating to a stock award modifica-

tion for three employees which is not included in the stock
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compensation cost for 2007 shown in the table above. The
nature of the modification was to accelerate the vesting of
certain awards for the affected employees as if they were retire-
ment eligible at the date of their termination,

In 2006, the incremental compensation expense due 1o
the implementation of SFAS No. 123R caused operating income
and income before provision for income taxes to decrease by
$5.8 million, net income o decrease by $3.5 million and had
2 $0.02 and $0.01 impact on basic and diluted earnings per
share, respectively. In addition, prior to the implementation
of SFAS No. 123R, excess tax benefits relating to stock-based
compensation was presented in the consolidated statements
of cash flows as an operating cash flow, along with other tax
cash flows, in accordance with the provisions of Emerging
Issues Task Force (“EITF”) No. 00-15, “Classification in the
Stalement of Cash Flows of the Income Tax Benefit Received by
a Company upon Exercise of a Nonqualified Employee Stock
Option™ (“EITF 00-15"). SFAS No. 123R supersedes EITF 00-15,
amends SFAS No. 95, “Statement of Cash Flows™, and requires
tax henefits relating to excess stock-based compensation
deductions o be prospectively presented in the consolidated
statements of cash flows as a financing cash flow. As a result of
this change in presemation, excess tax benefits from stock-
based compensation were recorded as cash flows from financing
activities rather than a cash flow from operating activities for
the years ended December 81, 2007 and 2006.

Additionally, the expense for the year ended
December 31, 2005 includes approximately §9.1 million
relating 1o the accelerated expensing of equity grants for
employees who were at or near retirement eligibility as defined
in the related Company stock plans. The 2005 expense is less
than that which would have been recognized if the fair value
method had been applied to all awards since the original
effective date of SFAS No. 123 rather than being applied
prospectively as of January 1, 2003. Had the Company deter-
mined stock-hased compensation expense using the fair value
miethod provisions of SFAS No. 123 since its original effective
date, Moody's net income and earnings per share for 2005
would have been reduced 1o the pro forma amounts shown in
the table below. The pro forma amounts for the year ended
December 31, 2005 include the effect of the $9.1 million

pre-tax charge discussed above.
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Net income:
As reported
Add: Stock-based compensation expense
included in reported net income, net of 1ax 33.3
Deduct: Stock-based compensation expense
determined under the fair value method, net of tax (38.6)

Pro forma net income £555.5

Basic earnings per share:

As reported $1.88

Pro forma $1.87
Diluted earnings per share:

As reported $1.84

Pro forma '$1.82

The fair value of each employee stock option award is
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model that uses the assumptions noted below. The
expected dividend yield is derived from the annual dividend
rate on the date of grant. The expected stock volatility is based
on an assessment of implied volatility from traded options
as well as historical volatility, The risk-free interest rate is
based on U.5. government zero coupon bonds with maturities
similar to the expected holding period. The expected holding
period was determined by examining historical and projected
post-vesting exercise behavior activity. The following weighted
average assumptions were used for options granted during
2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005

Expected dividend yield 044%  0.44%  0.52%
Expected stock volatility 23% 23% 23%

Risk-free interest rate 4.78%  4.59%  4.07%
Expected holding period 5.7yrs  6.0yrs  6.0yrs
Grant date fair value $22.65 $19.97 $12.62

Prior to the 2000 Distribution, certain employecs of
Moody's received grants of Old D&B stock options under Old
D&B’s 1998 Key Employees’ Stock Incentive Plan (the 1998
Plan”). At the Distribution Date, all unexercised Old D&B
stock options held by Moody’s employees were converted into
separately exercisable options to acquire Moody’s common
stock and separately exercisable options to acquire New D&B
common stock, such that each option had the same ratio of

the exercise price per option to the market value per share,
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the same aggregate difference between market value and
exercise price, and the same vesting provisions, option periods
and other terms and conditions applicable prior to the 2000
Distribution. Old D&B stock options held by employees and
retirees of Old D&B were converted in the same manner.
Immediately after the 2000 Distribution, the 1998 Plan was
amended and implemented by the Company.

Under the 1998 Plan, 35.0 million shares of the
Company’s common stock have been reserved for issuance.
The Amended and Restated 2001 Moody’s Corporation
Key Employees’ Stock Incentive Plan (the “2001 Plan”),
which is shareholder approved, permits the granting of up
to 28.6 million shares, of which not more than 8.0 million
shares are available for grants of awards other than stock
options. The 2001 Plan was amended and approved at the
annual shareholders meeting on April 24, 2007, increasing
the number of shares reserved for issuance by 3.0 million,
which are included in the aforementioned amounts. Both the
1998 Plan and the 2001 Plan (the “Stock Plans™) provide that
options are exercisable not later than 10 years from the grant

date. The vesting period for awards under the Stock Plans is

generally determined by the Board of Directors at the date
of the grant and has been fowr years except for employees
who are at or near retirement eligibility, as defined, for which
vesting is between one and four years. Options may not be
granted at less than the fair market value of the Company’s
common stock at the date of grant. The Stock Plans also
provide for the granting of restricted stock.

The Company maintains a stock plan for its Board of
Directors, the 1998 Moody’s Corporation Non-Employee
Directors’ Stock Incentive Plan {the “Directors’ Plan™), which
permits the granting of awards in the form of non-qualified
stock options, restricted stock or performance shares. The
Directors’ Plan provides that options are exercisable not later
than 10 years from the grant date. The vesting period is deter-
mined by the Board of Directors at the date of the grant and
is generally one year for options and three years for restricted
stock. Under the Directors’ Plan, 0.8 million shares of common
stock were resefved for issuance. Any director of the Company
who is not an employee of the Company or any of its subsid-
iaries as of the date thatan award is granted is eligible (o

participate in the Directors’ Plan,

A summary of option activity as of December 31, 2007 and changes during the year then ended is presented below:

Weighted Average Weighted Average

Exercise Price Remaining Aggregate
Options Shares Per Share Contractual Term Intrinsic Value
Qutstanding, December 31, 2006 20,1 $30.48
Granteel 29 72.51
Exercised {(3.4) 20.37
Forfeited or expired (1.0) 57.20
Outstanding, December 31, 2007 18.6 $37.43 5.7 yrs $149.2
Vested and expected to vest, December 31, 2007 18.0 $36.56 5.6 yrs $149.1
Exercisable, December 31, 2007 $25.42 4.5 yrs $146.8

11.8

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above repre-
sents the total pre-tax intrinsic value {the difference between
Moaody's closing stock price on the last trading day of the year
ended December 31, 2007 and the exercise prices, multi-
plied by the number of in-the-money options) that would
have been received by the option holders had all option
holders exercised their options as of December 31, 2007,

This amount varies based on the fair value of Moody's stock.

As of December 31, 2007, there was $76.4 million of total
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unrecognized compensation expense related to options. The
expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average
period of 1.3 years.

The following able summarizes information relating 1o

stock option exercises:

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005

Proceeds from stock option exercises § 69.3 $105.0 $ 86.2
$139.4 $269.6 $179.1
$ 539 $108.0 § 72.1

Aggregate intrinsic value
Tax benefit realized upon exercise
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A summary of the status of the Company’s nonvested
restricted stock as of December 31, 2007 and changes during

the vear then ended is presented below:
Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair

Nouvested Restricted $tack Shares Value Par Share
Balance, December 31, 2006 1.7 £52.12
Granted 0.9 72.52
Vested (0.7 49.36
Forfeited (0.2) 63.66
Balance, December 31, 2007 1.7 $63.20

As of December 31, 2007, there was $59.9 million of total
unrecognized compensation expense related to nonvested
restricted stock, The expense is expected 1o be recognized over
a weighted average period of 1.3 years.

The following table summarizes information relating to

the vesting of restricted stock awards:

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Fair value of vested shares $43.2 $278 $98
Tax benefit realized upon vesting $166 $109 $39

The Company has a policy of issuing treasury stock to
satisfy shares issued under stock-based compensation plans.
The Company currently expects to use a significant portion
of its cash flow to continue its share repurchase program as
discussed in Note 15.

In addition, the Company also sponsors the 1999 Moody’s
Corpaoration Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP™). Under the
ESPP, 6.0 million shares of common stock were reserved for issu-
ance. The ESPP allows eligible employees 1o purchase common
stock of the Company on a monthly basis at 85% of the average
of the high and the low trading prices on the New York Stock
Exchange on the last trading day of each month. The employee
purchases are funded through after-tax payroll deductions,
which plan participants can elect from one percent to 10 percent
of compensation, subject to the annual federal lirit. This results
in stock-based compensation expense for the difference between

the purchase price and fair market value under SFAS No. 123R,
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. Nole 13
Income Taxes

Components of the Company’s income 1ax provision are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
CURRENT;

Federal $977.0  $362.2 $234.6

State and local 89.8 105.0 89.8

Non-U.S. 124.8 66.6 69.7
Total 491.6 533.8 3041
DEFERRED:

Federal (64.9) (20.1) (15.0%

State and local (10.7) (5.8) (5.4)

Non-U.S. (0.8) (1.3 0.2
Total {(76.4) (27.2) (20.2)
Total $415.2 $5606.6 $373.9

A reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory tax rate to
the Company’s effective tax rate on income before provision

for income taxes is as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
U.S. statutory tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State and local taxes,

net of federal tax benefit 4.6 5.1 59
U.S. (benefit) /taxes

on foreign income (0.1) {0.5) 0.3
Legacy tax items (2.4) 0.1 (0.3)
Jobs Act repatriation benefit — — (0.4)
Other 0.1 0.5 (0.5)
Effective tax rate 372%  402%  40.0%

The Company paid income taxes of $408.7 million,
$408.8 million and $355.6 million during the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The source of income from continuing operations before

income taxes is as follows:

2007 2006 2005

United States $ 8147 $1,026.0 $726.1
International 302.0 234 5 208.6

Income from continuing

operations before

income taxes $1,116.7 $1,2605 $934.7
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The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are

as follows:
December 31, 2007 2006
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS:
Current:
Accounts receivable allowances $ 49 $5.2
Accrued compensation and benefits 4.6 R.5
Deferred Revenue 21.1 2.0
Restructuring 19.7 ——
Other 0.6
Total 50.9 133
Non-current:
Accumulated depreciation and
amortization — 8.8
Stock-based compensation 62.3 46.6
Benefit plans 35.5 33.6
State taxes 2.8 2.0

Deferred rent and construction allowance 23.1 —
Amounts retated to uncertain ax positions 37.8 —_

Other 3.4 6.4
Total 164.9 97.4
Total deferred tax assets 215.8 110.7

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES:

Current:
Prepaid expenses 0.3) (0.2)
Total 0.3 (0.2)
Non-current:

Accumulated depreciation and

amortization (3.1} —
Benefit plans (20.6) (21.5)
Intangible assets and
capitalized software (11.7) (10.7)
Other {0.7) -
Total (36.1) (32.2)
Total deferred tax liabilities (36.4) (32.4)

Net deferred tax assets _$179.4 $78.3

Current deferred tax assets, net of current deferred
tax liabilities, as well as prepaid taxes of $52.0 million and
$8.5 million for December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, are
included in other current assets in the consolidated balance
sheets. Non-current tax receivables of $31.9 million and
$39.8 miliion for December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively,
are included in other assets. During 2006, Moody’s deposited
$39.8 million with the IRS in order to stop the accrual of

statutory interest on potential legacy tax deficiencies known
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as “Amortization Expense Deductions”, as further discussed
in Note 17. The net effects of non-current deferred tax assets
and non-current deferred rax liabilities are included in other
assets at December %1, 2007 and 2006. No valuation allow-
ances were established against any other deferred tax assets for
December 31, 2007 and 2006, as management has determined,
based on the Company’s history of prior and current levels of
operating earnings, that none should be provided.

Undistributed earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries aggre-
gated approximately $312 million and $205 million for
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Management's
intention is that earnings from subsidiaries in France,
Germany, Spain, ltaly, Canada and Japan and a portion of
earnings from subsidiaries in the United Kingdom will be
remitted to the U.S. on a regular basis. As such, incremental
deferred U.S. taxes related to anticipated distributions have
been provided in the consolidated financial statements.
Deferred tax liabilities have not been recognized for approxi-
mately $150 million of undistributed foreign earnings that
management intends to permanently reinvest ousside the
U.S. If all such undistributed earnings were remitted to the
U.S., the amount of incremental U.S. federal and foreign
income taxes payable, net of foreign tax credits, would be
approximately $15 million.

On January 1, 2007, the Company implemented the
provisions of FIN No. 48, resulting in a reduction to retained

earnings of $43.3 million. This reduction is comprised of

‘2 $32.9 million increase in the liability for unrecognized

tax benefits (*UTBs") and accrued interest of $17.3 million
{$10.4 million, net of tax). As of the date of implementation
and after the impact of recognizing the increase in the liability
noted above, the Company’s UTBs totaled $122.7 million of
which $97.5 million represented the amount that, if recognized,
would impact the effective income tax rate in future periods.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of
UTBs is as follows:

Balance as of January 1, 2007 $122.7
Additions for tax positions related to the current year 41.5
Additions for tax positions of prior years 277
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (4.0)
Lapse of statute of limitations (31.8)

Balance as of December 31, 2007 $156.1
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As of December 31, 2007, the Company had
$156.1 million of UTBs of which $118.3 million represents the
amount that, if recognized, would impact the effective income
tax rate in future periods.

The Company classifies interest related to UTBs in
interest expense in its consolidated statements of operations.
Penalties, if incurred, would be recognized in other non-oper-
ating expenses. Prior 1o the implementation of FIN No, 48,
interest expense and, if necessary, penalties assoctated with
tax contingencies were recorded as part of the provision for
income taxes, During 2007, the Company accrued interest
of $21.5 million, retated 1o uncertain tax positions. As of
December 31, 2007 the amount of acerued interest recorded in
the Company’s balance sheet related to uncertain tax positions
was $41.5 million.

Moody’s Corporation and subsidiaries are subject to U.S.
federal income tax as well as income tax in various state and local
and foreign jurisdictions. Moody's federal income tax returns filed
for the years 2004 through 2006 remain subject to examination
by the IRS. New York City income tax returns for 2001 through
2004 are currently under examination and for 2005 through 2006
remain open to examination. New York State income 1ax returns
are subject to examination for 2004 through 2006. Tax filings
in the United Kingdom for 2001 and 2002 are currently under
examination by the U.K. taxing authorities and for 2003 through
2006 remain open to examination.

For current engoing audits related to open tax vears,
the Company estimates that it is reasonably possible that the
balance of UTBs conld decrease in the next twelve months as
a result of the effective settlement of these audits, which might
involve the payment of additional taxes, the adjustment of
certain deferred taxes and/or the recognition of tax benefits.
It is also reasonably possible that new issues might be raised by
tax authorities which might necessitate increases to the balance
of UTBs. As the Company is unable to predict the timing of
conclusion of these audits, the Company is unable to estimate
the amount of changes to the balance of UTBs that are reason-
ably possible at this time. However, the Company believes that
it has adequately provided for all open tax years by tax jurisdic-
tion under FIN No. 48,
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| EAVTE 14
Indebtedness

The following table summarizes total indebtedness as of

December 31:

2007 2006

Notes payable:
Senior notes, due 2015, 4.98% $ 300.0 $300.0
Senior notes, due 2017, 6.06% 300.0 —_
Commercial paper® 551.9 —
Total 1,151.9 300.0
Less: current portion (5561.9) —_
Total long-term debt $ 600.0 $300.0

(1) Net of unamortized discount of $0.7 million,

NOTES PAYABLE
On September 7, 2007, the Company issued and sold through a
private placement transaction, $300.0 million aggregate prin-
cipal amount of its 6.06% Series 2007-1 Senior Unsecured Notes
due 2017 (“Series 2007-1 Notes™) pursuant to a Note Purchase
Agreement (2007 Agreement”}). The Series 2007-1 Notes have
a 10-year term and bear interest at an annual rate of 6.06%,
payable semi-annually on March 7 and September 7 of each
vear. Under the terms of the 2007 Agreement, the Company
may, from time to time within five years, in its sole discretion,
issue additional series of senior notes in an aggregate principal
amount of up to $500.0 million pursuant 1o one or more supple-
ments to the 2007 Agreement. The Company may prepay the
Series 2007-1 Notes, in whole or in part, at any time at a price
equal to 100% of the principal amount being prepaid, plus
accrued and unpaid interest and a prepayment premium based
on the excess, if any, of the discounted value of the remaining’
scheduled payments, over the prepaid principal ("Make Whole
Amount™). The 2007 Agreement contains covenants that limit
the ability of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries to,
among other things: enter into transactions with affiliates,
dispose of assets, incur or create liens, enter into any sale-
leaseback transactions, or merge with any other corporation
or convey, transfer or lease substantially all of its assets. The
Company must also not permit its total debt to ecarnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (‘EBITDA") ratio
to exceed 4.0 to 1.0 at the end of any fiscal quarter.

On September 30, 2005, the Company entered into a
Note Purchase Agreement (2005 Agreement”} and issued and

sold through a private placement wransaction, $300.0 million
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aggregate principal amount of its Series 2005-1 Senior
Unsecured Notes (“Series 2005-1 Notes™). The Series 2005-1
Notes have a 10-year term and bear interest at an annual rate of
4.98%, payable semi-annually on March 30 and September 30.
The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2005-1 Notes were used
1o refinance $300.0 million aggregate principal amount of the
Company’s outstanding 7.61% Senior Notes which matured on
September 30, 2005. In the event that Moody's pays all, or part,
of the Series 2005-1 Notes in advance of their maturity (the
“Prepaid Principal™), such prepayment will be subject 10 a penalty
based on the Make Whole Amount. The Series 2005-1 Notes are
subject to certain covenants that, among other things, restrict the
ability of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries, without the
approval of the lenders, to engage in mergers, consolidations,
assel sales, transactions with affiliates and sale-leaseback transac-

tions or (o incur liens, as defined in the related agreements.,

COMMERCIAL PAPER

On October 3, 2007, the Company eniered into a commercial
paper program (the “Program”) on a private placement basis
under which the Company may issue unsecured commer-

cial paper notes (the “CP Notes™) up to a maximum amount
outstanding at any time of $1.0 billion. Amounts available under
the Program may be re-borrowed. The Program is supported by
the Company’s 2007 Facility (see Credit Facilities section below},
if at any time funds are not available on favorable terms under
the Program. The maturities of the CP Notes will vary, but may
not exceed 397 days from the date of issue. The CP Notes will
be sold at a discount [rom par or, alternatively, will be sold at
par and bear interest at rates that will vary based upon market
conditions at the time of the issuance. The rates of interest will
depend on whether the CP Notes will be a fixed or floating rate.
The interest on a floating rate may be based on the following:
(a) certificate of deposit rate; (b) commercial paper rate; (c) the
federal funds rate; (d) the London Interbank Offered Rate
("LIBOR™); {e) prime rate; {f) treasury rate; or (g) such other
base rate as may be specified in a supplement. The Program
contains certain events of default including, among other
things: non-payment of principal, interest or fees; violation of
covenants; invalidity of any loan document; material judgments;
and bankruptcy and insolvency events, subject in certain

instances to cure periods.
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CREDIT FACILITIES

On September 28, 2007, the Company entered into a $1.0 billion
five-year senior, unsecured revolving credit facility (the “2007
Facility”), expiring in September 2012, which replaces both

the $500.0 million Interim Facility which was set to expire in
February 2008 as well as the $500.0 million five-year revolving
credit facility entered into on September 1, 2004 and sched-
uled to expire in September 2009. The 2007 Facility will serve,
in part, to support the commercial paper program discussed
above. Interest on borrowings is payable at rates that are based
on LIBOR plus a premium that can range from 16.0 to 40.0
basis points of the facility amount depending on the Company’s
ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA ("Earnings Coverage
Ratio”). The Company also pays quarterly facility fees, regard-
less of borrowing activity under the 2007 Facility. The quarterly
fees for the 2007 Facility can range from 4.0 to 10.0 basis points
of the facility amount, depending on the Company's Earnings
Coverage Ratio. The Company also pays a utilization fee of 5
basis points on borrowings outstanding when the aggregate
amount outstanding exceeds 50 percent of the total facility.
The 2007 Facility contains certain covenants that, among other
things, restrict the ability of the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries, without the approval of the lenders, to engage in
mergers, consolidations, asset sales, transactions with affiliates
and sale-leaseback transactions or to incur liens, as defined in
the related agreement. The 2007 Facility also contains financial
covenants that, among other things, require the Company to
maintain an Earnings Coverage Ratio of not more than 4.0 to
1.0 at the end of any fiscal quarter. As of December 31, 2007,
the Company had no borrowings outstanding under the 2007
Facility.

On August 8, 2007, the Company entered into an interim
loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of $500.0 million
that was to expire on February 8, 2008 (the “Interim Facility™).
Interest on borrowings was payable at rates that were based on
LIBOR plus a premium that could range from 17.0 to 47.5 basis
points of the Interim Facility amount, depending on the
Company’s Earnings Coverage Ratio. The Company also paid
quarterly facility fees, regardiess of borrowing activity under the
Interim Facility. The quarterly fees ranged from 8.0 to 15.0 basis
points, depending on the Company’s Earnings Coverage Ratio.
On September 28, 2007, the closing date of 2007 Facility,
the Company terminated the Interim Facility and repaid the

$100.0 million outstanding balance.
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On September 1, 2004, Moody’s entered into a five-vear
senior, unsecured bank revolving credit facility {the “2004
Facility”) in an aggregate principal amount of $160.0 million
that was scheduled to expire in September 2009. Interest on
the borrowings under the 2004 Facility was payable at rates
that are based on LIBOR plus a premium that can range
from 17.0 to 47.5 basis points depending on the Company’s
Earnings Coverage Ratio, as defined in the related agreement.
The Company also paid quarterly facility fees, regardless of
horrowing activity. The quarterly fees ranged from 8.0 to
15.0 basis points of the facility amount, depending on the
Company's Earnings Coverage Ratio. The Company also paid
a utilization fec of 12.5 basis points on borrowings outstanding
when the aggregate amount outstanding exceeded 50% of the
total facility. In October 2006, Moody's amended the 2004
Facility by increasing the limit on sale proceeds resulting
from a sale-leaseback transaction of its former corporate
headquarters building from $150.0 million to $250.0 million.
Additionally, the restriction on liens to secure indebted-
ness related to the building sale was also increased from
$150.0 million to $250.0 million. The Company also increased
the expansion feature of the 2004 Facility from $80.0 million
to $340.0 million, subject to obtaining commitments for
the incremental capacity at the time of draw down from the
existing lenders. In April 2007, after receipt of all necessary
approvals relating to the execution of the expansion feature,
borrowing capacity under the 2004 Facility was increased to
$500.0 million. On September 28, 2007, the closing date of the
2007 Facility, the Company terminated the 2004 Facility and
repaid the $400.0 million owstanding balance.

At December 31, 2007, the Company was in compliance
with all covenants contained within the note agreements and
the 2007 Facility described above,

[nterest {expense) income, net

Interest (expense) income, net consists of:

Year Ended December 81, 2007 2006 2005
Income $ 193 §182 § 260
Expense on borrowings (40.7y - (15.2) (21.0)
Expense on FIN No. 48 wax liabilities  (21.5) — -
Reversal of interest # 17.5 —_ —
Capitalized 1.1 — —
Total $(243) $ 30 § 50

(a) Represents a reversal ol accrued interest related to the favorable resolution of
alegacy tax matter, as further discussed in Note 17,

Interest paid on all borrowings was $32.5 million,
$14.9 million and $22.8 million for the years ended
December 31, 2607, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

- o 1D,

Capital Stock

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL STOCK

The total number of shares of all classes of stock that the
Company has authority to issue under its Restated Certificate
of Incorporation is 1.02 billion shares with a par value of $0.01,
of which 1.0 bhillion are shares of common stock, 10.0 million
are shares of preferred stock and 10.0 million are shares of
series common stock. The preferred stock and series common
stock can be issued with varying terms, as determined by the
Board of Directors.

1 February 2005, Moody’s Board of Directors declared a
wwo-for-one stock split to be effected as a special stock distri-
bution of one share of common stock for each share of the
Company’s common stock outstanding, subject to stockholder
approval of a charter amendment to increase the Company’s
authorized common shares from 400.0 miilion shares to
1.0 billion shares. At the Company’s Annual Meeting on
April 26, 2005, Moody’s stockholders approved the charter
amendment. As a result, stockholders of record as of the close
of business on May 4, 2005 received one additional share of
commuon stock for each share of the Company’s common stock
held on that date. Such additional shares were distributed on
May 18, 2005. All prior period share and per share information

have been restated to reflect the stock splir.

RIGHTS AGREEMENT

The Company has a Rights Agreement designed to protect its
shareholders in the event of unsolicited offers to acquire the
Company and coercive takeover tactics that, in the opinion

of the Board of Directors, could impair its ability to represent
shareholder interests, Under the Rights Agreement, each share
of common stock has a right that trades with the stock until
the right becomes exercisable. Pursuant 1o the provisions of
the Rights Agreement, after giving effect to the Stock Split,
the number of rights associated with each share of common
stock shall be adjusted so that each share of common stock will
have assoctated with it one-half of a right. Each right entitles
the registered holder to purchase 1/1000 of a share of Series A
Junior Participating Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share,
ata price of $100 per 1/1000 of a share, subject to adjustment.

The rights will generally not be exercisable until a person or
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group ("Acquiring Person”) acquires beneficial ownership of,
or commences a tender offer or exchange offer that would
result in such person or group having beneficial ownership of,
15% or more of the outstanding common stock at such time.
In the event that any person or group becomes an
Acquiring Person, cach right will thereafier entitle its holder
{other than the Acquiring Person) to receive, upon exercise
and payment, shares of stock having a market value equal 1o
two times the exercise price in the form of the Company’s
common stock or, where appropriate, the Acquiring Person’s
common stock. The rights are not currently exercisable, as no
shareholder is currently an Acquiring Person. The Company
may redeem the rights, which expire in June 2008, for $0.01
per right, under certain circumstances, including for a Board-
approved acquirer either before the acquirer becomes an
Acquiring Person or during the window period after the trig-

gering event as specified in the Rights Agreement.

SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM
The Company implemented a systematic share repurchase
program in the third quarter of 2005 through an SEC Rule
10b5-1 program. Moody’s may also purchase opportunisti-
cally when conditions warrant. On June 5, 2006, the Board of
Directors authorized a $2.0 biilion share repurchase program
of which Moody’s has approximately $24 million remaining at
December 31, 2007. On July 30, 2007, the Board of Directors of
the Company authorized an additional $2.0 billion share repur-
chase program that the Company will begin utilizing upon
completion of the 2006 authority. There is no established expi-
‘ration date for either of these authorizations. The Company's
intent is to return capital to shareholders in a way that serves
their long-term interests. As a result, Moody's share repurchase
activity will continue to vary from quarter to quarter.

During 2007, Moody's repurchased 31.3 million shares of
its common stock, at an aggregate cost of $1,738.3 million, and
issued 4.3 million shares under employee stock-based compen-

sation plans.

DIVIDENDS

During 2007, the Company paid a quarterly dividend of
$0.08 per share in each of the quarters of Moody’s common
stock, resulting in dividends paid of $6.32 during the year.
During 2006, the Company paid a quarterly dividend of
$0.07 per share in each of the quarters of Moody’s common

stock, resulting in dividends paid per share of $0.28 during
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the year. During 2005, the Company paid a quarterly dividend
of $0.0375 in the first quarter and $0.055 in each of the three
subsequent quarters, per share of Moody's common stock,
resulting in dividends paid per share of $0.2025 during the year.
On December 18, 2007, the Board of Direciors of the
Company approved the declaration of a quarterly dividend
of §0.10 per share of Moody’s common stock, payable on
March 10, 2008 to shareholders of record at the close of
business on February 20, 2008. The continued payment of
dividends at the raie noted above, or at all, is subject to the

discretion of the Board of Directors.

I Noie 16
Lease Commitments

Moody's operates its business from various leased facilities,
which are under operating leases that expire over the next 20
years. Moody's also leases certain computer and other equip-
ment under operating and capital leases that expire over the
next four years. Rent expense, including lease incentives,
is amortized on a straight-line basis over the related lease
term. Rent and amortization expense under operating leases
for the vears ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was
$65.8 million, $27.9 million and $21.5 million, respectively.
The Company has approximately $6.8 million of computer
equipment subject 1o capital lease obligations. Accumulated
amortization at December 31, 2007 includes $2.8 million
related to capital lease obligations,

The approximate minimum rent for leascs that have
remaining or original noncancelable lease terms in excess of

one year at December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Year Ending December 31, Capital Leases Operating Leases
2008 $1.7 $ 726
2009 1.4 64.4
2010 1.5 ° 49.3
2011 — 41.2
2012 — 39.0
- Thereafter — 537.4
Total minimum lease payments $4.4 $803.9
Less: amount representing interest (0.3)

Present value of net minimum lease
payments under capital leases 4.1

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company

completed the sale of its former corporate headquarters
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building. As part of the sales agreement, the Company
leased back the building until the relocation to its new global
headquarters at 7 World Trade Center, New York, New York
("7 WTC"), was completed in the third quarter of 2007, The
Company entered into an operating lease agreement for
7WTC (the “L.ease™) commencing on October 20, 2006 for
589,945 square feet of office space which serves as Moody’s
new corporate headquarters. The Lease has an initial term
ol approximately 21 years with renewal options of 20 years.
The wotal base rent of the lease is approximately $536 million
including rent credits from the World Trade Center Rent
Reduction Program promulgated by the Empire State
Development Corporation, On March 28, 2007, the lease agree-
ment was amended for the Company to lease an additional
78,568 square feet at 7 WTC commencing on November 15,
2007. The additional base rent is approximately $106 million
over a 2(0-year term,

On February 6, 2008, the Company entered into a
I7.5 year operating lease agreement to occupy 165,000 square
feet on six floors of an office tower in the Canary Wharf section
of London, England. Base rent payments will begin in March
2011 and the total estimated base rent payments will be approx-

imately 134 million British pounds over the life of the lease.

. \ote 17
Contingencies

From time to time, Moody’s is involved in legal and tax
proceedings, claims and litigation that are incidental to the
Company's business, including claims based on ratings assigned
by Moody’s. Moody's is also subject to ongoing tax audits in the
normal course of business. Management periodically assesses
the Company’s liabilities and contingencies based upon the
latest information available.

Moody’s discloses material pending legal proceedings,
other than routine litigation incidental to Moody’s business,
material proceedings known to be contemplated by govern-
mental authorities and other pending matters that it may
determine to be appropriate. For matters, except those related to
income taxes, where it is both probable that a liability has been
incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated,
the Company has recorded liabilities in the consolidated finan-
cial statements and periodically adjusts these as appropriate.
When sufficient uncertainties exist, related to the outcome and/

or the amount or range of loss, management does not record a
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liability but discloses the contingency if significant, As additional
information becomes available, the Company adjusts its assess-
ments and estimates of such liabilities accordingly. For income
tax matters, the Company employs the prescribed methodology
of FIN No. 48, implemented as of January 1, 2007. FIN No. 48
requires a company to first determine whether it is more-likely-
than-not (defined as a likelihood of more than 50 percent) that
a tax position will be sustained, based on its technical merits,
as of the reporting date, assuming that taxing authorities will
examine the position and have full kno‘w]edge of all relevant
information, A tax position that meets this more-likely-than-
not threshold is then measured and recognized at the largest
amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely to be
realized upon effective settlement with a taxing authority.

Moody’s has received subpoenas and inquiries from
states attorneys general and governmental authorities and is
cooperating with those inquiries.

Based on its review of the latest information available,
and subject to the contingencies described below, in the
opinion of management, the ultimate liability of the Company
in connection with pending legal and tax proceedings, claims
and litigation is not likely to have a material adverse effect
on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows, although it is possible that the effect
could be material 1o the Company’s consolidated results of

operations for an individual reporting period.

LEGACY CONTINGENCIES

Moody's continues to have exposure (o certain potential liabili-
ties assumed in connection with the 2000 Distribution (*Legacy
Contingencies”). The following description of the relationships
among Moody’s, New D&B and their predecessor entities is
important in understanding the Legacy Contingencies that
relate 1o tax matters ("Legacy Tax Matters™).

In November 1996, The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation
separated into three separate public companies: The Dun &
Bradstreet Corporation, ACNielsen Corporation and
Cognizant Corporation ("Cognizant”). In June 1998, The
Dun & Bradstreet Corporation separated into two separate
public companies: Old D&B and R.H. Donnelley Corporation.
During 1998, Cognizant separated into two separate public
companies: IMS Health Incorporated (*IMS Health") and
Nielsen Media Research, Inc. (*NMR"). In September 2000,

Old D&B separated into two separate public companies:
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New D&B and Moody’s, as further described in Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Old D&B and its predecessors entered into global tax
planning initiatives in the normal course of business, including
through tax-free restructurings of both their forcign and
domestic operations. These initiatives are subject to normal
review by tax authorities. Old D&B and its predecessors also
entered into a series of agreements covering the sharing of any
liabilities for payment of taxes, penalties and interest resulting
from unfavorable IRS rulings on certain tax maitters, and certain
other potential tax liabilitics, all as described in such agree-
ments. Further, in connection with the 2000 Distribution and
pursuant to the terms of the 2000 Distribution Agreement, New
D&B and Moody's have agreed on the financial responsibility for
any potential liabilities related 1o Legacy Tax Matiers.

Settlement agreements were executed with the [RS in
2005 regarding Legacy Tax Matters for the years 1989-1990 and
1993-1996. As of December 31, 2007, the Company continues
to carry a liability of $1.8 million with respect to these matters.
With respect to these settlement agreements, Moody's and
New D&B believe that IMS Health and NMR did not pay their
full share of the liability to the IRS pursuant to the terms of the
applicable separation agreements among the parties. Moody's
and New D&B paid these amounts to the IRS on their behalf,
and have been unable to resolve this dispute with IMS Health
and NMR. As a result, Moody’s and New D&B have commenced
arbitration proceedings against IMS Health and NMR to collect
a total of approximately $11 million owed by IMS Health and
NMR with respect to the 1989-1990 matter. Moody’s and New
D&B may also commence an arbitration proceeding to collect
a total of $14.5 million owed by IMS Health and NMR with
respect to the 1993-1996 matter. Moody’s cannot predict the

outcome of these matters with any certainty.

AMORTIZATION EXPENSE DEDUCTIONS AND 1997-2002 IRS
DEFICIENCY NOTICES (THE "NOTICES™)

This legacy tax matter, which was affected by developments in
June 2007 as further described below, involves a parinership
wansaction which resulted in amortization expense deductions
on the tax returns of Old D&B since 1997, IRS audits of Old
D&B’s and New D&B’s tax returns for the years 1997 through
2002 concluded in June 2007 without any disallowance of the
amortization expense deduclions, or any other adjustments to

income related to this partnership transaction. These audits did
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resultin the IRS issuing the Notices for other tax issues for the
1997-2000 years aggregating $9.5 million in tax and penalties,
plus statutory interest of approximately $7 million, which will
be apportioned among Moody’s, New D&, IMS Health and
NMR pursuant to the terms of the applicable separation agree-
ments. Moody's share of this assessment is anticipated to be
$7.2 million including interest, net of tax. In November 2007,
the IRS assessed the tax and penalties and used a portion of
the deposit discussed below to satisfy the assessment, together
with imerest. The Company believes it has meritorious grounds
to challenge the IRS’s actions and is evaluating its alternatives
for further actions to recover these amounts. The absence of
any tax deficiencies in the Notices for the amortization expense
deductions for the years 1997 through 2000 and in companion
Notices of Deficiency issued to New D&B for 2001 and 2002,
combined with the expiration of the statute of limitations for
1997 through 2002, for issues not assessed, resulted in Moody's
recording an earnings benefit of $52.3 million in its second
quarter. This is comprised of two components, as follows: (i) a
reversal of a tax liability of $27.3 millien related to the period
from 1997 through the Distribution Date, reducing the provi-
sion for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2007,
and (i1) a reduction of accrued interest expense of $17.5 million
{$10.6 million, net of 1ax) and an increase in other non-
operating income of $14.4 million, relating to amounts duc to
New DE&B, for the year ended December 31, 2007,

On the Distribution Date in 20006, New D&:B paid Moody's
$55.0 million for 50 percent of certain anticipated future tax
benefits of New D&B through 2012, It is possible that IRS audits
of New D&B for tax years after 2002 could result in income
adjustments with respect to the amortization expense deduc-
tions of this partnership transaction. In the event these tax
benefits are not claimed or otherwise not realized by New D&:B,
or there is an audit adjustment, Moady’s would be required,
pursuant to the terms of the 2000 Distribution Agreement, 1o
repay to New D&B an amount equal to the discounied value of
its share of the related future tax benefits and its share of any tax
liability that New D&B incurs. As of December 31, 2007, Moody’s
liability with respect wo this matter totaled $52.8 million.

In March 2006, New D&B and Moody's each deposited
$39.8 million with the IRS in order to stop the accrual of
statutory interest on potential tax deficiencies with respect to
the 1997 through 2002 tax years. In July 2007, New D&B and
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Moody’s commenced procedures to recover approximately
$56 million of these deposits ($24.4 million for New D&B

and $31.6 million for Moody’s), which represents the excess

of the original deposits over the total of the deficiencies
asserted in the Notices and in companion Statutory Notices

of Deficiency issued to New D&B for 2001 and 2002. As noted
above, in November 2007 the IRS used $7.9 million of Moody's
portion of the deposit to satisfly an assessment and related
interest. Additionally, in January 2008 the IRS paid Moody's
$8.5 million in connection with this matter.

At December 31, 2007, Moody’s has recorded liabilities
for Legacy Tax Matters totaling $56.7 million. This includes
liabilities and accrued interest due to New D&B arising from
the 2000 Distribution Agreement. It is possible that the ulimate
liability for Legacy Tax Matters could be greater than the liabili-
ties recorded by the Company, which could result in additional
charges that may be material to Moody’s future reported results,

financial position and cash flows.

_— Vo 18,
Segment Information

Moody's operates in two reportable segments: Moody’s
Investors Service and MEMYV. The Company reports segment
information in accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures
about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”,
SFAS No. 131 defines operating segments as components of an
enterprise for which separate financial information is available
that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision-
maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing
performance.

Moody’s Investors Service consists of (i) four rating
groups—structured finance, corporate finance, financial
institutions and sovereign risk, and public finance—that
generate revenue principally from the assignment of credit
ratings on issuers and issues of fixed-income obligations in
the debt markets and (ii} research, which primarily generates
revenue from the sale of investor-oriented credit informa-
tion and research, principally produced by the rating groups
and economic commentary. Public finance represents U.S.
public finance. Given the dominance of Moody's Investors
Service to Moody’s overall results, the Company does not
separately measure or report corporite expenses, nor are such

expenses allocated between the Company's business segments.

Accordingly, all corporate expenses are included in operating
income of the Moody’s Investors Service segment and none
have been allocated to the MKMYV segment.

The MKMYV business develops and distributes quantita-
tive credit risk assessment products and services, including
credit processing software and analytical tools for credit port-
folio management. Assets used solely by MKMYV are separately
disclosed within that segment. All other Company assels,
including corporate assets, are reported as part of Moody's
Investors Service. Revenue by geographic area is generally
based on the location of the customer, Inter-segment sales are
insignificant and no single customer accounted for 10% or
more of total revenue.

Below is financial information by segment, Moody’s
Investors Service revenue by business unit and consolidated
revenue and long-lived asset information by geographic arca,
for the years ended and as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to

conform to the current presentation.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENT

Year Ended December 31, 2007

Moaody's .
Investors Moody's
Service KMV Consolidated
Revenue $2,104.9 $1548 $2,250.0
Operating expenses 9221 113.0  1,035.1
Restructuring charge 45.6 4.4 50.0
Depreciation and amortization 311 118 42,9

Operating income $1,1064 % 256 $1,131.0

To1al assets at December 31 $1,474.0 %2406 §$1,714.6
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Year Ended December 31, 2006

Year Ended December 31, 20065

Moody’s Moody's Moaody's Moody's

Investors Service KMV  Consolidated Investors Service KMV  Consolidated
Revenue $1,804.3  $1428 $2,087.1 $1,600.2 %$1i31.% $1,731.6
Operaling expenses 789.1 109.6 898.7 645.4 111.4 766.8
Gain on sale of building (160.6) — (160.6) — — —
Depreciation and amortization 22.9 16.6 395 18.6 16.6 35.2
Operating income $1,2429 % 16.6 $1,259.5 $ 93%6.3 $ 33 $ 939.6
Total assets at December 31 $1,9565.8 $241.9 $1,497.7 $1,204.p  $252.7 $1,457.2

Moody’s [nvestors Service Revenue by Business Unit

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

RATINGS REVENUE:
Structured finance
Corporate finance
Financial institutions and

sovereign risk
Public finance

$ 8206 $ 8806 § 6993
465.4 380.1 3138

303.1 266.8 254.6
120.8 112.3 117.3

Total ratings revenue
RESEARCH REVENUE

1,779.9 16398 1,385.0
324.3 254.5 215.3

TOTAL MOODY'S
INVESTORS SERVICE

$2,104.2 $1,894.3 $1,600.3

Revenue and Long-lived Asset Information by Geographic Area

2007 2006 2005

REVENUE:
United States
International:

$1,361.8 $1,277.8 $1,0854

production and sales of other ¢redit related products and
services, are now combined under a new operating company
known as Moody’s Analytics.

The aforementioned reorganization will result in the
Company operating in two new reportable segments in accor-
dance with SFAS No. 151, “Disclosures about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information”, beginning in January 2008
as further discussed in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”.

M Note 19
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Accounts receivable allowances primarily represent adjust-
ments to customer billings that are estimated when the related
revenue is recognized. Below is a summary of activity for each
of the three years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,

respectively:

Balance at Additions Write-offs Balance

Europe 659.3 548.9 456.0 Beginning  Charged to and at End of
Other 237.9 215.4 190.2 of the Year Revenue  Adjustments the Year
Total International 897.2 759.3 646.2 2007 $ (14.5) (39.3) 376 $ (16.2)
Total $2,250.0 $2,037.1 §1,731.6 2006 $(12.7) (34.9) 23] $ (14.5)
LONG-LIVED ASSETS: 2005 $ (14.6) (24.4) 26.3 $(12.7)

United States
International

$ 4146 % 2836 $ 2673
37.1 22.0 18.9

Total

$ 4517 % 3056 § 2862

Beginning in fanuary 2008, Moody’s segments were

changed 1o reflect the implementation of the business reor-

ganization announced in August 2007. As a result of the

reorganization, the rating agency remains in the Moody’s

Investors Service operating company and several ratings

business lines have been realigned. All of Moody’s other

commercial activities, including MKMYV and sales of credit

research produced by Moody’s Investors Service and the
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Mo 20,
Related Party Transactions

Moody's Corporation made grants of $6.0 million to

The Moody's Foundation (the “Foundation™) in bath 2006
and 2005, No grants were made during the year ended
December 31, 2007. The Foundation carries out philanthropic
activities on behalf of Moody’s Corporation primarily in the
areas of education and health and human services. Certain
members of senior management of Moody’s Corporation are

on the Board of Directors of the Foundation.
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o o 21,
Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Three Months Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2007
Revenue $583.0 $646.1 §525.0 £504.9
Operating income 304.7 363.7 250.5 212.1
Net income 175.4 261.9 136.9 127.3
Basic earnings per share $ 063 & 0.97 $ 052 £ 0.50
Diluted earnings per share § 0.62 $ 0.95 $ 051 $ 049
2006
Revenue $440.2 4511.4 $495.5 $590.0
Operating income 238.3 289.1 268.8 463.3
Net income 146.2 172.1 157.0 278.6
Basic earnings per share & 0.50 $ 0.60 8§ 0.56 S 1.00
Diluted earnings per share § 049 $ 059 $ 0.55 $ 097

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed for each of the periods presented. The number of weighted average shares
outstanding changes as common shares are issued pursuant to employee stock plans and for other purposes or as shares are repur-
chased. Therefore, the sum of basic and diluted earnings per share for cach of the four quarters may not equal the full year basic
and diluted earnings per share.

The quarterly financial data for the three months ended June 30, 2007 includes a $52.3 million benefit to net income related
to the resolution of a legacy tax matter, a $47.8 million pre-tax restructuring charge for the three months ended December 31, 2007

and a $160.6 million pre-tax gain on building sale for the three months ended December 31, 2006.

. Nole 22.
Subsequent Event

On February 6, 2608 the Company entered into a 17.5-year
operatling lease agreement to occupy 165,000 square feet

on six floors of an office tower in the Canary Wharf section
of London, England. Base rent payments will begin in

March 2011 and the total estimated base rent payments over
the life of the lease are approximaitely 134 million British
pounds, or $267 million based on the exchange rate in effect at
January 31, 2008. In addition to the base rent payments, the
Company will be obligated to pay certain customary amounts
for its share of operating expenses and tax ohligations.

The Company will alse incur costs to build out the floors to

its specifications.
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SELECTLED FINANCIAL DATA

(amounts in millions, except per shire data)

The Company’s selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the Moody’s Corporation consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.

Year Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
RESULTS OF QPERATIONS
Revenue $2,259.0 £2,037.1 $1,731.6 $1,438.3 $1,246.6
Operating, selling, gencral and
administrative expenses 1,035.1 898.7 756.8 617.8 5509
Depreciation and amortization 42.9 39.5 35.2 34.1 32,6
Restructuring charge 50.0 — —_ — —
Gain on sale of building —_ (160.6) — _ —
Operating income 1,131.0 1,259.5 939.6 786.4 663.1
Non-operating (expense) income, net" (14.3) 1.0 4.9 (15.1) (6.7}
Income before provision for income taxes 1,116.7 1,260.5 934.7 771.% 656.4
Provision for income taxes 4152 506.6 373.9 346.2 292.5
Nel income $ 7015 $ 75349 $ 560.8 $ 425.1 $ 3639
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic $ 263 S 265 $ 1.88 $ 143 $ 122
Diluted § 258 $ 258 & 1.84 g 140 § 119
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES QUTSTANDING
Basic 266.4 2842 - 297.7 297.0 297.8
Diluted 272.2 291.9 305.6 304.7 304.6
| DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER SHARE $ 0.34 $ 0.29 $ 0.24 $ 0G.15 & 0.11
|
, December 31, 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
' BALANCE SHEET DATA
Total assets £1,7146 $1,497.7 $1,457.2 $1,389.3 § 9599
Long-term debt™ $ 6000 3 300.0 $ 300.0 8 —_ $ 300.0
Shareholders’ {deficit) equity $ (783.6) $ 1674 £ 309.4 $ 8175 $ (32.1)

(1) The 2007 amount includes a $31.9 million benefit related 1o the resolution of certain legacy tax matters, and the 2003 amount includes a gain of $13.6 million on an
insurance recovery related 1o the September 11th tragedy.

{2} The 2007, 2006 and 2005 amounts include net benehits of $20.4 million, $2.4 mllion and $8.8 million, respectively, and the 2604 and 2003 amounts include expenses of
$30.0 million and §16.2 million, respectively, related o certain legacy tax matters,

(3} At December 31, 2004, the notes payable scheduled to mature in September 2003 were classified as a current liability. The 2007 amount includes the $300.0 milliun
Series 2007-1 Notes issued in September 2007,
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FORM 10-K AND OTHER REPORTS;
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Form 10-K, along with other Moody's SEC filings and
corporate governance documents are available, without charge,
on http://ir.moodys.com.

The Company has filed its annual report on Form 10-K
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. A copy of the
Form 10-K is available, without charge, upon request to the
Investor Relations Depariment at the Corporate Office above.

The Company has submitted to the New York Stock
Exchange the Chief Executive Officer’s certification that he is
unaware of any violation by the Company of the NYSE's corpo-
rate governance listing standards. The Company has filed the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer certifica-
tions as exhibits to the most recently filed Form 10-K, pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 required to
be filed with the SEC.

COMMON STOCK INFORMATION

The Company’s common stock trades on the New York Stock

Exchange under the symbol “MCO”.
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MOODY’S CORPORATION
7 World Trade Center
250 Greenwich Street

New York, New York 10007

NOTICE OF 2008 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To Our Stockholders:

The 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Moody’s Corporation will be held on Tuesday, April 22,
2008, at 9:30 a.m. at the Company’s offices at 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich Street, New York, New
York, for the following purposes, all as more fully described in the accompanying Proxy Statement:

1. To elect three Class I directors of the Company to each serve a three-year term;

2. To ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm of the
Company for the year 2008;

3. To vote on one stockholder proposal, if properly presented at the meeting; and

4.  To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting. '

The Board of Directors of the Company has fixed the close of business on March 1, 2008 as the record date
for the determination of stockholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors,
‘791-.«_ 8 Wi

Jane B. Clark
Corporate Secretary

March 19, 2008

Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting in person, it is important that you complete, sign, date
and promptly return the enclosed form of proxy or that you give your proxy by telephone or the Internet.
A self-addressed envelope is enclosed for your convenience. No postage is required if mailed in the United
States. If you attend the meeting, you may vote in person, even if you have previously returned your proxy
card or voted by telephone or the Internet.
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PROXY STATEMENT

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
OF MOODY’S CORPORATION

General

This Proxy Statement and the accompanying proxy card are being furnished to the holders of the common
stock, par value $.01 per share (the “Common Stock™), of Moody’s Corporation (“Moody’s” or the “Company™)
in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board of Directors’
or the “Board”) for use in voting at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders or any adjournment or postponement
thereof (the “Annual Meeting”). The Annual Meeting will be held on Tuesday, April 22, 2008, at 9:30 a.m. at the
Company’s principal executive offices located at 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich Street, New York, New
York 10007. To obtain directions to atiend the Annual Meeting and vote in person, please contact Investor
Relations by sending an email to ir@moodys.com. This Proxy Statement and the accompanying proxy card are

first being mailed to stockholders on or about March 19, 2008. Moody's telephone number is (212) 553-0300.

y

Annual Meeting Admission

Stockholders will need an admission ticket to enter the Annual Meeting. For stockholders of record, an
admission ticket is attached to the proxy card sent to you. If you plan to attend the Annual Meeting in person,
please retain the admission ticket.

If your shares are held in the name of a bank, broker or other holder of record and you plan to attend the
Annual Meeting in person, you may obtain an admission ticket in advance by sending a written request, along
with proof of share ownership such as a bank or brokerage account statement, to the Corporate Secretary of the
Company at 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10007. Stockholders who do
not have admission tickets will be admitted following verification of ownership at the door.

Record Date

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on March 1, 2008 as the record date (the “Record
Date”} for the determination of stockholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting. As of the
close of business on the Record Date, there were 246,392,345 shares of Common Stock outstanding. Each holder
of Common Stock entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be entitled to one vote per share.

How to Vote

In addition to voting in person at the Annual Meeting, stockholders of record can vote by proxy by calling a
toll-free telephone number, by using the Internet or by mailing their signed proxy cards. The telephone and
Internet voting procedures are designed to authenticate stockholders’ identities, to allow stockholders to giv'e
their 'voting instructions and to confirm that stockholders’ instructions have been recorded properly. Specific
instructions for stockholders of record who wish to use the telephone or Internet voting procedures are set forth
on the enclosed proxy card.

If your shares are held in the name of a bank, broker or other holder of record, you will receive instructions
from the holder of record that you must follow in order for your shares to be voted. Certain of these institutions
offer telephone and Internet voting.

Special Voting Procedures for Certain Current and Former Employees

Many current and former employees of the Company have share balances in the Moody’s Common Stock
Fund of the Moody’s Corporation Profit Participation Plan (the “Profit Participation Plan"). The voting
procedures described above do not apply to these share balances. Instead, any proxy given by such an employee
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or former employee will serve as a voting instruction for the trustee of the Profit Participation Plan, as well as a
proxy for any shares registered in that person’s own name (including shares acquired under the Moody’s
Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan and/or pursuant to restricted stock awards). To allow sufficient time
for voting by the trustee, Profit Participation Plan voting instructions must be received by April 18, 2008. If
voting instructions have not been received by that date, the trustee will vote those Profit Participation Plan shares
in the same proportion as the Profit Participation Plan shares for which it has received instructions, except as
otherwise required by law.

Quorum and Veting Requirements

I

The holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock entitled to vote at the Annual
Meeting, whether present in person or represented by proxy, will constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business at the Annual Meeting. If a quorum is not present at the Annual Meeting, the stockholders present may
adjourn the Annual Meeting from time to time, without notice, other than by announcement at the meeting, untit
a quorum is present or represented. At any such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present or represented,
any business may be transacted that might have been transacted at the original meeting. Abstentions and broker
non-votes will be counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the Annual Meeting. A
broker “non-vote” occurs when a nominee holding shares for a beneficial owner does not vote on a particular
proposal because the nominee does not have discretionary voting power for that particular matter and has not
received instructions from the beneficial owner.

Pursuant to the Company’s by-laws, each nominee for director is required to receive a majority of the votes
cast with respect to such nominee in order to be elected at the Annual Meeting. A majority of the votes cast
means that the number of shares voted “for” a director must exceed the number of votes cast “against” that
director. Any director subject to election at the Annual Meeting who fails to receive a majority of the votes cast
is required, in accordance with the Company’s recently adopted Director Resignation Policy, to tender his
resignation for consideration by the Board of Directors, following a review and recommendation from the
Governance and Compensation Committee, in accordance with such policy.

The affirmative vote of the majority of the votes present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to
vote at the Annual Meeting is required to ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as the independent registered
public accounting firm of the Company for the year ending December 31, 2008. If a stockholder abstains from
voting or directs the stockholder’s proxy to abstain from voting on the matter, the shares are considered present
at the meeting for such matter, but since they are not affirmative votes for the matter, they will have the same
effect as votes against the matter. On the other hand, shares resulting in broker non-votes, if any, while present at
the meeting are not entitled to vote for such matter and will have no effect on the outcome of the vote.

The affirmative vote of the majority of the votes present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to
vote at the Annual Meeting is required to adopt the stockholder proposal set forth in this Proxy Statement. Please
bear in mind that the adoption of the stockholder proposal included in this Proxy Statement at the Annual
Meeting would serve only as a recommendation to the Board of Directors to take the action requested by the
proponent. The affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% in voting power of the outstanding shares of
Common Stock at a future stockholders’ meeting would be required in order to adopt simple majority vote
requirements in the Company’s charter and by-laws, as requested by the stockholder proposal. If a stockholder
abstains from voting or directs the stockholder’s proxy to abstain from voting on the matter, the shares are
considered present at the meeting for such matter, but since they are not affirmative votes for the matter, they
will have the same effect as votes against the matter. On the other hand, shares resulting in broker non-votes, if
any, while present at the meeting are not entitled to vote for such matter and will have no effect on the outcome
of the vote.

Proxies

The enclosed proxy provides that you may specify that your shares of Common Stock be voted “For,”
“Against” or “Abstain” from voting with respect to the director nominees and the other proposals. The Board of
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Directors recommends that you vote “For” each of the three director nominees named in this Proxy Statement,
“For” the ratification of the selection of the independent registered public accounting firm, and “Against” the
stockholder proposal. All shares of Common Stock represented by properly executed proxies received prior to or
at the Annual Meeting and not revoked will be voted in accordance with the instructions indicated in such
proxies. Properly executed proxies that do not contain voting instructions will be voted in accordance with the
recommendations of the Board of Directors.

It is not expected that any matter other than those referred to herein will be brought before the Annual
Meeting, If, however, other matters are properly presented, the persons named as proxies will vote in accordance
with their best judgment with respect to such matters.

Any stockholder of record who votes by telephone or the Internet or who executes and returns a proxy may
revoke such proxy or change such vote at any time before it is voted at the Annual Meeting by (i} filing with the
Corporate Secretary of the Company at 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich Street, New York, New York
10007, written notice of such revocation, (ii) casting a new vote by telephone or the Internet or by submitting
another proxy that is properly signed and bears a later date or (iii) attending the Annual Meeting and voting in
person. A stockholder whose shares are owned beneficially through a bank, broker or other nominee should
contact that entity to change or revoke a previously given proxy.

Proxies are being solicited hereby on behalf of the Board of Directors. The cost of the proxy solicitation will
be borne by the Company, although stockholders who vote by telephone or the Internet may incur telephone or
Internet access charges. In addition to solicitation by mail, directors, officers and employees of the Company
may solicit proxies personally or by telephone, telecopy, email or otherwise. Such directors, officers and
employees will not be specifically compensated for such services. The Company has retained Georgeson
Shareholder Communications Inc. to assist with the solicitation of proxies for a fee not to exceed $10,000, plus
reimbursement for out-of-pocket expenses. Arrangements may also be made with custodians, nominees and
fiduciaries to forward proxy solicitation materials to the beneficial owners of shares of Common Stock held of
record by such custodians, nominees and fiduciaries, and the Company may reimburse such custodians, nominees
and fiduciaries for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection therewith.

Delivery of Documents to Stockholders Sharing an Address

If you are the beneficial owner, but not the record holder, of the Company’s shares, your broker, bank or
other nominee may seek to reduce duplicate mailings by delivering only one copy of the Company’s Proxy
Statement and Annual Report to multiple stockholders who share an address unless that nominee has received
contrary instructions from one or more of the stockholders. The Company will deliver premptly, upon written or
oral request, a separate copy of the Proxy Statement and Annual Report to a stockholder at a shared address to
which a single copy of the documents was delivered. A stockholder who wishes to receive a separate copy of the
Proxy Statement and Annual Report, now or in the future, should submit their request to the Company by
telephone at (212) 553-3638 or by submitting a written request to the Company’s Investor Relations Department,
at 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10007. Beneficial owners sharing an
address who are receiving multiple copies of proxy materials and annual reports and wish to receive a single
copy of such materials in the future should contact their broker, bank or other nominee to request that only a
single copy of each document be mailed to all stockholders at the shared address in the future.

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials
for the Stockholder Meeting to be Held on April 22, 2008

The Proxy Statement and our Annual Report to Stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2007 are
available at http:/fww3.ics.adp.com/fsireetlink/MCO.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In order to address evolving best practices and new regulatory requirements, the Board of Directors annually
reviews its corporate governance practices and the charters for its standing committees. As a result of this review,
during 2007 the Board amended the Company’s Corporate Governance Principles and the charter of its
Governance and Compensation Committee. A copy of the amended Corporate Governance Principles is available
on the Company's website at www.moodys.com under the headings “Shareholder Relations—Corporate
Governance—Documents & Charters.” Copies of the amended charter of the Governance and Compensation
Committee and the charter of the Audit Committee Charter are available on the Company’s website at
www.moodys.com under the headings “Shareholder Relations—Corporate Governance—Documents &
Charters.” Print copies of the Corporate Governance Principles and the committee charters may also be obtained
upon request, addressed to the Corporate Secretary of the Company at 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich
Street, New York, New York 10007. The Audit Committee and the Governance and Compensation Committee
assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibitities, as described below.

Board Meetings and Committees

During 2007, the Board of Directors met six times and had three standing committees, an Audit Committee,
a Governance and Compensation Committee, which also performs the functions of a nominating committee, and
an International Business Development Committee. All directors attended at least 85 percent of the total number
of meetings of the Board and of all committees of the Board on which they served in 2007. The function of the
International Business Development Committee is to evaluate possible opportunities outside of the United States
and to recommend to the Board areas for development. The members of the International Business Development
Committee are Mr. Kist, Mr. McDaniel and Mr. Frederic Drevon, Senior Managing Director—EMEA of
Moody’s Investors Service, Mr. Chester Murray, formerly Executive Vice President—International of Moody’s
Investors Service, who retired in November, served on the committee from January 2007 through October 2007.
The International Business Development Committee met two times during 2007. Please refer to page 7 for
additional information regarding the Audit Committee, and to page 8 for additional information regarding the
Governance and Compensation Committee.

Directors are expected to attend the Annual Meeting. All of the Company’s directors were in attendance at
the 2007 Annual Meeting.

Recommendation of Director Candidates

The Governance and Compensation Committee will consider director candidates recommended by
stockholders of the Company. In considering a candidate for Board membership, whether proposed by
stockholders or otherwise, the Governance and Compensation Committee examines the candidate’s business
experience and skills, independence, judgment and integrity, his ability to commit sufficient time and attention to
Board activities, and any potential conflicts with the Company’s business and interests. The Governance and
Compensation Committee also seeks to achieve a diversity of occupational and personal backgrounds on the
Board. To have a candidate considered by the Governance and Compensation Committee, a stockholder must
submit the recommendation in writing and must include the following information:

¢ The name of the stockholder and evidence of the person’s ownership of Company stock, including the
number of shares owned and the length of time of ownership; and

e The name of the candidate, the candidate’s resume or a listing of his qualifications to be a director of
the Company, and the person’s consent to be named as a director if selected by the Governance and
Compensation Committee and nominated by the Board.

The stockholder recommendation and information described above must be sent to the Corporate Secretary
of the Company at 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10007, and must be
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received by the Corporate Secretary not less than 120 days prior to the anniversary date of the Company’s most
recent annual meeting of stockholders. For the Company’s 2009 annual meeting, this deadline is December 23,
2008. -

The Governance and Compensation Committee identifies potential nominees by asking current directors and
executive officers to notify the Committee if they become aware of persons, meeting the criteria described above,
who might be available to serve on the Board. As described above, the Committee will also consider candidates
recommended by stockholders on the same basis as those recommended by current directors and executives. The
Governance and Compensation Committee also, from time to time, may engage firms that specialize in
identifying director candidates for the Committee’s consideration.

Once a person has been identified by or for the Governance and Compensation Commiitee as a potential
candidate, the Committee may collect and review publicly available information regarding the person to assess
whether the person should be considered further. If the Governance and Compensation Committee determines
that the candidate warrants further consideration, the chairman or another member of the Committee contacts the
person. Generally, if the person expresses a willingness 1o be considered and to serve on the Board, the
Governance and Compensation Committee requests information from the candidate, reviews the person’s
accomplishments and qualifications, including in light of any other candidates that the Committee might be
considering, and conducts one or more interviews with the candidate. In certain instances, Committee members
may contact one or more references provided by the candidate or may contact other members of the business
community or other persons that may have greater first-hand knowledge of the candidate’s accomplishments.

The Lead Independent Director

The Company’s non-management directors routinely meet in executive session, without the presence of
management directors or other members of management. During 2007, the non-management directors held three
executive sessions, Those sessions are presided over by a Lead Independent Director, whose responsibilities also
include setting the agenda for executive sessions of the non-management directors, consulting with the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer regarding agendas, scheduling and information needs for Board and commitiee
meetings, and acting as a liaison between the non-management directors and management. Dr. McKinnell
currently serves as the Company’s Lead Independent Director.

Codes of Business Conduct and Ethics

The Company has adopted a code of ethics that applies to its Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer and Controller, or persons performing similar functions. The Company has also adopted a code of
business conduct and ethics that applies to the Company’s directors, officers and employees. A current copy of
each of these codes is available on the Company’s website at www.moodys.com under the headings “Shareholder
Relations—Corporate Governance—Documents & Charters.” A copy of each is also available in print 10
stockholders upon request, addressed to the Corporate Secretary of the Company at 7 World Trade Center, 250
Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10007,

The Company intends to satisfy disclosure requirements regarding any amendments to, or waivers from, the
code of ethics by posting such information on the Company’s website at www.moodys.com under the headings
“Shareholder Relations—Corporate Governance—Documents & Charters.”

Director Independence

To assist it in making determinations of a director’s independence, the Board has adopted independence
standards, which are set forth below and are also included in the Company’s Corporate Governance Principles,
which are available on the Company’s website as set forth in the first paragraph under the “Corporate
Governance” heading above. The Board has determined that Mr. Anderson, Mr. Glauber, Mr. Kist, Senator
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Mack, Dr. McKinnell, Ms. Newcomb and Mr. Wulff, and thus a majority of the directors on the Board, are
independent under these standards. The standards adopted by the Board incorporate the director independence
criteria included in the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE") listing standards, as well as additional criteria
established by the Board. Each of the Audit Committee and the Governance and Compensation Committee is
composed entirely of independent directors. In accordance with NYSE requirements and the independence
standards adopted by the Board, all members of the Audit Committee meet additional independence standards
applicable to audit committee members. :

An “independent” director is a director whom the Board has determined has no material relationship with
the Company or any of its consolidated subsidiaries (for purposes of this section, collectively referred to as the
“Company”), either directly, or as a partner, stockholder or officer of an organization that has a relationship with
the Company. For purposes of this definition, the Board has determined that a director is not independent if:

1. The director is, or in the past three years has been, an employee of the Company, or an immediate
family member of the director is, or in the past three years has been, an executive officer of the Company;

2. (a) the director, or an immediate family member of the director, is a current partner of the
Company's outside auditor; (b) the director is a current employee of the Company’s outside auditor; (c) a
member of the director’s immediate family is a current employee of the Company’s outside auditor
participating in the firm’s audit, assurance or tax compliance (but not tax planning) practice; or (d) the
director or an irmmediate family member of the director was in the past three years (but is no longer) a
partner or employee of the Company’s outside auditor and personally worked on the Company’s audit
within that time;

3. the director, or a member of the director’s immediate family, is or in the past three years has been, an
executive officer of another company where any of the Company’s present executive officers serves or
served on the compensation committee at the same time;

4, the director, or a member of the director’s immediate family, has received, during any 12-month
petiod in the past three years, any direct compensation from the Company in excess of $100,000, other than
compensation for Board service, compensation received by the director’s immediate family member for
service as an employee (other than an executive officer) of the Company, and pension or other forms of
deferred compensation for prior service with the Company;

5. the director is a current executive officer or employee, or a member of the director’s immediate
family is a current executive officer, of another company that makes payments to or receives payments from
the Company, or during any of the last three fiscal years, has made payments to or received payments from
the Company, for property or services in an amount that, in any single fiscal year, exceeded the greater of $1
million or 2% of the other company’s consolidated gross revenues; or

6. the director, or the director’s spouse, is an executive officer of a non-profit organization to which the
Company or the Company foundation makes, or in the past three years has made, contributions that, in any
single fiscal year, exceeded the greater of $1 million or 2% of the non-profit organization’s consolidated
gross revenues. (Amounts that the Company contributes under matching gifts programs are not included in
the contributions calculated for purposes of this standard.)

An “immediate family” member includes a director’s spouse, parents, children, siblings, mother and
father-in-law, sons and daughters-in-law, brothers and sisters-in-law, and anyone {(other than a domestic
employee) who shares the director’s home.

In assessing independence, the Board took into account that Mr. Anderson, Mr. Glauber, Mr. Kist, Senator
Mack, Ms. Newcomb and Mr. Wulff each served during 2007, or currently serves, as directors of entities that are
rated or have issued securities rated by Moody's Investors Service, as described in the Company’s Directors and
Shareholders Affiliation Policy posted on the Company’s website under the headings “Shareholder Relations—
Corporate Governance—Documents & Charters,” and that each such entity accounted for less than 1% of the
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Company’s 2007 revenue. The Board found nothing in the relationships to be contrary to the standards for
determining independence as contained in the NYSE’s requirements and the Company’s Corporate Governance
Principles.

Communications with Directors

The Board of Directors has established a process to receive communications from stockholders and other
interested parties. Stockholders and other interested parties may communicate with the Board of Directors or
with all non-management directors as a group, with the Lead Independent Director, or with a specific director or
directors, by writing to them c/o the Corporate Secretary of the Company at 7 World Trade Center, 250
Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10007.

All communications received as set forth in the preceding paragraph will be opened by the Corporate
Secretary in the office of the Company’s General Counsel for the sole purpose of determining whether the
conttents represent a message to the Company’s directors. Any contents that are not in the nature of advertising,
promotions of a product or service, or patently offensive material will be forwarded promptly to the addressee.

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee represents and assists the Board of Directors in its oversight responsibilities relating
to: the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and the financial information provided to the Company’s
stockholders and others; the Company’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; the Company’s
internal controls; and the audit process, including the qualifications and independence of the Company’s
principal external auditors (the “Independent Auditors™) and the performance of the Independent Auditors, and of
the Company’s internal audit function. The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment, compensation
and oversight of the Independent Auditors and, as such, the Independent Auditors report directly to the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee has established a policy setting forth the requirements for the pre-approval of audit
and permissible non-audit services to be provided by the independent registered public accounting firm. Under
the policy, the Audit Committee pre-approves the annual audit engagement terms and fees, as well as any other
audit services and specified categories of non-audit services, subject to certain pre-approved fee levels. In
addition, pursuant to the policy, the Audit Committee has authorized its Chairman to pre-approve other audit and
permissible non-audit services up to $30,000 per engagement and a maximum of $250,000 per year. The policy
requires that the Audit Committee Chairman report any pre-approval decisions to the full Audit Committee at its
next scheduled meeting. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Audit Committee pre-approved all of the
services provided by the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, which are described on
pages 14 and 15.

The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Wulff (Chairman}, Mr. Anderson, Mr. Glauber, Mr. Kist,
Senator Mack, Dr. McKinnell and Ms. Newcomb, each of whom is independent under NYSE and Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) rules and under the Company’s Corporate Governance Principles. The Board of
Directors has determined that each of Mr. Anderson, Mr. Glauber, Mr. Kist, Dr. McKinnell, Ms. Newcomb and
Mr. Wulff is an “audit committee financial expert” under the SEC’s rules.

Mr. Anderson currently serves on the audit committees of three other public companies. Under the NYSE
rules, a member of the Audit Committee may not simultaneously serve on the audit committees of more than -
three public companies unless the Board of Directors determines that such simultaneous service does not impair
the ability of the member to effectively serve on the Audit Committee. The Board of Directors has determined
that Mr. Anderson’s simultaneous service on the three other audit committees does not impair his ability to
effectively serve on the Company’s Audit Comrmittee.

The Audit Committee held eight meetings during 2007.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with management the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2007 (the “Audited Financial Statements™), management’s
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, and the independent
auditors’ evaluvation of the Company’s system of internal control over financial reporting. In addition, the Audit
Committee has discussed with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, who reported directly to the Audit Committee, the
matters required by Statement on Auditing Standards Nos. 61 and 90 (Communication with Audit Committees).

The Audit Committee also has discussed with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP its independence from the
Company, including the matters contained in the written disclosures and letter required by Independence
Standards Board Standard No. | (Independence Discussions with Audit Committees). The Audit Committee also
has discussed with management of the Company and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP such other matters and
received such assurances from them as it deemed appropriate. The Audit Committee considered whether the
rendering of non-audit services by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to the Company is compatible with maintaining
the independence of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP from the Company.

Following the foregoing review and discussions, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of
Directors that the Audited Financial Statements be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2007 for filing with the SEC.

The Audit Committee

John K. Wulff, Chairman
Basil L.. Anderson
Robert R. Glauber

Ewald Kist

Connie Mack

Henry A. McKinnell, Ir.
Nancy §. Newcomb

THE GOVYERNANCE AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The role of the Governance and Compensation Committee is to identify and evaluate possible candidates to
serve on the Board and to recommend director nominees for approval by the Board and the Company’s
stockholders. The Governance and Compensation Committee also considers and makes recommendations to the
Board of Directors concerning the size, structure, composition and functioning of the Board and its committees,
oversees the evaluation of the Board, and develops and reviews the Company’s Corporate Governance
Principles.

The Governance and Compensation Committee oversees the Company’s overall compensation structure,
policies and programs, and assesses whether the Company’s compensation structure establishes appropriate
incentives for management and employees. The Committee also oversees the evaluation of senior management
(including by reviewing and approving performance goals for the Company’s executive officers, including the
CEQ, and by evaluating their performance) and oversees, and makes recommendations to the Board regarding,
compensation arrangements for the CEO and for certain other executive officers. The CEO makes
recommendations to the Committee regarding the amount and form of executive compensation. For a description
of this process, see “Base Salary,” “Annual Cash Incentive Awards” and “Long-Term Equity Incentive
Compensation” in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis on page 18. The Committee annually reviews the
compensation of directors for service on the Board and its committees and recommends changes in compensation
to the Board. The Committee administers and makes recommendations to the Board with respect to the
Company’s incentive compensation and equity-based compensation plans that are subject to Board approval,
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including the Company’s key employees’ stock incentive plans. The Committee is empowered to retain, at the
Company’s expense, such consultants, counsel or other outside advisors as it determines appropriate to assist it in
the performance of its functions. In 2007, to assist in the development of targeted compensation levels, the
Committee retained a compensation consultant, Johnson & Associates, which specializes in working with
financial services companies. The consultant reported directly and exclusively to the Committee and provided
analysis and recommendations with regard to design, amount and terms of cash, equity and benefits for executive
and director compensation at Moody’s. It also provided analysis regarding external benchmarking and general
trends in financial services compensation. This consultant performed no other work for the Company. For 2008,
the Committee retained Hewitt Associates 1o act as its compensation consultant and provide services generally
similar in nature to those provided by the former consultant. Hewitt Associates reports directly and exclusively to
the Committee. All work performed by compensation consultants must be approved by the Committee. The
Committee makes the final decisions regarding named executive officer compensation.

The members of the Governance and Compensation Committee are Dr. McKinnell (Chairman),
Mr. Anderson, Mr. Glauber, Mr. Kist, Senator Mack, Ms. Newcomb and Mr. Wulff, each of whom is
independent under NYSE rules and under the Company’s Corporate Governance Principles.

The Governance and Compensation Committee met six times during 2007,

REPORT OF THE GOVERNANCE AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Governance and Compensation Committee, which is composed solely of independent members of the
Board of Directors, assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility relating to, among other things,
establishing and reviewing compensation of the Company’s executive officers. In this context, the Governance
and Compensation Commitiee reviewed and discussed with management the Company’s Compensation
Discussion and Analysis. Following the reviews and discussions referred to above, the Governance and
Compensation Committee recommended to the Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be
included in this proxy statement.

The Governance and Compensation Committee

Henry A. McKinnell, Jr., Chairman
Basil L.. Anderson

Robert R. Glauber

Ewald Kist

Connie Mack

Nancy S. Newcomb

John K. Wulff




CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The Governance and Compensation Committee is charged with monitoring and reviewing issues involving

potential conflicts of interest, and reviewing and approving all related party transactions. Special rules apply to
executive officers and directors who engage in conduct that creates an actual, apparent or potential conflict of
interest. Before engaging in such conduct, such executive officers and directors must make full disclosure of all
the facts and circumstances to the general counsel and Chairman of the Governance and Compensation
Committee, and obtain the prior written approval of the Board of Directors. All conduct is reviewed in a manner
s0 as to (i) maintain the Company’s credibility in the market, (ii} maintain the independence of the Company’s
employees and (iii) ensure that all business decisions are made solely on the basis of the best interests of the
Company and not for personal benefit. These procedures are addressed in the Company’s Code of Business
Conduct. The categories of persons covered by the Company’s conflict of interest policy include any director,
executive officer, any nominee for director, any immediate family member of a director, executive officer, or any
nominee for director, and any person owning 5% or more of the Company’s commeon stock.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

The following table sets forth, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, the total compensation of the

non-management members of the Company’s Board of Directors.

| Change in
Pension Value
| Fees and
Earned Non-Equity Nonqualified
or Paid in Stock Option  Incentive Plan Deferred All Other
| Cash Awards Award Compensation Compensation Compensation Total
Name Year ($)1) ($)(2) %) () Earnings ($) ($)(3) (%)
Basil L. Anderson ........ 2007 375000  $109,307 — — — — $184,307
Robert R. Glauber ........ 2007 75,000 104,305 — — — — 179,305
EwaldKist.............. 2007 95,000 103,055 — — — — 198,055
ConnieMack ............ 2007 75,000 104,305 — — — —_ 179,305
Henry A. McKinnell, Jr, ... 2007 95,000 104,305 — — — — 199,305
Nancy S. Newcomb ...... 2007 75,000 99,025 - — —_ — 174,025

John K. Wulff ........... 2007 95,000 109,307 — — — -— 204,307

()

2)

In 2007, the Company's non-employee directors received an annual cash retainer of $75,000, payable in
quarterly installments, The Chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Governance and Compensation
Committee, and the International Business Development Committee received an additional annual cash fee
of $20,000, also payable in quarterly installments, There were no separate meeting fees paid in 2007,

A non-employee director may elect to defer receipt of ali or a portion of his annual cash retainer until after
termination of service on the Company’s Board of Directors. Deferred amounts are credited to an account
and receive the rate of return earned by one or more investment options in the Moody’s Corporation Profit
Participation Plan as selected by the director. Upon a change in control of the Company, a lump sum
payment will be made to each director of the amount credited to the director’s deferred account on the date
of the change in control, and the total amount credited to each director’s deferred account from the date of
the change in control until the date such director ceases to be a director will be paid in a lump sum at that
time. In addition, any notice by a director to change or terminate an election to defer his annual retainer
given on or before the date of the change in control will be effective as of the date of the change in control
rather than the end of the calendar year.

On February 12, 2007, each non-employee director received a restricted stock award issued from the 1998
Moody’s Corporation Non-Employee Directors” Stock Incentive Plan (the “1998 Directors Plan”), The
Governance and Compensation Committee authorized the grant of restricted stock awards for 2007 on
December 12, 2006, to be effective on the third trading day following the date of the February 7, 2007
public dissemination of the Company’s financial results for 2007.

The amounts reported in the Stock Awards column represent the portion of the grant date fair value of the
restricted stock awards made to the non-employee directors during 2007 and in prior years that was
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recognized as expense for financial reporting purposes during 2007 in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004} “Share based Payment” (FAS 123(R)), excluding,
in the case of service-based awards, estimates for forfeitures. The grant date fair value for the restricted
stock awards is based on the arithmetic mean of the high and low market price of the Company’s Common
Stock on the grant date. Because the restricted stock awards carry dividend equivalent rights, no
assumptions were used in valuing these awards under SFAS 123R. The actual amount that will be realized
at the time an award vests will depend upon the market price of the Company’s Common Stock at the
vesting date.

The grant date fair value of the restricted stock awards granted in 2007 was $115,000, computed in
accordance with FAS 123(R). These awards vest in three equal annual installments beginning on the first
anniversary of the date of grant.

The aggregate number of stock awards outstanding as of December 31, 2007 for each of the Company’s
non-employee directors was as follows:

Number of
Number of Shares Shares of Unvested
Name Underlying Options Restricted Stock
Basil L. Anderson ...ttt 0 3438
RobertR.Glauber ...... .. ... i ieeas 18,000 3,438
Ewald Kist .. ... ... i e s 0 3,438
Connie Mack . ... ... i e 18,000 3438
Henry A. McKinnell, Jr. ... oo 52,000 3,438
Nancy S.Newcomb . ... ...t it 0 3371
John K. Wulff ... e 0 3,438

(3) Perquisites and other personal benefits provided to each of the Company’s non-employee directors in 2007
were, in the aggregate, less than $10,000 per director. Each non-employee director is reimbursed for travel,
meals, and hotel expenses incurred in connection with attending meetings of the Company’s Board of
Directors or its committees, which are generally held at the Company’s executive office. For those
meetings, the Company pays for travel for each non-employee director and one guest of each director, as
well as for their accommodations, meals, Company-arranged activities, and other incidental expenses.

ITEM 1—ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has nominated Robert R. Glauber, Connie Mack, and Nancy S. Newcomb for
re-election as Class I directors, each for a three-year term expiring in 2011, If elected, each nominee will hold
office until his term expires and until a successor is elected and qualified. All three nominees are currently
members of the Board of Directors. The Company expects each nominee for election as a director to be able to
serve if elected. If any nominee is unable to serve, proxies will be voted for the election of such other person for
director as management may recommend in the place of such nominee.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the election as directors of each of the Class 1
nominees listed below.

The principal occupation and certain other information (including age as of the date of this Proxy Statement)
about the nominees and other directors of the Company whose terms of office continue after the Annual Meeting
are set forth below.

Nominees For Class I Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2011

Robert R. Glauber
Director since June 1998

Robert R. Glauber, age 69, is a member of the Audit and Governance and Compensation Committees of the
Board of Directors. Mr. Glauber has served as an adjunct lecturer at the John F. Kennedy School of Government
at Harvard University since July 2007 and as a senior advisor for Peter J. Solemon Company since November
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2006. Mr. Glauber served as a visiting professor at Harvard Law School from September 2006 to June 2007.

Mr. Glauber served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of NASD from September 2001 to August 2006.
From November 2000 to September 2001, Mr. Glauber served as President and Chief Executive Officer of
NASD. From 1992 to October 2000, Mr. Glauber was an adjunct lecturer at the Center for Business and
Government at the Kennedy School at Harvard University. From 1989 to 1992, Mr. Glauber served as Under
Secretary of the Treasury for Finance. Prior to that, he was a professor of finance at the Harvard Business School
from 1964. Mr. Glauber is also a director of Freddie Mac, Quadra REIT and XL Capital Lid.

Connie Mack
Director since December 2001

Connie Mack, age 67, is a member of the Audit and Governance and Compensation Committees of the
Board of Directors. Senator Mack has served as a senior policy advisor at the law firm King & Spalding LLP
since February 2005 and served as a senior policy advisor at the law firm Shaw Pittman, LLP from February
2001 to February 2005. He was a United States Senator (R-FL) from 1989 to January 2001. While in the Senate,
Senator Mack was the Republican Conference Chairman from 1997 to 2001, Chairman of the Joint Economic
Committee from 1995 to 1997 and 199910 2001, and a member of the Senate Finance and Senate Banking,
Housing and Urban Affairs committees. Senator Mack was Chairman of the President’s Advisory Panel on
Federal Tax Reform and is also a director of Darden Restaurants, EXACT Sciences Corporation, Genzyme
Corporation, Spirit Aerosystems, Mutual of America Life Insurance Company, and the Chairman of the H. Lee
Moffitt Cancer Center.

Nancy S. Newcomb
Director since February 2005

Nancy S. Newcomb, age 62, is a member of the Audit and Governance and Compensation Committees of
the Board of Directors. Ms. Newcomb served as senior corporate officer, risk management, of Citigroup, a
financial services company, from May 1998 to April 2004. She served as a customer group executive of Citicorp
(the predecessor corporation) from December 1995 to April 1998, and as a division executive, Latin America
from September 1993 to December 1995. From January 1988 to August 1993, she was the principal financial
officer, responsible for liquidity, funding and capital management. Ms. Newcomb is also a director of The
DIRECTYV Group, Inc. and SYSCO Corporation.

CONTINUING DIRECTORS
Class II Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2009

Ewaid Kist
Director since July 2004

Ewald Kist, age 64, is Chairman of the International Business Development Committee and is a member of
the Audit and Governance and Compensation Committees of the Board of Directors. Mr. Kist was Chairman of
ING Groep N.V (“ING Group™), a financial services company, from 2000 to his retirement in June 2004. Before
serving as Chairman of ING Group, Mr. Kist was Vice Chairman from 1999 to 2000 and served as a member of
the Executive Board from 1993 to 1999, Prior to the merger of Nationale Nederlanden and NMB Postbank Group
to form ING Group in 1992, Mr. Kist served in a variety of capacities at Nationale Nederlanden beginning in
1969, including Chairman from 1991 to 1992, General Management — the Netherlands from 1989 to 1991 and
President Nationale Nederlanden US Corporation from 1986 to 1989. Mr. Kist is also a director of The DSM
Corporation, Royal Philips Electronics, the Dutch National Bank and Stage Entertainment.

Henry A. McKinnell, Jr., Ph.D.
Director since Qctober 1997

Henry A. McKinnell, Jr., age 65, is Chairman of the Governance and Compensation Commiitee, is a
member of the Audit Committee and serves as the Lead Independent Director of the Board of Directors.
Dr. McKinnell served as Chairman of the Board of Pfizer Inc. from May 2001 to December 2006 and Chief
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Executive Officer from January 2001 to July 2006. He served as President of Pfizer Inc. from May 1999 to May
2001, and as President of Pfizer Pharmaceuticals Group from January 1997 to April 2001, Dr. McKinnell served
as Chief Operating Officer of Pfizer Inc. from May 1999 to December, 2000, and as Executive Vice President
from 1992 10 1999. Dr. McKinnell is also Chairman of the Board of the Academic Alliance Foundation and is
Chairman of the Connecticut Science Center.

John K. Wulff
Director since April 2004

John K. Wulff, age 59, is Chairman of the Audit Committee and is a member of the Govemnance and
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. Mr. Wulff has served as Non-Executive Chairman of the
board of Hercules Incorporated, a manufacturer and supplier of specialty chemical products, since December
2003. Mr. Wulff was first elected as a director of Hercules in July 2003, and served as interim Chairman from
October 2003 to December 2003. Mr, Wulff served as a member of the Financial Accounting Standards Board
from July 2001 until June 2003. From January 1996 until March 2001, Mr. Wulff was Chief Financial Officer of
Union Carbide Corporation. During his 14 years with Union Carbide, Mr. Wulff also served as Vice President
and Principal Accounting Officer from January 1989 to December 1995, and Controller from July 1987 to
January 1989. From April 1977 until June 1987, Mr. Wulff was a partner with KPMG and predecessor firms
(accounting and consulting firms). In addition to serving on the board of Hercules, Mr. Wulff is a director of
Celanese Corporation, Fannie Mae and Sunoco, Inc. ‘

Class II1 Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2010

Basil L. Anderson
Director since April 2004

Basil L. Anderson, age 62, is a member of the Audit and Governance and Compensation Committees of the
Board of Directors. Mr. Anderson served as Vice Chairman of Staples, Inc., an office products company, from
September 2001 until his retirement in March 2006. Before joining Staples, Mr. Anderson served as Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Campbell Soup Company from April 1996 to February 2001. Prior
to joining Campbell Soup, Mr. Anderson was with Scott Paper Company where he served in a variety of
capacities beginning in 1975, including Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from December 1993 to
December 1995. Mr. Anderson is also a director of Staples, Inc., Becton Dickinson, CRA International Inc. and
Hasbro, Inc.

Raymond W. McDaniel, Jr.
Director since April 2003

Raymond W. McDaniel, Ir., age 50, has served as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since April 2005 and serves on the International Business Development Committee of the Board of
Directors. Mr. McDaniel served as the Company’s President from October 2004 until April 2005 and the
Company’s Chief Operating Officer from January 2004 until April 2005. He served as President of Moody’s
Investors Service from November 2001 to August 2007. Mr. McDanie! served as the Company’s Executive Vice
President from April 2003 to January 2004, and as Senior Vice President, Global Ratings and Research from
November 2000 until April 2003. He served as Senior Managing Director, Global Ratings and Research, of
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. from November 2000 until November 2001 and as Managing Director,
International from 1996 to November 2000. Mr. McDaniel is also a director of John Wiley & Sons, Inc.
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ITEM 2—RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

As part of the Audit Committee's oversight of the Company’s independent registered public accountants,
the Committee conducted a competitive process to review the selection of the Company’s independent registered
public accounting firm. Based on the results of that process, the Audit Committee appointed KPMG LLP as our
independent registered public accounting firm to audit the consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ending December 31, 2008 and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was dismissed on February 28, 2008,

The reports of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP on the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the
fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 did not contain an adverse opinion or a disclaimer of opinion
and were not qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope, or accounting principles. In connection with the
audits of the Company’s financial statements for each of the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 and
through February 28, 2008, there were no disagreements between the Company and PricewaterhouseCoopers on
any maiters of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure,
which disagreements, if not resolved to the satisfaction of PricewaterhouseCoopers, would have caused
PricewaterhouseCoopers to make reference to the matter in their reports on the financial statements of the
Company for such years. During the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, and through February 28,
2008, there have been no “reportable events” as such term is defined in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K.
Services provided to the Company by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in 2007 included the audit of the
consolidated financial statements, audits of management’s assessment of the effecliveness of internal control
over financial reporting and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, limited reviews of
quarterly financial statements, empioyee benefit plan audits, consultations on various accounting matters and
statutory audits of non-U.S. subsidiaries,

As a matter of good corporate governance, the Audit Committee has requested the Board of Directors to
submit the selection of KPMG LLP to stockholders for ratification. If the appointment of KPMG LLP is not
ratified by stockholders, the Audit Committee will re-evaluate its selection and will determine whether to
maintain KPMG LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm or to appoint another
independent registered public accounting firm. If prior to the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, KPMG LLP
ceases to act as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm or if the Audit Committee removes
KPMG LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, then the Audit Committee will
appoint another independent registered public accounting firm. A representative of KPMG LLP is expected to be
present at the Annual Meeting. Such representative will have the opportunity to make a statement if he so desires
and is expected to be available to respond to appropriate questions.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as the
Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Audit Fees

The aggregate fees for professional services rendered for the integrated audit of the Company’s annual
financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, for the review of the financial statements
included in the Company’s Reports on Forms 10-Q and 8-K, and for statutory audits of non-U.S. subsidiaries
were approximately $2.6 million in 2007 (including $0.2 million accrued but not billed) and $2.1 million in 2006
(including $0.3 million accrued but not billed). All such fees were attributable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
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Audit-Related Fees

The aggregate fees billed for audit-related services rendered to the Company by PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP were approximately $0.1 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. Such services
included employee benefit plan audits and consultations concerning financial accounting and reporting standards.

Tax Fees

The aggregate fees for professional services rendered for tax services, principally related to tax consulting
and compliance matters, rendered to the Company by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $0 and approximately $5,000, respectively.

All Other Fees

The aggregate fees billed for all other services rendered, principally related to accounting research software,
to the Company by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 were
approximately $6,000 and $4,000, respectively.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The table below sets forth the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned as of December 31,
2007 by (i) each person who is known to the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the
outstanding shares of Common Stock (the “Company’s 5% Owners™), (ii) each director and nominee for director
of the Company, (iii) each named executive officer listed in the Summary Compensation Table below (the
“Named Executive Officers™), and (iv) all directors and executive officers of the Company as a group. Stock
ownership information is based on (a) the number of shares of Common Stock held by directors and executive
officers as of December 31, 2007 (in accordance with information supplied to the Company by them), and (b) the
number of shares of Common Stock held by the Company’s 5% Owners, based on information filed with the
SEC by the Company’s 5% Owners. Unless otherwise indicated and except for the interests of individuals’
spouses, the stockholders listed below have sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares indicated
as owned by them. Percentages are based upon the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding on
December 31, 2007, and, where applicable, the number of shares of Common Stock that the indicated person or
group had a right to acquire within 60 days of such date. The table also sets forth ownership information
concerning “Stock Units,” the value of which is measured by the price of the Common Stock. Stock Units do not
confer voting rights and are not considered “beneficially owned” shares under SEC rules.

Aggregate Amount of Percentage of
Shares Beneficially Shares
Name QOwned(1) w M_mn_g
MarkE. Almeida ........................ 323,175(3) 0 *
BasilL. Anderson ................ .00 7,682 3,725 *
Brian M. Clarkson ....................... 278,526 0 *
Jeanne M. Dering ............ ..ot 528,578(4) 0 *
Robert R.Glauber ....................... 33,900 1,578 *
JohnJ.Goggins ......................... 257,106 0 *
LindaS.Huber .......................... 116,284 0 *
EwaldKist .......... ... .o, 6,931 1] *
ConnieMack .......... .. cciviviennan.. 24,175(5) 0 *
Raymond W. McDaniel ................... 1,343,788(6) 0 *
Henry A, McKinnell, Jr. ............... ... 82,352 1,581 *
Nancy 8. Newcomb ...................... 5,365 0 ¥
John K. Wulff ......... ... ... ........ 14,682 6,159 *
All current directors and executive officers as a
group (16 persons) ................ouuun 3,127,055 13,043 1.24%
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Aggregate Amount of Percentage of

Shares Beneficially Shares

Name Owned Stock Units Outstanding
Berkshire Hathaway,Inc. ........................... 48,000,000(7)8) 0 19.09%

Warren E. Buffett, OBH, Inc., GEICC Corporation,

Government Employees Insurance Company and

National Indemnity Company

1440 Kiewit Plaza

Omaha, Nebraska 68131
Davis Selected Advisers, L.P. ........ ... .o ... 18,547,115(9) 0 7.38%

2949 East Alvira Road, Suite 101

Tucson, Arizona 85706
Sands Capital Management, LLC ..................... ~14,073,516(10) 0 5.60%

(1)

(2}

{(3)
4

(3
(6)
0]

8

9

(10)

1101 Wilson Blvd. Suite 2300
Arlington, VA 22209

Represents less than 1% of the outstanding Common Stock.

Includes the maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be acquired within 60 days of
December 31, 2007, upon the exercise of vested stock options as follows: Mr. Almeida—244,764;

Mr. Anderson—0; Mr. Clarkson—209,475; Ms. Dering—468.250; Mr. Glauber—18,000; Mr. Goggins—
225,413; Ms. Huber—83,625; Mr. Kist—0; Senator Mack—18,000; Mr. McDaniel—1,205,648;

Dr. McKinnell—52,000; Ms. Newcomb—0; and Mr. Wulff—0; and all current directors and executive
officers as a group—2,606,550. Also includes the following shares of restricted stock over which the
named executive officers and directors had voting (but not dispositive) power as of December 31, 2007:
Mr. Almeida—13,389; Mr. Anderson—3,438; Mr. Clarkson—28,273; Ms. Dering—18,737;

Mr. Glauber—3,438; Mr. Goggins—14,006; Ms. Huber—25,236; Mr. Kist—3,438; Senator Mack—3,438;
Mr. McDaniel—60,783; Dr. McKinnell—3,438; Ms. Newcomb—3,371; and Mr. Wulff—3,438; and all
current directors and executive officers as a group—199,783.

Consists of stock units (payable to non-employee directors after retirement), the value of which is
measured by the price of the Common Stock, received under various non-employee director compensation
arrangements of the Company and its predecessor. These units do not confer voting rights and are not
considered “beneficially owned” shares of Common Stock under SEC rules. Additional stock units accrue
over time to refiect the deemed reinvestment of dividends.

This amount includes 1,000 shares of Common Stock owned by the estate of Patricia M. Almeida.

This amount includes 7,860 shares of Common Stock owned by Ms. Dering’s spouse as well as 4,358
shares held by Ms. Dering’s spouse pursuant to a 401(k) plan.

This amount includes 484 shares of Common Stock owned by the Priscilla Mack Trust.

This amount includes 2,000 shares of Common Stock owned by Mr. McDaniel’s spouse.

As set forth in the Schedule 13G jointly filed with the SEC by Warren E. Buffett, Berkshire Hathaway Inc.,
OBH, Inc., GEICO Corporation, Government Employees Insurance Company and National Indemnity
Company, (a) each of Mr. Buffett, Berkshire Hathaway Inc., OBH, Inc. and National Indemnity Company
had shared voting power and shared dispositive power with respect to all of the 24,000,000 shares reported
in such Schedule 13G and (b) each of GEICO Corporatien and Government Employees Insurance
Company had shared voting power and shared dispositive power with respect to 7,859,700 of such
24,000,000 shares. The number of shares beneficially owned as set forth in the tabie above has been
adjusted to 48,000,000 for the May 18, 2005 stock split.

This address is listed in the Schedule 13G as the address of each of Mr. Buffett, Berkshire Hathaway Inc.
and OBH, Inc. The address of National Indemnity Company is listed as 3024 Harney Street, Omaha,
Nebraska 68131, and the address of each of GEICO Corporation and Government Employees Insurance
Company is listed as 1 GEICO Plaza, Washington, D.C. 20076.

A Schedule 13G/A filed by Davis Selected Advisers, L.P. (“Davis") with the SEC on February 13, 2008
reported that Davis, a registered investment adviser, had sole voting power with respect to 17,435,129 of
such 18,547,115 shares.

A Schedule 13G filed by Sands Capital Management, LLC (“SCM”) with the SEC on February 14, 2008
reported that SCM had sole voting power with respect to 8,350,075 of such 14,073,516 shares.
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Stock Ownership Guidelines

In February 2008, the Board of Directors confirmed the stock ownership guidelines for non-employee
directors and executives of the Company and its subsidiary, Moody’s Investors Service, and established stock
ownership guidelines for its newly formed subsidiary, Moody’s Analytics. Each non-employee director and
executive has five years to comply with those guidelines. The ownership requirements for the Company are five
times base salary for the CEO, three times base salary for the remaining executives, and five times the annuat
cash retainer for non-employee directors. Restricted shares and shares owned by immediate family members or -
through qualified Company savings and retirement plans may be used to satisfy the ownership requirements.

Section 16{a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™), requires the
Company’s directors and executive officers and persons who beneficially own more than 10% of a registered
class of the Company’s equity securities to file with the SEC reports on Forms 3, 4 and 5 concerning their
ownership of and transactions in the Common Stock and other equity securities of the Company. As a practical
matter, the Company seeks to assist its directors and executives by monitoring transactions and completing and
filing reports on their behalf.

Based solely on the Company’s review of copies of such reports furnished to the Company and written
representations that no other reports are required, the Company believes that all of its officers and directors and
those greater-than-10% stockholders that filed any reports filed all of such reports on a timely basis during the
year ended December 31, 2007, with the exception of one late filing by Mr. Almeida with respect to 1,000 shares
held in his mother’s estate for which he serves as trustee. This was subsequently reported on a Form 3/A.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The table below sets forth, as of December 31, 2007, certain information regarding the Company’s equity
compensation plans.

Number of
Securities to be Weighted-
Issued Uponr  Average Exercise Number of Securities
Exercise of Price of Remaining Available for
Outstanding QOutstanding Future Issuance Under
Options, Options, Equity Compensation Plans
Warrants and Warrants and (excluding Securities
Plan Category Rights Rights Reflected in Column (a))
) (a) (b) ‘ (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders . . ... i e 18,618,999(1) $37.43 18,414,328(2)
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders . ..o e 0 — 0
Total ... e s 18,618,999 $37.43 18,414,328

(1) Includes 9,827,511 options outstanding under the Company's 2001 Key Employees’ Stock Incentive Plan,
8,599,488 options outstanding under the Company’s 1998 Key Employees’ Stock Incentive Plan, and
192,000 options outstanding under the 1998 Non-Employee Directors” Stock Incentive Plan. No option
grants remain outstanding from the Dun & Bradstreet Corporation’s 1996 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock
Incentive Plan, which was terminated in July 1998, or under the Dun & Bradstreet Corporation’s 1991 Key

. Employees’ Stock Incentive Plan, which expired by its terms in February 2001.

(2) Includes 13,968,964 shares and 317,064 shares available for issuance as options, stock appreciation rights or
other stock-based awards under the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan and 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, respectively,
258,635 shares available for issuance as options, shares of restricted stock or performance shares under the
1998 Directors Plan, and 3,869,665 shares available for issuance under the Company’s Employee Stock
Purchase Plan. No new grants may be made under the 1996 Directors Plan, which was terminated in July.
1998, or under the 1991 Option Plan, which expired by its terms in February.2001.
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Based on the Committee’s analysis of the above, and consideration of a recommendation from
Mr. McDaniel (other than with respect to his own compensation), the Committee annually reviews and
establishes a targeted total compensation level for each Named Executive Officer.

Because actual compensation payouts are based on achieved performance of the Company and individual
objectives, amounts paid may be above or below the target ranges. Details regarding actual payouts for 2007 are
described below in “Total 2007 Actual Compensation Payouts.”

Components of Moody’s Executive Compensation Program
Moody’s executive compensation program consists of three primary components:
+ Base salary
* An annual cash incentive award opportunity; and

* Long-term equity incentive compensation.

Moody’s philosophy is to slightly overweight base salary, underweight the annual cash incentive award
opportunity, and overweight long-term equity incentive compensation in relation to the proportion at peer group
companies. Moody’s believes that this allocation is appropriate for the Named Executive Officers given the need
to balance the two critical objectives of the executive compensation program: first, the need to attract, retain and
motivate individuals capable of and committed to performing at a consistently high level; and second, the desire
to encourage the achievement of Moody’s near-term and longer-term financial objectives. Thus, decisions made
when setting one element of compensation impacts decisions made with regard to other elements.

In determining the proper weighting of each element of compensation, the Company reviews data from its
peer group and the broader financial services market data provided by its compensation consultant. Although
each of these companies has a different compensation structure, those in the peer group in 2006 provided their
senior management with annual cash compensation of approximately 30 to 70 percent and long-term
compensation of approximately 30 to 70 percent of total compensation. Those in the broader financial services
industry group in 2007 targeted cash compensation for senior management of approximately 40 to 70 percent of
total compensation, and long-term compensation of approximately 30 to 60 percent of total compensation.

In recent years the Company has provided its Named Executive Officers with actual cash compensation
(base salary and annual cash incentive awards) of between 35 percent and 40 percent of total compensation and
equity compensation of between 60 percent and 65 percent of total compensation. In 2007 specifically, for the
Named Executive Officers, total target cash compensation was between 30 to 45 percent of the total
compensation for each executive and target long-term compensation {(which for Moody’s was 100 percent
comprised of equity grants) accounted for 55 to 70 percent of the total compensation. In the case of 2007 total
compensation, the grant date fair value of the equity awards made to the Named Executive Officers during 2007
is reported in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table on page 33.

In 2007, elements of compensation were not weighted significantly differently among executives. The
Committee did not consider the current value of previous compensation awards when determining target or
actual awards for 2007. Instead, annual awards were determined by considering 2007 performance as well as
expectations for the future. Awards have not been based upon the value of an officer’s existing equity holdings.
Moody’s believes that this mix remains consisient with the Company’s compensation philosophy and is aligned
with long-term shareholder interests.

Compensation of Chief Executive Officer. The same compensation policies are applied to the
determination of the chief executive officer’s compensation. The Committee begins its analysis of total
compensation for the chief executive officer by analyzing the compensation of executive officers with similar
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Stock Ownership Guidelines

In February 2008, the Board of Directors confirmed the stock ownership guidelines for non-employee
directors and executives of the Company and its subsidiary, Moody's Investors Service, and established stock
ownership guidelines for its newly formed subsidiary, Moody's Analytics. Each non-employee director and
executive has five years to comply with those guidelines. The ownership requirements for the Company are five
times base salary for the CEQ, three times base salary for the remaining executives, and five times the annual
cash retainer for non-employee directors. Restricted shares and shares owned by immediate family members or
through qualified Company savings and retirement plans may be used to satisfy the ownership requirements.

Section 16{a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), requires the
Company’s directors and executive officers and persons who beneficially own more than 10% of a registered
class of the Company’s equity securities to file with the SEC reports on Forms 3, 4 and 5 concerning their
ownership of and transactions in the Common Stock and other equity securities of the Company. As a practical
matter, the Company seeks to assist its directors and executives by monitoring transactions and completing and
filing reports on their behalf.

Based solely on the Company’s review of copies of such reports furnished to the Company and written
representations that no other reports are required, the Company believes that all of its officers and directors and
those greater-than-10% stockholders that filed any reports filed all of such reports on a timely basis during the
year ended December 31, 2007, with the exception of one late filing by Mr. Almeida with respect to 1,000 shares
held in his mother’s estate for which he serves as trustee. This was subsequently reported on a Form 3/A,

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The table below sets forth, as of December 31, 2007, certain information regarding the Company's equity
compensation plans.

Number of
Securities to be Weighted-
Issued Upon  Average Exercise Number of Securities
Exercise of Price of Remaining Available for
QOutstanding Outstanding Future Issuance Under
Options, Options, Equity Compensation Plans
Warrants and Warrants and (excluding Securities
Plan Category Rights Rights Reflected in Column (a))
(a) (b) ()
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders . .. ... ... .. 18,618,999(1) $37.43 18,414,328(2)
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders ...... ... ... i 0 —_— 0
Total ... ..ot 18,618,999 $37.43 18,414,328

(1) Includes 9,827,511 options outstanding under the Company’s 2001 Key Employees’ Stock Incentive Plan,
8,599,488 options outstanding under the Company’s 1998 Key Employees’ Stock Incentive Plan, and
192,000 options outstanding under the 1998 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Incentive Plan, No option
grants remain outstanding from the Dun & Bradstreet Corporation’s 1996 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock
Incentive Plan, which was terminated in July 1998, or under the Dun & Bradstreet Corporation’s 1991 Key
Employees’ Stock Incentive Plan, which expired by its terms in February 2001.

(2) Includes 13,968,964 shares and 317,064 shares available for issuance as options, stock appreciation rights or
other stock-based awards under the 200! Stock Incentive Plan and 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, respectively,
258,635 shares available for issuance as options, shares of restricted stock or performance shares under the
1998 Directors Plan, and 3,869,665 shares available for issuance under the Company’s Employee Stock
Purchase Plan. No new grants may be made under the 1996 Directors Plan, which was terminated in July
1998, or under the 1991 Option Plan, which expired by its terms in February 2001.
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COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Moody’s long-term success is dependent on a leadership team with the integrity, skills, and dedication
necessary to oversee a global organization on a day-to-day basis that is capable of reacting to market changes and
meeting the challenges of the current financial environment. In addition, the leadership must have the vision to
anticipate and respond to future market developments, Moody’s executive compensation program is designed to
enable the Company (o attract, motivate and retain a senior management team with the collective and individual
abilities to meet these challenges. The program’s primary objective is to align executives’ efforts with the long-
term interests of shareholders by enhancing the Company’s reputation, financial success and relevance to the
capital markets.

General Executive Compensation Philosophy

Moody’s compensales its executives, including the Named Executive Officers, through a combination of
base salary, annual cash incentive awards, long-lerm equity incentive compensation and related benefits. These
components are designed, in aggregate, to be competitive with comparable organizations and to align the
financial incentives for the executives with the short and long-term interests of shareholders. Moody’s executive
compensation program is designed to:

« align executives’ rewards with increases in the value of shareholders’ investments;

+ link a substantial part of each executive’s compensation to the achievement of the Company’s financial
and operating objectives and to the individual’s performance; and

* provide a competitive total compensation package that will assist in the retention of the Company’s
executives and motivate them to perform at a superior level.

The Governance and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Committee”) has
responsibility for oversight and design of the Company’s compensation program and has final authority for
evaluating and setting compensation for Named Executive Officers who are identified in the Summary
Compensation Table. Each year, the Committee approves financial and non-financial objectives for the Company
and the Named Executive Officers that are reflected in the Company’s incentive compensation plans. Moody’s
designs its annual cash incentive awards to reward company-wide performance by tying awards primarily to
operating income and, for certain Named Executive Officers, earnings per share. It ties awards under its long-
term incentive compensation plans primarily to total shareholder return. In addition, Moody’s also considers the
individual performance of each Named Executive Officer and other relevant criteria, such as the
accomplishments of the management team as a whole.

Targeted Total Compensation

Moody’s provides a targeted total compensation level which is structured around the amount payable if
Company and individual performance goals are fully met.

Peer Group and Financial Services Industry Analysis. To assist the Company in the development of
targeted compensation levels, for 2007 the Committee retained the services of a compensation consultant which
specializes in working with financial services companies. The consultant reported directly t¢ the Committee and
provided analysis and recommendations with regard to design, amount and terms of cash, equity and benefits for
executive and director compensation at Moody’s. It also provided analysis regarding external benchmarking and
general trends in financial services compensation. Initially, the consultant assisted the Committee in identifying a
group of relevant peer companies based on a review of financial services companies that are active in credit risk
anaiysis, company and industry credit research, business information services, and other similar services for the
investment community. Companies were then selected for the peer group based on common metrics which
include revenue, number of employees and market capitalization.
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Moody’s current peer group consists of:

XL Capital Ltd. Regions Financial Corporation Northern Trust Corporation Compass Bancshares Inc.
Suntrust Banks, Inc. MBIA Inc. First Horizon Bank Franklin Resources Inc.
Radian Group MGIC Investment Corp. Old Republic International Corp. E*TRADE Financial

Everest Re Group, Ltd. Ambac Financial Group T. Rowe Price Mellon Financial Corporation
Legg Mason M&T Bank The PMI Group, Inc. Bank of New York
BlackRock Inc. Branch Banking & Trust Co.  A.G. Edwards Raymond James

Assured Guaranty Financial Security Assurance Zions Bancorporation

Augmenting the peer group data was data regarding the broader financial services industry provided by the
compensation consultant.

Target Setting Process. The Committee begins its analysis by looking at the total compensation for
individuals in the Company’s peer group with positions comparable to the Named Executive Officers (CEO,
CFO and General Counsel) and the broader financial services industry. The offices held by the remaining top
paid executive officers of the Company's peer group were not similar in nature or scope to the remaining Named
Executive Officers, therefore, direct comparisons are not easily made. The Committee also benchmarks total cash
(base salary and bonus) against those groups. However, the Committee does not target individual elements of
compensation, such as base salary, nor does it benchmark any elements to a subset of its peer group. The peer
group information is reviewed in quartile ranges, in most cases generally targeting the 50 to 75th percentile, and
is typically on a one-year lagged basis as the compensation data is derived from the information that is available
through the preceding year’s proxy statement disclosures. The broader market data reflects information provided
by the compensation consultant regarding the 2007 targets of financial services industry companies and is not
one-year lagged.

In 2007, the targeted total compensation opportunity was between the 50 to 75th percentile as compared to
2006 comparable data for all Named Executive Officers and in comparison to 2007 financial services group data,
with the exception of one whose targeted total compensation was above the 75 percent threshold. Because this
executive resigned in 2007, details regarding her compensation are included below under “Severance
Agreements.” Targeted total cash (base salary and bonus) in 2007 was below the 50th perceatile for all
continuing Named Executive Officers as compared to the peer group and the financial services industry. The
targeted compensation of Ms. Dering, who is no longer with the Company, was between the 50 and 75th
percentile of both groups’ ranges.

These percentile ranges serve as but one of the reference points when establishing targeted total
compensation. Because of the unique nature of the Company’s business and the absence of a publicly traded
comparable company in Moody’s business, peer group and financial services industry data is not applied on a
strictly correlative basis. Instead, the Company takes a broader approach to these figures in order to allow for
flexibility based on actual yearly performance and market conditions.

Next, the Commiittee reviews each Named Executive Officer’s skills, experience, and performance during
the prior year. The performance factors considered, both when setting targets and when ultimately making payout
determinations, are described below under “Preliminary Determination and Discretionary Adjustments.”




Based on the Committee’s analysis of the above, and consideration of a recommendation from
Mr. McDaniel (other than with respect to his own compensation), the Committee annually reviews and
establishes a targeted total compensation level for each Named Executive Officer.

Because actual compensation payouts are based on achieved performance of the Company and individual
objectives, amounts paid may be above or below the target ranges. Details regarding actual payouts for 2007 are
described below in “Total 2007 Actual Compensation Payouts.”

Components of Moody’s Executive Compensation Program
Moody’s executive compensation program consists of three primary components:
= Base salary
* Anannual cash incentive award opportunity; and

* Long-term equity incentive compensation.

Moody’s philosophy is to slightly overweight base salary, underweight the annual cash incentive award
opportunity, and overweight long-term equity incentive compensation in relation to the proportion at peer group
companies. Moody’s believes that this allocation is appropriate for the Named Executive Officers given the need
to balance the two critical objectives of the executive compensation program: first, the need to attract, retain and
motivate individuals capable of and commitied to performing at a consistently high level; and second, the desire
to encourage the achievement of Moody’s near-term and longer-term financial objectives. Thus, decisions made
when setting one element of compensation impacts decisions made with regard to other elements.

In determining the proper weighting of each element of compensaticn, the Company reviews data from its
peer group and the broader financial services market data provided by its compensation consultant. Although
each of these companies has a different compensation structure, those in the peer group in 2006 provided their
senior management with annual cash compensation of approximately 30 to 70 percent and long-term
compensation of approximately 30 to 70 percent of total compensation. Those in the broader financial services
industry group in 2007 targeted cash compensation for senior management of approximately 40 to 70 percent of
total compensation, and long-term compensation of approximately 30 to 60 percent of total compensation.

In recent years the Company has provided its Named Executive Officers with actual cash compensation
(base salary and annual cash incentive awards}) of between 35 percent and 40 percent of total compensation and
equity compensation of between 60 percent and 65 percent of total compensation. In 2007 specifically, for the
Named Executive Officers, total target cash compensation was between 30 to 45 percent of the total
compensation for each executive and target long-term compensation {which for Moody’s was 100 percent
comprised of equity grants) accounted for 55 to 70 percent of the total compensation. In the case of 2007 total
compensation, the grant date fair value of the equity awards made to the Named Executive Officers during 2007
is reported in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table on page 33.

In 2007, elements of compensation were not weighted significantly differently among executives. The
Committee did not consider the current value of previous compensation awards when determining target or
actual awards for 2007, Instead, annual awards were determined by considering 2007 performance as well as
expectations for the future. Awards have not been based upon the value of an officer’s existing equity holdings.
Moody’s believes that this mix remains consistent with the Company’s compensation philosophy and is aligned
with long-term shareholder interests.

Compensation of Chief Executive Officer. The same compensation policies are applied to the
determination of the chief executive officer’s compensation. The Committee begins its analysis of total

compensation for the chief executive officer by analyzing the compensation of executive officers with similar
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positions at companies included in its peer group as well as in the broader market. The Company has determined
in the past that the chief executive officers of comparable companies generally are paid compensation that is
materially different in amount than that of other executive officers at such companies. Additionally, the
Committee takes into account the scope of the individual’s responsibilities, experience and prior performance,
and balances these factors against competitive market data for comparable positions when determining overall
compensation. Because the chief executive officer of the Company is responsible for the entire organization, and
is not only responsible for one area of operations of it, as is the case with the other Named Executive Officers,
the scope of his position led to a determination that a materially higher total compensation package was
warranted.

Base Salary

For executives, including the Named Executive Officers, base salary is intended to provide a level of
compensation for these individuals that is appropriate given their professional status, market value and
accomplishments. Each year, the Committee reviews the base salaries of Moody’s Named Executive Officers and
market information provided by the compensation consultant, to determine whether an adjustment is warranted.
For each individual, the Committee takes into account the scope of the individual’s responsibilities, experience
and prior performance, and balances these factors against competitive market data for comparable positions. In
evaluating each individual’s base salary, the Committee also considers internal equity with respect to the other
executives.

The base salaries paid to the Named Executive Officers during 2007 are reported in the Summary
Compensation Table on page 31.

Annual Cash Incentive Awards

Moody’s awards the Company’s executives, including the Named Executive Officers, annual cash
incentives based on performance against financial objectives specified at the beginning of the performance year,
and an evaluation of individual accomplishments during that year. The plan design, together with the size of the
annual cash incentive award opportunity, ensures that a significant portion of each Named Executive Officer’s
cash compensation is “at risk” and payable only when Moody’s shareholders have also benefited from their
efforts. In the case of the Named Executive Officers whose overall annual cash compensation may, in some
instances, exceed $1 million, an overall performance target is established to ensure that their award payouts that
are solely attributable to and dependent upon satisfaction of such performance target will be fully deductible
under the federal income tax laws.

Executive Performance Incentive Compensation Plan. Annual cash incentive awards are made under our
Executive Performance Incentive Compensation (“EPIC™) plan. EPIC funding is driven by the Company’s long-
term {*“normative”) growth targets. There is not a predetermined aggregate dollar amount of plan funding from
which Named Executive Officers are paid, nor is 2 maximum dollar amount assigned to potential awards.
Instead, bonus payments are funded by the Company’s percentage achievement against pre-set objectively
determinable targets.

Except as described in the following sentence, in 2007, the aggregate funding of the plan for executives,
including the Named Executive Officers, was based on the financial performance of the Company as against the
growth targets of 12.5 percent operating income growth and 15 percent eamnings-per-share growth (such
percentages are adjusted for one time events such as, for example, the impact of legacy tax matters that are
described in the filings made by the Company from time to time with the SEC). There was not an
earnings-per-share growth component in the funding for Messrs. Clarkson and Almeida’s awards. The
Committee selected earnings-per-share growth because of its direct relationship to enhancing the value of
shareholders’ investments. However, since earnings-per-share growth does not always correlate directly with
company operating performance, the Committee concluded that it was also important to include operating
income growth as an additional performance measure,
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Under EPIC, unfavorable variances in financial performance versus the growth targets can still result in
partial funding. For example, full funding occurs if the growth targets described above are achieved. However,
where the year’s growth reaches only cne-half or less of the targeted levels, the plan may still be funded at 50
percent, with individual incentive payments, if any, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors. This
feature is intended to provide sufficient flexibility to manage retention of key managers, particularly in slower
growth environments, but is not intended to provide equivalent downside protection to each manager irrespective
of performance. Operating income and earnings-per-share growth above the 50 percent level, but below the
growth targets, results in funding between 50 percent and 100 percent of target on a linear basis and continues
that way uncapped above 100 percent of target. In addition, the Committee may authorize supplemental funding
which may be used to make discretionary awards 10 individual employees, including the Named Executive
Officers.

For fiscal year 2008, the Company has modified aggregate funding for the plan to instead be based on
performance against budget for the Company and its two primary subsidiaries, Moody’s Analytics and Moody’s
Investors Service. The Company’s performance measurement will be based on a roll-up of operating company
results. The Commmittee has added a maximum funding level of 200 percent of the target if earnings per share
and/or operating income growth as a percentage is 12 percentage points or higher than budget. Furthermore, the
Committee removed the minimum funding level for 2008 and replaced it with threshold performance of earnings
per share and/or operating growth being no more than six percentage points below budget. In instances where
earnings per share or operating income growth are less than that level, no formulaic funding would occur,

Preliminary Determination and Discretionary Adjustments, As discussed above, each year, the Committee
establishes target award opportunities for each executive, including the Named Executive Officers, after
consideration of peer group data provided by the Committee’s consultant. At the end of the year, the chief
executive officer makes recommendations io the Committee as to the size of each award that should be paid. The
recommendation is not made solely by using a formula, Instead, starting from the baseline target, a preliminary
award payout amount is funded on the basis of each Named Executive Officer’s formulaic achievement relative
to their financial (quantitative) objectives. Then, the preliminary awards are subjected to potential negative
adjustment recommendations by the chief executive officer based on the degree of achievement of each
individual against their qualitative objectives. This negative adjustment recommendation is typically between 0
percent and 33.3 percent of the maximum award, although a significant failure to achieve qualitative objectives
may resuli in a negative adjustment larger than 33.3 percent. Positive adjustments may also be made; however, if
such adjustments result in compensation exceeding the target, in certain cases the award may not be deductible
under the federal income tax laws.

Non-financial objectives, which are used to determine the negative discretionary adjustments to the
preliminary awards, differ among executives as their positions face different challenges and involve different
strategic initiatives. Among the non-financial performance factors considered when evaluating compensation of
the Named Executive Officers is one’s contribution to the Company’s progress towards achievement of long-
term initiatives, satisfaction of job responsibilities, new product development, corporate development, pursuit of
internal synergies, international expansion, competitive differentiation, oversight of staff, attracting and
maintaining talented employees, management of regutatory and legal concerns, adapting to regulatory changes,
corperate planning, risk management, helping to maintain and suppert the Company’s values and culture, and
potential future contributions the executive will make to the growth of the Company. In addition to using these
factors to determine EPIC payments, the Committee also performs this same subjective non-formulaic evaluation
for determining all aspects of pay.

Mr. McDaniel presents his recommendations to the Committee. The Committee considers the proposed
payouts, solicits advice from the compensation consultant, as appropriate, and determines final payout amounts
for each Named Executive Officer. Adjustments made by the Committee are subjective and can be based
generally on a review of the circumstances affecting results to determine if any events were unusual or
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unforeseen. Because performance goals are multi-layered, downward adjustments are not made necessarily due
to the faiture to achieve any particular single goal, but instead reflect an overall assessment of the executive’s
work over the year.

The Committee’s adjustments can be greater or lesser than the chief executive officer’s recommendation
with respect to any individual. For 2007, the Committee made adjustments to the compensation
recemmendations with respect to each Named Executive Officer.

Award payouts are finalized at the Committee’s February meeting following the performance year in
question and based on the prior year’s performance, and actual payouts are made typically at the beginning of
March. Any discretionary payment to a Named Executive Officer in excess of the amount implied by a zero
percent negative discretion adjustment as described above will not constitute performance-based compensation
and may not be deductible to the Company to the extent that any such Named Executive Officer has
compensation, other than performance-based compensation, in excess of $1 million in any year.

The Committee uses a similar process to establish the award payout for Mr. McDaniel. First, Mr. McDaniel
conducts a self-assessment at the end of the year in much the same manner that he assesses the other Named
Executive Officers’ performance. His bonus is preliminarily funded on the basis of achievement relative to
objective quantitative measures of performance. He then puts forth a recommendation to the Committee
regarding the negative discretionary adjustment to his award. The Committee reviews his recommendation,
evaluates his performance and, with the assistance of and reliance on the compensation consultant, the
Committee determines the adjustment based on their own review of his performance as compared to the
non-financial objectives.

2007 Results. Moody’s confronted significant challenges in 2007 as credit problems that began in the U.S.
housing sector affected important parts of the Company’s ratings business globally. Nonetheless, the Company
reported solid financial performance for full-year 2007. Revenue totaled $2,259.0 million, an increase of 11%
from $2,037.1 million for the same period of 2006. Operating income was $1,131.0 million and included
restructuring charges of $50.0 million. Diluted earnings per share of $2.58 included a $0.19 per share benefit
from the settlement of a legacy tax matter in the second quarter of 2007 and an 30.11 per share charge related to
restructuring actions. Excluding the 2007 restructuring charge and the 2006 gain on building sale of $160.6
million, operating income of $1,181.0 for 2007 grew 7% from $1,098.9 million in 2006. Excluding the
adjustments listed above and the impact of legacy tax matters in both years, diluted earnings per share were
$2.50, 11% higher than $2.25 in 2006.

The Committee determined a 16.7 percent negative adjustment with respect to Mr. McDaniel’s annual cash
incentive award, a zero percent negative adjustment to the formulaic outcome of Ms. Huber and Messrs.
Clarkson and Goggins’ annual cash incentive awards, and a positive adjustment with respect to Mr. Almeida’s
annual cash incentive award amount.

In addition, as the Committee determined that the formulaic funding of Ms. Huber and Mr. Clarkson’s cash
incentive amounts would have led to an inappropriately sharp drop in their compensation given their
performance, these two officers received a discretionary bonus outside of the EPIC plan.

In considering the appropriate adjustments to the formulaic bonus results for Mr. Clarkson and
Mr. Almeida, the Committee took into account the fact that their bonus targets and preliminary funding formulae
were set prior to their assumption, in August 2007, of their current responsibilities as President of Moody’s
Investors Service and President of Moody’s Analytics, respectively. In particular, the formulaic funding for each
was based solely on the financial performance of their previous narrower areas of responsibility rather than the
whole businesses which they led throughout the latter half of the year. For Ms. Huber, judgments about the
qualitative factors of her performance, including the implementation of various measures concerning the
financial and capital structure of the Company, contributed to the Committee's decision to not make a negative
adjustment.
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Comparisons against the peer group can only be made for the CEO, CFQ and General Counsel because
those are the only three Named Executive Officers with directly comparable data disclosed in the filings of the
peer group. For two of these three executives, the annual cash incentive awards in combination with base salary
amounts, fell below the 25th percentile against the peer group and between the 25 and 50th percentiles for the
third executive. Because the offices held by the remaining top paid executive officers of the Company’s peer
group were not similar in nature or scope to the remaining Named Executive Officers, direct comparisons are not
easily made.

As compared to the 2007 target data regarding the broader financial services market, the total cash
compensation for each Named Executive Officer was below the 50th percentile, except for Ms. Dering, who was
between the 50 and 75th percentiles. The Committee concluded that given the significant challenges faced by
Moody's in 2007, offset in part by the Company’s still solid financial performance, total cash compensation
below the peer group’s 50th percentile and a significant decline in year over year incentive compensation was
appropriate.

Details regarding the annual cash incentive award payouts and the discretionary bonus payments to the
Named Executive Officers for 2007 are reported in the Summary Compensation Table on page 31.

Long-Term Equity Incentive Compensation

Moody’s long-term equity incentive compensation program is designed to reward the Company’s
executives, including the Named Executive Officers, for their individual performance, as well as for overall
Company performance over a multi-year period.

Long-term equity compensation also has been overweighted in recent years as compared to the data
provided by the Company’s compensation consultant with regard to the Company’s peer group. The emphasis on
long-term equity compensation, represented by a mix of stock options and restricted stock, aligns with the
Company’s focus on long-term credibility, contribution to overall company value and alignment with shareholder
interests. The long-term equity awards in 2007 were comprised of 50 percent stock options and 50 percent
restricted stock. The Company believes this was an appropriate mix in 2007 as the potential appreciation in stock
opticns provided long-term motivation incentives by rewarding executives for superior financial performance
and a strong growth orientation (both of which are well-aligned with shareholder interests), while the use of
restricted stock provided retention incentives and reduced the leverage in the plan so that executives are
motivated to take actions appropriate to achieving long-term financial performance. Restricted stock awards also
maintain appropriate motivational elements for annual performance through a performance-based vesting
schedule and any appreciation realized in the stock price as well as the potential for both accelerated and
decelerated vesting when the Company experiences strong or weak financial performance respectively, as against
the Company’s growth targets. The Committee continues to evaluate the mix of stock options and restricted stock
and has determined that in 2008 long-term equity awards for members of senior management, including the
Named Executive Officers, will be comprised of 100 percent stock options. This determination was made in light
of the recent decline in the Company’s stock price. The Committee believes that using 100 percent stock options
more strongly aligns our executive's long-term compensation with the interests of sharcholders, yet potential for
stock price appreciation serves as a strong retention tool,

Stock options vest through continued service over four years in annual 25 percent increments, which ensures
that an executive will realize value from his award only if the market price of Moody’s common stock
appreciates above the options’ exercise price at any time after the shares have vested. Similarly, restricted stock
awards are structured to provide motivation via potential stock price appreciation as well as the potential for
accelerated vesting when the Company experiences financial performance of greater than 15 percent growth in
operating income. An executive’s restricted stock award vests to the extent that the Company has achieved
specified performance goals. The vesting of shares in any one year is expressed as a percentage of “Target
Shares” which are equal to 25 percent of the number of restricted shares granted. If annual operating income
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growth is less than 10 percent, 50 percent of Target Shares vest; if annual operating income growth is between 10
percent and 15 percent (inclusive), 100 percent of Target Shares vest; and if annual operating income growth is
more than 15 percent, 150 percent of Target Shares vest. If the restricted shares are not fully vested on the fifth
anniversary of the date of grant (due to decelerated vesting in prior years), the remaining unvested restricted
shares will vest in full on the first trading day in March following the fifth anniversary of the date of grant
regardless of whether the specified performance goals have been achieved. Moody’s uses operating income
growth as the vesting performance trigger for these awards because it believes that this measure closely tracks
whether the Company is successfully building its business over the long-term.

In the years prior to 2007, year-to-year increases in the price of Moody’s common stock had materially
outpaced merit-based increases in cash compensation and led to significant shifts in the relative value of equity in
the total compensation mix given a constant equity utilization rate. Despite the Company’s intention to
overweight long-term equity compensation, it was determined that this shift was significant enough to warrant a
partial rebalancing of cash to equity compensation. In 2006, Moody’s addressed the shift in the cash-equity
balance by converting a portion of the value of the equity to incentive cash compensation for all Named
Executive Officers. Even with this partial rebalancing from equity to cash, Moody’s equity utilization rate still
placed it at the 75th percentile of the Company’s peer group in 2006, which Moody’s believed was compatible
with the role that equity plays in setting targeted total compensation levels for the Named Executive Officers.
This balance was not changed in 2007.

Long-term equity incentive awards for Moody’s executives are ultimately determined by the Committee
after reviewing market information provided by the compensation consultant. When Mr, McDaniel makes his
recommendation, he considers each individual’s performance and contribution to the Company for the prior year,
also factoring in his desired retention and incentive objectives for the individual.

The size and other terms and conditions of the equity awards are established at the Committee’s December
meeting. At that time, the Committee also sets the date at which the awards will be formally made the following
year, which is timed to follow shortly after the Company’s annual earnings release. Specifically, each equity
award is effective, and the exercise price determined, as of the third trading day following the date of public
dissemination of Moody’s financial results for the prior year (typically, the beginning of February). The exercise
price of the stock options is set at the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the grant date, Under
Moody's 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, “fair market value” is based on the arithmetic mean of the high and low
trading prices of Moody’s common stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange at the end of each trading
day. Equity awards are only made to Named Executive Officers in accordance with this annual grant process,
which has been, and will continue to be, the Company’s practice. Equity awards may also be granted on a
quarterly basis in relation to new hires and management promotions at the discretion of Mr. McDaniel based on
authority delegated to him by the Board. For the first three quarters of the year, the effective date is the first
business day of the following quarter; for the fourth quarter, the effective date is the last business day of the year.
The exercise price is determined by the same method as that used for the annual grant process.

The stock options that Moody’s grants to the Named Executive Officers are considered “performance-based
compensation” for purposes of the federal income tax laws. Consequently, compensation expense resulting from
the exercise of these options is fully deductible.

The grant date fair value of the long-term equity incentive awards made to the Named Executive Officers
during 2007 is reported in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table on page 33. It should be noted that Moody's
long-term compensation figures are comprised 100 percent by equity grants whereas, for some comparable
companies, tong-term compensation includes amounts from various sources. Additional information on these
awards, including the number of shares subject to each award, is reported in this Table.
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Total 2007 Actnal Compensation Payouts

For the two officers with directly comparabie positions in the peer group, other than the chief executive
officer (described below), one officer’s total 2007 actual compensation payout was above the 75th percentile and
the other was between the 25 to 50th percentiles.

As compared to the broader market data provided to the Company by its compensation consultant, total
2007 actual compensation payouts for four of the six Named Executive Officers were between the 50 to 75th
percentiles as compared to 2007 target data and one was at the 75th percentile. The payout of one Named
Executive Officer was above the 75th percentile; such executive has resigned and her compensation is described
in further detail below.

With respect to chief executive officer compensation, as compared to the Company’s peer group,
Mr. McDaniel's total compensation payout was between the 50 to 75th percentiles. As compared to the broader
market data provided to the Company by its compensation consultant, Mr. McDaniel’s 2007 total compensation
payout was between the 50 and 75th percentiles. The Committee considered the benchmark salaries of its peer
group and the market when determining Mr. McDaniel’s total compensation,

Additional Executive Compensation Policies

The Committee does not take into account compensation that would become payable to each of the Named
Executive Officers under certain existing plans and arrangements if the executive’s employment had terminated
under the specified circumstances or if there had been a change in control. Therefore, when discussing the factors
considered by the Committee when determining overall compensation, potential payments upon termination or
change in control were not included. However, to further the objectives of Moody’s executive compensation
program, it has adopted a number of supplemental policies, which are described below.

Retirement Benefits. Moody’s provides retirement benefits to its Named Executive Officers under a series
of defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans.

The defined benefit pension plans are the Retirement Account, the Pension Benefit Equalization Plan
(“PBEP”) and the Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan (“SEBP”). The Retirement Account, which closed to
new entrants effective as of December 31, 2007, is a broad-based tax-quatified defined benefit pension plan for
all Moody’s U.S. employees. The PBEP is a non-tax-qualitied defined benefit pension plan that restores benefits
to participants in the Retirement Account that would otherwise be lost due to limitations under the federal
income tax laws on the provision of benefits under tax-qualified defined benefit pension plans. The Retirement
Account, together with the PBEP, provides income upon retirement based on a percentage of annual
compensation. The SEBP is a non-tax-qualified supplemental executive retirement plan that provides more
generous benefits than the PBEP for designated executive officers, including several of the Named Executive
Officers. The Company historically had a SEBP plan in order to bring total compensation for U.S. executive
officers to a competitive level within the market. This has been an important factor in assisting the Company in
the retention of executives which is key to the Company’s long-term strategies.

Moody’s also offers its U.S. employees, including the Named Executive Officers, the opportunity to
participate in a tax-qualified defined contribution plan, the Profit Participation Plan {(“PPP”™). In addition, through
December 31, 2007, U.S. employees, including the Named Executive Officers, whose participation in the PPP is
restricted due to limitations under the federal income tax laws on the provision of benefits under tax-qualified
defined contribution plans, participated in the Profit Participation Benefit Equalization Plan (“PPBEP”). The
PPBEP was terminated effective December 31, 2007 and was replaced by a voluntary deferred compensation
plan in 2008. The PPBEP plan is a non-tax-qualified defined contribution plan that provides an annual credit to
each participant’s account in the PPBEP equal to the amount of the Company contribution that would have been
made to each individual’s PPP account if the participant had been allowed to continue contributions beyond the
limitations related to the plan.

26




These plans provide Moody’s U.S. employees with the opportunity to accumulate retirement benefits and,
with the exception of the SEBP, these plans are open to all eligible U.S. employees.

Moody’s believes that the total amount of retirement benefits made available to its Named Executive
Officers under these plans contributes to a level of total compensation consistent with its executive compensation
philosophy and the Company’s retirement benefits are believed to be generous as compared to comparable
companies.

The actuarial present values of the accumulated pensicn benefits of the Named Executive Officers who
participate in these plans as of the end of 2007, as well as other information about each of Moody’s defined
benefit pension plans, are reported in the Pension Benefits Table on page 37, The account balances of the Named
Executive Officers who participate in the Profit Panticipation Benefit Equalization Plan as of the end of 2007, as
well as other information about this plan, are reported in the Summary Compensation Table on page 31.

Employment Agreements. Moody’s does not enter into employment agreements with its executives,
including the Named Executive Officers. All of the Company’s executives are “at will” employees. This practice
is consistent with Moody's goal to maximize the amount of “at risk” compensation of its executives.

Severance Agreements. To attract and retain qualified individuals, Moody’s provides severance benefits to
its executive officers, including the Named Executive Officers. While having such a plan in place is an important
tool in Moody’s retention efforts, and is in the best long-term interest of shareholders, the plan is not designed to
reward individuals who have not performed to expectations or who have engaged in conduct that is detrimental to
the Company and its shareholders.

Accordingly, Moody’s Career Transition Plan (“CTP”) is designed to compensate executives in the
following situations: (i) where there has been a reduction in the Company’s workforce or elimination of specific
jobs, (ii} where the individual’s job performance has not met expectations (but does not involve a basis for
terminating his performance for cause), or (iii) where the Company has agreed with an individual that it is in the
mutual best interests of the parties to sever the employment relationship. For these purposes, “cause” means
willful malfeasance or misconduct, a continuing failure to perform his duties, a failure to observe Moody’s
material policies, or the commission of a felony or any misdemeanor involving moral turpitude.

The CTP provides payments and benefits to individuals for what Moody’s believes to be a reasonable period
for them to find comparable employment. It also affords both Moody's and the individual the motivation to
resolve any potential claims or other issues between the parties with finality, which helps minimize distractions
for management and protect the interests of shareholders. Finally, to protect Moody’s competitive position, each
executive, including each Named Executive Officer, is required, as a condition of receiving payment, to sign a
severance and release agreement that prohibits them from engaging in conduct that is detrimental to Moody’s,
such as working for cenain comnpetitors; soliciting customers or employees afier employment ends; and
disclosing confidential information the disclosure of which would result in competitive harm to Moody’s.

Under the CTP, an eligible executive is paid 52 weeks of salary continuation (26 weeks if he or she is
leaving the Company because of unsatisfactory job performance). During the applicable salary continuation
period, the executive receives medical, dental, and life insurance benefits and is entitled to make use of the
Company’s then-current outplacement services. In addition, the executive is entitled to receive any benefits that
he or she otherwise would have been entitled to receive under Moody’s retirement plans, althcugh those benefits
are not increased or accelerated.

Except where the executive officer is leaving the Company because of unsatisfactory job performance, he or
she also receives:
* apro rata portion of his actual annual cash incentive for the year (as long as he or she has been
employed for at least six full months during that year); and
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» financial planning and counseling services during the salary continuation period.

The CTP gives Mr. McDaniel the discretion to reduce or increase the benefits payable, or otherwise modify
the terms and conditions applicable, to an executive (other than to himself) under the plan. As a matter of policy,
if Mr. McDaniel intended to increase the benefits payable, any such proposal would be reviewed by the
Committee.

Moody’s believes that these payment arrangements are similar to the general practice among the Company’'s
peer group, although it has not benchmarked the severance practices of Moody’s peer companies.

The estimated payments and benefits payable to the Named Executive Officers assuming an event triggering
payment under the CTP as of the last day of 2007 are reported in the discussion of Potential Payments Upon
Termination or Change in Control on page 40.

In November 2007, after twenty years with the Company and its predecessors, Ms. Dering resigned from her
position as Executive Vice President, Global Regulatory Affairs and Compliance and remained an employee until
the end of the fiscal year. In addition to receiving 52 weeks of salary and benefits continuation under the CTP
and participation in the EPIC Plan, Ms. Dering was a participant in the SEBP. The SEBP features a “cliff
vesting” provision pursuant to which any SEBP participant who terminates employment before both reaching the
age of 55 and accumulating 10 years of service will have her SEBP benefits reduced by 60 percent of the
otherwise accrued benefit. The Board exercised its authority to waive the reduction in benefits for pre-age 55
terminations and grant Ms. Dering the full value of her accrued SEBP benefit, otherwise in accordance with the
plan terms. The Board also provided that Ms. Dering’s departure be treated as a retirement under the Company’s
equity plans. As a consequence, her restricted stock grants (other than the grant received in 2007) will vest in full
and all restrictions on such shares will lapse upon her termination and her unvested stock options (other than the
grant she received in 2007) will continue to vest and (together with her vested stock options) be exercisable for
five years from the date of termination or, if shorter, the remaining stated term of each option. Ms, Dering is
party to a separation agreement with the Company. '

Change in Control Arrangements. So that Moody's executives are motivated to pursue potential
transactions that would enhance the value of shareholders investments, Moody’s believes it is important to
provide certain arrangements upon a potential change in control of the organization. While Moody's does not
provide specific change in control agreements for its executives, the Company’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan
provides for accelerated vesting of outstanding awards, including stock options and restricted stock awards, upon
a change in control of the Company. A “change in control” is defined to include: (i) a person acquiring more than
20 percent of the voting power of the Company’s then outstanding securities; (ii) the shareholders of the
Company approving a merger or consolidation of the Company with any other corporation, other than a merger
or consolidation that would not change the current voting power position; or (iit) the shareholders of the
Company approving a plan of complete liquidation of the Company or an agreement for the sale or disposition by
the Company of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets. Relative to the overall value of the Company,
however, the value of this potential change in control benefit is minor.

The estimated payments and benefits payable to the Named Executive Officers assuming a change of
control of the Company as of the last day of 2007 are reported in the discussion of Potential Payments Upon
Termination or Change in Control on page 40.

Perquisites and Other Personal Benefits. Moody’s does not provide perquisites or other personal benefits
with an aggregate value of $10,000 or more to its executives, including the Named Executive Officers. Moody’s
believes this practice is consistent with the Company’s policy to maximize the amount of “at risk™ compensation
of its executive officers.
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Stock Ownership Guidelines. In July 2004, Moody’s adopted stock ownership guidelines for its executives,
including the Named Executive Officers, and its non-employee directors. Moody’s believes that these guidelines
encourage its executive officers to act as owners by requiring them to acquire and maintain a meaningful stake in
the Company, which helps align the executives’ interests with those of the Company’s shareholders.

The guidelines are intended to satisfy an individual’s needs for portfolio diversification, while ensuring that
Moody’s executives maintain an equity interest in the Company ownership at a level sufficient to assure
shareholders of their commitment to value creation. Executive officers are expected, over a five-year period, to
acquire and hold shares of the Company's common stock equal in value to a specified multiple of their base
salary (which varies based on position). The current required ownership levels for the Named Executive Officers
are:

Ownership Level
Named Executive Officer &
Raymond W. McDaniel ... ... . e 5
Linda 8. Huber . ... . e 3
Brian M. Clarksom .. ... ... . i e e 3
Mark Almedia ... .. . o i i it e e e 3
John 1. Goggins ... ... 3
Jeanne M. Dering . .. ...ttt e e e 2

Restricted shares and shares owned by immediate family members or through the Company’s tax-qualified
savings and retirement plans count toward satisfying the guidelines. Stock options, whether vested or unvested,
do not count toward satisfying the guidelines. The guidelines for an individual executive officer may be
suspended at the discretion of the Board of Directors in sitwations that it deems appropriate.

The actual stock ownership of the Named Executive Officers as of December 31, 2007, based on the closing
price of the Common Stock on December 29, 2007, was:

Actual Shares Value of
Named Executive Officer Target Value Owned Shares Owned
Raymond W, McDaniel .......................... $4,680,000 138,140 $4.931,598
LindaS.Huber........... ... . ... .. . i, 1,455,000 32,659 1,165,926
Brian M. Clarkson .............ccoiiiiiinennnnn.. 1,741,401 69,051 2,465,121
Mark E. Almeida .......... ... .. ... .o, 1,178,751 78411 2,799,273
John G. Goggins ......... ... il 1,083,000 31,693 1,131,440
Jeanne M. Dering . ........... ... ..., 943,600 60,328 2,153,710

On December 31, 2007, each of the Named Executive Officers, apart from Ms. Huber, exceeded their
ownership targets. Ms. Huber’s actual stock ownership is consistent with the guidelines as she joined the
Company in May 2005 and has a five-year period to meet her ownership target.

Tax Deductibility Policy. While Moody’s generally seeks to ensure the deductibility of the incentive
compensation paid to the Company’s executives, the Committee intends to retain the flexibility necessary to
provide cash and equity compensation in line with competitive practice, Moody's compensation philosophy, and
the best interests of shareholders even if these amounts are not fully tax deductible,

Section 162(m) of the Tax Code limits income tax deductibility of compensation in excess of $1 million that
is not “performance-based” as defined under the income tax regulations, paid to any employee who as of the
close of the taxable year was the chief executive officer or, whose total compensation is required 10 be reported
to shareholders under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by reason of such employee being among the four
highest compensated officers for the taxable year (other than the chief executive officer). Stock options awarded

29




under the Company’s shareholder approved stock incentive plans are performance-based, and any amounts
required to be included in an executive’s income upon the exercise of options do not count toward the $1 million
limitation. For other compensation to be performance-based under the regulations, it must be contingent on the
attainment of performance goals the material terms of which are approved by shareholders and the specific
objectives of which are established by, and attainment of which objectives are certified by, a committee of the
Board which consists entirely of independent directors.

Under Moody’s annual cash incentive plan for the Named Executive Officers whose compensation is likely
to be in excess of $1 million, annual bonuses are preliminarily funded on the basis of achievement relative to
quantitative measures of performance and then are subject to negative discretion based on the degree of
achievement of qualitative objectives. The Committee can also make positive adjustments based on achievement
of qualitative objectives, but such adjustments may not be tax deductible.
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table sets forth, for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the total compensation of the
Company’s Named Executive Officers. The Named Executive Officers for 2007 and 2006 include Moody’s Principal
Executive Officer, its Principal Financial Officer, the three most highly-compensated executive officers of the Company
(other than the Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer) who were serving as executive officers at the
end of the last completed fiscal year and details regarding one officer for whom, but for the fact that she was not serving
as an executive officer at the end of the 2007 fiscal year, disclosure would have been required.

Change in
Pension Value
and
Nongqualified
Non-Equity Deferred All Other
Stock Option Incentive Plan Compensation Compensa-
Name and Principal Salary Bonuos Awards Awards  Compensation Earnings tion Total
Position Year # ($)(1) ($X2) ($X(3) $) ) ($)(5) ($)(6) ($)
Raymond W.
McDaniel .......... 2007 $936,000 $ — $1,873,732 $2,066,087 $1,051,000 $1,302,492  §$147.244 $7,376,535
Chairman and Chief 2006 900,000 — 1,708,913 1,826,666 1,863,490 1,709,230 187,468 8,195,767
Executive Officer
Linda S. Huber ........ 2007 485,500 50,809 781,383 677,872 477,191 210,877 66,356 2,749,988
Executive Vice 2006 475,500 — 647,508 427,974 730,000 163,511 80430 2,526,923
President and Chief
Financial Officer
Brian M. Clarkson ..... 2007 580,467 39,924 874,411 976,468 391,076 302,289 78,758  3,243.393
President and Chief 2006 520,000 - 773,070 858,933 874,000 691,339 95,947 3,813,289
Operating Officer of
Moody's Investors
Service
Mark E. Almeida ...... 2007 392,917 — 412,523 446,273 401,000 27,964 43,502 1,724,179
Senior Vice President 2006 343,200 — 371,770 391,936 364,000 36,523 52,874 1,560,303
— President of
Moody’s Analytics
John J. Goggins ....... 2007 361,000 — 435,737 508,584 281,000 118,981 44,458 1,749,760
Senior Vice President 2006 351,000 — 393,496 475,764 412,000 174,761 50,898 1,857,919
and General Counsel
Jeanne M. Dering ...... 2007 471,800 — 588.424 1,103,363 287,932 448,600(7) 61,251 2,961,370
Executive Vice 2006 471,800 — 580,458 716,898 570,000 949,367 76,682 3,365,205

President — Global
Regulatory Affairs &
Compliance

(1} The amounts reported in the Bonus column represent discretionary bonuses paid to Named Executive Officers. The
Company paid no discretionary bonuses to the Named Executive Officers in 2006. For 2007, two Named Executive
Officers received discretionary bonuses paid on March 7, 2008. Payments under the Company’s annual cash
incentive program for 2007 and 2006 are reported in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column.

(2) The amounts reported in the Stock Awards column represent the portion of the grant date fair value of the restricted
stock awards made to the Named Executive Officers during 2007 and in prior years that was recognized as expense
for financial reporting purposes during 2006 in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123 (revised 2004) “Share based Payment” (FAS 123(R)), excluding, in the case of service-based awards,
estimates for forfeitures. The grant date fair value for the restricted stock awards is based on the arithmetic mean of
the high and low market price of the Company’s Common Stock on the grant date. The Company did not apply any
assumptions in determining the fair value of restricted stock awards for financial statement reporting purposes under
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(3}

)

(5

(6)

SFAS 123R. The actual amount that will be realized at the time an award vests will depend upon the market
price of the Company’s Common Stock at the vesting date.

The amounts reported in the Option Awards column represent the portion of the grant date fair value of the
stock option grants made to the Named Executive Officers during 2007 and in prior years that was
recognized as expense for financial reporting purposes during 2007 in accordance with FAS 123(R},
excluding, in the case of service-based option award, estimates for forfeitures. The assumptions made in
calculating these grant date fair value amounts, except as indicated in footnote (4} to the Qutstanding Equity
Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table, are incorporated herein by reference to the discussion of those
assumptions under the heading “Stock-Based Compensation” in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis
and Note 12 (in 2007) and Note 11 (in 2006 and 2005) to the financial statements as contained in the
Company’s Annual Reports on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 29, 2008, March 1, 2007 and
March 1, 2006. The actual amount that will be realized, if any, upon the exercise of an option will depend
upon the extent to which the market price of the Company’s Common Stock exceeds the oplion exercise
price at the time the option is exercised. The exercise price of these awards is equal to the arithmetic mean
of the high and low market price of the Company’s Common Stock on the grant date.

The amounts reported in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column represent the amounts earned
by the Named Executive Officers for 2007 and 2006 under the Company’s annual cash incentive program.
These amounts were actually paid on March 7, 2008 and March 7, 2007, respectively. For a description of
this program, see “Annual Cash Incentive Awards” in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis on page
18.

The amounts reported in the Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings
column represent the aggregate change during 2007 and 2006 in the actuarial present value of the Named
Executive Officers’ accumulated benefits under the Company’s Retirement Account, Pension Benefit
Equalization Plan, and Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan (“SEBP”). For a description of these plans, see
the Pension Benefits Table on page 37. The change in the actuarial present value year over year is largely
driven by the impact on the SEBP component of the following variables: one additional year of service and
pay; one less year of discounting in the present value calculation; and annual assumption changes (such as
the discount rate or mortality assumption). None of the Named Executive Officers received any “above-
market” or “preferential” earnings on nonqualified deferred compensation during 2007 and 2006 as the
Company did not maintain any nonqualified deferred compensation plans or arrangements for its
employees.

The amounts reported in the All Other Compensation column comprise the following compensation items:

Company Dividends or
Contributions Other
to Vested and Earnings
Perquisites Unvested Paid on
and Other Defined Stock or
Personal Contribution Option
Name Year Benefits(a) Plans(b) Awards(c) Total
Raymond W, McDaniel . .......... 2007 — $139,449 $7,795 $147,244
2006 — 184,307 3,161 187.468
LindaS.Huber ................. 2007 — 63,735 2,621 66,356
2006 — 79,680 750 80,430
Brian M. Clarkson ............... 2007 — 75,158 3,600 78,758
2006 — 94,404 1,543 95,947
Mark E. Almeida ................ 2007 — 41,815 1,687 43,502
2006 — 52,205 669 52,874
Johnl. Goggins ................. 2007 - 42,584 1,874 44,458
2006 — 50,049 849 50,898
Jeanne M. Dering ............... 2007 — 55,433 5,818 61,251
2006 — . 75,348 1,334 76,682
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(a) Perquisites and other personal benefits provided to each of the Company’s Named Executive Officers in
2007 and 2006 were, in the aggregate, less than $10,000 per individual each year.

(b) These amounts represent the aggregate annual Company contributions to the accounts of the Named
Executive Officers under the Company’s Profit Participation Plan and payments under the Profit
Participation Benefit Equalization Plan. The Profit Participation Plan is a tax-qualified defined contribution
plan. The Profit Participation Benefit Equalization Plan is a non-tax-qualified defined contribution plan that
provides a payment to each Named Executive Officer who participates in the Profit Participation Plan equal
to the amount of the Company contribution that would have been made to each individual’s Profit
Participation Plan account but for the limitations of the federal income tax laws, The payments were made to
the Named Executive Officers in March, 2008 and 2007,

(c) These amounts represent dividend equivalents paid on restricted stock awards that vested during 2007 and
2006.

{7} Because Ms. Dering’s Severance Agreement provides for the Company to provide Ms. Dering with unreduced
SEBP benefits at age 55, the amount reflected is the present value of the increase in her SEBP benefit.

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS TABLE FOR 2007

The following table sets forth, for the year ended December 31, 2007, information concerning each grant of an
award made to the Company’s Named Executive Officers in 2007 under any plan.

Estimated Future Aglggl: v
Payouts Awards:

Under Equity N .
: : umber  Exercise or
Estimated Future Payouts Under Incentive of Securifies Base Price

Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards Plan Awards(3)

Author- Underlying of Option Grant Date
Grant  ization Threshold Target Maximum Target Options Awards Fair
Name Date Date(l) (%) ($M2) 4] @ (#)d) ($/Sh)(5)  Value(6)
Raymond W, McDaniel ... nfa $1,372800 n/a
2/1212007 12/1172006 32,052 $2,330.661
2/12/2007 12/11/2006 102,800 $72.72 2,330,682
Linda §. Huber .......... n/a 519400 nfa
2/12/2007 12/11/2006 13,875 1,008,921
21122007 12/11/2006 44,500 7272 1.008,904
Brian M. Clarkson ....... nfa 780,000 nfa
211212007 12/11/2006 15434 1,122,283
21212007 12/11/2006 49,500 72.72 1,122,264
Mark E. Almeida ........ na 420,000 n/a
2122007 12/11/2006 7,093 515,768
211242007 12/11/2006 22,750 72.72 515,788
JohnJ. Goggins .......... nfa 306,400 n/a
2/12/2007 12/11/2006 7,561 549,798
2/12/2007 12/11/2006 24,250 7272 549,796
Jeanne M. Dering(7) ...... nfa 376,000  nfa
2N272007 12/1172006 9,354 680,176
21212007 12/1172006 30,000 72,72 680,160

(f) The Governance and Compensation Committee authorized the grant of restricted stock awards and stock options
for 2007 on December 11, 2006, to be effective on the third trading day following the February 7, 2007 public
dissemination of the Company’s financial results for 2007, which was February 12, 2007.

(2) These awards were granted in 2007 under the Company’s annual cash incentive program. The Governance and
Compensation Committee determines the aggregate funding of the program based on the financial performance of
the Company, including the Company’s growth in operating income and earnings per share compared with its
intermediate- term growth targets, and uses discretion in determining individual cash incentive award payouts. For
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(3)

@

)

(6)

)

additional information on the annual cash incentive program, see the Compensation Discussion and
Analysis on page 18. Subject to the discretion of the Committee, the program has a minimum funding level
of 50% regardless of the Company’s financial performance in a given year which may be used to reward
designated executive officers who have achieved one or more line of business strategic objectives even
though overall Company performance would not otherwise warrant funding of the plan. These awards were
eamned during 2007 and were paid in March 2008. The amounts paid are included in the Non-Equity
Incentive Plan Compensation column of the Summary Compensation Table on page 31.

These awards were made under the Company’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated on
April 24, 2007. Subject to the Named Executive Officer’s continued employment through each vesting date,
the vesting of these restricted stock awards in any one year generally depends on the financial performance
of the Company. Twenty-five percent of the total number of shares subject to an award represents the
“Target Shares” for each vesting year. If the Company’s annual operating income growth in any one year is
(i) less than 10%, then 50% of the Target Shares will vest; (ii) between 10% and 15% (inclusive), then
100% of the Target Shares will vest; and (iii) greater than 15%, then 150% of the Target Shares will vest.
Notwithstanding the possibility of accelerated vesting in any year of operating income growth greater than
15%, no more than 100% of the total number of shares subject to an award will vest, and all shares will vest
in full, if not previously vested, five years from the grant date, subject to the Named Executive Officer’s
continued employment through such date, regardless of whether the specified performance goals have been
achieved. The 2001 Stock Incentive Plan provides that an award that is outstanding for at least one year
vests in full upon the recipient’s retirement. Dividends are accumulated and paid, without interest, when the
underlying shares vest.

These stock option awards were made under the Company’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and
restated on April 24, 2007. They are exercisable in four equal annual installments beginning on the first
anniversary of the date of grant. The first anniversary for the 2007 grants is February 12, 2008 and their
expiration date is February 12, 2017,

The exercise price of these awards is equal to the arithmetic mean of the high and low market price of the
Company’s Common Stock on the grant date.

The February 12th grant date fair value for the restricted stock awards is based on the arithmetic mean of the
high and low market price of the Company's Common Stock on the grant date. The February 12th grant date
fair value for stock options is based on the Black-Scholes option valuation model, applying the following
assumptions; an expected stock-price volatility factor of 23%; a risk-free rate of return of 4.790%; a
dividend yield of 0.44%; and an expected time of exercise of 5.7 years from the date of grant. The Black-
Scholes model is premised on the immediate exercisability and transferability of the options, neither of
which applies to the options set out in the table above. The actual amounts realized, if any, will depend on
the extent to which the stock price exceeds the option exercise price at the time the option is exercised.

Ms. Dering's 2007 grants were forfeited upon her retirernent.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END TABLE FOR 2007

The following table sets forth information concerning unexercised options, stock that has not vested, and equity
incentive plan awards for each of the Company’s Named Executive Officers outstanding as of December 31, 2007.
The market value of the shares that have not vested is based on the closing market price of the Company’s Common

Stock on December 31, 2007 on the New York Stock Exchange.
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Optlon Awards(1} Stock Awardsi2)
Equity
Incentive Equity
Plan Ineentive
Awards: Plan
Numberof  Numberof  Number of Awards: Equity Incentive
Securities Securlties Securllies Market Yalue of Number of Plan Awards; Market
Urnderdying  Underlying  Underlylng Shares or Unlts Unexrned or Payogl Value of
Unexercised Unexercised  Unexercised Option Number of Shares  of Stock That Shares, Units Ubcarued Shares,
Options Orplions Unearned Exercise Option or Units of Stock Have Not or Other Unlts or Other
# (0] Options Price Explration That Have Not Yested Rights That Have  Rights That Have
Nﬂe. Exercisable  Unmexercisable L] &) Date Vested (#) )33 Not Vested (#) Not Vested ($)
Raymond W, McDaniel . ... 39,740 0 $10.9916 12/21/2009 60,783 $2,169,953
44,120 0 10,7092 01/1972010
300,000 U] 14.0625 10/03/2010
230,000 0 19.9875 02/07/2012
212,000 0 21.2675 02/07/2013
123,750 41,250 32,4075 02/09/2014
83,750 83,750 41.6875 02/22/2015
28,555 85,668 63.0900 02/08/2016
0 102,800 727150 02/12/2017
Linda S. Huber (4} ........ 33,333 33,334 44,9850 07/0172015 25,236 900,925
11,250 33,750 63.0900 02/08/2016
0 44,500 C 72,7150 0211242017
Brian M. Clarkson ........ 29,300 0 21.2675 0240012013 28,273 1,009,346
61,875 20,625 32.4075 02/09/2014
40,200 40,200 41.6875 02/2272015
12,500 37,500 63.0900 02/08/2016
0 49500 72,7150 021272017
Mark E. Almeida ......... 70,000 0 14.0625 10/03/2010 13,389 471,987
50,000 0 19.9875 02/07/2012
46,000 0 21.2675 02/07/2013
24,750 8,250 32.4075 02092014
18,425 18,425 41.6875 02/22/2015
6,250 18,750 63.0900 02/08/2016
0 22,750 727150 02/1272017
John J, Goggins .......... 70,000 0 19.9875 02/07/2012 14,006 500,014
64,000 0 21.2675 02/07/2013
34,875 11,625 32,4075 02/09/2014
21,775 21,775 41.6875 02/22/2015
6,125 18,375 63.0900 02/08/2016
0 24250 727150 0271212017
Jeanne M. Dering .. ....... 126,000 0 14.0625 10/03/2010 0 0
100,000 0 19.9875 02/07/2012
92,000 0 21.2675 1213172012
56,250 18,750 324075 12/31/2012
33,500 33,500 41,6875 12/31/2012
8,750 26,250 63.0900 12/31/2012

(1) Option awards are exercisable in four equal, annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the date
of grant. The grant date for options is ten years earlier than the Option Expiration Date reported in this table.

(2) Subject to the Named Executive Officer’s continued employment through each vesting date, the vesting of
restricted stock awards in any one year generally depends on the financial performance of the Company.
Twenty-five percent of the total number of shares subject to an award represents the “Target Shares” for each
vesting year. If the Company’s annual operating income growth in any one year is (i) less than 10%, then 50%



of the Target Shares will vest; (ii} between 10% and 15% (inclusive), then 100% of the Target Shares will
vest; and (iii) greater than 15%, then 150% of the Target Shares will vest. Notwithstanding the possibility of
accelerated vesting in any year of operating income growth greater than 15%, no more than 100% of the
initial award will vest, and all shares will vest in full, if not previously vested, five years from the grant date,
subject to the Named Executive Officer’s continued employment through such date, regardless of whether
the specified performance goals have been achieved.

(3) Value is calculated at $35.70 which is the closing price of the Common Stock on December 31, 2007.

(4) The following weighted average assumptions were used in the Black-Scholes option valuation model to
estimate the fair value of the options granted to Ms. Huber in July 2005: (i) expected holding period—=6.0
vears; (ii) expected dividend yield—0.49%; (iii) risk-free interest rate—3.89%, and (iv) expected stock
volatility—23%.

OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED TABLE FOR 2007

The following table sets forth information concerning the number of shares of Commaon Stock acquired and
the value realized upon the exercise of stock options and the number of shares of Common Stock acquired and
the value realized upon vesting of restricted stock awards during 2007 for each of the Company's Named
Executive Officers on an aggregated basis. In the case of stock options, the value realized is based on the market
price of the Company’s Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange at the time of exercise and the option
exercise price; in the case of restricted stock awards, the value realized is based on the average high and low
market price of the Company’s Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the vesting date.

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Shares Number of Shares
Acquired Value Realized on Acquired Value Realized
on Exercise Exercise on Vesting on Vesting

Name ) ($) #) (3)
Raymond W. McDaniel ................ 74,300 $4.410,253 27,027 $1,793,162
LindaS. Huber ....................... — — 9,038 586,024
Brian M. Clarkson .................... 50,700 2,197,067 12,487 830,042
Mark E. Almeida ..................... 54,972 2,209,795 5,848 387,352
JohnJ. Goggins ............. ... .. ... — — 6,504 433,215
Jeanne M. Dering .. ................... — — 19,158 988,063
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PENSION BENEFITS TABLE FOR 2007

The following table sets forth information with respect to each defined benefit pension plan that provides for
payments or other benefits to the Named Executive Officers at, foltowing, or in connection with retirement.

Number of Present Value of Payments
Years Credited Accumulated During Last
Service Benefit at 12/31/07  Fiscal Year
Name Plan Name #(1) ($) (5)
Raymond W. McDaniet .... Retirement Account 19.5000 5 184,337 —
Pension Benefit Equalization Plan 19.5000 785,509 —
Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan 20.8333 7,078,350 —
LindaS.Huber ........... Retirement Account 1.5833 17,304 —
Pension Benefit Equalization Plan 1.5833 37,970 -
Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan 2.6667 321,114 —_
Brian M. Clarkson ........ Retirement Account 15.5000 160,869 —
Pension Benefit Equalization Plan 15.5000 498911 —
Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan 16.5000 3,723,124 —
Mark E. Almeida ......... Retirement Account 18.5000 153416 —
Pension Benefit Equalization Plan 18.5000 214,657 —
Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan 19.7500 —_ —
Jobn J. Goggins .......... Retirement Account 7.8333 63,516 —
Pension Benefit Equalization Plan 7.8333 109,035 —
Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan 89167 711,759 —
Jeanne M. Dering ......... Retirement Account 20.5000 206,735 —
Pension Benefit Equalization Plan 20.5000 379,338 . —
Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan 219167 1,634,908 —
Severance Agreement(2) 21.9167 2,452,498 —

(1) The credited service for the Retirement Account and the PBEP is based on service from the date the
individual became a participant in the plan. Individuals become participants in the plan on the first day of
the month coincident with or next following the completion of one year of service. The SEBP provides
credited service from the participant’s date of hire with Moody’s. For Mr. McDaniel and Ms, Dering, the
date of participation in the Retirement Account is based on an earlier plan provision that provided for
individuals to become participants on the January 1 or July 1 following the completion of one year of
service.

(2) The SEBP features a “cliff vesting” provision pursuant to which any SEBP participant who terminates
employment before both reaching the age of 55 and accumulating 10 years of service will have her SEBP
benefits reduced by 60 percent of the otherwise accrued benefit. The Board exercised its authority to waive
the reduction in benefits for pre-age 55 terminations and grant Ms. Dering the full value of her accrued
SEBP benefit, otherwise in accordance with the plan terms. The amount shown in the Severance Agreement
row reflects the 60 percent figure.

The Company provides retirement benefits to the Named Executive Officers under three defined benefit
pension plans: the Moody’s Corporation Retirement Account (the “Retirement Account”), the Moody’s
Corporation Pension Benefit Equalization Plan {the “PBEP”), and the Moody’s Corporation Supplemental
Executive Benefit Plan (the “SEBP”). The Retirement Account is a broad-based tax-qualified defined benefit
pension plan. The PBEP is a non-tax-qualified defined benefit pension plan that restores benefits to participants
that would otherwise be lost under the Retirement Account due to limitations under the federal income tax laws
on the provision of benefits under tax-qualified defined benefit pension plans. The Retirement Account, together
with the PBEP, provides retirement income based on a percentage of annual compensation. The SEBP is a
non-tax-qualified supplemental executive retirement plan that provides more generous benefits than the PBEP for
designated senior executive officers of the Company.
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Nene of the continuing Named Executive Officers are currently eligible for early retirement under any of
the Company’s defined benefit pension plans.

The assumptions made in computing the present value of the accumulated benefits of the Named Executive
Officers, except as described in the following sentence, are incorporated herein by reference to the discussion of
those assumptions under the heading *“Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits” in the Manragement's
Discussion and Analysis and Note 11 to the financial statements as contained in the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on February 29, 2008. The assumed retirement age vused in computing
the present value of the accumulated benefits of the Named Executive Officers was age 65 in the case of the
Retirement Account, age 65 in the case of the PBEP, and age 55 in the case of the SEBP,

The material terms in effect in 2007 of the Retirement Account, the PBEP, and the SEBP are described
below. Each of these plans was amended effective as of January 1, 2008. Therefore, future benefit accruals made
under these plans will be subject to revised terms.

Moody’s Corporation Retirement Account

All U.S. employees are eligible to participate in the Retirement Account after attaining age 21 and
completing one year of service with the Company. Participants earn one month of credited service for each
month or fraction thereof from the date they become eligible to participate in the plan. The Retirement Account
is a cash balance plan providing benefits that grow monthly as hypothetical account balances, which are credited
with interest and pay-based credits. Interest credits are based on a 30-year Treasury interest rate equivalent with a
minimum compounded annual interest rate of 3%. Pay-based credits are amounts allocated to each participant’s
hypothetical account based upon a percentage of monthly pensionable compensation. The percentage of
compensation allocated annually ranges from 3% to 12.5%. Each participant’s pay-based credit percentage is
based on their attained age and credited service. Compensation is based on actual earnings which include base
salary, regular bonus (or annual incentive award), overtime, and commissions. Severance pay, contingent
payments, and other forms of special remuneration are excluded.

Participants vest in their benefits after completing five years of service with the Company. Upon termination
of employment, a participant may elect to receive an immediate iump sum distribution equal to 50% of his cash
balance account. The remaining 50% of the cash balance account must be received in the form of an annuity
upon retirement at age 55 or later. The normal retirement age under the Retirement Account is age 65, but
participants who have attained age 55 with at least 10 years of service may elect to retire early. Upon retirement,
participants can choose among the various actuarially equivalent forms of annuities offered under the plan.

Moody’s Corporation Pension Benefit Equalization Plan

The PBEP is a non-tax-qualified defined benefit pension plan that restores benefits to participants whose
pensicnable compensation exceeds the limitations under the federal income tax laws on the provision of benefits
under tax-qualified defined benefit pension plans. For 2007, this limitation was $225,000. The provisions of the
PBEP are the same as those of the Retirement Accouni. Upon attaining age 55 with at least 10 years of service,
participants may elect to retire. Participants generally receive their benefit in the same annuity form as they
elected in the Retirement Account at age 55 or later. A lump sum form of payment is available to any participant
if at least 12 months prior to retirement or termination of employment he or she makes an election to receive a
lump sum distribution of up to 100% of his benefit upon retirement. The PBEP was amended as of Janvary 1,
2008 to provide that any participant who is an active employee of the Company or any subsidiary after
December 31, 2004 shall receive all of his benefits under the PBEP in a lump sum on the six month anniversary
of his separation from service with the Company or a subsidiary.

Meoody’s Corporation Supplemental Executive Benefit Plan

The SEBP is a non-tax-qualified defined benefit pension plan designed to ensure the payment of a
competitive level of retirement income and disability benefits to participants. A key management employee of
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the Company who is responsible for the management, growth, or protection of the Company’s business who is
designated in writing by the Chief Executive Officer and approved by the Governance and Compensation
Committee is eligible to participate in the plan on the effective date of his designation. The target retirement
benefit for a participant is equal to 2% of average final compensation for each year of credited service up to 30
years of credited service, for a maximum benefit of 60% of average final compensation. This target benefit is
offset by other pension benefits earned under the Retirement Account and PBEP, as well as benefits payable
from Social Security and other pension benefits payable by the Company.

Participants earn one month of credited service for each month or fraction thereof that they are employed by
the Company. Eligible compensation includes base salary, annual incentive awards, commissions, lump sum
payments in lieu of foregone merit increases, “bonus buyouts™ as the result of job changes, and any portion of
such amounts voluntarily deferred or reduced by the participant under any Company employee benefit plan.
Average final compensation is the highest consecutive 60 months of eligible compensation in the last 120 months
of employment.

The SEBP also provides a temporary disability benefit in the event of a participant’s total and permanent
disability. This disability benefit is equal to 60% of the 12 months of compensation earned by the participant
immediately prior to the date of disability. The disability benefit is offset by any other disability income and/or
pension income the participant is already receiving. Payment of the temporary disability benefit continues during
the participant’s period of disability, but no later than age 65. During the period of total and permanent disability,
a participant continues to earn credited service for retirement purposes.

Participants vest in their benefits after completing five years of service with the Company. Benefits are
payable at the later of age 55 or termination of employment. For participants who terminate their employment
prior to attaining age 53, benefits must commence at age 55 and their SEBP benefit will be reduced by 60% for
early retirement. If a participant or vested former participant retires directly from the Company after age 55 and
before age 60 without the Company’s consent, his retirement benefit is reduced by 3% for each year or fraction
thereof that retirement commences prior to reaching age 60, If a participant retires directly from the Company on
or after age 55 with the Company’s consent, benefits are not reduced for commencement prior to age 60.

The normal form of payment under the SEBP is a single-life annuity for non-married participants or a fulty-
subsidized 50% joint and survivor annuity for married participants. Participants may receive up toe 100% of their
benefit in the form of a lump-sum distribution by making a written election at least 12 months prior to
termination of employment.

NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION TABLE

None of the Named Executive Officers of Moody’s participated in any nonqualified deferred compensation
plans in 2007.
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POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CONTROL

The information betow reflects the amount of compensation that would become payable to each of the
Named Executive Officers under certain existing plans and arrangements if the executive’s employment had
terminated under the specified circumstances or if there had been a change in control on December 31, 2007,
given the named executive’s compensation and, if applicable, based on the Company’s closing stock price on that
date. These benefits are in addition to benefits that may be available to the executive prior to the occurrence of
any termination of employment, including under exercisable stock options held by the executive, and benefits
available generally to salaried employees, such as distributions under the Company’s tax-qualified defined
contribution plan and accrued vacation pay. In addition, in connection with any event including or other than
those described below, the Company may determine to enter into an agreement or to establish an arrangement
providing additional benefits or amounts, or altering the terms of benefits described below, as the Company
determines appropriate.

The actual amounts that would be paid upon a Named Executive Officer’s termination of employment can
be determined only at the time of such executive’s separation from the Company. Due to the number of factors
that affect the nature and amount of any benefits provided upon the events discussed below, any actual amounts
paid or distributed may be higher or lower than reported below. Factors that could affect these amounts include
the timing during the year of any such event, the Company’s stock price and the executive’s then current
compensation, '

Moody’s Corporation Career Transition Plan

Each of the Company’s Named Executive Officers currently participates in the Moody’s Corporation Career
Transition Plan. This plan generally provides for the payment of benefits if an eligible executive officer’s
enmployment terminates for one of several specified events: a reduction in force, a job elimination, unsatisfactory
job performance (not constituting cause), or a mutually agreed upon resignation. )

The plan does not cover employment terminations resulting from a unilateral resignation, a termination of
employment for cause, a sale, merger, spin-off, reorganization, liquidation, or dissolution of the Company, or
where the Named Executive Officer takes a comparable position with an affiliate of the Company: “Cause”
means willful malfeasance or misconduct, a continuing failure to perform his duties, a failure to observe the
material policies of the Company, or the commission of a felony or any misdemeanor inveolving moral turpitude.

In the event of an eligible termination of employment, a Named Executive Officer may be paid 52 weeks of
salary continuation (26 weeks if the executive officer is terminated by the Company for unsatisfactory
performance), payable at the times the executive officer’s salary would have been paid if employment had not
terminated. For this purpose, salary consists of the Named Executive Officer’s annual base salary at the time of
termination of employment. In addition, the Named Executive Officer may receive continued medical, dental,
and life insurance benefits during the applicable salary continuation period and will be entitled to such
outplacement services during the salary continuation period as are being generally provided by the Company to
its employees.

Except in the case of a termination of employment by the Company for unsatisfactory performance, the
Named Executive Officer also may receive:

* aprorated portion of the actual annual cash incentive for the year of termination of employment that
would have been payable to the executive officer under the annual cash incentive plan in which the
executive officer was participating at the time of termination, provided that the executive officer was
employed for at least six full months during the calendar year of termination;

+ financial planning and counseling services during the salary continuation period to the same extent
afforded immediately prior to termination of employment.
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The plan gives the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer the discretion to reduce or increase

the benefits otherwise payable to, or otherwise modify the terms and conditions applicable to, a Named
Executive Officer under the plan,

The receipt of any benefits under the plan is contingent upon the affected Named Executive Officer signing

a severance and release agreement that prohibits him from engaging in conduct that is detrimental to the
Company, such as working for certain competitors, soliciting customers or employees after employment ends,
and disclosing confidential information the disclosure of which would result in competitive harm to us.

The estimated payments and benefits that would be provided to each Named Executive Officer still serving

in that capacity under each circumistance that is covered by the Career Transition Plan are listed in the tables

below.
Potential Payments and Benefits Upon a Termination of Employment
By Reason of a Reduction in Force, Job Elimination,
or a Mutually Agreed Upon Resignation(1)
Cash
Payments in Medical,
Lieu of Dental, and
Performance- Life Out-
Salary Annual Cash Based Insurance  Placement
Continuation Incentive Awards Benefits Services Total
Name %) (%) % ($) ($) ($)
Raymond W. McDaniel ...... $936,000  $1,372,800 —_ — $25,000 $2,333,800
Linda 8. Huber ............. 485,500 519,400 — — 25,000 1,029,900
Brian M. Clarkson .......... 650,000 780,000 — — 25,000 1,455,000
Mark E. Almeida ........... 425,000 420,000 — — 25,000 870,000
JohnJ. Goggins . ............ 361,000 306,400 — — 25,000 692,400

(1) For purposes of this analysis, the following assumptions were used:

» the date of termination of employment was December 31, 2007;

e each Named Executive Officer’s base salary was the amount as of December 31, 2007 and is continued
for a period of 52 weeks; and

¢ each Named Executive Officer’s annual cash incentive is equal to 100% of the target amount under the
annual cash incentive program.

Potential Payments and Benefits Upon a Termination of Employment
By Reason of Unsatisfactory Job Performance
(Not Constituting Cause)(1)

Medical,
Dental, and
Life Out.
Salary Insurance  Placement
Continuation Benefits Services Total
Name %) (%) ($) (%)
Raymond W. McDaniel ................. .. .o iviinn. $468,000 — $25,000 $493,000
Linda S. Huber . ... i en 242,750 — 25,000 267,750
Brian M. Clarkson ........ ... it iieiirann, 325,000 — 25,000 350,000
MarkE. Almeida ........... ... .o 212,500 _— 25,000 237,500
JohnJ. Goggins ... ... . .. 180,500 — 25,000 205,500

(1) For purposes of this anaiysis, the following assumptions were used:
+ the date of termination of emptoyment was December 31, 2007; and
» each Named Executive Officer’s base salary was the amount as of December 31, 2007 and is continued
for a period of 26 weeks.
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Other Potential Payments Upon Termination of Employment

Except for the Career Transition Plan and as provided below, the Company does not have any other
contracts, agreements, plans, or arrangements that provide for payments to a Named Executive Officer at,
following, or in connection with a termination of employment or a change in control of the Company or a change
in the Named Executive Officer’s responsibilities.

The Company’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan provides for vesting of outstanding stock options and restricted
stock awards under certain circumstances as foltows:

* in the event of the death or disability of a Named Executive Officer after the first anniversary of the
date of grant of a stock option, the unvested portion of such stock option will immediately vest in full
and such portion may thereafter be exercised during the shorter of (a) the remaining stated term of the
stock option or (b) five years after the date of death or disability;

* in the event of the retirement of a:‘Named Executive Officer after the first anniversary of the date of
grant of a stock option, the unvested portion of such stock option will continue to vest in full during the
shorter of (a) the remaining stated term of the stock option or (b) five years after the date of retirement;

* in the event of a termination for any reason other than death, disability or retirement, an unexercised
stock option may thereafier be exercised during the period ending 30 days after the date of termination,
but only to the extent such stock option was exercisable at the time of termination;

* in the event of the death, disability, or retirement of a Named Executive Officer after the first
anniversary of the date of grant of a restricted stock award, the award will immediately vest in full;

* in the event of termination for any reason other than death, disability or retirement, after the first
anniversary of the date of grant of a restricted stock award, the award shall be forfeited; and

* in the event of a change in control of the Company, the unvested portion of all outstanding stock
options and restricted stock awards vest in full.

None of the continuing Named Executive Officers are currently eligible for retirement under the 2001 Stock
Incentive Plan.

Potential Payments and Benefits Upon a Termination of
Employment by Reason of Death, Disability, or
Following a Change in Control of the Company(1)

Restricted Stock

Stock Options Awards Total
Name 3 (%) ($)
Raymond W. McDaniel ........... .. ... ... .............. $135,816 $2,169953  $2,305,769
LindaS. Huber ... ... i i i i ienn 0 900,925 900,925
Brian M. Clarkson . ......... ... it i i i 67,908 1,009,346 1,077,254
MarkE Almeida .................... e e e 27,163 477,987 505,150
John J.Goggins .. .. ... i 38,275 500,014 538,290

(1) For purposes of this analysis, the following assumptions were used:
= the date of termination of employment or the change in control of the Company was December 31,
2007; and
» the market price per share of the Company’s Common Stock on December 31, 2007 was $35.70 per
share, the closing price of the Common Stock on that date.
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ITEM 3—STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL

Mr. Nick Rossi, P.O. Box 249, Boonville, California 954135, the beneficial owner of 1,200 shares of
Common Stock, as custodian for Katrina Wubbolding, has given notice of his intention to make the following
proposal at the Annual Meeting.

3—Adopt Simple Majority Vote

RESOLVED, Shareowners urge our company to take all steps necessary, in compliance with applicable law,
to fully adopt simple majority vote requirements in our Charter and By-laws. This includes any special
solicitations needed for adoption.

Simple majority vote won an impressive 72% yes-vole average at 24 major companies in 2007. This topic
was receiving the highest yes-vote average of any sharehelder proposal topic in 2007. The Council of
Institutional Investors www.cii.org recommends adoption of simple majority vote.

Currently a 1%-minority can frustrate the will of our 79%-shareholder majority under our multiple
supermajority provisions of 80%. Also our supermajority vote requirements can be almost impossible to obtain
when one considers abstentions and broker non-votes.

For example, a Goodyear (GT) proposal for annual election of each director failed to pass even though 90%
of votes cast were yes-votes. While companies often state that the purpose of supermajority requirements is to
protect minority shareholders, supermajority requirements are arguably most often used to block initiatives
opposed by management but supported by most shareowners, The Goodyear vote is a perfect illustration.

The merits of adopting this proposal should also be considered in the context of our company’s overall
corporate governance structure and individual director performance. For instance in 2007 the following structure
and performance issues were reported (and certain concerns are noted):

= We had no shareholder right to:
1) Cumulative voting.
2) Act by written consent,
3) Call a special meeting.
4) Elect each director annually.

5) Elect any director through a majority vote.

Additionally:
*  We could only cast a ballot regarding two of our directors in 2007.

= In 2008 we were scheduled to vote on only 3 directors:

Mr. Glauber
Ms. Newcomb
Mr. Mack

*  We had a poison pill with a 15% trigger.

»  Mr. Wulff, serving on 5 boards and who we will not be able to cast a vote for or against in 2008, held
seats on boards rated D by The Corporate Library:

Fannie Mae (FNM)
Celanese Corp. (CE)
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The above concerns show there is room for improvement and reinforces the reason to take one step forward
to encourage our board to respond positively to this proposal.

Adopt Simple Majority Vote—

Yeson 3

Statement of the Board of Directors in Opposition to the Stockholder Proposal

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends that stockholders vote AGAINST this proposal.

The proponent is requesting that the Company take action to eliminate the supermajority voting provisions
in the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws, as further described below, and replace them with
simple majority vote requiremenis. However, just as with amendments to the U.S. Constitution, we believe that
certain actions that could fundamentally alter or amend the Company’s governance structure should require more
than a majority vote, We believe that these supermajority voting provisions are tailored to promote stability and
protect stockholders by restricting actions by both the Board of Directors and by other stockholders unless those
actions enjoy broad support among our stockholders, and therefore that it would not serve the interests of
stockholders to weaken these key provisions.

Current Provisions. Almost all matters that are voted upon by the Company’s stockholders are already
determined by a majority vote of stockholders. The Board also has recently taken action to provide that a
majority vote standard will apply in future elections of directors. However, the Certificate of Incorporation
provides that an 80% “supermajority”” vote of stockholders is required for only a few types of stockholder
actions; specifically, to remove directors, 1o fill newly created directorships at a special meeting or to medify
protective provisions in the Centificate of Incorporation that: (i) establish the Company’s classified board
structure; (ii) provide that any action by stockholders is to be taken at the annual meeting and not by written
consent or at special meetings cailed by stockholders; (iii) allow the Board of Directors to adopt, amend or repeal
By-Laws; and (iv) restrict amendments to the Certificate of Incorporation and to the Company’s By-Laws that
are inconsistent with the foregoing provisions. Under Delaware law, an amendment to the Company’s Certificate
of Incorporation can be made only if the Board of Directors has approved and recommended the amendment to
stockholders. However, the supermajority voting provisions ensure that, even if an amendment to the Certificate
of Incorporation is approved by the Board of Directors, the change must be acceptable to the holders of most of
the Company’s stock in order to be enacted.

The Company’s By-Laws contain conforming provisions and also provide that a supermajority vote is
necessary to amend provisions of the By-Laws relating to (i} the size and constitution of the Board of Directors,
and (ii) the conduct and calling of meetings of stockholders.

Increased Stability and Improved Long-Term Planning, Due to the nature of our business, the Company
benefits from these supermajority voting requirements because they provide stockholders with enhanced
stability. The Company’s primary business of assessing and issuing credit ratings depends in part upon
maintaining the confidence of the marketplace and of regulators that the Company’s ratings processes are stable,
methodical and free from improper influence. The Board believes that the Company’s business reputation
benefits from stability at the corporate level, and the current voting framework promotes that stability by
buffering the Company from third parties seeking to bring about changes in the Company’s governance structure
that may have only a short-term focus.

The nature of the Company’s business and the economic and regulatory environment in which it operates
are unique and constantly evolving. The supermajority vote provisions serve to ensure that any changes a third

party may seek to affect are carefully considered by the Board and by stockholders, taking into account the
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interests of a broad range of stockholders. The Board believes that, due to the nature of the Company’s business,
the Company benefits from the existing vote requirements through enhanced stability and the ability to pursue
corporate strategies in a dynamic economic and regulatory environment.

Broad Consensus. In addition, fundamental changes in the Company’s corporate governance structure
should not occur without approval from a large cross-section of its stockholders. The Company’s limited
supermajority voting requirements afford protection to the Board so that its members may carry out their
fiduciary duties to all stockholders. The supermajority provisions guard against self-interested actions by one or a
few large stockholders and thereby allow the Board to maximize long-term value for all stockholders.

These supermajority provisions were adopted prior to the Company’s separation from The Dun & Bradstreet
Corporation and relate to fundamental elements of our corporate governance. The Board has carefully considered
this proposal and has assessed the arguments for and against eliminating the supermajority voting requirements.
The Board has concluded that it continues to be appropriate to maintain these provisions because they restrict
both stockholders’ and the board’s ability to effect fundamental changes to the Company’s governance structure
unless those changes enjoy broad-based support.

The Board of Directors therefore recommmends a vote AGAINST this stockholder proposal.

OTHER BUSINESS

The Board of Directors knows of no business other than the matters set forth herein which will be presented
at the Annual Meeting. Inasinuch as matters not known at this time may come before the Annual Meeting, the
enclosed proxy confers discretionary authority with respect to such matters as may properly come before the
Annual Meeting, and it is the intention of the persons named in the proxy to vote in accordance with their best
judgment on such matters.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2009 ANNUAL MEETING

Stockholder proposals which are being submitted for inclusion in the Company's proxy statement and form
of proxy for the 2009 annual meeting of stockholders must be received by the Company at its principai executive
offices no later than November 19, 2008. Such proposals when submitted must be in full compliance with
applicable laws, including Rule 14a-8 of the Exchange Act.

Under the Company's By-Laws, stockholder proposals which are being submitted other than for inclusion in
the Company’s proxy statement and form of proxy for the 2009 annual meeting of stockholders must be received
by the Corporate Secretary of the Company at its principal executive offices no earlier than January 22, 2009 and
no later than February 11, 2009. Such proposals when submitted must be in full compliance with applicable law
and the Company’s By-Laws. In order for a stockholder proposal submitted outside of Rule 14a-8 to be considered
“timely” within the meaning of Rule 14a-4(c), such proposal must be received by the Company on or prior to
February 11, 2009.

March 19, 2008
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Mail Procgssing
@ Sechon

Moody’s Corporation MAR ¢ LEuud March 19, 2008
Washington, DG
Dear Stockholder: 101

You are cordially invited to attend the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Moody’s Corporation to be
held on Tuesday, April 22, 2008, at 9:30 a.m. at the Company’s offices at 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich
Street, New York, New York.

The Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement accompanying this letter describe the business to be
acted upon at the meeting. The Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2007 is also enclosed.

Your vote is important. Please vote your shares whether or not you plan to atiend the meeting. In addition to
voting in person or by mail, stockholders of record have the option of voting by telephone or via the Internet. If
your shares are held in the name of a bank, broker or other holder of record, please check your proxy card or
other voting instructions to see which of these options are available 1o you,

Sincerely,

S

Raymond W. McDaniel, Jr.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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